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ISSUE OF COMMERCIAL PAPER AGGREGATING TO INR 50 CRORES (“COMMERCIAL PAPER")
BY NOMURA CAPITAL {INDIJA) PRIVATE LIMITED (THE “ISSUER"). THE COMMERCIAL PAPER TO
BE ISSUED UNDER THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT WILL BE LISTED ON NATIONAL STOCK
EXCHANGE OF INDIA LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE™).

Disclosure Document
Date: February 16, 2023

This Disclosure Document has been preparad pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 and the SEBI Circular No.
SEBI/HO/DDHS/PICIR /2021/613 dated August 10, 2021 titled “Operational Circular for issue and
listing of Non-converiible Securities, Securitized Debt Instruments, Security Receipts, Municipal
Debt Securities and Commercial Paper”, as amended or supplemented from time to time, solely in
connection with the listing of the Commercial Paper and does not constitute an offer to the public
generally to subscribe for or otherwise acquire the Commercial Paper to be issued by the lssuer.
This is only an information document intended for private use.

DISCLAIMER CLAUSE

THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT (THE "DISLOSURE DOCUMENT'} IS NEITHER A PROSPECTUS
NOR A STATEMENT IN LIEU OF PROSPECTUS. IT IS ISSUED SOLELY IN RESPECT OF AN
ISSUANCE OF COMMERCIAL PAPER AND IT DOES NOT CONSTITUTE AND SHALL NOT BE
DEEMED TO CONSTITUTE AN OFFER OR AN INVITATION TO SUBSCRIBE TO ANY SECURITIES.
NO OTHER DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT HAS BEEN PREPARED IN RELATION TO THIS ISSUE OF
COMMERCIAL PAPER OR IN RELATION TO THE ISSUER NOR IS SUCH A DISCLOSURE
DOCUMENT REQUIRED TO BE REGISTERED UNDER THE APPLICABLE LAWS. ACCORDINGLY,
THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT HAS NEITHER BEEN DELIVERED FOR REGISTRATION NOR IS IT
INTENDED TO BE REGISTERED.

THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT HAS BEEN PREPARED TO PROVIDE GENERAL INFORMATION
ABOUT THE ISSUER TO POTENTIAL INVESTORS TO WHOM IT 1S ADDRESSED AND WHO ARE
WILLING AND ELIGIBLE TO SUBSCRIBE TO THE COMMERCIAL PAPER. THIS DISCLOSURE
DOCUMENT DOES NOT PURPORT TO CONTAIN ALL THE INFORMATION THAT ANY POTENTIAL
INVESTOR MAY REQUIRE. NEITHER THIS DISCLOSURE DQCUMENT NOR ANY OTHER
INFORMATION SUPPLIED IN CONNECTION WITH THE COMMERCIAL PAPER IS INTENDED TO
PROVIDE THE BASIS OF ANY CREDIT OR OTHER EVALUATION NOR SHOULD ANY RECIPIENT OF
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THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT CONSIDER SUCH RECEIPT A RECOMMENDATION TO PURCHASE
ANY COMMERCIAL PAPER.

POTENTIAL INVESTORS ARE NOT TO CONSTRUE THE CONTENTS OF THIS DISCLOSURE
DOCUMENT AS INVESTMENT, LEGAL, ACCOUNTING, REGULATORY OR TAX ADVICE. EACH
INVESTOR CONTEMPLATING THE PURCHASE OF ANY COMMERCIAL PAPER SHOULD MAKE ITS
OWN INDEPENDENT INVESTIGATION OF THE FINANCIAL CONDITION AND AFFAIRS OF THE
ISSUER, AND LTS OWN APPRAISAL OF THE CREDITWORTHINESS OF THE ISSUER. POTENTIAL
INVESTORS SHOULD CONSULT THEIR OWN FINANCIAL, LEGAL, TAX AND OTHER
PROFESSIONAL ADVISORS AS TO THE RISKS AND INVESTMENT CONSIDERATIONS ARISING
FROM AN INVESTMENT IN THE COMMERCIAL PAPER AND SHOULD POSSESS THE APPROPRIATE
RESOURCES TO ANALYSE SUCH INVESTMENT AND THE SUITABILITY OF SUCH INVESTMENT TO
SUCH INVESTOR'S PARTICULAR CIRCUMSTANCES. IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF INVESTORS
TO ALSO ENSURE THAT THEY WILL SELL THE COMMERCIAL PAPER IN STRICT ACCORDANCE
WITH APPLICABLE LAWS. NONE OF THE INTERMEDIARIES OR THEIR AGENTS OR ADWVISORS
ASSOCIATED WITH THIS ISSUANCE UNDERTAKE TO REVIEW THE FINANCIAL CONDITION OR
AFFAIRS OF THE ISSUER DURING THE LIFE OF THE ARRANGEMENTS CONTEMPLATED BY THIS
DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT OR HAVE ANY RESPONSIBILITY TO ADVISE ANY INVESTOR OR
POTENTIAL INVESTOR IN THE COMMERCIAL PAPER OF ANY INFORMATION AVAILABLE WITH OR
SUBSEQUENTLY COMING TO THE ATTENTION OF THE INTERMEDIARIES, AGENTS OR ADVISORS.

NO PERSON HAS BEEN AUTHORIZED TO GIVE ANY INFORMATION OR TQO MAKE ANY
REPRESENTATION NOT CONTAINED OR INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE IN THIS DISCLOSURE
DOCUMENT OR IN ANY MATERIAL MADE AVAILABLE BY THE ISSUER TO ANY POTENTIAL
INVESTOR PURSUANT HERETO AND, IF GIVEN OR MADE, SUCH INFORMATION OR
REPRESENTATION MUST NOT BE RELIED UPON AS HAVING BEEN AUTHORIZED BY THE ISSUER.
THE INTERMEDIARIES AND THEIR AGENTS OR ADVISORS ASSOCIATED WITH THIS ISSUE HAVE
NOT SEPARATELY VERIFIED THE INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN. ACCORDINGLY, NO
REPRESENTATION, WARRANTY OR UNDERTAKING, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, IS MADE AND NO
RESPONSIBILITY 1S ACCEPTED BY ANY SUCH INTERMEDIARY AS TO THE ACCURACY OR
COMPLETENESS OF THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT OR ANY
OTHER INFORMATION PROVIDED BY THE ISSUER. ACCORDINGLY, ALL SUCH INTERMEDIARIES
ASSOCIATED WITH THIS ISSUE SHALL HAVE NO LIABILITY IN RELATION TO THE INFORMATION
CONTAINED IN THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT OR ANY OTHER INFORMATION PROVIDED BY THE
ISSUER IN CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUE.

THE CONTENTS OF THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT ARE INTENDED TO BE USED ONLY BY THOSE
INVESTORS TO WHOM IT IS ISSUED. IT IS NOT INTENDED FOR DISTRIBUTION TO ANY OTHER
PERSON AND SHOULD NOT BE REPRODUCED BY THE RECIPIENT. THE PERSON, TO WHOM A
COPY OF THE DISCLOSURE DQCUMENT IS SENT, {S ALONE ENTITLED TO APPLY FOR THE
COMMERCIAL PAPER. ANY APPLICATION BY A PERSON TO WHOM THE DISCLOSURE
DOCUMENT HAS NOT BEEN SENT BY THE ISSUER SHALL BE REJECTED WITHOUT ASSIGNING
ANY REASON.

EACH PERSON RECEIVING THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT ACKNOWLEDGES THAT:

-~ SUCH PERSON HAS BEEN AFFORDED AN OPPORTUNITY TO REQUEST AND TO REVIEW
AND HAS RECEIVED ALL ADDITIONAL INFORMATION CONSIDERED BY SUCH PERSON TO BE
NECESSARY TO VERIFY THE ACCURACY OF OR TO SUPPLEMENT THE INFORMATION
HEREIN; AND

- SUCH PERSON HAS NOT RELIED ON ANY INTERMEDIARY THAT MAY BE ASSOCIATED WITH
ISSUANCE OF THE COMMERCIAL PAPER IN CONNECTION WITH ITS INVESTIGATION OF THE
ACCURACY OF SUCH INFORMATION OR ITS INVESTMENT DECISION.
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32 Details of secured/ unsecured loan facilities/ bank fund based facilities/ rest of the borrowing (if
any, including hybrid debt like fareign currency convertible bonds (FCCB), optionally convertible
debentures/ preference shares) from banks or financial institutions or financial creditor, as on last
quarter end: (as of 31® December 2022)

Details of loan facilities, bank fund based facilities, other borrowings, etc.

Lender's Nature of Amount Principal | Repayment| Security, Credit Asset
name/ Name| facility/ sanctioned Amount date/ if rating, if classification
of the Bank | instrument (in Cr.) outstanding| schedule | applicable| applicable

NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA

33 The amount of corporate guarantee or letter of comfort issued by the issuer along with name of
the counterparty (like name of the subsidiary, JV entity, group company, etc.) on behalf of whom
it has been issued, contingent liability including DSRA guarantees/ any put option etc.

NIL
4, ISSUE INFORMATION
4.1 Details of current tranche including ISIN, amount. date of issue, maturity, all credit ratings

including unaccepted ratings, date of rating, name of credit rating agency, its validity period
(details of credit rating letter issued not older than one month on the date of opening of the issue),
details of issuing and paying agent and other conditions, if any.

Security Name Commercial Paper

Issuer Nomura Capital (india) Private Limited

[SIN INE3571L.14321

Issue Size INR 50 Crores (indian Rupees Five Crores only)
Face Value . INR 5,00.000 (Indian Rupees Five lakhs only)
Date of issue February 23, 2023

Maturity Date May 23, 2023

Rating of the Instrument (all credit ratings |[ND A1+
including unaccepted ratings)

Date of rating 21% Oclober, 2022, Revalidated - Feb 16,2023
Name of credit rating agency India Ratings and Research

Validity period of rating 20" Oclober, 2023

Rating Declaration [The Issuer hereby declares that the rating is valid

on the date of issuance and listing of commercial
papers pursuant to this disclosure document.
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1
[ Closing balance of gross NPA | - | - | - J

Movement of provisions for NPA FY 2019-20 FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22
Opening balance - - -
- Provisions made during the year - - -
- Write-off / write-back of excess provisions - - -
Closing balance - - -

N Details of any changes in the shareholding of the pramoter (of the Issuer) in the Issuer during the
previous financial year in excess of 26%:

NA
Digitally signed by Digitally signed by
VIPUL VIPUL JAMNADAS ARUN ARUN KUMAR
JAMNADAS cHaTwani KUMAR RAJAPPAN
Date: 2023.02.23 Date: 2023,02.23
CHATWANI 150626 +0530 RAJAPPAN  1s05:29 10530
VIPUL JAMNADAS CHATWANI ARUN KUMAR RAJAPPAN
Director Director
DIN: 00337576 DIN: 07943252
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Nomura Capital {india} Private Limited
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Road,Worli, Mumbai — 400 018, india s

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED (“COMPANY”) AT ITS MEETING HELD ON
MARCH 23, 2018

TAKE NOTE AND AUTHORITY TO BORROW MONEY:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 179(3) (d) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and all other applicable provisions,
consent of the Board of Directors be and is hereby accorded to borrow money, in the form of term loan
from banks, Non-Convertible Debentures (Secured/Unsecured), Commercial Papers, Inter-Corporate
Deposits or any other instrument as prescribed under the Investment Policy of the Company, from time
to time, for the purpose of the business of the Company on such terms and conditions and interest as
may deem fit and proper provided however that total amount borrowed shall not exceed a sum of INR
10 billion or 2 times the Net Owned Funds as at the end of March of the preceding financial year,
whichever is lower, at any point of time; .

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the following officials of the Company be and are hereby authorised to
execute the borrowing related documentation like letter of offer, deal confirmation note, master creation
form, post issuance filing with the RBI, exchanges etc. as per authorisation matrix below:

List A List B
Mr. Kishore Iyer Mr. Santosh Nambtar
Mr. Vipul Chatwani
Mr. Arun R
Mr. Sameer Kazi

Authorisation Matrix:

All the documents to be signed by any two person from list A jointly; or by any one person from list A
and one person from list B jointly

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director or the Company Secretary of the Company be and is hereby
authorised to furnish the certified true copy of this resolution.”

For Nomura Capital (India) Private Limited

Vl PU L Digitally signed by

VIPUL JAMNADRAS

JAMNADAS cratwani

Date: 2023.02.14

CHATWANI 152803 +0530

Vipul Chatwani

Director

DIN: 00337576 .

Address: Ceejay House, 11t Level, Plot F,
Shivsagar Estate, Dr. Annie Besant Road,
Worli, Mumbai - 400818
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Nomura Capital (india) Private Limited
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CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED (“COMPANY”) VIA CIRCULATION ON TUESDAY
FEBRUARY 07, 2023

ISSUANCE OF LISTED COMMERCIAL PAPERS ("CP™) BY THE COMPANY;

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the approval granted by the Board of Directors vide its resolution«ated
23" March 2018 and subject to borrowing limits set by the Board under Section 179(3)(d) of the
Companies Act, 2013 in the aforesaid resolution or as approved by the Board from time to time, the Board
hereby takes note of the proposal for issuance of Commercial Papers (CPs) to be listed on a recognized
stock exchange.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board takes note that the aforesaid proposed issuance and listing of

Commearcial Panerc ic for an amaunt un to Runees Five Hundred Croras which i within the averall annroved

limit of INR 10 billion or 2 times the Net Owned Funds as per Board resolution of 237 March 2018.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in continuation to the resolution passed by the Board, &t its meeting held on

09th October 2020, the following officials of the Company be and are hereby authorised to execute all

documents related to the proposed issuance and listing of commercial papers like letter of offer, disclosure
fi

i
o o et .
documents, dea! confirmaticn note, master creation form, post issuance

iling with Reserve Bank of India,

stock exchanges, Issuing and Paying Agents, or any other intermediaries etc. as per authorisation matrix
below;

List A List B

Mr. Kishore Iyer Mr. Prashant Pangam
Mr. Vipul Chatwanl Mr. Subeer Tiwari
Mr. Lokesh Jain Mr, Mukesh Jolly

Mr. Sameer Kazi Ms. Soumya Shetty
Mr. Santosh Nambiar

Authorisation Matrix:

All the documents to be signed by any two persons from List A jointly or any one person from List A and
one person from List B jointly.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any two Director of the Company or any one Director and the Company
Secretary jointly be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts and things and matters which may be
expedient to give effectto the issuance of the commercial papers and their listing on the stock exchange
including but not limited to executing / signing / e-signing any applications, letters, forms, authorisation
letters or any others documents or returns in this regard.

Nomura Capital {india) Private Limited
Registered in India o, UB7130MIH2008F TG1946 18,
A member of the Nomura group of companies
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SousRR

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director or Company Secretary or Chief Financial Officer of the Company
be and is hereby severally authorized to issue certified true copies of this resolution and make any
regulatory or statutory filings as they deem necessary from time to time."

For Nomura Capital (India) Private Limited ,
* Digitally signed by
VIPUL © VIPUL JAMNADIAS R

JAMNADAS | cHatwani
CHATWANL a5 rosac

Vipul Chatwani

Director

DIN: 00337576

Address: Ceejay House, 11% Level, Plat F,
Shivsagar Estate, Dr, Annie Besant Road,
Worli, Mumbaij - 400018

Nomura Gapital {india) Private Limited

A member of the Nomura group of companies
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Mr Vipul Chatwani

Chief Financial Officer

Nomura Fixed Income Securities Private Limited
Ceejay House, Level 11, Plot F,

Shivsagar Estate, Dr. Annie Besant Road,

Worli, Mumbai 400018.

February 16, 2023

Dear Sir/Madam,

Re: Rating of Commercial Paper programme of Nomura Capital (India) Private Limited
India Ratings and Research (Ind-Ra) is pleased to communicate the rating of

- INR5bn commercial paper: ‘IND Al+

In issuing and maintaining its ratings, India Ratings relies on factual information it receives from issuers and underwriters and from other sources
India Ratings believes to be credible. India Ratings conducts a reasonable investigation of the factual information relied upon by it in accordance
with its ratings methodology, and obtains reasonable verification of that information from independent sources, to the extent such sources are
available for a given security.

The manner of India Ratings factual investigation and the scope of the third-party verification it obtains will vary depending on the nature of the
rated security and its issuer, the requirements and practices in India where the rated security is offered and sold, the availability and nature of
relevant public information, access to the management of the issuer and its advisers, the availability of pre-existing third-party verifications such as
audit reports, agreed-upon procedures letters, appraisals, actuarial reports, engineering reports, legal opinions and other reports provided by third
parties, the availability of independent and competent third-party verification sources with respect to the particular security or in the particular
jurisdiction of the issuer, and a variety of other factors.

Users of India Ratings’ ratings should understand that neither an enhanced factual investigation nor any third-party verification can ensure that all
of the information India Ratings relies on in connection with a rating will be accurate and complete. Ultimately, the issuer and its advisers are
responsible for the accuracy of the information they provide to India Ratings and to the market in offering documents and other reports. In issuing
its ratings, India Ratings must rely on the work of experts, including independent auditors with respect to financial statements and attorneys with
respect to legal and tax matters. Further, ratings are inherently forward-looking and embody assumptions and predictions about future events that
by their nature cannot be verified as facts. As a result, despite any verification of current facts, ratings can be affected by future events or
conditions that were not anticipated at the time a rating was issued or affirmed.

India Ratings seeks to continuously improve its ratings criteria and methodologies, and periodically updates the descriptions on its website of its
criteria and methodologies for securities of a given type. The criteria and methodology used to determine a rating action are those in effect at the
time the rating action is taken, which for public ratings is the date of the related rating action commentary. Each rating action commentary provides
information about the criteria and methodology used to arrive at the stated rating, which may differ from the general criteria and methodology for
the applicable security type posted on the website at a given time. For this reason, you should always consult the applicable rating action
commentary for the most accurate information on the basis of any given public rating.

Ratings are based on established criteria and methodologies that India Ratings is continuously evaluating and updating. Therefore, ratings are the
collective work product of India Ratings and no individual, or group of individuals, is solely responsible for a rating. All India Ratings’ reports have
shared authorship. Individuals identified in an India Ratings report were involved in, but are not solely responsible for, the opinions stated therein.
The individuals are named for contact purposes only.

Ratings are not a recommendation or suggestion, directly or indirectly, to you or any other person, to buy, sell, make or hold any investment, loan or

Wockhardt Tower, Level4, West Wing, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai- 400051

India Ratings & Research Private Limited A Fitch Group Company ,,'
Tel: 49122 4000 1700 | Fax:+9122 40001701 | CIN/LLPIN:U67100MH1995FTC140049 | www.indiaratings.co.in



IndiaRatings FitChGI‘Ollp
& Research

A Fitch Group Company

security or to undertake any investment strategy with respect to any investment, loan or security or any issuer. Ratings do not comment on the
adequacy of market price, the suitability of any investment, loan or security for a particular investor (including without limitation, any accounting
and/or regulatory treatment), or the tax-exempt nature or taxability of payments made in respect of any investment, loan or security. India Ratings
is not your advisor, nor is India Ratings providing to you or any other party any financial advice, or any legal, auditing, accounting, appraisal,
valuation or actuarial services. A rating should not be viewed as a replacement for such advice or services. Investors may find India Ratings
ratings to be important information, and India Ratings notes that you are responsible for communicating the contents of this letter, and any changes
with respect to the rating, to investors.

It is important that you promptly provide us with all information that may be material to the ratings so that our ratings continue to be appropriate.
For the purpose of issuance of captioned commercial paper programme, this letter is valid for 30 calendar days from the date of the letter. Once
the instrument is issued, the above rating is valid for a maximum period of 1 year from the date of issuance. Notwithstanding the above, the rating
is subject to review on a continuing basis, with formal reviews being undertaken at regular intervals of no more than 12 months. Ratings may be
raised, lowered, withdrawn, or placed on Rating Watch at any time due to changes in, additions to, accuracy of or the inadequacy of information or
for any other reason India Ratings deems sufficient.

Nothing in this letter is intended to or should be construed as creating a fiduciary relationship between India Ratings and you or between India
Ratings and any user of the ratings.

We are pleased to have had the opportunity to be of service to you. If we can be of further assistance, please email us at
infogrp@indiaratings.co.in

Sincerely,
India Ratings

{73

Abhishek Bhattacharya
Senior Director

NomuraCapitallndiaPrivateLimited 16-February-2023
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Mr Vipul Chatwani s
Chict Financial Officer

Nomura Fixed Income Securitics Private Limited

Ceejay House, Level L, Plot I,

Shivsagar Bstate, Dy, Annie Besant Road,

Waorli, Mumbai 400018, v

Dear Sir/Madarm,

Re: Rating Leder for NCD of Nonura Capital (India) Private Limited

India Ratings and Resedrch (Ind-Ra) has taken the following rating actions on Nonwra Capital (India) Private Limited’s (NCIPL) Long-Term
fssuer Rating and debt instruments:

E4
iSEN B Date  of Coupen Size of Issue!Rating/Ontlook Rating
fssuance |[Rate (%) {million) Action

Enstrument
Long-term  Jssuexi~ - « - - INTY AAA/Stable Aftirred
Rating
Non-convertible w - - - INR7,500 INI> AAA/Stable Assigned
debentures
{(NCDx)*
Principal protected) - - - INR3,500 IND PPy Affired
equity-linked MEDAAAcT/Stable
debentures®
Short-ierm debi - - - 7 1o 3051NR5,000 IND Al Affireed
(comnereial paper; days
$ ]

* Yet to be issued

The suffix ‘emr” denates the excluston of the embedded market risk from the rating. The rating of the immiket-linked debentures is an ordinal
assessment of the underlying credit visk of the instrument aud does not factor in the market visk that wvestors in such instruments will assume. This
mavket risk stems from the {act thaf coupon payment on these instruments will be based ou the performauce of a reference index or equity share
detailed in the iformation memorandum of (8 issue. )

v

PP-MLIY refers (o full principal protection in the equity-linked notes, wherein the issuer is obligated to pay the [l principal upon maturity..

[n issuing and maitaining its ratings, India Ratings relies on factual information it receives from issuers and underwriters and from other sources
India Ratings believes (o be credible. India Ratings conducts a reasonable investigation of the factual nfortnation relied upon by it in accordance
with its ratings methedology, and obtaing reasonable verification of that information from mdependent sourees, to the extent such sources arc

india Ratings & Research Private Limited ATFitch Group Compa oy
Wockhardt Tower, Level 2, West Wing, Bandra Rurla Complex, Banira (£), Mumbal - 200051 &\
Tel: 491 22 4000 1700 | Fax:+9122 4000 1701 | CIN/ULPIN: UGT 1O0MEL99 5FTC 140049 i
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available for a given sceurity.

The nanncr of Tndia Ratings factual investgation and the scope of the third-purty verification it sbtains will vary depending oo the maure of the
rated seeurity and s wauen the requirements aod practices in India where the ruted secunity s offered and sold, the availability and nature of
refevant public wformation, access (o the management of the ssuer and ifs advisers, the availability of pre-existing third-party vedificntions such as
audit feporls, agreed-opon procedures letters, appraisals, actuarial reparts, engineering reports, legal opinions and other reports provided by third
parties. the availability of independent and competent third-patty verification sowces with respect o the pavticular seeurity or i the particular

jurisdiction of the issuer, and a variety of other factors,

Us

of the mformation Tndia Ratings relies on in connection with & rating will be aceurate and complete. Ullnately the issuer and its gdvisers ave

srg of [ndia Ratings ratings shondd widerstamd dhat neither an enhanced factual investigation nor any thivd-paety verification can engure that all

responsible {or the aceutacy of the information they provide to Tndia Ratings and to the markel in offering documents and other reports, Ta issuing
its ratings Tndia Ratngs must rely oo the wark of experts, inchuding independent auditors with respect 1o Tinanciad statenents and attormeys with
respect to legal and fax mattors, Further, ratings are mherently forward-looking and embody assumptions and predictions abour future cvents that

by their mature cannot be verified as facts, As a result, despite any verification of current facts, ratings can be affecred by future events or

conditions that were not anticipated al the time a rating was issued or affimed,

i Ratings seeks to continuously improve its ratings crileria and methodologics, and periodically updates the descriptions on its website of its

criterfa and methodologies for securities of @ given type, The eriteria and methodology vsed to deterimine a vatiog action are those in effeet at the

. . . N . ~ . . . - . . - & . -

time the rating action is takes, which for public ratings is the date of the relued rating action cormpeniary. Tach rating action conmentary provides
information about the criteria and methadology wsed W arrive at the stated rating, which may differ from the general eriteriz and wethodology for
ihe applicable securily type posted on the websile al a given lime, For this veason. you should always consull the applicable rating action

commentary for the most accurate infonmation on the basis of any given public rating,

Rati continuously cvaluating and updating. Therefore, ratings are the

collective work product of India Ratings and no individual, or group of individuals, i

s are basced on established criteria and methodologies that India Ratings 1
I Ja

solely responsible for @ rating. All India Ratings reports have
shared authorship, Tndividuals identificd in an India Ratings repurt were involved in, but wre not solely responsible Tor, the opinions stated therein,

The individuals arc named for contact purposcs only.

Ratings are not a recommendation or sugecestion, dircetly or indirectly. to you or any other person, to buy, sel, make or hold any investment, loan or
sceurity or to undertake any fovestnent strategy with respeet to any fivestent, loan or secuety or any issuer. Ratings do not comment on the
adequacy of market price. the suitability of any investiment, loan or sceurity for a particular investor {including without limitation, any accouating
andfor regulatory treatment), or the tax-exempt natire or taxability of payments made in respeet of any investment, loan or security. India Ratings

is not your advisor, nor 8 India Ratings providing to you or any other party any financial advice, or any legal, auditing, aecounting, appraisal.

5. Investors may find India Ratingg

valuation or actuarial services, A vating should not be viewed as a veplicement for such advice or servic
ratings to be important information, and India Ratings notes that you are responsible for communicating the contents of this fetter, and any changes

with respeet to the eating, to nveslors.

YUwill be irportant that you promptly provide us with all information that may be material to the ratings so hat our ratings continue to be
appropriate. Ratings may be raised, lowered, withdrawn, or placed on Rating Wateh due to ¢hanges n, additions to, aceuracy of or the madequacy

3

of information or for any ofhier reason India Ratings deems sufficient.

Nothing in this letter is intended to or should be construed as creating a fiduciary relationship tictween India Ratings and you or between India

Ratings and any user of the ratings.
f= " },‘

In this fetter, “India Ratings™ means dia Ratings & Rescarch Pvt. Lid. and any successor i interest,

-
It

We are pleased to have had the opportunity 0 he of service o you 16 we can be of fwther assistance, please enmil us af

infopgindiaratings. co.in

Sinverely,

Tdia Ratings

21-October-2022
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W i MWJ
Prakash Agarwal
Divector

NomuraCapitalindiaPrivateLimited

e
Karan Gupta
Director

21-October-2022




Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Independent Auditors’ report

To the Members of Nomura Capital (India) Private Limited

Report on audit of the financial statements

Opinion

1.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Nomura Capital (India) Private
Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2020, and the
statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), statement of changes
in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2020, and total comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other
comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

4.

We draw your attention to Note 45 to the financial statements, which describes the
management’sassessment of the impact of the outbreak of Coronavirus (Covid-19) on the
business operations of the Company. The management believes that no adjustments are
required in the financial statements as it does not impact the current financial year. However,
in view of the highly uncertain economic environment, a definitive assessment of the impact on
the subsequent periods is highly dependent upon circumstances as they evolve. Our opinion is
not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board of Directors’ report, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, 252, Veer Savarkar Marg, Shivaji Park, Dadar (West), Mumbai 400028
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Report on audit of the Financial Statements
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent

- with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to

be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial
statements

6.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted 1n India, including
the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
jndgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial conirols, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of
Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

8.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

10. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

11.

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

12.

13.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the Annexure B a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.
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(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure A”.

{g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and Lo the besti
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at March 31, 2020 on its
financial position in its financial statements — Refer Note 40 to the financial statements.

ii. The Company has made provision as at March 31, 2020, as required under the applicable
law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, on long-term contracts -
Refer Note 6 to the financial statements. The Company did not have any derivaiive
contracts as at Mar 31, 2020.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2020.

iv. The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2020.

14. The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are applicable only to public
companies. Accordingly, reporting under Section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable to the

Company.
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016
VIVEK RATNESHWAR Digialysigned by vivex
RATNESHWAR PRASAD
PRASAD © Date: 2020.06.23 19:30:35 +05'30"
Vivek Prasad
Partner
Mumbai Membership Number: 104941

June 23, 2020 UDIN: 20104941AAAADN5077
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 13(f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Nomura
Capital (India) Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Nomura
Capital (India) Private Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit
of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2, The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements.
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Referred to in paragraph 13(f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Nomura
Capital (India) Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
Page 2 of 2

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinioi

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Also refer paragraph

4 of the main audit report.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016
Digitally signed by VIVEK

VIVEK RATNESHWAR RATNESHWAR PRASAD

PRASAD - Date:2020.06.23 19:31:20
+05'30'
Vivek Prasad ,
Partner
Mumbai Membership Number: 104941

June 23, 2020 UDIN: 20104941AAAADN5077
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Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Nomura
Capital (India) Private Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2020

i.

ii.

iii.

(a)

The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation, of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the Management during the

(c)

vii. (a)

(b)

year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the
frequency of verification is reasonable.

The Company does not own any immovable properties as disclosed in Note g on fixed assets to
the financial statements. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(i)(c) of the said Order are not
applicable to the Company.

The Company did not hold any inventory during the year. Therefore, the provisions of Clause
3(ii) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of
the Act. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(b) and (iii)(c) of the said Order
are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments, or provided any guarantees
or security to the parties covered under Section 185 and 186. Therefore, the provisions of
Section 185 and Section 186(1) are not applicable to the Company. The Company is a Non-
Banking Financial Company registered with Reserve Bank of India and consequently other
provisions of Section 186 are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73,
74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified.

The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing the undisputed
statutory dues in respect of income tax, though there has been a slight delay in one case, and is
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund, cess, goods and
service tax and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no dues of goods and service tax, duty of excise and value added tax
which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. The particulars of dues of income tax
as at March 31, 2020 which have not been deposited on account of a dispute, are as follows:
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Referred to in paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Nomura
Capital (India) Private Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2020

viii.

ix.

xi.

xii.

Name of | Nature of dues Amount Period to | Forum
the (Rs. In million) | which the | where the
statute amount dispute is
relates pending
Income Tax | Disallowance of 9.49 (Amount of AY 2012-13 | Commissioner
Act, 1961 Mark to Market Rs. 1.50 paid of Income Tax
Loss on Debentures | under protest to (Appeals)
the tax
authorities)
Income Tax | Disallowance of 04.01 (Amount of | AY 2013-14 | Commissioner
Act, 1961 Mark to Market Rs. 14.2 paid of Income Tax
Loss on Debentures | under protest to (Appeals)
and taxing of Mark | the tax
to Market Gain on authorities)
Derivatives.
Income Tax | Disallowance of 20.77 (Amount of | AY 2014-15 | Commissioner
Act, 1961 Mark to Market Rs. 3.20 paid of Income Tax
Loss on Debentures | under protest to (Appeals)
and taxing of Mark | the tax
to Market Gain on authorities)
Derivatives.
Income Tax | Disallowance of 8.6% AY 2015-16 | Commissioner
Act, 1961 Mark to Market of Income Tax
Loss on Debentures (Appeals)

* Amount has been adjusted from refund of the same year

As the Company docs not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution or bank
or Government, nor has it issued any debentures as at the balance sheet date, the provisions of
Clause 3(viii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer
(including debt instruments) and term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(ix) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material
fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported
during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are applicable only to public
companies. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company. Also refer paragraph 14 of our main audit report.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
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Referred to in paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Nomura
Capital (India) Private Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2020

xiii. The Company has entered into transactions with related parties as defined under Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the
Act. However, these parties being either holding company or fellow subsidiaries, Section 188
shall not apply, as the Company is a private company, as per Ministry of Corporate Affairs’
Notification dated June 05, 2015.

xiv. The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully
or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of
Clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

Xv. The Company has not entered into any non cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

XVi. The Company is required to, and has been registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank

of India Act, 1934 as an Non-Banking Financial Institution without accepting public deposits.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016
Digitally signed by VIVEK

VIVEK RATNESHWAR gaTNESHWAR PRASAD
PRASAD Date: 2020.06.23 19:31:53

+05'30
Vivek Prasad
: Partner
Mumbai Membership Number: 104941
June 23, 2020 UDIN: 20104941AAAADN5077
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Nomura Capital (India) Private Limited
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2020

Assets
1. Financial assets
a. Cash and cash equivalents
b. Receivables
- Trade receivables
¢. Investments
d. Other financial assets

2. Non-financial assets

Current tax assets (net)

Deferred fax assets (net)

Property, plant and equipment

Right of use asset

Intangible assets under development
Other intangible assets

Other non-financial assets

Q=000

Liabilities and Equity

Liabiiities
1. Financial liabilities
a Payables

- Trade payables
i. total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises
il. total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterp rises and small enterprises
b. Lease liability
c. Other financial iiabilities

2. Non financial liabilities
a. Current tax fiabilities (net)
b. Provisions
c. Other non-financial liabilities

Equity
a. Equity share capital
b. Other equity

Summary of significant accounting policies

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Note In & million {n & million

4 18.6 85.4
5 60.0 25,6
6 6,276.1 6,130.7
7 258.3 4491
8 46.0 50.7
32 246.9 83.0

9 0.2 -

10 64.3 -

0.2 -
9 0.1 0.0
11 0.7 0.7
TOTAL 5,971.4 6,825.2

10 68.1 -
12 20.8 1.8
13 4.1 4.9
14 12.4 10.7
15 2.6 2.2
108.1 29.7
16 1,300.0 1,300.0
17 5,563.3 5,495.5
6,863.3 6,795.5
TOTAL 6,971.4 6,825.2

3

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

This is the balance sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016
Digitally signed by VIVEK

VIVEK RATNESHWAR RATNESHWAR PRASAD

PRASAD Date: 2020.06.23 19:37:48
+05'30"

Vivek Prasad

Partner

Membership No.: 104341
Place: Mumbai
Date: June 23, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Nomura Capital (India) Private Limited

ARUN KUMAR
RAJAPPAN

Oigitally signed by ARUN
KUMAR RAJAPPAN

Date: 2620.06.23
1B:55:18 +05'30"

Arun Kumar Rajappan

Director

DiN: 05348107

SWATI
SHAILESH

SONAR

Digitally signed by
SWATI SHAILESH

Date: 2020.06.23

SONAR

Swati Sonar

18:50:47 +05'3¢"

Company Secretary
Membership No.: A48981

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 23,

2020

Vipul

Jamnadas
Chatwani

Digitaliy signed by
Vipul Jamnadas
Chatwani

Date: 2020.06.23
17:54.03 +0530°

Vipul Chatwani
Director
DIN: 00337576



NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2020

Revenue from operations

i. Interest income

ii. Dividend income

iil. Fees and commission income
iv. Other income

Expenses

i. Finance costs

ii. Fees and commission expense

iii. Net loss on fair value changes

v. Impairment on financial instruments

v. Empfoyee benefits expenses

vi. Depreciation, amortization and impairment
it. Others expenses

<

Profit before fax

Tax Expense:
1. Gurrent Tax
ii. Deferred Tax
fii. Tax Expense for prior years {net)

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
i. ltems that wili not be reclassified to profit or loss
{a) Remeasurement gain of the defined benefit plans
ii. Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit
orloss

Total comprehensive income for the year
Earnings per equity share

Basic (%)
Diluted (%)

Summary of significant accounting policies

Year ended Year ended
Note March 31,2020 Mareh 31, 2019
In € million In & million
18 655.3 5159
- 66.3
45.5 -
20 271 153
Total 727.9 599.5
21 54 7.1
22 15 1.9
19 475.0 292.6
23 7.4 22
24 54.7 46.8
25 7.8 0.2
28 65.7 81.7
Total 617.5 432.5
1104 167.0
32 205.7 91.0
32 (163.5) (58.3)
32 0.1 0.4
Total 42.3 3341
68.1 133.9
(0.1} 0.0
0.0 {0.0)
Total {0.1) 0.0
68.0 133.9
33 0.52 1.03
33 0.52 1.03

The accampanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
This Is the statement of profit and loss referred to in our.report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

VIVEK RATNESHWAR: Digitally signed by VIVEK
/ “RATNESHWAR PRASAD
PRASAD

Date: 2020.06.23 19:39:00 +05'3¢'
Vivek Prasad

Partner

Membership No.: 104941
Place: Mumbai

Date: June 23, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Nomura Capital {india} Private Limited

ARUN Digtalysignedy Vipul
KUMAR i Jamnadas
RAJAPPAN u:;é.oe»os'zn' Chatwani
Arun Kumar Rajappan

Director Director
DiN: 05348107

Digitally signed by
SWAT' SWATI SBAILESH

SHAILESH," sonar
Date: 2020.06.23

SONAR. " 15t:34 s0550°
Swati Sonar

Company Secretary
Membership No.; A48981
Place: Mumbai

Date: June 23, 2020

Digitally signed by
Vipul lamnadas
Chatwani

Date: 2020.06.23
17:55:47 +05'30"

Vipul Chatwani

DIN: 00337576



NOMURA CAPITAL {INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2020

Year ended

Year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31,2019

In € million in ¥ mitlion
Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit before taxation 110.4 167.0
Adjustments for:
Amortisation - 0.2
Depreciation on right of use asset 78 -
Provision created on good and service tax asset (3.5) (1.3}
Interast on right of use tiahility 54 -
Unrealised oss on corporate bonds 687.8 1977
Impairment on financial instruments (measured at amortised cost] 74 22
Discount on commercial paper issuance - 7.1
Recaognisation of stock appreciation right payments to employees 1.0 241
Interest ufs 234C of Income Tax Act, 1961 1.9 0.2
Actuarial gaind{lnss) on definad benelit plans (0.1) 0.0
Operating profit before working capital changes 818.1 375.2
Changes in working capital :
Decrease / (increase) in receivables {34 4) 455
Decrease / {Increase) in investments (840.6} 519.7
Uecrease / {Increase) in other financial assets i80.7 {77.6}
Dacrease / (Increase} in other non-financial assets 35 2.1
Increase / {Decrease) in other financlal liabilities 9.0 8.3}
ncrease / {Decrease) in provisions 17 19
Inurease | (Decrease) in otber nop-financial fiabilities 04 1.2
Cagh generatad from oparatione 1484 R83.7
Payment of taxes (net of refurds}) {203.7) {08.6)
Net cash (used in)/genarated from eperating activities (A) {85.3) 7651
Cash flow from investing activities
Sale / {Purchase) of property, plant and equipement 0.2)
Salo / (Purchase] of intangible assets {0.3; -
Nat cash {used in} invasting activities {8 ) {0.5) -
Cash fiow from financing activities
Principal element of lease payment (11.0) -
Commercial paper redeemed - {750.0y
Net cash {usad in} financing activities (C ) {11.0} {750.0)
Net {decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) {66.8) 151
Cash and cash eguivalents at ite beginning of e year 854 70.3
Cash and cash sguivalonts at tha and of the year 18.6 85.4
Non-cash investing activitles
Acquisition of right of use asset 721 -
Cash and cash equivalents comprices of:
Balances in Bank 18.6 854

The accompanying notes form an integral part of ihe financial statements.
This is the cash flow statement referred to in our report of even date
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NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31,

2020

a. Equity share capital

As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2019

No. of Shares in € million No. of Shares In & million
Balance at the beginning of the year 130,000,000 1,300.0 130.000.000 1,300.0
Changes in equity share capital during the year - - - -
Balance at the end of the year 130,000,000 1,300.0 430,000,000 1,300.0
b. Other equity in & million
Reserves and surpius Others
Contribution
; . from uitimate
Particulars Sp::;?;:‘s Statutory reserve | Retained earnings parent ~ Stock Totat
apgreciation
rights reserve
Batance at April 01, 2018 3,2479 4229 1.,682.9 5.8 5,359.5
Profit for the year - - 1339 - 1338
Other comprehensive income . - 0.0 0.0
Transfer (fromfto statutory reserve - 268 (26.8) -
Stock appreciation fghts expense - - - 2.1 21
Balance at March 31, 2019 3.247.9 448.7 4,780.0 7.2 5,495.5
Change in accounting policy = - {1.2) - {1.2)
Restated balance as at April 01, 2018 3.247.9 449.7 1,788.8 7.9 5,494.3
Proftt for the year - - 68.1 - 68.1
Other comprehensive income - - {0.1) - {0.1)
Transfer {from}fto statutory reserve - 13.6 {13.6) - -
Stock appreciation rights expense - - - 1.0 1.0
Balance at March 31, 2020 3,247.9 463.3 4.843.2 8.9 5,563.3

The accompanying notes forms an integrat part of financial statements,

This is the statement of changes in equity referred to in our re
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NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

1. Cerperate Information

Nomura Capital (India) Private Limited (the “Company”) is a company domiciled in India with its
registered office situated at Ceejay House, Level 11, Plot F, Shivsagar Estate, Dr. Annic Besant Road,
Worli, Mumbai - 400 018.

The Company was incorporated on August 04, 2009. The Company is a subsidiary of Nomura Asia
Investment (Fixed Income) Pte. Ltd., a Company incorporated in Singapore.

The Company received the Certificate of Registration on April 28, 2010 from Department of Non-
banking Supervision (“DNBS”) of the Reserve Bank of [ndia (“RBI”) lo commence the business of
non-banking financial institution.

The Company is primarily engaged in lending and investing activities.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 were approved by the Company’s Board
of Directors on Junc 23, 2020,

2. Basis of preparation

2.1 Complisnce with Ind AS
‘The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards
(“lad AS™) notified under Section 133 of the Companics Act, 2013 {the “Act”) [Companics
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 20157 and other relevant provisions of the Act.
The Company is covered in the definition of Non-Banking Financial Company (“NBFC”) as
defined in Companics (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016. Pursuant to Ind
AS 1 and amendment to Division 11 of Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013 on October 11,
2018, the Company presents its balance sheet in the order of liquidity. This is since the Company
does not supply goods or services within a clearly identifiable operating cycle, therefore making
such presentation more relevant. A maturity analysis of recovery or settlement of assets and
liabilities within 12 months after the reporting date and more than 12 months after the reporting
date is presented in note 43.
The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and poing concern basis. The accounting
policies are applicd consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements

2.2 Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

e certain financial assets and liabilities - measured at fair value;
e dcfined benefit plans assets - measured at fair value; and
e share-bascd payments - measured at fair value

2.3 Use of judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires that management
make judgments, cstimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and
the reported amount of assets, liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities as on
the date of the financial statements and the income and expense for the reporting period. The
actual results could differ based on these estimates.

Estimatecs and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis: Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods
affected.

Certain of the Company’s accounting policies require critical accounting estimates that involve
subjective judgments and the use of assumptions, some of which may be for matters that are



NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2020

inherently uncertain and susceptible to change. The policies that involve critical accounting
estimates include fair valuation of financial instruments, impairment of non-financial assets and
deferred tax. Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial
statements arc prudent and reasonable.

Critical estimates and judgments made under Ind AS are:

a.

® o o

Business model assessment and fair value of financial instruments — refer note 27
Estimation of expected credit losses — refer note 28 (11).

Estimation of defined benefits obligation - refer note 30

Estimation of current tax expense and current tax payable — refer note 32
Estimation of deferred tax assets — refcr note 32

2.4 New and amended standards adopted by the Company

The

Company has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for their

annual reporting commencing April 01, 2019

1) IndAS 116, Leases

2) Appendix C to IndAS 12, Income Taxes ~ Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

3) Amendment to IndAS 12, Incomc Taxes

The Company had to change its accounting policies as a result of adopting IndAS 116. This is
disclosed in note 44. The other amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts
recognised in prior periods and are not expected to significantly affect the current or prior
periods.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

3.1

3.2

Foreign currency fransiations

ltems included in the financial statements are mcasured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency™). The
financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (“¥”), which is Company’s functional and
presentation currency. Except as otherwise indicated, financial statements presented in
Indian rupee has been rounded to the nearest million with one decimal.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange ratcs arc generally recognized in
statement of profit and loss. ,

All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of profit and loss.

Income taxes
Tax expense comprises current income tax and deferred income tax. Current income tax is

measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the
Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of current year timing
differences between taxable income and accounting income for the period.

Deferred income tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax rcgulations enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred income tax assets are recognized
only to the extent that there are sufficient future taxable income will be available against
which such deferred tax assets can be realized.



NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at cach balance sheet date. The
Company writes-down the carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no
longer reasonably certain that sufficient future taxable income will be available against
which deferred tax asset can be realized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are off set when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets with liabilities and when deferred tax balances relate to the same
taxation authority. Current tax asset and liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income (“OCI”) or directly in equity. In this case
tax is also recognised in OCI or directly in equity, respectively

3.3 Goods and Service tax (“GST”) on acquisition of assets and services

Expenses and assats are recognised net of the GST paid, except:

- When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition
of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable

- When receivables and payables are statcd with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as
part of receivables or payable in the balance sheet.

3.4 Leases
Nomura Financial Advisory and Securities (India) Private Limited (“NFASI”), the
Company’s group company, has entered into lease agreement for office space. Of this, some
area is occupied by the other group companies i.e. Nomura Fixed Income Securities Private
Limited (“NFIS”) and the Company.
Till March 31, 2019
Leases where the Company is lessee:
Leascs of assets under which all the risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained
by the lessor are classified as operating leases.
Based on arrangement entered into by the Company with NFASI & Lessor, lease payments,
for the area occupied by the Company, is being billed, on a monthly basis, to the Company.
NFASI has the primary responsibility to comply with all terms and conditions of the lease
arrangement.
From April 1, 2019
Leases where the Company is lessee:
Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at
which the leased asset is available for use by the company. Contracts may contain both lease
and non-lease components. The Company will allocate the consideration in the contract to
the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices. However, for
leases of real estate, for which the company is a lessee, it has elected not to separate lease
and non-lease components and instead accounts for these as a single lease component.
Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis.
Lease liabilities include the nct present valuc of the following lease payments;
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a. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable,

b. payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the company
exercising that option.

Leasc payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in

the measurement of the liability. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate

implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the lessee’s incremental

borrowing rate (“IBR”) is used. IBR is the rate that the lessee would have to pay to borrow

the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-usc asset in a similar

economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Company, where possible, uses recent

third-party financing received by the lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in

financing conditions since third party financing was received.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

a. the amount of the initial measurement of lease lability,

b. any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received,

¢. any initial direct costs, and

d. restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the

lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Company is reasonably certain to exercise a

purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and all leases of low-value assets

are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in statement of profit or loss. Short-term

leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets comprise [T

equipment and small items of oftice furniture

3.5 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand balances and short term deposits with other
banks and other short-tcrm, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

3.6 Financial Instruments
a. Financial assets

i. Imitial recognition and measurement

Purchase and sale of financial assets are recognised on trade date, the date on which
the Company commits to purchase or sell a financial asset.
At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value.

ii. Subseguent measurement

Subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on the Company’s business
model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset.

There are three measurement categories into which the Company classifies its
financial asset - debt instruments:



NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

iii.

Financial assets at amortised costs

Financial assets arc classified under this category if the asset fulfills both the below

mentioned conditions:

a. The assets are held within a business model with the objective to hold the
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and

b. The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding,.

Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition is recognised directly in statement of profit

and loss. Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the statement of

profit and loss.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI™)
Financial asset is measurcd at FVOCI when both of the following conditions are met:
a. Tho instrumnent is held within a busincss model the objoctive of which is achieved
by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets;

b. The contractual terms of the financial asset meet the SPPI test.

When the financial asset is de-recognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to statement of profit and loss. Interest
income from these financial assets is included using the effective interest rate method

(“EIR™).

Financial Assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are
measured at FVTPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in statement of profit and
loss and presented net within Net gain/loss on fair value changes in the period in
which it arises.

‘T'ransaction costs of financial assets are expensed in statement profit and loss.

Impairment of financial assets

Overview of Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) principles

The Company records allowance for expected credit losses for all loans, other debt
financial assets, not measured at FVTPL, in this section all referred to as “financial
instruments™. Equity instruments are not subject to impairment under Ind AS 109.
The ECL allowance is based on 12 months’ expected credit loss; unless there has
been significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which case, the allowance
is based on the lifetime expected credit loss.

Lifetime expected credit losses represent expected credit losses that would result
from all possible default events over the expected life of the financial asset whereas
12 month expected credit losses are those life expected credit losses expected to
occur within 12 months of balance sheet date.

Both lifetime ECLs and 12-month ECLs are calculated on an individual basis
depending on the nature of the underlying portfolio of financial instruments.



NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Nates to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

ii.

jii.

The Company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of cach
reporting period, of whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, by considering the change in the risk of default
occurring over the remaining life of the financial instrument.

Based on the above, the Company categories its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage
3 as described below:

Stage 1 — Performing financial assets for which there has been no significant
deterioration in credit quality since initial recognition;

Stage 2 ~ Underperforming financial assets for which there has been a significant
deterioration in credit quality since initial recognition but which are not credit-
impaired; and

Stage 3 — Non-performing financial assets for which there has been a significant
deterioration in credit quality since initial recognition and which have become credit-
impaired.

For exposures that have become credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised and
interest revenue is calculated by applying the EIR to the amortised cost (net of
provision) rather than the gross carrying amount.

If an event (for e.g. any natural calamity) warrants a provision higher than as
mandated under ECL methodology, the Company may classify the financial asset in
Stage 3 accordingly.

In case internal Nomura credit rating is not available for stage 1 assets, which are
performing, then lowest rating of performing assets shall be used for the purposes of
ECL calculation on a conservative basis.

Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is considered credit impaired when an obligor fails to make
payments in full and on time of any financial obligations, markedly disadvantageous
modification to a contractual term compared with the existing obligation, bankruptcy
filings, administration, receivership, liquidation or other winding-up or cessation of
business of an obligor or other similar situations.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial instruments are
credit-impaired.

ECL methodology

The measurement of expected credit losses through the general ECL impairment
model is typically determined using loss rate models or discounted cash flow models
depending on the relevant staging of the financial instrument.

A loss rate model measures- ECL for an individual or portfolio of similar financial
instruments through development of loss rates calculated through an estimate of the
probability of default (“PD”) of the obligor and loss given default (*“LGD™) which is
applied to the expected credit exposure of the obligor at default (“CEAD™).
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iv.

vi.

vii.

viii.

iv.

Forward looking estimate

While estimating the ECL, the Company reviews macro-economic developments
occurring in the economy and market it operates in. On a periodic basis, the
Company analyses the relationship between key economic trends with the estimate of
PD.

Probability of default

The probability of default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time
horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the
facility has not been previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio. The concept
of PD is further explained in Note 28 (II).

Loss given default

iL.oss given defauit inputs are determined by class of financial instrument based on
historical experience of ioss and recovery rates for similar financial insiruments and
other relevant industry data. Where appropriate, LGD inputs are adjusted to refiect
the impact of collateral and other intcgral oredit enhancements.

Exposure at default
The exposure at default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date.

Write off of loan assets

Credit-impaired financial asset individually assessed for impairment are typically
written-off when further cash flows are deemed uncollectible and when all
commercially reasonably means of recovering outstanding principle and interest
balances have been exhausted. Such a determination is based on factors such as the
occurrence of significant changes in the obligor’s financial position such that the
obligor can no longer pay the obligation, or that the proceeds from collateral will not
be sufficient to pay amounts due.

The provision calculated using the ECL mode! is compared with the prudential
guidelines issued by RBI and higher of the two is provided in the books of account.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is de recognised only when:

The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial
asset; or

Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but
assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.
Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In
such cases, the financial asset is derecognized. Where the entity has not transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial
asset is not de recognised.
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Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retained substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is
derecognised if the Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where
the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be
recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

The difference between the carrying value of the original financial asset and the
consideration is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

b. Financial liabilities

a.

C.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. The Company
determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of
borrowings and payables, net ofdirectly attributable transaction costs.

Trade payables amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the
company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. They are recognised
initially at their fair value.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classifications
as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Liabilities- classified under fair value through profit or loss includes financial
liabilities held-for-trading and financial liabilities designated at fair value through
statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held-for-trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of selling in the near term. This category includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair
value. Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of the financial
liabilities are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not carried at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the liabilities
are derecognised, and through the amortisation process. Trade and other payables
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

A financial liability is derecognised whcn the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
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treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
lability.

The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the
consideration is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

3.7 Fair value measurement

3.8

3.9

Fair value is the price that would be received, to sell an asset, or paid, to transfer a liability,
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell an asset
or transfer a liability would take place either:

a) In the principal market for an asset or liability or

b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

The Company classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects
ihe significance of the inpuis used in making the measuremcnt. The fair value hierarchy has
the following levels:

Level 1: The financial instrument which is measured at a quoted price.

Level 2: The financial instrument that is not quoted in an active market. Such instrument is
measured using various valuation technigues. The inputs for these valuation technigues are:
a) Quoted price of similar instrument in an active market;

b) Quoted price of identical or similar instrument in a market that is not active;

c) inpufs other than quoted price that are observabie for an instrument (e.g. yield curves,
credit spreads, implied volatilitics, etc.);

d) Market-corroborated inputs.

Level 3: The financial instrument for which one or more significant inputs are not based on
observable market data.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liahilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet
where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or realised the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on: future events and must be
enforccable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Derivative financial instruments

A derivative is a financial instrument or other contract with all three of the following

characteristics:

a. Its value changes in response to the change in a specified interest rate, financial
instrument price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit
rating or credit index, or other variable, provided that, in the case of a non-financial
variable, it is not specific to a party to the contract (i.e., the ‘underlying’).

b. It requires no initial net investment or an initial net investment that is smaller than would
be required for other types of contracts expected to have a similar response to changes in
market factors.

¢. Itis seltled at a future date,
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3.10 Property, plant and equipment

The Company enters into derivative transactions with various counterparties and these
include interest rate swaps. Derivatives are recorded at fair value and carried as assets when
their fair value is positive and as liabilities when their fair value is negative.

a. Tangible assets

i

ii.

Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including
import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, any directly attributable cost of
bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of
dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located, after
deducting trade discounts and rebates.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in
statement of profit and loss.

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the company.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight line basis using
the rates arrived at, based on the useful lives estimated by the management and which is
in line with the rates indicated under Schedule 1I of the Companies Act, 2013.
Depreciation is provided from the month of acquisition of property, plant and
equipment.

The management has used the following estimates of useful life to provide depreciation
on its property, plant and equipment:

Asset type Useful life estimated by management
Office Equipment* 5 years
Computer and Allied Equipment* 3 years

*The useful life of the assets are based on historical experience and evaluation of the
Company, which is different from the useful life as prescribed in Schedule II to the
Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment, individually costing less than ¥ 25,000 is
fully provided in the year of acquisition, as per management estimate.

b. Intangible assets

.
L

Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Such
intangible assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortization and
any accurnulated impairment losses.
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ii. Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic
benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates.

iii. Amortisation
Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over the estimated useful
economic life. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Asset Useful life (years)
Software 3 years
The amortisation period and the amortisation method are reviewed at each financial
yearend. If the expected useful lite of the asset is significantly different from previous
estimates, the amortisation period is changed accordingly.

Revenue Recognition

(i) Trading gaius and fosses (as per ind AS 109):

Trading income includes all gains and losses from changes in fair value and the

related interest income or expense, for financial assets and tinancial liabilities held

for trading. Gains and losses on sale of securities are recognized on trade date basis.
(i) Interest income on investments (as per Ind AS 109):

Interest incomes of investments classified as FVTPL are recognised on EIR basis. It

is recognized on accrual basis and based on time apportioned, taking into account

the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.
(iii) Interest income on loans and advances (as per Ind AS 109):

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income or expense

is recorded using the EIR, which is the rate that discounts the estimated future cash

payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instruments or a

shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset

or liability.

EIR in case of a financial asset is computed: _

a. As the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash’ receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset.

b. By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument in estimating
the cash flows.

Including all fees received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of

the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts.

Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows are recognised in

interest income with the corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the

assets.

Interest income on credit impaired assets is recognised by applying the effective

interest rate to the net amortised cost (net of provision) of the financial asset.
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3.12  Emplovee benefits
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Short term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service
are classified short-term employee benefits and they are recognised in the year in
which the employee renders the related services, For the amount expected to be paid,
the Company recognises an undiscounted liability if they have a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay the amount as a result of past service provided by
employees, and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Defined benefit plan

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an
actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial
year. Remeasurements gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur,
directly in the other comprehensive income, They are included in the retained earnings
under Other Equity on the balance sheet.

. Defined contribution plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the
Company pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The Company makes specified
monthly contributions towards Government administered Provident Fund Scheme.
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans arc recognised as an
employee benefit expense in Staternent of Profit and Loss in the periods during which

‘the related services are rendered by employees.

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme and
the contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss of the year when the
contributions are due. The Company has no other obligations other than the
contribution payable to the respective provident funds.

Other employee benefits plan

The eligible employees of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain number
of their annual leave entitlement to subsequent years, subject to a ceiling. The
Company recognizes the charge to the statement of profit and loss and corresponding
liability on account of such non-vesting accurnulated leave entitlement based on
valuation by an independent actuary. Accumulated leave, which is expected to be
utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee benefit and leave
expected to be carried forward beyond 12 months, as long term employee benefit.

Share based payments

a. Equity settled transactions
The ultimate holding company of the company operates share option schemes for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to cligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Company's operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share-based
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payments, whereby employees render services as consideration for equity
instruments (“equity settled transactions™).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees and dlrectors for grants is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The
fair value is determined by using a finite difference model which determmes fair
value with the following assumptions:

Expected Volatility based on implied volatility of the ultimate
holding company's common stock

Expected dividend yield | based on the current dividend rate at the time of

grani
Expected lives of options | based on vesting period
granted
Expected number of based on historical experience
opiions which will vest
Estimated risk-free based upon Japanese Yen swap rates with a
interest rate maturity equal to the expected lives of options
The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in statement of profit and loss,

together with a corresponding increase in reserves, representing contribution
received from the ultimate holding company, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period until
the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the

. company's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to statement of profit and loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and cnd of
that period. No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest.

=2

Cach hnnnf‘f nlang

Himaunr

The fair value of the amount payable to employees in respect of share appreciation
rights, which are settled in cash, is recognised as an expense with a corresponding
increase in liabilities, over the period the employees unconditionally become
entitled to payment. The liability is measured at the end of each reporting date up
to and including settlement date, with changes in the fair value rccognised as
salaries, wages and bhonus in statement profit and loss.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are
not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.
The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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3.16

3.17

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possiblc obligation arising from past
events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company. A present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or reliable estimate of the amount
cannot be made, is termed and disclosed as contingent liability.

Segment Reporting

Basis for segmentation

An operating segment is a component of the company that engages in business activities
from which it may earn and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate
to transactions with any of the company's other components and for which discrete
financial information is available. Such decision is taken by Chief Operating Decision

Maker (CODM).

Business segment )
The Company’s operations fall under single business segment. Further, all the
transactions and the assets of the Company are recorded and located in India.

Since the Company’s current business activity primarily falls within a single business and
geographical segment, no additional disclosure is to be provided under Ind AS 108 -
Segment Reporting, other than those already provided in the financial statements.

Geographical segment
The Company’s business is primarily within India. Hence no separatc geographical
disclosure is considered necessary.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity sharcholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue,
share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares), if any, that have changed the
number of equity shares outstanding, without & corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity sharcholders and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares.

Contributed equity
Equity shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of equity shares are recognised as a
deduction from equity.

Rounding off

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the
nearest million as per the requirement of Schedule II1, unless otherwise stated.
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As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
In  million in  million
4. Cash and eash equivalents
Balances with banks 18.6 854
18.6 85.4
a. Balancas with banks are current acceunt balances.
b. The Company has not availed bank overdraft, therefore Lhe cash and cash equivalent for cash flow stalement is same as cash and cash sequivalent given above.
5. Receivabies
- Trade recejvables
Receivable considered good - secured . - -
Receivable cansidered good - unsecured 60.0 25.6
A 0.0 25.6
Less : Impairment loss allowance B - N
A-B 60.0 25.6

a. No debts due by directors or other officers of the Company or any of them either, severally or jointly, with any other person or debts dus by firm including limited Hiability partnerships,

arivale companies respactively, in which director is 2 pariner or diveclor of 2 member

6. investmenis

in B million
L At falr value
Amortised Cost Through profit and
loss
s ai March 31, 2020 _
Debt securities - Corporate bonds 4324 5,863.6
Others . -
A 8838
i. investments in India 5,863.6
ii. investments outside india - -
] 432.4 5.863.6
Less : impairment loss allowance c 19.9
AC 4125 5.863.6
eeh 31
Debt securities - Corporate bonds 54432
Others:
- Pass throught certificate of Future Speciality Retait Limited CCPS Trust 700.0 -
A 700.0 54432
i. tnvestments in india 700.0 54432
ii. investments outside india - -
N B 700.0 54432
Less | impairment loss allowance C 425 .
A-C 687.5 54432
As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
In ® million in ¥ million
7. Other financial assets
interest accrued on invastmeants 266.7 4481
Receivable from group companies 1.6 1.0
258.3 4491
8. Gurrant tax assots (nat)
Advance lax (net of provision for income {ax March 31, 2020 ¥ 1,193 4million,
March 31, 2019 Z 1,102 1million) 46.0 50.7
16.0 50.7
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9. Property, plant and equipment and other intangible assels

in T milllon
Gross block Depreciation/martisation .
MNet carrying
Particulars As at " . As at Opening Balance " Closing Balance as {amount as at March
Aprif 01, 2019 Additions Disposals March 31,2020 | as at April 1, 2019 For the year Disposals at March 31, 2020 31, 2020
a. Property, plant and equipment
Computer and alfied equipments - 0.2 0.2 - 0.0" 0.0 0.2
Total - 0.2 0.2 - 0.6* 0.0 Q.2
a. Other intangible assets
Computer saftware 0.5 0.1 0.6 0.5 0.0" 0.5 0.1
Total 0.5 0.1 0.6 0.5 0.0% 0.5 0.1
- * Below the rounding off norms adopted by the Company
in € million
Gross block Depr Armnorti Met carrying
Particulars As at - . As at Opening Balance . Closing Balance as jamount as at March
Aprif 1, 2018 Additions Disposals March 31, 2019 | asat April1,2018 | O theyear Disposals at March 31, 2019 31,2019
a. Other intangible assets
Computer software 0.5 - 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.5 0.0
Total 0.5 - 0.5 | 0.3 0.2 0.5 0.0
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10. Leases

Right of use assets: Building
Add: Addition during the year
Less: Depreciation for the year

Lease liabilities
Add: Interest for the year
Less: Rent paid during the year

11. Other non-financiat assets

Prepaid expenses

Goods and service tax receivable

Less : Provision on Goods and service tax receivabie

12. Other financial Habilities
Empioyee beneiiis payabie
Other payables

13. Current tax Habilities (net)
Provision for income tax (net of advance tax March 31, 2020 ¥ 203.5mitlion, March 31, 2019 %
88. imiflion})

14. Provisions
Provision for gratuity (Refer note 30)
Provision for compensated absenses

15. Other non-financial liabilities
Statutory dues payabts

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
In € mlilion In ¥ million
72.1 -
(7.8} -
64.3 -
73.7 -
54
(11.0) -
§8.1 -
0.7 0.7
3.0 12.5
{3.0} {12.5)
0.7 0.7
1.2 49
9.7 7.0
209 1.9
4.1 49
4.1 4.9
58 52
8.6 5.5
12.4 0.7
2.6 2.2
2.6 2.2
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As at As at
March 31, 2020 fAarch 31, 2019
In  million In € million
16. Share capital
Authorised :
130,000,000 (as at March 31, 2019 130,000,000) equity shares of ¥ 10/- each 1,300.0 1,300.0
Issued, subscribed and paid up :
130,000,000 (as at March 31, 2019 130,000,000) equity shares of ¥ 10/- each 1,300.0 1,300.0
A. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year :
March 31, 2020* March 31, 2019*
No. In  million No. In ¥ milllon
Balance as at the beginning of the year 13,00,00,000.0 1,300.0 13,00,00,000.0 1,300.0
Add : Issued during the year . - - - -
Balance as at the end of the year 13,00,00,000.0 1,300.0 13,00,00,000.0 1,300.0

* 1 equity share held by Namura Asia Pacific Holdings Co. Ltd. in trust for Nomura Asia Investments (Fixed Income) Pte. Ltd.

B. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares ;
The Company has only one clfass of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held.

C. Shares held by holding company :
March 31, 2020* March 31, 2019*

No. %o No. %

Nomura Asia Investments (Fixed Income) Pte. Ltd.,
the holding company 13,00,00,000.0 100.0 13,00,00,000.0 100.0

* 1 equity share held by Nomura Asia Pacific Holdings Co. Ltd, in trust for Nomura Asia investments (Fixed Income) Pte. Ltd.

D. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
March 31, 2020* March 31, 2019*

No. % No. %

Nomura Asia Investments (Fixed Income) Ple. Ltd.,
the holding company 13,00,00,000.0 100.0 13,00,00,000.0 100.0

* 1 equity share held by Nomura Asia Pacific Holdings Co. Ltd. in trust for Nomura Asia investments (Fixed Income) Pte. Lid.

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
In ¥ million in & million

17. Other equity
2. Securities premium
’ 32479 3,2479

Opening balance
Additions during the year

A 3,247.9 3,247.9

Closing balance

b, Stock appriciation riahts reserve

Opening balance 7.9 5.8

Additions during the year 1.0 2.1

Closing balance B 8.9 7.9

c. Statutory reserve

Opening balance 449.7 4229
' Additions during the year 13.6 268

Closing balance (o4 463.3 449.7

d. Retainad earnings

Opening bajance 1,790,0 1,682.9

‘Change in accounting policy (Refer note 44) (1.2) B

Total comprehensive income for the year 68.0 1338

Transfer to statutory reserve {13.6) {26.8)

Closing balance D 1,843.2 1,790.0

A+B+C+D 5,563.3 5,495.5

Nature an ose of reserve:
a. Securilies gremium

Securities premium reserve is used to record premium received on issue of shares. The reserves can be utilised only for limited purposes, in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act. 2013,

b, Slock appricialion rghis reserve

Stock appriciation rights reserve is stock appriciation rights alloted to certain categories of employees of the company by Namura Holdings Inc. (ultimate
parent).

¢. Staiulory reserve

Statutory reserve is reserve maintained under section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,
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18. Interest income

Interest on loans
{nterest income from investments

interest income from investmenis
Other interest income

19. Net gain/(foss} on fair value changes

Net gain/ (logs) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
i. On trading portfolio

- Investments

ii. On financial instrumants designated at fair value through profit or loss

Qthers

Fair value changes
i. Realised

ii. Unrealised

20. Other Income
i. Reversal of goods and sarvice tax receivable
ii. Recharge to group companies

21. Finance cost [measured at amortised cost]
i, Interest on commercial paper
il. interest on lease liability

22. Fees and commission expense
i. Brokerage and stamp duty
ii. Custodian, depository and clearing charges

{in ¥ miilion)
Year ended March 31, 2020
. On financial assets  On financial assets Total
measured at classified at fair value
amortised cost thirough profit or toss
126.1 - 126.1
196.8 3326 529.2
3227 332.6 655.3
(In ¥ mitlion}
Year ended March 31, 2019
On financial assets  On financial assets Total
measured at classified at fair value
amortised cost through profit or loss
85.8 430.1 515.9
0.0 - 0.0
85.8 430.1 515.9
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
In ¥ million in ¥ million
(475.0) {292.8)
A {475.00 (292.6)
B . -
A+B {475.0) {292.6)
212.8 (44.4)
(687 8} {248.2)
{475.0) (292.6)
72 13
19.9 14.0
27.1 15.3
- 71
54 -
54 74
13 17
0.2 0.2
1.5 1.9




Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
In & miliion In € million
23. impairment on financial instruments [measured at amortised cost]
i. Investments T4 2.2
74 22
24, Employee benefits expense
i. Salaries and wages 50.0 41.3
ii. Contribution to provident and other funds 23 2.1
i, Stock appreciallon rights payment to emplyees (Refer note 31) 1.0 2.1
jv. Staff welfare expenses 0.9 0.7
v, Gratuity (Refer note 30) 0.5 0.6
54.7 46.8
25, Depreciation, amortization and impairment
i.Depreciation on property, plant & equipments 0.0* -
ii.Depreciation on right to use assets (Refer note 10) 78 -
fii. Amortisation of intangible assets 0.0* 0.2
7.8 0.2
* Below the rounding off norms adopted by the Cornpany
26. Other expenses
i. Rent, taxes and enerqgy casts 23 14.4
ii. Repairs and maintenance 2.8 3.0
iii. Auditor's fees and expenses® 1.8 23
iv. Legal and professional charges 23.0 252
v. Corporate social responsibitity** 7.6 8.9
vi. Support cost recharge 22.8 2286
vii. Market data expense 34 46
viil. Interest u/s 234C of Income Tax Act, 1961 1.9 0.2
ix. Qther expenditure 0.1 0.5
65.7 81.7
* Auditor's fees and expenses comprise for
a. Statutory audit 1.4 1.8
b. Tax audit 0.2 0.2
c. Other services 0.1 0.2
d. Reimbursemeant of expenses 0.1 0.1
1.8 2.3
** Corporate social responsibility comprise of :
a. Gross amount required to be spent by the entity during the year 7.5 8.8
b. Amount spent during the year :
- Construction/acquisition of any asset - 0.7
- On purpose other than above 7.6 8.2

7.6 8.9
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27. Fair value of financial instruments

1. Fair valuation )

Fair value is the price that would be received, to sell an asset, or paid, to transfer a liability, in an orderly
transaction between market pammpants at the measurement date.

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell an asset or transfer a
liability would take place either:

a) In the principal market for an asset or liability or

b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The Company classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of
the inputs used in making the measurement. The fair value hierarchy has the following leveis:

Level 1: The financial instrument which is measured at a quoted price. This category includes corporate bonds
quoted by Fixed Income Money Market and Derivatives Association of India (“FIMMDA”).

Level 2: The financial instrument that is not quoted in an active market. Such instrument is measured using
various valuation techniques. The inputs for these valuation techniques are : a) quoted price of similar
instrument in an active market, b) quoted price of identical or similar instrument in a market that is not active,
) mnufc: other than mmfed ﬁi‘H‘P that are ohgervable for an instrument (e. g. yield curves, credit \praads;

w5

1mphed volatilities, etc.), d) market corroborated inputs. This category mcludcs corporate bonds not quoted by
FIMMDA.

Level 3: The financial instrument for which one or more significant inputs are not based on observable market
data.

2. Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management

A. Accounting classification and fair values

The following tables show the classification of the financial assets and liabilities:

As at March 31, 2020 In ¥ million
Carrying amount
Particulars FVIPL FVTOCI Amortised Total
Cost
Yinancial assels
Cash and cash equivalents - - 18.6 18.6
Receivables
- Trade receivables - - 60.0 60.0
Investments 5,863.6 - 412.5 6,276.1
Other financial assets - - 258.3 258.3
5,863.6 - 7492.4 6,613.0
Financial liabilities
Lease liability - - 68.1 68.1
Other financial liabilities - - 20.9 20.9
- - 89.0 89.0
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In ¥ million

As at March 31, 2019
Carrying amount
Particulars FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Total
Cost
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - - 85.4 85.4
Receivables ‘
- Trade receivables - - 25.6 25.6
Investments 5,443.72 6875 6,130.7
Other financial assets - - 449 1 449.1
5,443.2 - 1,247.6 6,690.8
Financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities - - 11.9 11.9
- - 11.9 11.9

The following tables show the fair value hierarchy of the financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value:

As at March 31, 2020

In ¥ million

Particulars

Fair value

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables

- Trade receivables

Investments

4,101.8

1,371.8

390.0

5,863.6

Other financial asscts

4,101.8

1,371.8

390.0

5,863.6

Finanpcial liabilities

Lease liability

Other financial liabilities

As at March 31, 2019

In ¥ million

Particulars

Fair value

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables

- Trade receivables

Investments

2,695.8

2,747.4

5,443.2

Other financial assets

2,695.8

27474

5,443.2

Financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities

There has been no transfer of above financial asset/liability from level | to level 2 and from level 2 to level 1.
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B.

Measurement of fair values

Corporate bonds

Quoted corporate bonds are fair valued using weighted average market price published by FIMMDA
which aggregate the price at which the corporate bonds have traded on the recognised exchanges (with
minimum T 50million turnover and 1 trade) over the last 15 calendar days. If the corporate bonds have not
traded on any recognised exchange over the last 15 calendar days, then the price is derived using a
financial calculator published by FIMMDA.

The following tables show the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 fair values, for financial
instrument measured at fair value in the statement of financial position:

Financial instruments measured at fair value:

As at 31 March 2020 In T million
i \ Significant
. Valuation g
Type Fair Value , observable
technique .
inpuis
Discounted .
Corporate Bonds 1,371.8 o Rating based spread
i cash flow
As at 31 March 2619 In Z million
. Significant
I R Valuation ALg T
Lype Fair Valuc . observable
technique .
inputs:
C ; PR, Discounted Lo ,
Corporate Bonds 2,747.4 g Rating based spread
cash flow
C. Mgovements in Level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value

The following table show a reconciliation of the opening and closing amounts of Level 3 financial assets
and liabilities which are recorded at fair value. Transfers into Level 3 reflect changes in market conditions
as a result of which instruments become less liquid. Therefore, the Company requires significant
unobservable inputs to calculate their fair value.

In T million
Particulars As at Purchase Transfer As at Unrealised
‘April 1,2019 /(Sale) into Level 3 | March 31, 2020 losses
Investments
Corporate bonds - - 390.0 390.0 885.9
Total - - 350.0 390.0 885.9
D. Impact on fair value of level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value of changes to key

assumptions
The below table summarises the valuation techniques together with the significant unobservable inputs
used to calculate the fair value of the Company’s Level 3 assets.

As at March 31, 2020 In T million
Particulars Fair value of Valuation Significant unobservable
Level 3 assets technique inputs
Investments — 390.0 | Discounted cash a. Recovery rates
Corporate bonds flow v b. Discount margin/spreads
Total 390.0

Previous year: NIL
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E. Quantitative analysis of significant uncbservable input

a. Recovery rates:

Recovery rates reflect the estimated loss that the Group will suffer given expected defaults. The
recovery rate is given as a percentage and reflects the opposite of loss severity (i.e. 100% recovery
reflects 0% loss severity). In line with general market convention, loss severity is applied to asset-
backed securities while recovery rate is more often used as pricing input for corporate or government
instruments. Higher loss severity levels / lower recovery rates indicate lower expected cash flows
upon the default of the instruments. Recovery rates for complex, less liquid instruments are usually
unobservable and are estimated based on historical data.

b. Discount margin/spreads:
Discount margin/spreads represent the discount rates used when calculating the present value of future
cash flows. In discounted cash flow models such spreads are added to the benchmark rate when
discounting the future expected cash flows. Hence, these spreads reduce the net present value of an
asset or increase the value of a liability. They generally reflect the premium an investor expects to
achieve over the benchmark interest rate to compensate for the higher risk driven by the uncertainty of
the cash flows caused by the credit quality of the asset. They can be implicd from market prices and
are usually unobservable for illiquid or complex instruments.

F. Sensitivity of fair value measurements to changes in unobservable market data
The table below describes the effect of changing the significant unobservable inputs to reasonable
possible alternatives. Sensitivity data are calculated using a number of techniques, including analysing
price dispersion of different price sources, adjusting model inputs to reasonable changes within the fair
value methodology. The ranges are not comparable or symmetrical as the model inputs are usually not in
the middle of the favorable/unfavorable range.

In ¥ million

March 31 2020 March 31 2019
Particulars Favorable Unfavorable Favorable Unfavorable
changes changes Changes Changes
Investments — 1050.0 380.0 - -
Corporate bonds
Total 1050.0 380.0 - -

G. Fair value of financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value

In T million

As at March 31, 2020
. Carryin " Fair value
Particulars am;{]mtg Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents* 18.6 - - -

Receivables

- Tradc recetvables* 60.0 - - -

Investments 412.5 - - 528.2

Other financial assets* 258.3 - - -
749.4 - - 528.2

Financial liabilities : )

Lease liability* 68.1 - - -

Other financial liabilities* 20.9 - - -

89.0 - - -
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As at March 31, 2019 . In T million
. Carryin Fair value
Particulars am?t’mtg Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
 Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents* 85.4 - - -
Receivables
- Trade receivables* 25.6 - - -
Investments 687.5 - - 845.9
Other financial assets* 449.1 - - -
; 1247.6 : - 845.9
Financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities* 11.9 - - -
11.9 - - -

*Carrying value of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities, which are not carried at fair value, are assumed
to be their approximate fair value, owing to their short term residual maturity.

28. Financial risk management

ii.

Risk management framework

The Company is exposed to financial risks, including the cffects of changes in foreign exchange rates
(currency risk), interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

Managing these financial risks forms an integral part of the Company’s business. The Company’s risk

mar\_agem@nf framework includes a Vaﬂnh/ of controls and f@pﬂi‘tiﬂg processes. !heg’e include the r\nramntpr&

for the risks that the Company may undertake for various financial instruments, guidelines for accepting
customers and terms under which the business is being conducted, setting up appropriate risk limits and
controls and monitor risks and adherence to the set limits. Risk management processes and systems are
reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company,
through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and
constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations. The Company
believes it has effective processes in place to identify measure, monitor and mitigate these financial risks.

The Company’s Board of Directors {“Board”) arc responsible for oversight of risk management approach and
for approving the risk strategies and principles. The Board is assisted in its oversight role by the Risk
Management Committee and various other corporate functions, which includes Credit and Market risk
management. The oversight role includes monitoring compliance with the Company’s risk management
framework and reviewing its adequacy.

Internal audit also undertakes both, regular and ad hoc, review of risk management controls and procedures,
the results of which are reported to the Audit Committee.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from an obligor or counterparty’s default, insolvency or administrative
proceeding which results in the obligor’s failure to meet its contractual obligations in accordance with agreed
terms. Credit tisk for the Company is managed by Credit Risk Management (“CRM”) function within the Risk
Management Division.

Processes for managing credit risk include:

1) Evaluation of fikelihood that counterparty defaults on its payments and obligations;

2) Assignment of internal ratings to all active counterparties;

3) Approval of extensions of credit and establishment of credit limits;

4) Measurement, momtormg and management of the firm’s current and potential future cxedlt exposures;

5) Setting credit terms in legal documentation, including margin terms; and

6) Use of appropriate credit risk mitigants, including netting, collateral and hedging.

. Credit quality analysis
a. Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with bank are current account balances remaining unutilised as at the reporting date.
The Company believes these assets to be of high credit quality; hence no provision for expected credit loss
is made.
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b. Trade Receivable
Trade receivable includes reccivable from last day settlement of liquid mutual funds.
Receivable from mutual funds are usual settled on T+1. Since the Company has not experienced any historic
default from these mutual funds, the Company believes these assets to be of high quality with low credit
risk. Hence no provision for expected credit loss (“ECL”) is made.
As at March 31, 2020, the Company’s most significant customer accounted for T 60.0 million of the trade
receivables (March 31, 2019 ¥ 25.6million).

The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables:

In T million
As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Neither past due nor impaired -
Current 60.0 25.6
1-30 days past due - -
31-60 days past due - -
61-90 days past due - -
More than 90 days past due

60.0 25.6

¢. Loans
Loans made by the Company consist of corporate loans.
As at March 31, 2020, the Company has no loans outstanding. (Previous year: NIL)

d. Investments [measured fair value]

Of the investments held (and measured at fair value), the Company has classified its investments in Dewan
Housing Finance Limited (“DHFL”) and Vodafone Idea Limited (“VIL”) as high credit risk investments. In
case of DHFL, the Company has investments of ¥ 240million (fair value). These investments has been rated
“D” by independent credit rating agencies. Post the initiation of insolvency proceedings, the Company has
significantly marked down these investments and valued them using the amounts expected to be recovered.
In case of VIL, the Company has investments of ¥ 150million (fair value). These investments are unlisted
and has been rated “B” by independent credit rating agencies (a significant downgrade from “A+” as at
March 31, 2019). Owing to present condition of the telecom sector, the Company has significantly marked
down these investments and valued them using the amounts expected to be recovered.

e. Investments {measured al amortised cost]
[avestments of the Company (which are classified as amortised cost), as at March 31, 2020, consist of
investment in corporate bond, and as at March 31, 2019 include pass through certificates. Both are classified
as held till maturity.,
Though Company believes these assets to be of high quality, the Company has computed and made a
provision for ECL.

In  million
As at As at
' March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Neither past due nor impaired - -
Current 432.4 700.0
1-30 days past due - -
31-60 days past due - -
61-90 days past due - -
More than 90 days past due - -

432.4 700.0
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f.

2]

I
a.

Staging for investments and loans [measured at amortised cost)

In ¥ million
As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
Particulars 12 month ECL 12 month ECL
(Stage 1) (Stage 1)
Loans/Long term investments - -
Rated A and above - ~
Rated BBB ~ -
Rated BB - -
Rated B 432.4 700.0
Rated CCC and below - -
Unrated - -
Less: Impairment allowance (19.9) (12.5)
412.5 687.5
Other financial assets*

Other financial assets include interest accrued on investments and amount receivable from the Company’s
group companies.

The Company believes these asscts to be of high quaiity with low credit risk; hence no provision for
expected credit loss is made.

*includes interest accrued on bonds classifie

loss has been made.

Amounts arising from ECL,
Inputs, assumptions and techniques used for estimating impairment

Inputs and assumptions considered in ECL Model

The measurement of ECL through the general impairment model is typically determined within the
Company using loss rate models or discounted cash flow models depending on the relevant staging of the
financial instrument.

A loss ratc model measurcs ECL for an individual or portfolio of similar financial instruments through
development of loss rates calculated through an estimate of the probability of default (“PD”) of the
obligor and loss given default (“LGD”) which is applied to the expected credit exposure of the obligor at
default (“CEAD”).

In order to determine whether 12 month or lifetime ECL is used, each financial asset is assessed for
impairment, classified at each reporting date into one of following three stages of credit quality
deterioration since the financial asset was initially recognised.

Stage 1: Performing financial asscts for which there has been no significant deterioration in credit quality
since initial recognition.

Stage 2: Underperforming financial assets for which there has been a significant deterioration in credit
quality since initial recognition but which are not credit-impaired; and

Stage 3: Non-performing financial assets for which there has been a significant deterioration in credit
quality since initial recognition and which have become credit-impaired.

The 12-month ECL is the portion of Lifetime ECL that represents the loss resulting from default events on
financial assets that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial asset.

PD inputs are determined by class of financial asset and by internal Nomura credit rating applied to each
financial asset. PD inputs used by the Company are sourced from industry data and validated based on
historical experience.

In case internal Nomura credit rating is not available for stage 1 assets, which are performing, then lowest
rating of performing assets shall be used for the purposes of ECL calculation on a conservative basis.

For Stage 1 assets, a 12 month PD is considered, for Stage 2 assets a lifetime PD is considered and Stage
3 assets 100% PD is applied.
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LGD inputs are determined by class of financial asset, based on historical experience of loss and recovery
rates for similar financial asset and other relevant industry data. Where appropriate, .GD inputs are
adjusted to reflect the impact of collateral and other integral credit enhancements.

Estimates and forward looking techniques

The Company has applied the following estimation technique for ECL model:

a. Through-the-cycle (“T'TC”) PD preparation: TTC cumulative PDs up to 5 year are prepared by
referring to S&P’s historic rating migration data.

b. Scenario Point-in-time (“PIT”) PD construction: PIT PDs on each scenario are constructed from TTC
PDs. In the conversion from TTC PD to PIT PD, scenario credit spread provided is used to
incorporate forward looking information and credit cycle. Four scenario (upside, base, moderate
downside, and severe down sidc) are applied.

c. Probability weighted PIT PD computation: Scenario PIT PDs are summed up weighted by a
probability of each scenario happening (probability weighted PIT PDs).

d. LGD inputs are determined by class of financial asset, based on historical experience of loss and
recovery rates for similar financial asset and other relevant industry data.

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk :

A financial asset that is not credit-impaired on initial recognition is initially classified into stage 1 and is
subscquently continuously monitored to determine whether a significant increase in credit risk has
occurred, at which point the financial asset is reclassitied 1o stage 2.

A determination of whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred at each reporting date will be
through a comparison of Nomura internal credit rating applied to the financial instrument at initial
recognition and at the reporting date.

A financial asset will be reclassified as per the below table:

From {Intial Recogmsation)

To AAAIAA+| AA |aA-| A+ | A- BREYBEB|BBB-{BB+| BB |BR-| B+ | B | B- [ccclcc| ¢ | D
(Reparting Date) P2 i3taistetrlelofwmjulnioalulislwlirinle
sadl 1 (sElstfst st st s st lsr s st st st lst s s st s]afs
Aar| 2 st lst st s lst st sl st ststsi e ststst]st]st)st]s
AA L 3 lst st st st st s st st st fststysistst|st]|st]s]st]sl
AA-| 4 [silsr st st st st styst|st|stfst|st|st|st]st]at]st]s]st
A | s | s2lsalstfst st st s ststpst st st s stslst]st]s1]sl
A- |6 | S2lsalsa|st|syyststsr st st st st]st|s]slst]st]st
BEBA 7 {52182 iS2|S2 st |sufst)sifsi|st|styst)si)si]st]si|st]st]sl
BRBB| 8 |S2/S2|sz|safsa[si[stfsr|stfar|st)stfstst|st]st]st]st]s
BBB| 9 | S2/S2(82/S2|S2|S2|¢st|st|st|stfst{st|arlst|st]si|st]st]sl
BB+| 10 | S2 |82 |s2/s2 82 {s2|Sa|st|st|st[stisi{st|st|st|st]|st]|s1]sl
BB | 11 {S2/52!/8 |82 |{s2|saf{5S2|{s2|st|st|st|st|st|sr|st]|st|s]|s]si
BB- | 12782 (%2 |s2|s2|s2|{s2/sa|sa|52[sa|st|s1|slfst|st]st|g]s1]sl
B+ | 131852 (52|82 |s2|{s2|s2|s2)s2is2{sa|sa |t |st]si|s|st]s]|s1]sl
B |14 |82]52]82|82|S2 {8 !5 |8 |82]s2]s2]s2]s2|8|sI|s1]sl]s1]st
- {5 ]s2fsafsals2)s2|{s2|s2|Ss2|s2|sa|saf[s2ls2 /@ |st]s1]s)51]a
CCCl 16 Sz |s2|$2 |52 82|82 |§2 )82 |82|62]82|82/8|82]582]|681]81)51]8l]|
C | 18]83}8§
D | 19]83]¢

If there is a further deterioration in credit risk such that the financial asset becomes credit-impaired, the
financial asset is then reclassified into stage 3.
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Credit impaired financial asset

A financial asset is considered credit impaired when an obligor fails to make payments in full and on time of
any financial obligations, markedly disadvantageous modification to a contractual term compared with the
existing obligation, bankruptcy filings, administration, receivership, liquidation or othcr winding-up or
cessation of business of an obligor or other similar situations.

Policy for write off of loan assets

Credit-impaired financial asset individually assessed for impairment are typically written-off when further
cash flows are deemed uncollectible and when all commercially reasonably means of recovering outstanding
principle and interest balances have been exhausted. Such a determination is based on factors such as the
occurrence of significant changes in the obligor’s financial position such that the obligor can no longer pay the
obligation, or that the proceeds from collateral will not be sufficient to pay amounts due.

b. Loss allowances

In ¥ million

2019-20 }

2018-19

Particulars

Loss allowance measured at 12 mo

expected losses

nth

Loans [measured at amortised cost}

Balance at April 01

Net remeasurement of loss allowance

Balance at March 31

Investments [measured at amortised cost)

Balance at April 01 12.5 10.3
Net remeasurement of ioss aliowance 7.4 2.2
Balance at March 31 19.9 12.5

a. There are no loans and advances outstanding as on reporting date March 31, 2020.

(Previous year: NIL)

b. The entire 100% concentration of risk in [nvestments at amortised cost i.e. to a single party
pertains to the aviation industry in India
c. The carrying value of investments measured at fair value through profit or loss represent the
maximum exposure to credit risk.

III. Disclosure pursuant to RBI/2019-20/170/DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20
“Implementation of Indian Accounting Standards” dated March 13, 2020

In T million
Asset Classification Asset Gross Loss Net carrying Provisions Difference
as per classification Carrying ailowances amount required as | between Ind
RBI Norms as per Ind AS | amount as (Provisions) per IRACP AS 109
109 per Ind AS* | .o required norms provisions
under Ind and IRACP
AS 109 norms
Performing assets
Standard Stage 1 548.1 19.9 528.2 1.7 18.2

*Includes accrued interest.

c.  Offsetting
No offsetting exists as at March 31, 2020. (Previous year: NIL)
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iii. Market risk
Market risk is the risk of loss arising from fluctuations in the value of financial assets and liabilities (including
off-balance sheet items) due to fluctuations in market risk factors (interest rates, foreign exchange rates, prices
of securities and others). Market risk primarily impacts the Company’s investing activities.
Effective management of market risk requires the ability to analyse a complex and constantly changing global
market environment, identify problematic trends and ensure that appropriate action is taken in a timely
manner. ’
The Company uses a variety of complementary tools to measure, model and aggregate market risk. The
Company’s principal statistical measurement tool to assess and monitor market risk on an ongoing basis is
Value at Risk (“VaR”). Limits on VaR are set in line with Company’s risk appetite as expressed through
regulatory capital, Market risk is monitored against a set of approved limits, with daily reports and other
management information provided to the business units and senior management.

a. Total market risk exposure

In € million

Particulars March 31, 2020 Primary risk
Carrying amount | Traded risk | Non-Traded risk
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 18.6 - 18.6
Receivables
- Trade receivables 60.0 - 60.0
Investments 6,276.1 5,473.6 802.5 | Interest rate risk
Other financial assets 258.3 - 2583
6,613.0 5,473.6 1,139.4
Financial liabilities
Lease liability 68.1 - 68.1
Other financial liabilities 20.9 - 20.9
39.0 - 89.0
In € million
Particulars March 31,2019 Pfimary risk
Carrying amount | Traded risk | Non-Traded risk
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 85.4 - 85.4
Receivables
- Trade receivables 25.6 - 25.6
Investments 6,130.7 5,443.2 687.5 | Interest rate risk
Other financial assets 4491 - 449 1
6,690.8 5,443.2 1,247.6
Financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities 11.9 - 11.9
11.9 - 11.9
6,678.9 5,443.2 1,235.7

Value al Risk (VaR)

VaR is a measure of the potential loss in the value of the Company’s investment positions due to adverse
movements in markets over a defined time horizon with a specified confidence level. Market risks that are
incorporated in the VaR model include bond prices, interest rates, credit and foreign exchange rates with
associated volatilities and correlations.

VaR metrics

The 1 day VaR at 99% confidence level as of each of the dates indicate are as follows:
VaR as at March 31, 2020 - Z 46.8 million

VaR as at March 31, 2019 -  27.8million



NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

iv.

vi.

Assumptions
The Company uses a single VaR model in order to determine the total VaR for the Company. The

Company’s VaR methodology uses historical simulation to estimate potential profit or loss. Historical
market moves are repeatedly applied to current exposure, forming a distribution of simulated portfolio
returns. From this distribution the required potential losses can be estimated at required confidence levels or
probabilities. VaR is calculated at a 99% confidence level and using a 1-day time horizon.

The VaR mode! uses a default historical time window of two years (520 business days). For risk
management and VaR back testing, the Company uses an exponential weighted moving average VaR. For
the calculation of VaR, the probability weight assigned to each measure of estimated profit or loss in the
historical simulation scenarios depends on when it occurred. The older the observation, the lower the weight.

The Company’s VaR model uses time series for each individual underlying, whenever available. Whenever a
time series cannot be found for a specific underlying, the VaR model will follow ‘proxy logic’ to map the
exposure to an appropriate time series. The level of proxying taking place in the VaR model is carefully
monitored through internal risk management processes and there is a continual effort to source new time
series to use in the VaR calculation.

Objectives and Limitations of the VaR methodology

The main advaniage of VaR as a risk measure (s tal it iy able tu aggregate risk fioi different asset classes
(in contrast with other risk measures sensitivities that cannot be easily aggregated directly). The risk from
different products of the Company can therefore easily be compared and aggregated using VaR.

As a risk measure, however, VaR has certain limitations. One of the main disadvantages with VaR is that it
is a backward-looking risk measure. Using historical market moves to estimate future losses assumes that
only events that have actually happened in the past are relevant to analyse the risk of a portfolio.

In addition, VaR only gives an estimate of the loss at a stated 99th percentile (i.c. in one out of 100 days the
loss will be greater than 1-day VaR), but not what the magnitude of loss could be whenever the loss does
exceed VaR.

VaR as a risk measure is most appropriate for liquid markets and may understate the financial impact of
scvere events for which there is no historical precedent on where market liquidity may not be reliable. In
particular, historical correlations can break down in extreme markets leading to unexpected relative market
moves. This may make positions that off-set each other in VaR modclling move in the same direction thus
increasing losses.

Given the limitations of the VaR model, the Company uses VaR only as one component of a diverse market
risk management process

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows or the
fair value of financial instruments.

Exposure to interest rate risk for non-trading financial assets and liabilities:

The Company does not have any floating rate financial assets and liabilities as at the reporting date, therefore
a change in interest rate would not affect profit and loss.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Company is exposed to currency risk on account of its trading activities in exchange
traded currency futures. The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupee ().

At present, the Company does not have any cxposure in foreign currency. (Previous year: NIL)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulties in raising funds to meet its working
capital requirements and commitments, including those associated with financial instruments.

The Company’s liquidity risk appetitc is defined by the requirement to maintain sufficient liquidity (through
holding a highly liquid pool of high quality, unencumbered assets that can be monetized) across market
cycles and periods of stress such that all funding requirements and unsecured debt obligations falling due
within the two separately defined stress scenarios can be met without the need to roll unsecured financing,
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As at March 31, 2020

The Company has established an Asset and Liability Committee (“ALCO”) to define its policy relating to

funding and liquidity risk.

The Company’s finance department monitors, on an ongoing basis, the Company’s funding requirements and
its forecasts, maturity mismatches and liquidity ratios in order to enable the Company meet its short-term
funding requirements.
The Company maintains a portfolio of highly liquid and diverse assets that can be easily liquidated in the
event of an unforeseen interruption of cash flow. Liquidity risk is also mitigated through the close monitoring
of exposure to avoid undue concentration.

Exposure to liquidity risk

In ¥ million

Contractual cash flows

Particulars

Carrying
amount

1to7
days

8 to 14
days

15 to
30/31
days

Over 1
to2
months

Over
2to3
mounth
$

Over 3
momnths
to 6
months

Over

month
stol
year

Over
1 year
to 3
years

Over
Jtos
years

Over
5
years

Financial assets

Cash and
cash
equivalents

18.6

18.6

Receivables

- Trade
receivables

60.0

60.0

Loans $

Investments*
5

6,276.1

1048.9

3,795.5

629.2

150.0

412.5

150.0

Other
financial
assets*

258.3

21.7

78.1

9.8

29.8

107.6

7.1

Foreign
currency
assets®

Financial liabilities

Borrowings®

Debt
securities ®

Lease
liability

68.1

0.5

34.1

Other
financial
liabilities

20.9

103

Deposits®

Foreign
currency

liabilities®

Inflows

6,6013.0

1,149.2

3,873.6

9.8

629.2

179.8

520.1

94.2

157.1

Outflows

89.0

10.8

11.1

0.5

1.4

2.9

13.0

15.2

34.1

*Disclosure pursuant to Annexure XIV of RBI/DNBR/2016-17/45 Master Directions DNBR.PD.004 /03.10.119/2016-
17 Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and
Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 dated September 01, 2016 (as updated on February 17,

2020).

*[nvestments and accrued interest on investments are classified as per the “Liquidity risk framework” adopted by the
Company based on RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated November 04, 2019.
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As at March 31, 2019

In ¥ million

Contractual cash flows

Particulars

Carrying
amount

Total

Up to
30/31
days

Over1l
month
to2
mornths

Over 2
maonths
to 3
months

Over 3
months
to 6
months

Over 6
months
tol
year

Over 1
year (o
3 years

Over 3
to s
years

Over 5
years

Financial assets

Cash and cash
equivalents

85.4

85.4

85.4

Receivables

- Trade
receivables

25.6

25.6

25.6

Loans

Investments” *

6,130.7

6,143.2

5,000.0

700.0

Other financial
assets

449.1

449.1

276.6

172.5

Foreign

- :
currency assets

Financial liabilities

Borrowings

Debt securities

Other financial

M RN

liabilities

11.8

7.5

0.5

Deposits

Foreign
currency
liabilities

Inflows

6,690.8

6,703.3

5.387.6

443.2

872.5

Qutflows

11.9

11.9

1.5

2.8

0.5

0.8

0.3

*All listed corporate bonds will be placed in the “1 day to 30/31 days" buckets depending on the defeasance period as
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The Company’s objectives when managing capital are:

a) To maintain adequate level of capital to ensure compliance with prevailing regulatory requirements.

b) To safe guard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and

¢) To maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Board seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns on capital that might be possible by running
higher levels of leverage and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position.

Leverage Ratio
The Company monitors capital using ‘borrowing’ to ‘net owned funds’ ratio. For this purpose, “net owned

funds’ comprises of all components of equity less intangible assets (including capital work in progress) and
deferred tax asset.

It is the Company's policy to keep this ratio below, 2 times of net owned funds or borrowings of Z 10,000
million, whichever is lower. The Company’s borrowing to net owned funds ratio at March 31, 2020, along
with the comparative, was as follows:
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In ¥ million
Particulars As at March As at March
31, 2020 31,2019
Total borrowings (lease liability) 68.1
Net owned funds 6,616.1 6,712.5
Adjusted net debt to equity ratio 8.01 -

30. Employee Benefits

ii)

The Company contributes to the following post-employment defined benefit plans in India.

Defined contribution plans;
Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The contributions to the

provident fund are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the year when the contribution is due. The
Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund.

Defined benefit plan;

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan, other than a defined contribution plan. The
Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employee has earned in return for their service in the Company.
Present value of such future benefit becomes the liability to the Company. Any unrecognized past service cost
is considered while calculating this liability. The discount rate is determined using the government bond yield,
published by FIMMDA, of the maturity equivalent to the expected term of the obligation.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise of actuarial gains and losses, are
recognised immediately in “other comprehensive income.”

The Company determines the net interest expense on the net defined benefit liability for the year by applying
the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation to the beginning of the period balance of net
defined benefit liability, taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period
as a result of benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation, calculated by an actuary, using projected unit credit method at
end of each financial year. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in full in the period in which they occur
in the statement of other comprehensive income.

Risks associated with defined benefit plan
Gratuity is a defined benefit plan and exposes the Company with the following risks:

a) Interest rate risk
A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the government bond yield will increase the present value of the
liability requiring a higher provision.

b) Salary increment risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of
members. As such, an increase in the salary of the members more than assumed level will increase the plan's

liability.

c) Asset liability nmtuhin;., (“AL”) risk
The plan faces the AL risk as to the matching cash flow. Company has to manage pay-out based on pay as you
go basis from own funds as the defined benefit plan of the Company is unfunded.

d) Mortality risk
Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan does not
have any longevity risk.
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e) Regulatory risk
Risk associated with change in regulation.

In ¥ million
Particulars As at March As at March
31,2020 31,2019

Present value of defined benefit obligation (5.8) (5.2)
Fair value of plan assets - -
Funded status (Surplus/(Deficit)) (5.8) (5.2)
Non-current (4.9) (4.4)
Current (0.9) (0.8)

A, Movement in net defined benefit (agset) / liability
The following table shows reconciliation from the opening balance to the closing balances for net defined
benefit fiability and its components.

In ¥ millien
Particulars As at March As at March
31, 2020 31,2019

Present value of defined benefit obligation -
a. Opening balance 5.2 4.5
Included in statement of profit & loss:
b, Current service cost 0.1 0.2
c. Past service cost - -
d. Transfer infout - : -
e. Interest cost 0.4 0.4
f. Benefits paid , - -
g. Sub-total (a+b+ct+d+e+f) 5.7 5.1
Included in other comprehensive income
h. Demographic assumption - 0.2
i. Financial assumption 0.2 0.0*
j. Experience assumption (0.1) (0.1)
k. Closing balance (g+h+i+{) 58 5.2

* Below the rounding off norms applied by the Company.

B. Defined benefit obligations

i. Actuarial assumptions
The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted

averages).
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2020 2019
Discount rate 6.59% 7.48%
Salary escalation 7.00% 8.00%
Mortality rate during employment Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08)
Employee turnover rate (for different age groups) 12.00% | 12.00%

The estimate of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation takes into consideration
inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment
market. '
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if. Amount for the current and previous two periods are

as follows:

In ¥ million
Particulars As at March | As at March
31,2020 31,2019
Defined benefit obligation (5.8) (5.2)
Plan assets ~ -
Surplus/(deficit) (5.8) (5.2)
Experience gain /(loss) adjustments on plan liabilities (0.1) (0.1)
Actuarial gain/(loss) due to change in assumptions 0.2 0.2
C. Expenses recognized in statement of profit & loss
In ¥ million
Particulars March 31, March 31,
2020 2019
Current service cost 0.1 0.2
Net interest cost 0.4 0.4
Past service cost - -
Expected contributions by the employees - -
(Gains)/losses on curtailments and settlements -
Net effect of changes in foreign exchange rates - -
Expenses recognised 0.5 0.6
D. Expenses recognized in OCI
In T million
; . March 31, March 31,
Particulars 2020 2019
Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligation for the period 0.1 0.0%
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income - -
Change in asset ceiling - -
Net (income)/expense for the period recognized in OCI - -
0.1 0.0*

* Below the rounding off norms applied by the Company.

E. Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses have been determined based on reasonably possible change of the respective
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting date, while holding all other assumptions constant.
The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the projected
benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as

some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the projected benefit obligation
has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same
method as applied in calculating the projected benefit obligation as recognised in the balance sheet.

In T million
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Particulars Increase | Decrease | Increase | Decrease
Gratuity Gratuity
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of discounting - 0.3 - 0.2
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of discounting 0.3 - 0.3 -
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of salary increase 0.1 - 0.1 -
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of salary increase - 0.1 - 0.1
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of employee turnover 0.1 - 0.1 -
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of employee turnover - 0.1 - 0.1

* Below the rounding off norms applied by the Company.
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iii. Other long term employee bencfits,
The eligible employees of the Company arc permitted to carry forward certain number of their annual
leave entitlement to subsequent years, subject to a ceiling. The Company recognizes the charge to the
statement of profit and loss and corresponding liability on account of such non-vesting accumulated
leave entitlement based on valuation by an independent actuary. Accumulated leave, which is expected
to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee benefit and leave expected to
be carried forward beyond 12 months, as long term employee benefit.

31. Stock appreciation rights

Equity-seftled compensation scheme

The ultimate holding company operates share option schemes for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the operations of the Group. The reserve
represents the equity-settled share options in the shares of the ultimate holding company, Nomura Holding
Inc., granted to employees. The reserve is made up of the cumulative value of services received from
cmp!oyeec rer'ordcd over the vesting period commencing from the grant date of equity-settled options of the

.....

The vestmg perlod of thc share options is from the grant date until the commencement of the cxercise period.
The fair value of the share options as of grant date is estimated using a Trinomial Tree option model and using
the following assumptions:

a. Expected dividend yield based on the current dividend rate at the grant date;

b. Expected volatilities based on historical volatility of the ultimate parent’s common stoek;

¢. Therisk free interest rate estimate based on yen swap rate with a maturity equal to the expected lives

of options

d. Expected lives of the awards determined based on historical experience and

€. Share price of the ultimate parent’s common stock;
The following table lists the inputs to the model used for the options outstanding as of March 31, 2020:

Grant date | Dividend yield | Volatility |Risk-free interest| Expected life of | Share price
rate share option
% % % Year ¥
June 05,2015 1.68 23.68 033 5-7 848
June 09, 2017 1.67 25.40 0.03 5-17 683

The following share options were outstanding under the plans during the year:

Number of options
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31,2019

Opening balance 115.0 207.0
Granted during the year - -
Forfeited during the year - -
Exercised during the year (58.0) (92.0)
Expired during the year - -

Transferred during the year - -

Closing balance 57.0 115.0
Exercisable at the end of the year - -
The weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options outstanding as at March 31, 2020 is 5.73
years (March 31, 2019 5.56 years).

For stock options, the exercise price for options outstanding at 31 March 2020 was ¥1 per share (March 31, 2019
¥1 per share).
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The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the year was ¥369.77
per share (March 31, 2019: ¥587.19 per share).
The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was NIL (March 31, 2019: NIL per share).
The charge to the statement of profit & toss account on account of SAR’s for the current year is T 1. Omillion

(March 31, 2019 is T 2. 1million).

Cash-settled compensation scheme

Supplemental awards such as Notional Stock Units (“NSU”), Notional Indexed Units (“NIU”) and Collared
Notional Stock Units (“CSU”) are granted to the Company’s employees. NSU and CSU are linked to the
ultimate holding company’s stock price whereas NIU is linked to a world stock index quoted by Morgan Stanley
Capital International that has graded vesting over three to five years of grant date. All these awards are cash

settled.

32. Income Tax and Deferred Tax

1. Amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss

In ¥ million
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2020 2019
Current tax expense
a. Current year 205.7 91.0
b. Changes in estimates relating to prior years 0.1 0.4
205.8 91.4
Deferred tax expense
a. Origination and reversal of temporary differences (174.6) (58.3)
b. Change in tax rate 11.3 -
c. Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses (0.2 -
’ (163.5) (58.3)
Tax expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss 42.3 33.1
" 2. Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income
In T million
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Particular Tax Tax
Before Net of Before Net of
tax (expense) tax tax (expense) tax
benefit benefit
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss '
Remeasurements of the defined
benefit plans (0.1) 0.0* 0.1) 0.0* 0.0* 0.0*

* Below the rounding off norms applied by the Company.
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3. Reconciliation of effective tax rate

In ¥ million
Particulars As at March As at March
31,2020 31,2019

Profit before tax 110.4 167.0
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate 27.8 48.6
(Current year 25.17%, Previous year 29.12%)
Changes in tax rate 11.3 -
Tax effect of :
Interest u/s 234C 0.5 0.0*
Non-deductible tax cxpense 29 (15.7)
Changes in estimates related to prior year - 0.4
Recognition of previously unrecognised deductible temporary difference 0.2y {0.2)

42.3 33.1

* Below the rounding off norms applied by the Company.
The applicable tax rate in India for the financial year FY 2018-19 was 29.12% which was subsequently decreased
to 25.17% for the financial year 2019-20.
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4. Movement in deferred tax balances

As at March 31, 2020 In Z million
Particulars Opering Change in | Recognised in | Recognised Deferred | Deferred fax
balance accounting statement of in OCI tax asset liability
policy** profit and
_ loss

Provision of deferred
bonus 0.4 - 0.4) - -
Provision for leave
encashment 1.7 - 0.0* - 1.7
Provision for gratuity 1.5 - (0.1) - 1.4
Provision on GST asset 3.5 - (1.2) - 23
Depreciation 0.0* - 0.0* - 0.0*
Unrealised loss on
inventories 72.3 - 163.3 - 235.6
Lease liability - 0.4 0.6 1.0
Provision for expected
credit losses 3.6 - 1.3 - 4.9
Remeasurements of
defined benefit plan - - 0.0* 0.0* -

83.0 0.4 163.5 0.0* 246.9

* Below the rounding off norms applied by the Company.

** Refer note 44




NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2019 In ¥ million
Particulars Opening Recognised in Recognised | Deferred tax | Deferred tax
balance statement of in OCI asset liability
profit and loss
Provision of deferred bonus 0.4 - - 0.4 -
Provision for leave
encashment 1.2 0.5 - 1.7 -
Provision for gratuity 1.3 0.2 - 1.5 -
Provision on GST asset 4.0 (0.5) - 3.5 -
Depreciation - - - - -
Unrealised gain on inventories 14.7 57.6 - 72.3 -
Brokerage 0.1 0.1) - - -
Provision for expected credit
losses 3.0 0.6 - 3.6 -
Remeasurements of defined
benefit plan - 0.0* 0.0* - -
24,7 58.3 - 83.0 -

* Below the rounding off norms applied by the Company,

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Deferred tax is
measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside
profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred
tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

33. Earnings Per Share

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be
issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

Sr. Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended

No. artie March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

A) Net pro‘ﬁt_ attributable to equity holders of the Company 68.0 133.9
(in ¥ millions)

B) Welghted'averag? number of shares at the end of the 130,000,000.0 130,000,000.0
year for diluted EPS

C) | Face value per share 10.0 10.0

D) | Basic and diluted earnings per share 0.52 1.03
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J4. Segment Reporting

Mr. R. Arun has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM regularly
reviews the performance reports and makes decisions about allocation of resources.

An operating segment is a componeat of the Company that engages in business activities from which it eamns
revenue and incurs expenses, for which discrete financial information is available.

The Company is a Non-banking financial institution and is primarily engaged in lending and investing
activities. The Company's operations fall under single business segment.

Further the business operations of the Company are primarily concentrated in India. The Company is
considered to operate in the single geographical segment i.e. domestic segment.

Since the Company’s' current business activities primarily falls within a single business and geographical
segment, no additional disclosures are required as per Ind AS 108.

35. Related Party Disclosure

f—

Names of related parties:

Nature of relationship Name of party
Parent company Nomura Asia Investment (Fixed Income) Pte. Ltd,
Ultimate parent company Nomura Holdings, Inc.

2. Names of related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the period:
Nature of relationship Name of party

Fellow subsidiaries Nomura Services India Private Limited

Nomura Structured Finance Services Private Limited
Nomura Financial Advisory and Securities (India) Private Limited
Nomura Fixed Income Securities Private Limited

Nomura Investments (Singapore) Pte. Limited
‘Nomura Asset Management Co.
Key management personnel Mr. R. Arun (Date of Appointment: September 28, 2018)
Mr. Shantanu Sahai (Date of Appointment: March 12, 2019)
Mr. Manish Lath
Mr. Vikas Murarka
Mr. Vipul Chatwani

Mr. Swapnil Bhoir (Date of Appointment: April 21, 2016;
Date of Resignation: March 12, 2019)

FY 2019-20 In T millions
Transactions .
Name of related party Nat}lre o? Nature 'of during the year Amount outstanding
relationship transaction as at
ended
[Receivable/(Payable)]
Support cost
recharge* 240 (2.8)
Nomura Financial Supp Oit cross charge 0.1 -
. .. Fellow (CSR)
Advisory and Securities subsidiar Fixed asset
(India) Private Limited y y 02 (0.2)
purchased
Recharge t::) group 143 16
companies
. : Legal and 18.8 (1.7)
Nomura Services India Fellow professional fees*
Private Limited Subsidiary Recharge to group 0.0%* i
companies )
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Transactions .
Name of related party Nat.u e 0? Nature .Of during the year Amount outstanding
relationship transaction as at
ended
Receivable/(Payable)
Short term employee
benefits 17.3 (1.3)
Directors Key E"St}?mp loyment 1.0 0.1)
(Refer Annexure ) Management | benefits
Personnel Termination benefits - -
Employee share
based payments 19 0

*Inclusive of service tax/GST.

* Transaction entered with The Nomura Trust and Banking Co. Limited as the trustee of Indian Local Currency
Denominated Bond Mother Fund which is managed by Nomura Asset management Co.

36. Net Debt Reconciliation

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements in net debt for each of the year

presented below:

In Z million
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Lease liability 68.1 -
In  million
Particulars Lease liability

Net debt as at April 1, 2019 73.7
Comprises of :
As per balance sheet 73.7
Interest accrued -
Cash flows (11.0)
Interest expense 54
Interest paid -
Other non-cash movements

- Fair value adjustments -

- Acquisitions/disposals -
Net debt as at March 31, 2020 68.1
Comprises of :
As per balance sheet 68.1
Interest accrued -

37. Interest and repayment terms.

a.

Terms of commercial paper issued and outstanding are as below:

No commercial paper borrowing were issued in FY 2019-20. There is no outstandmg commercial paper as at

March 31, 2020.

FY 2018-19 In € million
Series Name Issuance date | Maturity date | Amount | Coupon rate | Payment frequency
Interest and
principal
CP/2017-18/MISCO01/34 | March 16,2018 | May 15, 2018 750.0 7.90% At Maturity

Rating assigned: IND A1+
Date of rating: February 07, 2018
Rating valid up to: February 06, 2019

Rating issued by: India Rating & Research Private Limited
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based payments

Transactions .
Name of related party rg:tt.l:) l: ;:f tlii:lt:reﬁ?; during the year Amountaosu;tstandmg
tonsiip ransac ended
[Receivable/(Payable)|
N_omura Strus:tured . Fellow Legal and
Finance Services Private g . * 1.9 (0.1)
Limited Subsidiary professional fees
Nomura Fixed [ncome Fellow Recharge to group 9.1 i
Securities Private Limited | Subsidiary companies* )
Nomura Investments Fellow 5:(:52?{3; of 4,956.4 -
Si . Limi Subsidi o=
(Singapore) Pte. Limited ubsidiary Sale of securitics 2,563.7 ~
Nomura Singapore Fellow Purchase of RO26 )
Limited Subsidiary securities -
Nomura Asset Fellow ::f:;??s()f 446.9 -
Managemeiit Co.* Subsidiary RO S T
= Sale of securities 154.0
Short term employes 30.7 8.2)
benefits o \9-4)
Directors Key | Post-employment 13 ©.1)
(Refer Annexure [) 1v1anagemcm UCIICLILS
Personnel Termination benefits - -
Employee share - .y
- i.6 (0.0

*Inclusive of goods and service tax.
* Transaction entered with The Nomura Trust and Banking Co. Limited as the trustee of Indian Local Currency
Denominated Bond Mother Fund which is managed by Nomura Asset management Co.
** Below rounding off norms adopted by the Company.

o

FY 2018-19 In % millions
Tweangactinng
Name of related party Nat}lre OF Nature .Of during the year Amount outstanding
relationsliip transaction as at
ended
Receivable/(Payable)
Support Cost 229 (1.0)
. . recharge
Nomura Financial
. o . Fellow Support cross charge o~
Advisory and Securities " o 0.2 -
. . . subsidiary (CSR)*
(India) Private Limited
Recharge to group
g 14.2 1.0
companies
Nomura Services India Fellow Legal and 19.1 (1.2)
Private Limited Subsidiary | professional fees* ' '
N.omura Stru?tured . Fellow Legal and
Finance Services Private Subsidi ofessional fees* 1.1 ©0.1)
Lirited ary professiona
sl -
Nomu.rg legd Incor_ne. Fellqw . Sale of securities 3,970.3 -
Securities Private Limited | Subsidiary
Recharge to group 24 i
companies* )
N Purchase of
Nomura Investments Fellow securities 2,899.0 -
(Singapore) Pte. Limited Subsidiary Sale of securities 23160 -
Nomura Asset Fellow Purchase of (96.5 i
Management Co." Subsidiary securities '
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38. Income/Expenditure in foreign currency: (on accrusl basis)

a) Income in foreign currency

Current Year: NIL (Previous Year; NiL)

b) Expenditure in foreign currency

N In € million
Particulars 2019-20 2018-19

Other expenses 0.1 0.2

0.1 0.2

39. Disclosure pursuant to Annexure XIV of RBI/DNBR/2016-17/45 Master Directions
DNBR.PD.004/03.10.119/2016-17 Master Direction-Non-Banking Financial Company
- Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 dated September 01, 2016 (as updated on February

17, 2020).

a. Capital to risk assets ratio (CRAR)

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Capital Adequacy Ratio 98.39% 100.61%
Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratio 98.09% 100.61%
Tier 2 Capital Adequacy Ratio 0.3% 0.00%
Amount of Subordinated Debt raised as Tier Il Capital - -
Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt instruments - -
b. Investments
In % million
As at As at
: March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

1) Value of Invesiments :
i} Gross value of Investments*
a) In India 6,296.0 6,143.2
b) Outside India - -
ii) Provision for depreciation**
a) In India 19.9 12.5
b) Outside India - -
iii) Net Value of Investment
a) In India 6,276.1 6,130.7
b) Outside India - -
2) Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on Investments**
i) Opening balance 12.5 10.3
iiy Add: Provision made during the year 7.4 2.2
iii)Less: Write off/ write back of excess provision
during the year -
iv) Closing balance 19.9 12.5

* Includes change in fair value.

** Provision for ECL on investments measured at amortised cost.
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¢. Derivatives

a.

f.

Interest rate swaps and Forward rate agreements
The Company has not entered into Interest rate swaps and Forward rate agrcements during the year 2019-
20. (Previous year: NIL)

Exchange traded interest rate derivative
The Company has not entered into exchange traded mterest rate derivative during the year 2019-20.
(Previous year: NIL)

Disclosure on risk exposure

The Company has formulated and adopted a Risk Management Framework to identify and take
appropriate measures to mitigate the risks impacting the business of the Company.

The Risk Management Framework lays down the procedures for identification of risks, assessment of its
impact on the business of ithe Company and the efficacy of the measures taken to mitigate the same. The
risks are evaluated at an inherent and residual level, based on the impact of such risks and the likelihood

of its occurrence.

The Risk Management Committee (RMC) is responsible for ensuring that the appropriate methodology,
processes and systems are in place for monitoring, identifying and reviewing the risks associated with the
business of the Company.

RMC reviews compliance with risk policies, monitors risk limits, reviews and analyzes risk exposure
related to specific issues and provides oversight of risk across the Company. The minutes of RMC is
placed before the Board for its review and consideration.

The Company also has an investment policy that includes all the derivatives transactions. This policy
covers the nature of derivative products, defines a pre-approved risk framework within which the
Company can enter into various derivative transactions, and defines risks that can be taken to use
derivatives for hedging purposes and to outline accounting and operational processes governing the above.

Securitization
The Company has not entered into any securitization transactions during the year 2619-20.
(Previous years: NIL).

Details of non-performing financial assets purchased/sold
The Company has purchased or sold any non-performing financial assets during the year 2019-20.
(Previous years: NIL).

Exposures

a. Exposure to real estate sector
(Disclosure also in pursuant to RBI circular no. RBI/2008-09/116 DNBS (PD).CC No.125/
03.05.002/2008-2009 dated August 1, 2008)
The Company does not have direct exposure to residential or commercial real estate nor made any
investment in mortgage backed securities (“MBS”) and other securitized exposures for the year 2019-
20. (Previous years: NIL).

b. Exposure to capital markets

In T million

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

i. Direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds,
convertible debentures and units of equity-oriented mutual funds - -
the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt;

{i. Advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other
securities or on clean basis to individuals for investment in shares - -
(including IPOs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible
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Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

debentures, and units of equity-oriented mutual funds;

iii. Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible

bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented - 700.0

mutual funds are taken as primary security; '

iv. Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the

collateral security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible

debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the

primary security other than shares / convertible bonds /

convertible debentures / units of equity oriented mutual funds

does not fully cover the advances;

v. Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and

guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers and market makers;

vi. Loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares /

bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis for

meeting promoter's contribution to the equity of new companies

in anticipation of raising resources;

vii. Bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows /

issues; v

viil. All exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and

unregistered)

Total Exposure to Capital Markets - 700.0

g. Defails of Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the NBFC
During the financial year 2019-20, the Company has not exceeded the Single Borrower Limits or the Group
Borrower Limits laid down by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI). (Previous years: NIL)

h. Unsecured Advances
The Company has not made any unsecured advances during the current year (Previous years: NIL)

i. Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators
The Company has not obtained registration from any other financial regulator in FY 2019-20.
(Previous years: NIL)

j- Disclosures of Penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators
There has been no penalty imposed by RBI or other regulators on the Company during the year 2019-20

(Previous years; NIL)

k. Rating assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year.
i. Ratings Assigned:

Rating Agency: India Ratings and Research Private Limited.

ii. Long-term principal protected equity linked debentures : IND PP-MLDAAAemr/Stable
iii. Short-term commercial paper programme : IND A1+

(March 12, 2020 to March 11, 2021)

iv. There has not been any migration of ratings during the year.
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020

l. Provisions and contingencies

In T million

Break up of ‘Provisions and Contingencies’ shown under the As at As at
head Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Provision for depreciation on investments* 7.4 2.2
Provisions towards NPA -
Provision made towards income taxes (Including deferred taxes 423 331
and tax reversal for prior years) ) ]
Other Provisions and Contingencies
- Provision for gratuity 0.5 0.6
- Provision for compensated absences 1.1 1.3
- Provision on goods and service tax asset {3.5) (1.3)
*Provision for ECL on investments measured at amortised cost.
m. Drawdown from reserves
The Company has not drawn out any amount from reserves in FY 2019-20. (Previous year: NIL)
n. Cencentration of Deposits, Advaneces, Exposure and NPAs,
a. Concentration of deposits (for deposit taking NBFC)
In % million
Particulars As at As at
Mareh 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Total deposits of twenty largest depositors NIL NIL
Percentage of deposit to twenty largest depositors to total deposits NA NA
of the NBFC
b. Concentration of advances
In T million
Particulars As at As at
: March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Total advances to twenty largest borrowers NIL 700.0
Percentage of advances to twenty largest borrowers to total
advances of the NBFC NA 100%
c. Concentration of exposures
In ¥ million
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Total exposure of twenty largest borrowers 6,532.8 6,578.8
Percentage of exposure to twenty largest borrowers to total 100% 100%

exposure of the NBFC

d. The Company does not have any non-performing assets as at March 31, 2020. (Previous year: NIL)

0. Customer Complaints

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
No, of complaints pending at the beginning of the year NIL NIL
No. of complaints received during the year NIL NIL
No. of complaints redressed during the year NIL NIL
No. of complaints pending at the year NIL NIL
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40. Contingent linbilities

The company is in litigation with tax office in respect of certain additions made to the returned income. The
company has appealed against all of the below orders and the same are pending before the Comimissioner of

Income Tax (Appeals)
In T million
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 Mareh 31, 2019

Income Tax FY 2011-12 (AY 2012-13) 9.5 9.5
Income Tax FY 2012-13 (AY 2013-14) 94,0 94.0
Income Tax FY 2013-14 (AY 2014-15) 19.3 19.3
Income Tax FY 2014-15 (AY 2015-16) 8.6 8.6
Taotal 131.4 131.4

41.

42.

43.

A. As required by Paragraph 19 of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically
Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 dated
September 01, 2016 (as updated on February 17, 2020) is appended herewith as an Annexure I1.

B. As required by Appendix I of RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 -
Liquidity Risk Management Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment
Companies dated November 04, 2019 is appended herewith as an Annexure I11.

The Company has a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents required by transfer
pricing legislation under section 92-92F of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Based on the information and available
documents, the Company is of the view that all international transactions are at arm’s length and hence the
above legislation will not have any material impact on the financial statements, particularly on the amount of
tax expense and that of provision for taxes. ' ‘

Maturity analysis

The table below classifies all the assets and liabilities according to their expected maturity, i.e. recovery or

settlement in the next 12 months.

In T million

Particulars March 31, 2020
Assefs Within 12 months | Afiter 12 months Total

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 18.6 - 18.6
Receivables
- Trade receivables 60.0 - 60.0
Investments* 6,036.1 240.0 6,276.1
Other financial assets* 247.0 113 258.3
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (net) 14.0 32,0 46.0
Deferred tax assets (net) - 246.9 246.9
Property, plant and equipment - 0.2 0.2
Right of use asset - 64.3 64.3
Intangible assets under development - 0.2 0.2
Other intangible assets - 0.1 0.1
Other non-financial assets 0.7 - 0.7
TOTAL 6,376.4 595.0 6,971.4
Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Lease liability 5.8 623 68.1
Other financial liabilities 20.9 - 20.9
Non-financial liabilities ’
Current tax liabilities (net) 4.1 - 4.1
Provisions 1.7 10.7 12.4




NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Other non-financial liabilities 2.6 - 2.6
TOTAL ; 35.1 73.0 108.1 |
Net Shareholders Funds 6,341.3 522.0 6,863.3
*Level 3 securities has been bucketed as per their residual maturities.
In T million
Particulars March 31, 2019
Assets Within 12 months | After 12 months Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 854 - 854
Receivables
- Trade receivables 25.6 - 25.6
Investments 6,130.7 - 6,130.7
Other financial assets 4491 - 449 1
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (net) - 50. 50.7
Deferred tax assets (net) - 83.0 83.0
Other non-financial assets 0.7 - 0.7
TOTAL 6.691.5 133.7 6,825.2
Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities 116 0.3 11.9
Non-financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net) 4.9 - 4.9
Provisions 1.5 9.2 10.7
Other non-financial liabilities 2.2 - 2.2
TOTAL 20.2 9.5 29.7
Net Shareholders Funds 6,671.3 124.2 6,795.5

44. Chaage in accounting policy

This note explains the impact of the adoption of Ind AS 116, Leases on the Company’s financial statements.

Impact on the financial statements - lessee accounting,

As indicated in note 3.4 of significant accounting policies, the Company has adopted Ind AS 116
retrospectively from April 01, 2019, but has not restated comparatives for year ended March 31, 2019, as
permitted under the specific transition provisions in the standard. The reclassifications and the adjustments
arising from the new leasing rules are therefore recognised in the opening balance sheet on April 01, 2019.
The new accounting policies are disclosed in note 3.4 of significant accounting policies.

On adoption of Ind AS 116, the company recognised iease iiabilities in relation to leases which had previousiy
been classified as “operating leases” under the principles of Ind AS 17, Leases. These liabilities were
measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate as of April 01, 2019. The weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate applied to the
lease liabilities on April 01, 2019 was 8.02%

Practical expedients applied

In applying Ind AS 116 for the first time, the company has used the following practical expedients permitted

by the standard:

a. relying on previous assessments on whether leases are onerous as an alternative to performing an
impairment review - there were no onerous contracts as at April 01,2019

b. excluding initial direct costs for the measurement of the right of use asset at the date of initial application,
and

c. using hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains a lease at the date of initial
application

The Company has also elected not to reassess whether a contract is, or contains a lease at the date of initial

application. Instead, for contracts entered into before the transition date the Company relied on its assessment

made applying Ind AS 17, determining whether an arrangement contains a lease.
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45.

Adjustments recopnised in the balance sheet on April 01, 2019

The change in accounting policy affected the following items in the balance sheet:
Right-of-use assets — increase by ¥ 72.1million

Deferred tax assets (net) - increase by  0.4million

Lease liabilities — increase by ¥ 73.7million

The net impact on retained earnings was decrease of ¥ 1.2million (net of deferred tax).

Impact of COVID 19

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) as a global
pandemic. Besides the toll that this outbreak has had on human life, it has also disrupted the social, economic
and financial structures of the entire world. In many countries, including India, there has been severe
disruption to regular business operations due to lockdowns, disruptions in supply chain, travel bans,
quarantines, social distancing and other emergency measures.

In India, on 24 March 2020, the Central government declared a 21-day national lockdown, which was further
extended by Central and State Governments to contain the spread of COVID-19.

The Indian Government, the Reserve Bank of India and other regulators have announced various measures
and relaxations acknowledging the current situation to ensure that there is enough liquidity in the hands of
market participants and provided moratoriums (o the borrowers in terins of their repayments to the financial
institutions.

The Company is primarily engaged in lending and investing activities. The Company is into the business of
investing in Corporate Bonds/Debentures, Commercial Papers, Certificate of Deposits, units of Mutual Funds
and other marketable securities. The Company also offers loans to Corporates in India. The Company's
operations have continued through the lock down period without any significant impact.

The Company has made an assessment of its liquidity position and carrying value of its assets comprising
Investments, Trade Receivables and others financial and non-financial assets as at balance sheet date, and has
concluded that there are no material adjustments required in the financial statements, other than those already
considered. The Company believes that it has taken into account all the possible impact of known events
arising from COVID-19 pandemic in the preparation of the financial statements.

All employees are working from home during the lock down period and the Company has taken necessary
measures to ensure continuity of business and operations in a seamless manner. The internal financials
controls are in place to take care of current situation.

However, the impact assessment of COVID-19 is a continuing process given the uncertainties associated with
its nature and duration. The Company will continue to monitor any material changes to future economic
conditions.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016 Nomura Capital (India) Private Limited
VIVEK Digitally signed by VIVEK
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Vivek Prasad Arun Kumar Rajappan Vipul Chatwani
Partner Director Director
Membership Number: 104941 DIN: 05348107 DIN: 00337576
Place: Mumbai
Date: June 23, 2020 SWATI  Palelysaned

SHAILESH: ' SHAILESH SONAR
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Swati Sonar

Company Secretary
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Place: Mumbai

Date: June 23, 2020
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Schedules to the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020

Annexure II

(Paragraph 19 of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit
taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 dated September 01, 2016 (as

updated on February 17, 2020))

In 2 million

Particulars
Liabilities side :

Amount outstanding

Amount overdue

but not paid:

1. Loans and advances availed by the non-banking financial company inclusive of interest accrued thereon

Secured

(a) Debentures

Unsecured

(b) Deferred Credits

(c) Term Loans

(d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing

(e) Commercial paper

72 s Y N Y
(1) Utner waiis

Assets side :

2. Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables [other than those
included in (4) below] :

Amount
outstanding

(a) Secured

7N

{b) Unsecured ,

3. Break-up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards
AFC activities

Amount
outstanding

=}

(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors :

(a) Financial lease

(b) Operating lease

(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors :

(a) Assets on hire

(b) Repossessed Assets

(iii) Other loans counting towards AFC activities

(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed

(b) Loans other than (a) above

4. Break-up of Investments

Current Investments

i. Quoted

(i) Shares : (a) Equity

(b) Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds

(iil) Units of mutual funds

(iv) Government Securities

(v) Others

2. Unquoted

(i) Shares : (a) Equity

(b) Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds

(iii) Units of mutual funds

(iv) Government Securities

{v) Others
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Long Term Investments
1. Quoted

(i) Shares : (a) Equity -
(b) Preference ' -
(i1) Debentures and Bonds

(iii) Units of mutual funds

(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others -
2. Unguoted
(1) Shares : (a) Equity -
(b) Preference -
(ii) Debentures and Bonds -
(iii) Units of mutual funds

{(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others -
5. Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (2) and (3) above :
Amount net of provisions

Category Secured Unsecured Total
1. Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries - -
(b) Companies in the same group - -
(c) Other related parties - - -
2. Other than related parties - -

Total - - -
6. Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities (both

quoted and unquoted)

Amount net of provisions

C
ategory Market Value Book Value

1. Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries -

(b) Companies in the same group _ -

(c) Other related parties

2. Other than related parties 6,276.1 6,276.1
Total _ 6,276.1 6,276.1
7. Other information

Category Total

(1) Gross Non-Performing Assets

(a) Related parties -
(b) Other than related parties -

(ii) Net Non-Performing Assets

(a) Related parties ' -

(b) Other than related parties ' -

(iii)Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt
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Annexure I

Schedules to the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020

(Appendix I of RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 — Liquidity Risk Management
Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment Companies dated November 04, 2019)

a.

_!2.

]

Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposits and borrowings)

Sr. Number of significant Amount % of total % of total
No. counterparties (In ¥ million) deposits liabilities.

‘Top 20 large deposits (amount in T crore and % of total deposits)

NIL

Top 10 borrowings (amount in ¥ crore and % of total borrowings)
NIL

Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product

Sr. Name of the Amount % of total
No. instrument/product (In T miliion) liabilities.

Stock Ratios:
a. Commercial papers as a % of total public funds, total liabilities and total assets
NIL

b. Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a % of total public funds, total

liabilities and total assets.

¢. Other short-term liabilities, if any as a % of total public funds, total liabilities and total assets

Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management.

The Company has instituted and adopted the Liquidity risk framework under the Asset Liability Management

Committee (“ALCO™).

The Company’s liquidity risk framework is at-least reviewed annually, or as the market, business and
regulatory environment demand.

It is overseen by the Board, Risk Management Committee (“RMC”) and ALCO.

Asset Liability Management Support Group, which consist of operating staff from Risk and Finance,
analyse/monitor liquidity profile, limits & report to RMC, ALCO and Credit Risk Officer.
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Independent Auditors’ report

To the Members of Nomura Capital (India) Private Limited

Report on audit of the financial statements

Opinion

1.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Nomura Capital (India) Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, and the
statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes
in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2021, and total comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other
comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

4.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board of Directors’ report, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Board of Directors’
report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Board of Directors’ report, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with
governance and take appropriate action as applicable under the relevant laws and regulations.

Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, 252, Veer Savarkar Marg, Shivaji Park, Dadar (West), Mumbdai 400028
T: +91 (22) 66691500, F: +91 (22) 66547804/07
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Price W,
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Report on audit of the Financial Statements
Page 2 of 4

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial
statements

o

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
enguring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of
Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

7.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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10.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. OQur conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

11.

12,

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the Annexure B a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opihion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 {2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure A”,
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(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

1. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at March 31, 2021 on
its financial position in its financial statements — Refer Note 39 to the financial
statements.

ii. The Company has long-term contracts as at March 31, 2021 for which there were no
material foreseeable losses. The Company did not have any derivative contracts as at
March 31, 2021.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2021,

iv. The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2021.

13. The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are applicable only to public
companies. Accordingly, reporting under Section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable to the
Company.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountanis LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016
Digitally sighed by
SHARAD SHARAD AGARWAL
Date: 2021.06.22
AGARWAL 22:55:33 +05'30°
Sharad Agarwal
Partner

Mumbai Membership Number: 118522
June 22, 2021 UDIN: 21118522AAAACS5372
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 12(f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Nomura
Capital (India) Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Nomura
Capital (India) Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit
of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies; the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls and both issued by the ICAI Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing protedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements.
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 12(f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Nomura
Capital (India) Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
Page2of 2

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reascnshle asgurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. '

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Price Walerhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Digitally signed b:
SHARAD  gieaaeanwas
Date: 2021.06.22
AG ARWAL 22:56:14 +05'30"
Sharad Agarwal
Partner

Mumbai Membership Number: 118522
June 22, 2021 UDIN: 21118522AAAACS5372
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i.  (a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

details and situation, of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the Management during the

(o)

iil.

year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the
frequency of verification is reasonable.

The Company does not own any immovable properties as disclosed in Note g on fixed assets to
the financial statements. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(i)(¢) of the said Order are not
applicable to the Company. :

The Company did not hold any inventory during the year. Therefore, the provisions of Clause
3(ii) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of
the Act. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(b) and (iii)(c) of the said Order
are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments, or provided any guarantees
or security to the parties covered under Section 185 and 186. Therefore, the provisions of
Section 185 and Section 186(1) are not applicable to the Company. The Company is a Non-
Banking Financial Company registered with Reserve Bank of India and consequently other
provisions of Section 186 are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73,
74,75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified.

The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company.

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company

examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory
dues, including provident fund, income tax, cess, goods and service tax and other material
statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. ‘

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company

examined by us, there are no dues of goods and service tax ,duty of excise and value added tax
which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. The particulars of dues of income tax
as at March 31, 2021 which have not been deposited on account of a dispute, are as follows:
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Name of | Nature of dues Amount " | Period to | Forum
the (Rs. In million) | which the | where the
statute amount dispute is
relates pending
Income Tax | Income Tax 9.49 (Amount of AY 2012-13 | Commissioner
Act, 1961 Rs. 1.50 paid of Income Tax
under protest to (Appeals)
the tax
authorities)
Income Tax | Income Tax 94.01 (Amount of | AY 2013-14 | Commissioner
Act, 1061 Rs. 14.2 paid of Income Tax
under protest to (Appeals)
the tav
authorities)
Income Tax | Income Tax 20.77 (Amount of | AY 2014-15 | Commissioner
Act, 1961 Rs, 3.20 paid of Income Tax
under protest to (Appeals)
the tax
authorities)
Income Tax | Income Tax 86* AY 2015-16 | Commissioner
Act, 1961 of Income Tax
(Appeals)

viii.

ix.

xi.

Xii.

* Amount has been adjusted from refund of the same year.

As the Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution or bank
or Government, nor has it issued any debentures as at the balance sheet date, the provisions of
Clause 3(viii} of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer
(including debt instruments) and term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(ix) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material
fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported
during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are applicable only to public
companies. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company. Also refer paragraph 13 of our main audit report.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.



Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Nomura
Capital (India) Private Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2021
Page 3 of 3

xiii.

The Company does not have any transactions with related parties under the provisions of
Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of related party transactions have been disclosed in
the financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related
Party Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully

Xiv.
or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of
Clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

XV. The Company has not entered into any non cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

XV The Company is required to, and has been registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934 as an Non-Banking Financial Institution without accepting public deposits.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016
SHARAD  Siariery
AGARWAL  Z5ise
Sharad Agarwal
. Partner
Mumbai Membership Number: 118522

June 22, 2021 UDIN: 21118522AAAACS5372
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NOMURA CAPITAL {INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2021

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Note In & million in ¥ million
Assets
1. Financial assets
a. Cash and cash equivalents 4 83 18.8
b. Receivables
- Trade receivables 5 ~ 60.0
c. investments 6 6,985.5 6,276.1
d. Other financial assets 7 392.3 258.3
2. Non-financial assets
a. Current tax assets (net) 8 38.5 46.0
b. Deferred tax assets (net) 32 162.3 246.9
c. Property, plant and equipment 9 0.5 0.2
d. Right of use asset 10 56.5 64.3
e. Intangible assets under development - 0.2
f.  Other intangible assets 9 0.4 0.1
g. Other non-financial assets 11 0.7 0.7
TOTAL 7,645.0 6,971.4
Liabilities and Equity
L iabilities
1. Financial liabilities
a Payables ,
- Trade payables
i. total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises -
ii. total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterp rises and small enterprises - -
b. Lease liabilities 10 62.3 68.1
c. Other financial liabilities 12 50.2 20.9
2. Non financial liabilities
a. Current tax liabilities (net) 13 - 41
b. Provisions 14 13.6 12.4
¢. Other non-financial liabilities 15 34 2.6
129.5 108.1
Equity
a. Equity share capital 16 1,300.0 1,300.0
b. Other equity 17 6,215.5 5,563.3
. 7,515.5 6,863.3
TOTAL 7,645.0 6,971.4
Summary of significant accounting policies 3
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
This is the balance sheet referred to in our report of even date.
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016 Nomura Capital (India) Private Limited
SHARAD E“g“"‘l‘léz‘?%“;“m /QlRJmR At Vipul gl snsdy
AGARWAL 5407 so50 RAAPPAN Jamnadas  Chatwan
oz ene RAJAPPAN  Sossasaasie Chatwani Sl
Sharad Agarwal Arun Kumar Rajappan Vipul Chatwani
Partner Director Director

Membership No.: 118522
Place: Mumbai
Date: June 22, 2021

DIN: 07943252

Digitally signed by

SWAT' SWATI SBAILESH
SHAILESH - sonar
SONAR  303aassosa0
Swati Sonar

Company Secretary
Membership No.: A48981
Place: Mumbai

Date: June 22, 2021

DIN: 00337576



NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2021

Year ended Year ended
Note March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
In € million In & million
Revenue from operations
i. Interest income 18 517.2 655.3
ii. Net gain on fair value changes 19 486.7 -
iii. Fees and commission income - 45.5
iv. Other income 20 44.1 271
Total 1,048.0 727.9
Expenses
i. Finance costs 21 5.0 5.4
ii. Fees and commission expense 22 1.8 15
ii. Net loss on fair value changes 19 - 475.0
iv. Impairment on financial instruments 23 - 7.4
v. Employee benefits expenses 24 92.4 547
vi, Depreciation, amortization and impairment 25 8.0 7.8
vii. Others expenses 26 69.9 65.7
Total 1774 817.5
Profit before tax 870.9 110.4
Tax Expense:
i. Current Tax 32 136.0 2057
ii, Deferred Tax 32 84.6 (163.5)
ifi. Tax expense for prior years (net) 32 (1.4) 0.1
Total 219.2 42.3
Profit after taxes 651.7 68.1
Other comprehensive income
i. Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Remeasurements gain/(loss) of the defined benefit plans 0.0* (0.1)
ii. Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss 0.0* 0.0*
Total 0.0* {0.1)
Total comprehensive income for the yoar 651.7 68.0
Earnings per equity share
Basic (T) 33 5.01 0.52
Diluted (%) 33 5.01 0.52
3

Summary of significant accounting policies
*Below the rounding off norms adopted by the Company.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
This is the statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016
Digitally signed by

SHARAD SHARAD AGARWAL
Date: 2021.06.22
AGARWAL 22:41:14 +05'30°
Sharad Agarwal
Partner
Membership No.: 118522

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 22, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Nomura Capital (india) Private Limited

Digitally signed by "
ARUN ARUN KUMAR Vipul
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Date: 2021.06.22
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SWATI Digitatly signed by SWATI
SHAILESH - oo o6ss 203513
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Swati Sonar

Company Secretary
Membership No.: A48981
Place: Mumbai

Date: June 22, 2021



NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Statemant of cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2021

Year ended Year anded
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

In ¥ million In ¥ million
Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit before taxation B70.9 110.4
Adjustments for:
Amortisation on intangible asset 0.1 0.0*
Depreciation on properly, plant & equipmenis 0.1 0.0"
Depreciation on right of use asset 7.8 7.8
Provision for doubtful debts 11.3 -
Provision created on good and service tax asset 07 (3.5)
Interast on right of use liability 5.0 54
Unrealised {prafitifioss on corporate bonds (331.4) 687.8
Impairment on financial instruments {measured at amorised cost] (19.9) 7.4
Recognisation of stock appreciation right payments to employees 0.5 1.0
interest ufs 234C of Incame Tax Act, 1961 07 19
Actuarial gain/{loss) on defined bensfit pians 0.0* {0.1)
Operating profit before working capital changes 5458 818.1
Changes in working capital :
Increase / (Decrease) in receivables 60.0 {34.4)
{Decrease} / increase in investments (369.4) (840.8)
{Decrease) / Increase in other financial assets {134.0) 190.7
(Decrease) / Increase in ather non-financiai assets (0.7) 3.5
Increase / (Decrease) in other financial liabilities 29.3 9.0
increase / (Decrease} in provisions 1.2 1.7
Increase / {(Decreasa) in other non-financial labilities 0.8 0.4
Cash ganeratad from nparatinns 133.0 148.4
Paymant of taxes {nel of refunds) (131.7) (203.7)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) oporating activities (A) 12 {55.3}
Cash flow from investing activities
Sals / (Purchase) of property, plant and equipement (0.4} 0.2)
Sale / (Furchasg) of intangible assets {0.4) {0.3)
Net cash {outflow) investing activities (B) {0.8) 0.5)
Cash flow from financing activities
Principal element of iease payment (10.8) (11.0)
Net cash {outflow) from financing activities (C) (10.8) (11.0)
Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) (10.3) . (66.8)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 18.6 85.4
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 8.3 18.6
Non-cash investing activitias
Acquicition of rioht of uiee asset ~ 721
Cash and cash equivalents comprises of:
Balances in Bank 8.3 18.6

*Below the rounding off norms adopted by the Cornpany.

The accampanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

This is the cash flow statement referred to in our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016
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NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31,

2021

a. Equity share capital

As at As at
March 31, 2021 farch 31, 2020
No. of Shares In € million No. of Shares in T miflion
Balance at the beginning of the year 130,600,000 1,300.0 130,000,000 1,300.0
Changes in equity share capital during the year - - - -
Balance at the end of the year 130,000,000 1,300.0 430,000,000 1.300.0
o, Other squity in € million
Reserves and surplus Others
Contribution
. " from uitimate
Particulars Secur’mes Statutory reserve : Retained earnings parent - Stock Total
premium .
appreciation
rights reserve
Balance at April 01, 2018 3,2478 4497 1,788.8 7.9 5,484.3
Profit for the year - - 68.1 - 58.1
Other comprehensive income - - {C.1) - (0.1
Transfer (from)/to statutory reserve - 13.8 {13.6) 0.0
Stock appreciation rights expense - - - 1.0 1.0
Balance at March 31, 2020 3,247.9 463.3 1,843.2 8.9 5.563.3
Profit for the year - - 651.7 - 651.7
Other comprehensive income - - - - -
Transfer {from)/to statutory reserve - 130.3 {130.3} - -
Stock appreciation rights expense - - - 0.5 0.5
Balance at March 31, 2021 33,2479 593.6 2,.364.6 9.4 6,215.5

The accompanying notes forms an integrai part of financial statements.
This is the statement of changes in equity referred to in our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Digitally signed by
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Date: 2021.06.22 22:42:58
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y Vipul Dightally signed by Vipul
Di i d by ARUN v
ARUN KUMAR 5ol ever Jamnadas e craven
Date: 2021.06.22 21:00:56 Date: 2021.06.22
RAJAPPAN +05'30" Chatwani 20:53:26 +05'30°
Arun Kumar Rajappan Vipul Chatwani
Director Director
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NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

1.

2.

Corporate Information

Nomura Capital (India) Private Limited (the "Company”) is a company domiciled in India
with its registered office situated at Ceejay House, Level 11, Plot F, Shivsagar Estate, Dr.
Annije Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai ~ 400 018.

The Company was incorporated on August 04, 2009. The Company is a subsidiary of
Nomura Asia Investment (Fixed Income) Pte. Ltd., a Company incarporated in Singapore.

The Company received the Certificate of Registration on April 28, 2010 from Department of
Non-banking Supervision (“DNBS") of the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) to commence the
business of non-banking financial institution.

The Company is primarily engaged in lending and investing activities.

f a
, §
Company's Board of Directors on June 22, 2021.

Basis of preparation

2.1 Gompliance with Ind AS
The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting
Standards '
("Ind AS”) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act”) [Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Ruies, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The Company is covered in the definition of Non-Banking Financiai Company ("NBFC")
as defined in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016.
Pursuant to Ind AS 1 and amendment to Division Il of Schedule il to the Companies
Act, 2013 on October 11, 2018, the Company presents its balance sheet in the order of
liquidity. This is since the Company does nat supply goods or services within a clearly
identifiable operating cycle, therefore making such presentation more relevant. A
maturity analysis of recovery or settlement of assets and liabilities within 12 months after
the reporting date and more than 12 months after the reporting date is presented in Note
42.

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The
accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial
statements

2.2 Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the
following: _ ‘
= certain financial assets and liabilities - measured at fair value;
¢ defined benefit plans assets - measured at fair value and
e share-based payments - measured at fair value




NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

2.3 Use of judgments, estimates and assumplions

3.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires that
management make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilittes and disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities as on the date of the financial statements and the
income and expense for the reporting period. The actual results could differ based an
these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in
any future periods affected.

Certain of the Company’s accounting policies require critical accounting estimates that
involve subjective judgments and the use of assumptions, some of which may be for
matters that are inherently uncertain and susceptible to change. The pelicies that involve
critical accounting estimates include fair valuation of financial instruments, impairment of
non-financial assets and deferred tax. Management believes that the estimates used in
the preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable.

Critical estimates and judgments made under ind AS are:

a. Business model assessment and fair value of financial instruments — refer note 27.
Estimation of expected credit losses — refer note 28 II.
Estimation of defined benefits obligation — refer note 30.
Estimation of current tax expense and current tax payable — refer note 32.
Estimation of deferred tax assets —~ refer note 32.

eao o

Significant Accounting Policies

3.1 Foreign currency translations
ltems included in the financia! statements are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”’). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee ("), which is
Company’s functional and presentation currency. Except as otherwise indicated,
financial statements presented in Indian rupee has been rounded to the nearest
million with one decimal.

Fareign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end
exchange rates are generally recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.



NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

3.2 Income taxes
Tax expense comprises current income tax and deferred income tax. Current
income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in
accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred income taxes reflect the
impact of current year timing differences between taxable income and accounting
income for the period.

Deferred income tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax regulations
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred income tax
assels are recognised only to the extent that there are sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet
daie. The Company writes-down the carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to the
extent that it is no longer reasanably certain that sufficient future taxable income will
be availabie against which deferred tax asset can be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are off set when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax assets with liabilittes and when deferred tax balances
relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax asset and liahilities are offset
where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle
on a net basis, or to realise the asset and setile the liahility simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in Other Comprehensive income
("OCH") or directly in equity. In this case, tax is also recognised in OCI or directly in

equity, respectively

3.3 Goods and Service tax (“GST”} on acquisition of assets and services

Cwnanans and te Aarn rannnnioon nat Af H .
Expenses and assels are recognised net of the G8T paid, except:

- When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from
the taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable

- When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is
included as part of receivables or payable in the balance sheet.

3.4 Leases
Nomura Financial Advisory and Securities (India) Private Limited (“NFASI"), the
Company's group company, has entered into lease agreement for office space. Of
this, some area is occupied hy the other group company i.e. Nomura Fixed Income
Securities Private Limited (“NFIS”) and the Company.



NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Leases where the Company is lessee:

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the
date at which the leased asset is available for use by the company. Contracts may
contain both lease and non-lease components. The Company will allocate the
consideration in the contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their
relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real estate, for which the
company is a lessee, it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease
components and instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present vaiue

hasis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease

payments:

a. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease
incentives receivable,

h. payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
company exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also
included in the measurement of the liability. The lease payments are discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
the lessee’'s incremental borrowing rate (“IBR") is used. IBR is the rate that the
lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar
terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Company, where possible, uses

recent third-party financing received by the lessee as a starting point, adjusted to

reflect changes in financing conditions since third party financing was received.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

a. the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,

b. any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received,

¢. any initial direct costs, and

d. restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful
life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Company is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
underlying asset'’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and all leases of low-
value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in statement of
profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.
Low-value assets comprise IT equipment and smalt items of office furniture.



NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

3.5 Cash and cash gguivalents
Cash and cash equivalents inciude cash in hand balances and short term deposits

with other banks and other short-term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less which are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

3.6 Financial instruments
a. Financial assets

initial recognition and measurement
Purchase and sale of financial assets are recognised on trade date, the date
on which the Company commits to purchase or sell a financial asset.

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value.

. Subseauent measuremant

Subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on the Company's
business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of
the asset.

There are three measurement categories into which the Company classifies
its financial asset - debt instruments:

Financial assets at amortised costs

Financial assets are classified under this category if the asset fulfilis both the

below mentioned conditions:

a. The assets are held within a business model with the objective to hold the
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and

b. The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI1”) on

tha nrincinal amount outetanding
principal amount outsianding.

Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition is recognised directly in Statement
of Profit and Loss. Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

(“FVOCI’)

Financial asset is measured at FVOCI when both of the following conditions

are met;

a. The instrument is held within a business model the objective of which is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets;

b. The contractual terms of the financial asset meet the SPPI test.
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When the financial asset is de-recognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to Statement of Profit
and Loss. Interest income from these financial assets is included using the
effective interest rate method ("EIR").

Financial Assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are
measured at FVTPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequentty
measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in Statement of
Profit and Loss and presented net within Net gain/loss on fair value changes .
in the period in which it arises.

Transaction costs of financial assets are expensed in Statement Profit and
Loss.

Impainment of financial assets

Overview of Expected Cradit Loss (“ECL”) principles

The Company records allowance for expected credit losses for all loans,
other debt financial assets, not measured at FVTPL, in this section all
referred to as “financial instruments”. Equity instruments are not subject to
impairment under Ind AS 109.

The ECL allowance is based on 12 months’ expected credit loss; unless there
has been significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which case,
the allowance is based on the lifetime expected credit loss.

Lifetime expected credit losses represent expected credit losses that would
result from all possible default events over the expected life of the financial
asset whereas 12 month expected credit losses are those life expected credit
losses expected to occur within 12 months of balance sheet date.

Both lifetime ECLs and 12-month ECLs are calculated on an individual basis
depending on the nature of the underlying portfolio of financial instruments.

The Company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end
of each reporting period, of whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition, by considering the change in
the risk of defauit occurring over the remaining life of the financial instrument.

Based on the above, the Company categories its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2
and Stage 3 as described below:

Stage 1 — Performing financial assets for which there has been no significant
deterioration in credit quality since initial recognition;
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Stage 2 — Underperforming financial assets for which there has been a
significant deterioration in credit quality since initial recognition but which are
not credit-impaired; and

Stage 3 — Non-performing financial assets for which there has been a
significant deterioration in credit quality since initial recognition and which
have become credit-impaired.

For exposures that have become credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is
cmrl = [N

recognised and interest revenue is calculated by applying the EIR to the
amortised cost (net of provision) rather than the gross carrying amount.

If an event (for e.g. any natural calamity) warrants a provision higher than as
mandated under ECL methodology, the Company may classify the financial

o e - .
asset in Slage 3 accordingly.

in case internal Nomura credit rating is not available for stage 1 assets, which
are performing, then lowest rating of performing assets shall be used for the
purposes of ECL calculation on a conservative basis.

Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is considered cradit impaired when an obligor fails to make
payments in full and on time of any financial obligaticnz, markedly
disadvantageous modification to a contractual term compared with the
existing obligation, bankruptcy filings, administration, receivership, liquidation
or other winding-up or cessation of business of an obligor or other similar

situations.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial instruments

mrn Aradid e sirad
ANS LACUILTHIIJAN GUL.

ECL methodolagy
The measurement of expected credit losses through the general ECL

impairment model is typically determined using loss rate models or
discounted cash flow models depending on the relevant staging of the
financial instrument.

financial instruments through development of loss rates calculated through an
estimate of the probability of default (“PD") of the obligor and ioss given
default ("LGD") which is applied to the expected credit exposure of the obligor
at default (“CEAD").

A loss rate model measures ECL for an individual or portfolio of similar
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Forward looking estimate
While estimating the ECL, the Company reviews macro-economic
developments occurring in the economy and market it operates in. On a
periodic basis, the Company analyses the relationship between key economic
trends with the estimate of PD.

The probability of default is an estimate of the likelihood of defauit over a
given time horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the
assessed period, if the facility has not been previously derecognised and is
still in the portfolio. The concept of PD is further explained in Note 28.

Loss given default

Loss given default inputs are determined by class of financial instrument
based on historical experience of loss and recovery rates for similar financial
instruments and other relevant industry data. Where appropriate, LGD inputs
are adjusted to reflect the impact of collateral and other integral credit
enhancements.

Exposure at default

The exposure at default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default
date.

Write off of loan assets

Credit-impaired financial asset individually assessed for impairment are
typically written-off when further cash flows are deemed uncollectible and
when all commercially reasonably means of recovering outstanding principle
and interest balances have been exhausted. Such a determination is based
on factors such as the occurrence- of significant changes in the obligor's
financial position such that the obligor can no longer pay the obligation, or
that the proceeds from collateral will not be sufficient to pay amounts due.

The provision calculated using the ECL model is compared with the
prudential guidelines issued by RBI and higher of the two is provided in the

- books of account.

Derecodgnition of financial assets

A financial asset is de recognised only when;

The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial asset; or

Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset,
but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more
recipients.
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Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognized. Where the
entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset, the financial asset is not de recognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retained
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the
financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained control of the
financial asset. Where the Company retains conirol of the financial asset, the
asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in
the financial asset.

The difference between the carrying value of the original financial asset and
the consideration is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

b. Financial iiabilities

a.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised when, and oniy when, the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.
The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial

recoanition
recogniiion.

All financial liabilities are recognised initiaily at fair value and, in the case of
borrowings and payables, net of directly atiributable transaction costs.

Trade payables amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid.
They are recognised initially at their fair value.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classifications as follows: '

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Liabilities classified under fair value through profit or loss includes financial
liabilities held-for-trading and financial liabilities designated at fair value
through Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held-for-trading if they are acquired for
the purpose of selling in the near term. This category includes derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated
as hedging instruments in hedge relationships.
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Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured
at fair value. Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of the
financial liabilities are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

« Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities that are not carried at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and
losses are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are
derecognised, and through the amortisation process. Trade and other
payables measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.

¢. Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is

discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modjification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the
recoghnition of a new liability.

The difference between the carrying value of the originai financial liability
and the consideration is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.7 Fair value measurement
Fair value is the price that wouid be received, to sell an asset, or paid, to transfer a
liability, in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date.

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
an asset or transfer a liability would take place either:

a) In the principal market for an asset or liability or

b) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability.

The Company classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that
reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurement. The fair
value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1: The financial instrument which is measured at a quoted price. Also includes
application money pending allotment on the reporting date.

Level 2: The financial instrument that is not quoted in an active market. Such
instrument is measured using various valuation techniques. The inputs for these
valuation techniques are:

a) Quoted price of similar instrument in an active market;

b) Quoted price of identical or similar instrument in a market that is not active;

¢) Inputs other than quoted price that are observable for an instrument (e.g. yield
curves, credit spreads, implied volatilities, etc.);

d) Market-corroborated inputs.
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Level 3: The financial instrument for which one or more significant inputs are not
based on observable market data.

3.8 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realised the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of
business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptoy of the Company or
the counterparty.

3.9 Derivative financial instruments
A derivative is a financial instrument or other contract with all three of the following
characteristics:

its value changes in response to the change in a specified interest rate, financial

instrument price, commaodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices or

rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided that, in the case of

a non-financial variable, it is not specific to a party to the contract (i.e., the

‘'underlying’).

b. It requires no initial net investment or an initial net investment that is smaller
than would be required for other types of contracts aexpected to have a similar
response to changes in market factors.

c. ltis settled at a future date.

EII

3.10 Property. plant and equipment
a. Tangible assets
i. Recognition and measurement
items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, less accumulated

danracistinn and acruimiilatad imnairmant Inceas if anv
gepreciation and accumuialelC impairmenti 10segs, I any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price,
including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, any directly
attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use
and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site
on which it is located, after deducting trade discounts and rebates.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

ii. Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.
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iii. Depreciation
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight line
basis using the rates arrived at, based on the useful lives estimated by the
management and which is in line with the rates indicated under Schedule If of
the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation is provided from the month of
acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

The management has used the following estimates of useful life to provide
depreciation on its property, plant and equipment:

Asset type Useful life estimated by
management
Office Equipment* 5 years
Computer and Allied Equipment* 3 years

*The useful life of the assets are based on historical experience and evaluation of
the Company, which is different from the useful life as prescribed in Schedule 1l
to the Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment, individually costing less than
¥25,000 is fully provided in the year of acquisition, as per management estimate.

b. Intangible asseis
i. Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.
Such intangible assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

ii. Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future
economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates.

iii. Amortisation
Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over the estimated useful
economic life. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Asset Useful life
(years)
Software ' 3 years

The amortisation period and the amortisation method are reviewed at each
financial yearend. if the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different
from previous estimates, the amortisation period is changed accordingly.
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3.11 Revenue Recognition

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Trading gains and losses (as per Ind AS 109):

Trading income includes all gains and losses from changes in fair value for
financial assets and financial liabilities held for trading. Gains and losses on
sale of securities are recognized on trade date basis.

Interest income on investments (as per ind AS 109):
Interest incomes of investments classified as FVTPL are recognised on EIR
basis. It is recognized on accrual basis and based on time apportioned,

wx et imde sraar svsd s o o N o H d 4~ >y ndios ~
taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

Interest income on loans and advances (as per Ind AS 109):

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income or
expense is recorded using the EIR, which is the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instruments or a shorler period, where appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset or liahility.

EIR in case of a financial asset is computed:

a. As the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset.

b. By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument in
estimating the cash flows,

Inciuding all fees received between parties to the contract that are an
integral part of the EIR method, transaction costs, and all other premiums or
discounts.

Any subseguent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows are
recognised in interest income with the corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of the assets.

Interest income on credit impaired assets is recognised by applying the EIR
method to the net amortised cost (net of provision) of the financial asset.

3.12 Employee benefits
i. Short term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the
service are classified short-term employee benefits and they are recognised in
the year in which the employee renders the related services. For the amount
expected to be paid, the Company recognises an undiscounted liability if they
have a present legal or constructive obligation to pay the amount as a result of
past service provided by employees, and the obligation can be estimated
reliably.



NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Staterments for the year ended March 31, 2021

iii.

iv.

V.

Defined benefit plan

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on'the basis
of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of
each financial year. Remeasurements gains and losses arising from
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized
in the period in which they occur, directly in the other comprehensive income.
They are included in the retained earnings under Other Equity on the balance
sheet.

Defined contribution plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the
Company pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal
or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The Company makes
specified monthly contributions towards Government administered Provident
Fund Scheme. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are
recognised as an employee benefit expense in Statement of Profit and Loss in
the periods during which the related services are rendered by employees.

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution
scheme and the contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss
of the year when the contributions are due. The Company has no other
obligations other than the contribution payable to the respective provident
funds.

Other employee benefits plan

The eligible employees of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain
number of their annual leave entittement to subsequent years, subject to a
ceiling. The Company recognizes the charge to the statement of profit and
loss and corresponding liability on account of such non-vesting accumulated
leave entitlement based on valuation by an independent actuary. Accumulated
leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as
short-term employee benefit and leave expected to be carried forward beyond
12 months, as long term employee benefit.

Share based payments

a. Equity setiled transactions
The ultimate holding company of the company operates share option
schemes for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Company's operations.
Employees (including directors) of the Company receive remuneration in
the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity settled transactions”).
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The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees and directors for
grants is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they -
are granted. The fair value is determined by using a finite difference model
which determines fair value with the following assumptions:

Expected Volatility based on implied volatility of the ultimate
holding company's common stock

Expected dividend yield | based on the current dividend rate at the
time of grant

Expected lives of based on vesting period

options granted

Expected number of based on historical experience

options which will vest

Estimated risk-free based upon Japanese Yen swap rates with

interest rate a maturity equal to the expactad lives of
options

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in Statement of Profit
and Loss, together with a corresponding increase in reserves, representing
contribution received from the uftimate holding company, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfiied. The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-seitled transactions at the end
of each reporting period until the vesting date refiects the extent 1o which
the vesting period has expired and the company's best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit
to Statement of Profit and Loss for a period represents the movement in
the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period. No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest.

b. Cash benefit plans

The fair value of tha amount payable to employees in respect of share
appreciation rights, which are settied in cash, is recognised as an expense
with a corresponding increase in liabilities, over the period the employees
unconditionally become entitled to payment. The liability is measured at
the end of each reporting date up to and including settlement date, with
changes in the fair value recognised as salaries, wages and bonus in
Statement of Profit and Loss.
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3.13

3.14

iii.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or construclive
obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation and the amount -can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of
the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-
tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage
of time is recognised as interest expense.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising
from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or mare uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company. A present obligation that arises from past events where
it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or
reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is termed and disclosed as
contingent liability.

Segment Reporting

Basis for segmentation

An operating segment is a component of the company that engages in business
activities from which it may earn and incur expenses, including revenues and
expenses that relate to transactions with any of the company's other components
and for which discrete financial information is available. Such decision is taken by
Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM).

Business segment

The Company’s operations fall under single business segment. Further, all the
transactions and the assets of the Company are recorded and located in India.
Since the Company's current business activity primarily falls within a single
business and geographical segment, no additional disclosure is to be provided
under Ind AS 108 — Segment Reporting, other than those already provided in the
financial statements.

Geographical segment
The Company's business is primarily within India. Hence no separate
geographical disclosure is considered necessary.
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318

3.16

3.7

Earnings per share _

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the
year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events such as bonus
issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split
(consolidation of shares), if any, that have changed the number of equity shares
outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for
the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive
potentiai equity shares.

Contributed sguity

Equity shares are classified as equity.

incremental costs directly atfributable to the issue of equity shares are
recognised as a deduction from equity.

Rounding off
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded

off to the nearest million as per the reguirement of Schedule ifi, uniess otherwise
stated.
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4, Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks

a. Balances with banks are current account balances.

b. The Company has not availad bank overdraft, therefore the cash and cash equivalent for cash flow statement is same as cash and cash equivalent given above.

5. Recelvables

Receivable considered good - unsecured

Less: Impairment loss allowance

A

B

A-B

a. No debts due by directors or other officers of the Company or any of them either, severally or jointly, with any other person or debts due by firm including Himifed
liability partnerships, private companies respectively, in which director is a partner or director or a member.

6. Investments

As at Ag at
March 31, 2021 March 34, 2020

In € million In Z million
3.3 186
8.3 18.6
- 60.0
B 60.0
- 60.0

In T million

At fair value

Amortised Cost

Through profit and

loss
Ag at March 23, 2021
Debt securities - Corporate bonds 68736
Others 1119
A - 6.985.5
I. Investments in India 6,985.5
ii. Investments outside India : -
B - 6,985.5
L.ess : Impairment loss allowance C - -
A-C 6,985.5
As gt March 31, 2020
Debt securities - Corporate bonds 432.4 5.863.6
Others
A 432.4 5.863.6
I lovastrments in India 4324 5,863.6
ii. Investments outside India - -
8 432.4 5.863.6
Less : impairment loss allowance C 19.9 -
AC 412.5 8,863.6
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
In Z mitlion In  million
7. Other financial assets
Merasured atfaic valug through proft and loss
1. Application money for Convertible Debentures (Refer note 45) 721 -
Measured at amortised cost
i, Interest accrued on investments 3279 256.7
Less: Provision for doubtful interest accrued (11.3) B
ii. Receivable from group companies X 1.6
392.3 258.3
8. Current tax assets (net)
Advance tax (net of provision for income tax March 31, 2021 % 1,536.3million, March 31, 2020 Z 1,193.4million) 385 46.0
38.5 46.0
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S, Property, plant and and other intangible assets in ¥ million
Gross block Depreciation/Amortisation Net carrying
Particuiars As at " . As at Opening Balance R Closing Balance as | amount as at March
Aprit 01, 2020 Additions Disposals March 31,2021 | as at April 1, 2020 For the year Disposals at March 31, 2021 31, 2021
a. Property, plant and equipment
Computer and alfied equipments 0.2 04 0.8 ~ 0.1 0.1 0.5
Total 0.2 3.4 .8 - 0.1 3.1 2.5
a. Cther intangible assets .
Computer software 0.6 0.4 1.0 0.5 a4 0.6 G4
Total 0.8 0.4 1.0 0.5 o1 0.6 04
in & million
{3ross block Depreciation/Amortisation Neat camying
Particulars As at - . As at Qpening Balznce i . Closing Balance as |amount as at March
|
Aprit 1, 2018 Additiens Disposals March 31,2020 | asatApril1,zo1g | O heyesr Disposals at March 31, 2020 31,2020
a. Property, plant and equipment
Computer and aliied equipments - 0.2 0.2 - 0.0* - 0.2
Total - 0.2 8.2 - 0.0” - 2.2
a, Other intangibie assets
Computer software 0.5 0.1 0.6 05 0.0" ! 0.5 8.1
Total 8.5 0.4 0.6 0.5 0.0* ! 0.5 0.1

* Below the rounding off norms adopted by the Company
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As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
In € million in & million
10. Leases
Right of use assets: Building 64.3 721
Add: Addition during the year - -
Less: Depreciation for the year (7.8) (7.8)
56.5 84.3
Lease liabilities 68.1 73.7
Add: Interest for the year 5.0 54
Less: Rent paid during the year (10.8) (11.0)
62.3 68.1
11. Other non-financial assets -
Prepaid expenses 0.7 0.7
Goods and service tax receivable 8.7 9.0
Less : Provision on Goods and service tax receivable {9.7) (9.0)
' 0.7 0.7
12. Other financial liabilities
Employee benefits payable ' 415 1.2
Other payables B.7 9.7
50.2 20.9
13. Current tax liabilities (net)
Pravision for income tax (net of advance tax March 31, 2021 NiL, March 31, 2020
¥ 203.5million) N 4.1
- 4.1
14. Provisions
Provision for gratuity (Refer note 30) ) 57 5.8
Provision for compensated absenses 7.9 6.6
13.6 12.4
15. Other non-financial liabilities
2.6

Statutory dues payable 34

34 2.6
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As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
in € million In & million
16. Share capital
Authorised :
130,000,000 {as at March 31, 2020 130,000,000) equity shares of ¥ 10/- each 1,300.0 1,300.0
issued, subscribed and paid up :
130,000,000 (as at March 31, 2020 130,000,000) equity shares of ¥ 10/~ each 1,300.0 1,300.0

A. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year :
March 31, 2021*

March 31, 2020

No. in ¥ million No. In ¥ snilillon
Balance as at the beginning of the year 13,00,00,000.0 1,300.0 13,00,00,000.0 1,300.0
Add ; Issued during the year - . . B
Balance as at the end of the year 13,00,00,000.0 1,300.0 13,00,00,000.0 1,300.0
“ 1 equity share held by Nomura Asia Pacific Holdings Co. Ltd. in trust for Nomura Asia investments {Fixed income) Ple. Lid,
B. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares :
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of % 10 per share. Each shareholder is aligible for one vote per share heid.
C. Shares held by holding company :

March 31, 202%* RMarch 31, 2020

No. % No. %
Nomura Asia invesimenis (Fixed Income} Fie. Lid., the
holding company 13,00,00,000.0 100.0 13,00,00,000.0 100.0
* 1 equity share held by Nomura Asia Pacific Holdings Co. Ltd. in trust for Nomura Asia investments (Fixed Income) Pte. Ltd.
D. Details of sharsholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020*

No. Ya No. %
Nomura Asia Investments (Fixed income) Ple. Ltd,, the
holding company 13,00,00,000.0 100.0 13,00,00,000.0 100.0
* 1 equity share held by Nomura Asia Pacific Haldings Co. Ltd. in trust for Nomura Asia Investments (Fixed Income) Pte. Lid.

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
. In 2 mitlion in € million
17. Other equity
a, Securities pramium
Opening balance 3,247.9 3,247.9
Additions during the year - .
Closing balance A, 3,247 0 3,247 9
b, Stock appreciation righis reserve
QOpening balance 8.9 7.9
Additions during the year 0.5 1.0
Closing balance "B 9.4 8.9
c. Statutory reserve
Opening balance 463.3 449.7
Additions during the year 130.3 13.6
Closing balance C 593.6 463.3
d. Retained earnings
Opening balance 1,843.2 1,790.0
Change in accounting policy (Refer note 43) - (1.2)
Total comprehensive income for the year 651.7 68.0
Transfer to statutory reserve (130.3) (13.6)
Closing balance D 2,364.6 1,843.2
A+B+C+D 6,215.5 5,563.3

Nature and purpose of reserves
. Securitigs premium

Secutities premium reserve is used to record premium received on issue of shares, The reserves can be utilised only for limited purposes, in accordance with the

provisions of the Companies Act. 2013.

b. Stock apnriciation fyhis reserve

Stock appreciation rights reservé is stock appreciation rights alloted to certain categories of employees of the company by Nomura Holdings Inc. (ultimate parent).

¢. Slatulory reserve
Statulory reserve is reserve maintained under section 45-{C of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
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18. Interest income

Interest incoms from investments

Interest on loans
Interest income from investments

19. Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes

Yoar ended March 31, 2021

On financial assets  On financial assets
measured at clasaified at fair value
amortised cost through profit or loss

351 482.1

{In ¥ miflion)

Total

517.2

351 462.1

517.2

Year ended March 31, 2020

On financial assets On financial assets

{In € million)

n througl profif or loss

i. On trading portfolio
- Investments

ii. On financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss

i. Realised
ii. Unrealised

20. Other Income

i. Reversal of goods and service iax racaivable

ii. Recharge ta group companies

iii. Reversal of impairment an financial instruments
iv. Others

21. Finance cost [measured at amortised cost]
i. Interest on lease liabilities

22, Feges and commission expense
i. Brokerage and stamp duty
ii. Custodian, depository and clearing charges

- X Total
measured at classified at fair value
amartised cost through profit or loss
126.1 . 126.1
196.6 332.6 529.2
322.7 332.6 655.3
Year anded Year anded
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
In € million in & million
486.7 (475.0)
A 486.7 {475.0)
B . .
A+B 486.7 (475.0}
155.3 212.8
R 3314 (687.8)
486.7 (475.0)
- 7.2
238 19.9
19.9 -
0.7 -
44.1 271
5.0 5.4
5.0 5.4
1.7 1.3
0.1 0.2
1.8 1.5




Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
in ¥ miflion in € million
23. impairment on financial instruments [measured at amortised cost]
i. Investments . 7.4
. 74

24. Employae benefits exponse
i. Salaries and wages 87.8 50.0
ii. Contribution to provident and other funds 2.7 2.3
iii. Stock appreciation rights payment to emplyees (Refer note 31} 0.5 1.0
iv. Staff welfare expenses 0.8 09
v. Gratuity (Refer note 30) 0.6 0.5

224 547
25, Depreciation, amortization and impairment
i.Depreciation on property, plant & equipments 0.1 0.0*
ii.Depreciation on right to use assets (Refer note 10) 7.8 7.8
iii. Amortisation of intangible assets 0.1 0.0

8.0 7.8

“Batow the rounding off norms adopied by the Company.
26, Other expenses .
i. Rent, faxes and energy costs 1.9 2.3
il. Repairs and maintenance 3.4 2.6
fii. Auditor's fees and expenses® 22 1.8
iv. Legal and professional charges 19.5 23.0
v. Provision for doubtful debts 11.3 -
vi, Corporate social responsibility (Refer note 46) 5.1 7.8
vii. Support cost recharge 21.6 22.8
viii. Market data expense 3.4 3.4
ix. Interest u/s 234C of Income Tax Act, 1961 0.7 1.9
X. Other expenditure 0.8 0.1

69.9 65.7
* Auditor’s fees and expenses comprise for
a. Statutory audit 1.8 1.4
b. Tax audit 0.2 0.2
c. Other services 0.1 0.1
d. Reimbursement of expenses 0.1 0.1
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27. Fair value of financial instruments

1. Fair valuation
Fair value is the price that would be received, to sell an asset, or paid, to transfer a liability, in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell an asset or transfer
a liability would take place either:

a) In the principal market for an asset or liability or

b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The Company classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurement. The fair value hierarchy has the following
levels:

Level 1: The financial instrument which is measured at a quoted price. This category includes corporate
bonds quoted by Fixed Income Money Market, Derivatives Association of India (“FIMMDA”) and
application money pending allotment at the reporting date.

Level 2: The financial instrument that is not quoted in an active market. Such instrument is measured
using various valuation techniques. The inputs for these valuation techniques are : a) quoted price of
similar instrument in an active market, b) quoted price of identical or similar instrument in a market that is
not active, ¢) inputs other than quoted price that are observable for an instrument (e.g. vield curves,
credit spreads, implied volatilities, etc.), d) market-corroborated inputs. This category includes corporate
bonds not quated by FIMMDA.

Level 3: The financial instrument for which one or more significant inputs are not based on observable

market data.

2. Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management

A. Accounting classification and fair values
The following tables show the classification of the financial assets and liabilities:

As at March 31, 2021 In E million
Carrying amount

Particul
aricuiars FVTPL FVTOCH Amortised Cost Total

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents - - 8.3 8.3

Receivables

- Trade receivables - “ - -

Investments 6,985.5 - - 6,985.5

QOther financial assets 72.1 - 320.2 392.3
7,057.6 - 328.5 7,386.1

Financial liabilities

Lease liability - - 62.3 62.3

Qther financial liabilities - - 50.2 50.2

- - 112.5 112.5
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As at March 31, 2020 In € million
Carrying amount
Particulars FVTPL EVIOCI | Amortised Cost Total

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents - 18.6 18.6

Receivables ~

- Trade receivables - - 60.0 60.0

Investments 5,863.6 - 412.5 6,276.1

Other financial assets - - 258.3 258.3
£,863.8 - 749.4 5,613.0

Financial labilities 7

Lease liability - - 68.1 68.1

Other financial liabilities 20.8 20.5

- - 89.0 89.0

The following tables show the fair value hierarchy of the financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value:

As at March 31, 2021 In T million
T Fair values
Particulars - p— - — T - - y e
Level 1l Level 2 | Level 3 | Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - - - -
Receivables - - - -
- Trade receivables - - - -
Investments 3,8484 2,937.1 200.0 8,985.5
Other financial assets 721 - - 721
3,920.5 2,937.14 200.0 7,057.6
Financial liabilities
Lease liability - - - -
QOther financial liabilities - - - -
As at March 31, 2020 In  million
\ fair values
Particulars Level 1 Level2 | level3 |  Tofal
Financial assets
Cash and cash eguivalents - ~ - -
Receivables
- Trade receivables - - - -
Investments 4101.8 1,371.8 390.0 5,863.6
Other financial assets - ~ - -
4,101.8 1,371.8 390.0 5,863.6

Financial liabilities

Lease liability

Other financial liabilities

There has been no transfer of above financial asset/liability from level 1 to level 2 and from level 2 to level 1.
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B. Measurement of fair values

Corporate bonds
Quoted corporate bonds are fair valued using weighted average market price published by FIMMDA

which aggregate the price at which the corporate bonds have traded on the recognised exchanges
(with minimum ¥ 50million turnover and 1 trade) over the last 15 calendar days. If the corporate
bonds have not traded on any recognised exchange over the last 15 calendar days, then the price is
derived using a financial calculator published by FIMMDA.

The following tables show the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 fair values, for
financial instrument measured at fair value in the statement of financial position:

Financial instruments measured at fair value:

As at March 31, 2021 In  million
Significant

Type Fair Value Valuation technique observable

inputs
Rating based
spread

Corporate bonds 2,937.1 |Discounted cash flow

As at March 31, 2020 In & million
Significant

Type Fair Value Valuation technique observable

inputs
Rating based
spread

Corporate bonds 1,371.8 |Discounted cash flow

C. Movements in Level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value
The following table show a reconciliation of the opening and closing amounts of Level 3 financial
assets and liabilities which are recorded at fair value. Transfers into Level 3 reflect changes in
market conditions as a result of which instruments become less liquid. Therefore, the Company
requires significant unobservable inputs to calculate their fair value.

As at March 31, 2021 In ¥ million
Particulars As at Purchase/ | Transfer As at lg:;:';s: dd
April 1, 2020 | (Sale)* |into Level 3| March 31, 2021
: (losses)
Investments
Corporate bonds 390.0 (150.0) - 200.0 (40.0)
Total 390.0 {150.0) - 200.0 (40.0)
*Sale includes redemption
As at March 31, 2020 in  million
Particulars As at Purchase/| Transfer As at %’;i:has::
April 1, 2019 (Sale) |into Level 3| March 31, 2020
{losses)
Investments
Corporate bonds - - 390.0 390.0 (885.9)
Total - - 390.0 350.0 (885.9)
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D. Impact on fair value of level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value of changes to key
assumptions
The below table summarises the valuation techniques together with the significant unobservable
inputs used to calculate the fair value of the Company’s Level 3 assets.

As at March 31, 2021 In ¥ million
. Fair value of Valuation Significant unobservable
Particuiars Level 3 . .
technique inputs
assets
Investments - . a. Recovery rates
200.0| Discounted cash flow ) .
Corporate bonds 00 Iscounted cash flow b. Discount margin/spread
As at March 31, 2020 in T million
Fair value of N PR i
Particulars Level 3 A‘iai!ua.tmn Sigi’ihiﬁaﬂj‘, un?bsewabiu
technigue inpuis
assets
investments - e , a. Recovery rates
390.0 sSC W ) .
Corporate bonds Discounted cash flo b. Discount margin/spread

E. Quantitative analysis of significant unobservabie input

a. Recovery rates:
Recovery rates reflect the estimated loss that the Company wiil suffer given expected defauits.
The recovery rate is given as a percentage and reflects the opposite of loss severity (i.e. 100%
recovery reflects 0% loss severity). In line with general market convention, loss severity is
applied to asset-backed securities while recovery rate is more often used as pricing input for
corporate or government instruments. Higher loss severity levels / lower recovery rates indicate
lower expected cash fiows upon the default of the instruments. Recovery rates for complex, less
liquid instruments are usually unobservable and are estimated based on historical data.

b. Discount margin/spreads:
Discount margin/spreads represent the discount rates used when calculating the present value of
future cash flows. In discounted cash flow models such spreads are added to the benchmark rate
when discounting the future expected cash flows. Hence, these spreads reduce the net present
value of an asset or increase the value of a liability. They generally refiect the premium an
investor expects to achieve over the benchmark interest rate to compensate for the higher risk
driven by the uncertainty of the cash flows caused by the credit quality of the asset. They can be
implied from market prices and are usually unobservable for illiquid or complex instruments.
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F. Sensitivity of fair value measurements to changes in unobservable market data

The table below describes the effect of changing the significant unobservable inputs to reasonable
possible alternatives. Sensitivity data are calculated using a number of techniques, including
analysing price dispersion of different price sources, adjusting model inputs to reasonable changes
within the fair value methodology. The ranges are not comparable or symmetrical as the model
inputs are usually not in the middie of the favorable/unfavorable range.

, In  million
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Particulars Favorable |Unfavorable Favorable Unfavorable
changes | changes changes changes
Investments -
Corporate bonds 306.2 (200.0) 1,050.0 (380.0)
Total 306.2 {200.0) 1,050.0 {380.0)

G. Fair value of financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value

As at March 31, 2021 In ¥ million
Fair values
Particulars )
Carrying amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents™ 8.3 - - -
Receivables
- Trade receivables* - - - -
Investments - - - -
Qther financial assets* 320.2 - - -
328.5 - - -
Financial liabilities
Lease liability* 62.3 - . R
Other financial liabilities* 50.2 - - -
112.5 - - -
As at March 31, 2020 In ¥ million
Fair values
Particulars . :
Carrying amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents* 18.6 - - -
Receivables - - - -
- Trade receivables® 60.0 -
Investments™ 4125 - 528.2
Other financial assets* 258.3 - - -
749.4 - - 528.2
Financial liabilities
Lease liability* 68.1 - - -
Other financial liabilities* 20.9 - - -
89.0 - - -

*Carrying value of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities, which are not carried at fair value, are
assumed to be their approximate fair value, owing to their short term residual maturity.
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28. Financial risk management

Risk management framework
The Company is exposed to financial risks, including the effects of changes in interest rate risk, credit
risk and liquidity risk.

Managing these financial risks forms an integral part of the Company’s business. The Company’s risk
management framework includes a variety of controls and reporting processes. These include the
parameters for the risks that the Company may undertake for various financial instruments, guidelines
for accepting customers and terms under which the business is being conducted, setting up appropriate
risk limits and controls and monitor risks and adherence to the set limits. Risk management processes
and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's
activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to
maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which ali employees understand their
roles and obligations. The Company believes it has effective processes in place to identify measure,
monitor and mitigate these financial risks.

The Company’s Board of Directors (“Board”) are responsible for oversight of risk management approach
and for approving the risk strategies and principles. ihe Board is assisted in its oversight role by the
Risk Management & Investment Committee, Credit Committee and various other corporate functions,
which includes Credit and Market risk management. The oversight role includes monitoring compiiance
with the Company's risk management framework and reviewing its adequacy.

internal audit also underiakes both, reguiar and ad hoc, review of risk management conirols and
procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit Committee.

i. Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from an obligor or counterparty’s default, insolvency or administrative
proceeding which results in the obligor's failure to meet its contractual obligations in accordance with
agreed terms. Credit risk for the Company is managed by Credit Risk Management (“CRM") function
within the Risk Management Division together with Credit Committee.

Processes for managing credit risk include:

1) Evaluation of likelihood that counterparty defaults on its payments and obligations;

2) Assignment of internal ratings to all active counterparties;

3) Approval of extensions of credit and establishment of credit limits;

4) Measurement, monitoring and management of the firm’s current and potential future credit exposures;
5) Setting credit terms in iegal documentation; and

6) Use of appropriate credit risk mitigants, including netting, collateral and hedging.

Credit quaiity anaiysis

. Cash and cash equivalents ‘

Balances with bank are current account balances remaining unutilised as at the reporting date.
The Company believes these assets to be of high credit quality; hence no provision for expected credit
loss is made.

. Trade Receivable

Trade receivable includes receivable on sale of corporate bond made through Indian Clearing
Corporation Limited (“lCCL") and NSE Clearing Limited (“NCL").
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Receivable from NCL and ICCL are usually settled on T+2 basis. The Company has not experienced
any historic default from these clearing corporations, hence the Company believes these assets to be
of high quality with low credit risk and therefore no provision for expected credit loss (“ECL”") is made.

As at March 31, 2021, the Company does not have any trade receivable (March 31, 2020 ¥60.0
mitlion). :

The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and ECLs for frade
receivables:

In € million
Type March 31, 20621 | March 31, 2020
Neither past due nor impaired - -
Current - 60.0
1-30 days past due - -
31-60 days past due - -
61-90 days past due - -
NMore than 90 days past due - -
Total - 60.0

Loans
Loans made by the Company consist of corporate loans.
As at March 31, 2021, the Company has no loans outstanding. (Previous year: NIL)

investments fmeasured fair value]

Of the investments held (and measured at fair value), the Company has classified its investments in
Dewan Housing Finance Limited (‘DHFL") as high credit risk investments. In case of DHFL, the
Company has investments of ¥ 200 million (fair value). These investments has been rated “D” by
independent credit rating agencies. Post the initiation of insolvency proceedings, the Company has
significantly marked down these investments and valued them using the amounts expected to be
recovered.

Investments [measured at amortised cost]
There are no investments of the Company (which are classified as amortised cost), as at March 31,
2021, Previously, as at March 31, 2020, the Company had corporate bond investments which were

classified as amortised cost.

In  million
As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2021 2020

Neither past due nor impaired - -
Current - 4324
1-30 days past due - -
31-60 days past due - -
61-90 days past due - -
More than 90 days past due - -
Total - 432.4
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«©

a.

Staging for investments and loans [measured at amortised cost]

In ¥ million
Particulars As at March 31, | As ai March 31,
2021 2020
12 month ECL | 12 month ECL -
(Stage 1) (Stage 1)
Loans/Long term investments - -
Rated A and above -
Rated BBB .
Rated BB - -
Rated B - 432 4
Rated CCC and below - -
Unrated
Less: Impairment allowance - (19.9)
Total ” 412 8

Other financial assels

Other financial assets include interest accrued on investments, share application money receivable
and amount receivable from the Company’s group companies.

The Company believes interest accrued on investments and receivable from the Company's group
companies to be of high quality with low credit risk; hence no provision for expected credit loss is
made.

Inputs, assumptions and technigues used for estimating impairment

inputs and assumptions considered in ECL Model

The measurement of ECL through the general impairment model is typically determined within the
Company using ioss rate models or discounted cash flow models depending on the relevant staging
of the financial instrument.

b
M

A ioss raie modei measures ECL for an individuai of |JU| tfolio of similar finandcial instru
development of loss rates calculated through an estimate of the probability of default (*PD") of the
obligor and loss given default ("LGD") which is applied to the expected credit exposure of the obiligor
at default (“CEAD™).

HTiEnts Y
uilsti i unuu

In order to determine whether 12 month or lifetime ECL is used, each financial asset is assessed for
impairment, classified at each reporting date into one of following three stages of credit quality
deterioration since the financial asset was initially recognised.

Stage 1: Performing financial assets for which there has been no significant deterioration in credit
quality since initial recognition.

Stage 2. Underperforming financial assets for which there has been a significant deterioration in
credit quality since initial recognition but which are not credit-impaired; and

Stage 3; Non-performing financial assets for which there has been a significant deterioration in credit
quality since initial recognition and which have become credit-impaired.

The 12-month ECL is the portion of Lifetime ECL that represents the loss resuiting from default
events on financial assets that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resuiting from all possible defauit events over the
expected life of a financial asset.

PD inputs are determined by class of financial asset and by internal Nomura credit rating applied to
each financial asset. PD inputs used by the Company are sourced from industry data and validated
based on historical experience.
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In case internal Nomura credit rating is not available for stage 1 assets, which are performing, then
lowest rating of performing assets shall be used for the purposes of ECL calculation on a
conservative basis.

For Stage 1 assets, a 12 month PD is considered, for Stage 2 assets a lifetime PD is considered and
Stage 3 assets 100% PD is applied.

LGD inputs are determined by class of financial asset, based on historical experience of loss and
recovery rates for similar financial asset and other relevant industry data. Where appropriate, LGD
inputs are adjusted to reflect the impact of collateral and other integral credit enhancements.

Estimates and forward looking technigues

The Company has applied the following estimation technigue for ECL model:

a. Through-the-cycle (“TTC") PD preparation: TTC cumulative PDs up to & year are prepared by
referring to S&P’s historic rating migration data.

b. Scenario Point-in-time (“PIT”) PD construction: PIT PDs on each scenario are constructed from
TTC PDs. In the conversion from TTC PD to PIT PD, scenario credit spread provided is used to
incorporate forward looking information and credit cycle. Four scenario (upside, base, moderate
downside, and severe down side} are applied.

c. Probability weighted PIT PD computation: Scenario PIT PDs are summed up weighted by a
probability of each scenario happening (probability weighted PIT PDs).

d. LGD inputs are determined by class of financial asset, based on historical experience of loss and
recovery rates for similar financial asset and other relevant industry data.

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

A financial asset that is not credit-impaired on initial recognition is initially classified into stage 1 and
is subsequently continuously monitored to determine whether a significant increase in credit risk has
occurred, at which point the financial asset is reclassified to stage 2.

A determination of whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred at each reporting date
will be through a comparison of Nomura internal credit rating applied to the financial instrument at
initial recognition and at the reporting date. :
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A financial asset will be reclassified as per the below table:

From {Inftal Recognisation)

To AANIAA+HL AL 1AL | A+ | A IBBBYBBBIBRR.IBB+| BE |BR.1 B+ B | B- |[CCCICC | C | D
{(Renoring [ate) 1 2 3 4 5 [ T & oty By pe) 71819
AAL] L L SU SISt s P SIBlSUp et St st 3l sl 3y sl sl st} st
Y O S N U -0 N - N 5 S 3 -V O ) T -3 N S I O~ O 0 O ) I I3 N 20 T <) A ) I 0 [N Y B )
AL 3 Sy Sy 31 88ty pst sty st ysl syt 38t sl Bl 5L 8st
Ad-1 4 | SU PS5 PSSy S PSSl STy 3L St psL st sl styst)sly RSl
At 5 182 82 st sy stfststtststpst st sipstlsr]|stfst]sl]styost
A A 18218218 st st st A St sty St Sst sl b s st s s stst
BBBY 7 [ 82182 (82182181 | SLyst st 8t 50880851 &st]st]aysl
BBBY % 1821 8218218 18218t 1811858018188t 8ls St st sl sty sl
BBB4 4 182 82 8271827828280 sl a s SRy s s8] LTS
BB+ 10 182182182182 18218218218l |8St 308881 }8)8t )58l ]s)st]sl
BE 11 182 182182182 82182182182 pel st psrpstjstpetjsipsist]sty]sl
BO- 1 14 182 082 8282 182 180 v82 28228t petpsbpstistystystysliyst
B+ 1315248282182 18 |82 4182|8282 ;8218218 {sl|5 (3118|5074 80]81
B 182182182 1821828218282 (8218218218218 8818l uyst
B- 1582 (82182482 8248218218282 18218282182 {@2is|si8alst]al
CCCy 16 18218274 52 1 821 821821821 82 1 82 1 82} 821 821821827 82 ENEINE)
cCop
C 132
D 19

If there is a further deterioration in credit risk such that the financial asset becomes credit-impaired, the
financial asset is then reclassified into stage 3.

Credit impaired financial agset

A financial asset is considered credit impaired when an obligor fails to make payments in full and on time
of any financial obligations, markedly disadvantageous modification to a contractual term compared with
the existing obligation, bankruptey filings, administration, receivership, liquidation or other winding-up or
cessation of business of an obligor or other similar situations.

Policy for write off of loan assets

Credit-impaired financial asset individually assessed for impairment are typically written-off when further
cash flows are deemed uncollectible and when all commercially reasonably means of recovering
outstanding principle and interest balances have been exhausted. Such a determination is based on
factors such as the occurrence of significant changes in the obligor's financial position such that the
obligor can no longer pay the obligation, or that the proceeds from collateral will not be sufficient to pay
amounts due.
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b. Loss allowances

In ¥ million

Particulars

2020-21 |

2019-20

Loss allowance measured at
12 month expected losses

Loans [measured at amortised cost]

Balance as at April 01

Net measurement of loss allowance

Balance ast March 31

Investments [measured at amortised cost]

Balance at April 01 19.9 2.5
Net measurement of loss allowance (19.9) 74
Balance ast March 31 19.9

a.

b.

C.

There are no loans and advances outstanding as on

(Previous year: NIL)
Current year: NiL. (Previous year: The entire 100% concentration of risk in Investments at
amortised cost i.e. to a single party pertains to the aviation industry in India).
The carrying value of investments measured at fair value through profit or loss represents the
maximum exposure to credit risk.

reporting date

March 31, 2021.

IIl. Disclosure pursuant to RBI/2013-20/170/DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20
“Implementation of Indian Accounting Standards” dated March 13, 2020

As at March 31, 2021: NIL

As at March 31, 2020 In ¥ million
Loss allowances Difference
i isi IndAS
Asset Classification 'A'sse't Gross carrying (Provisions) as | Net carrying Prf)wsmns between e
as per RBI norms classification as | amount as per required under amount required as per | 109 provisions
P perIndAS108 |  IndAS* d IRACP norms |  and IRACP
Ind AS 109
norms
Performing assets
Standard Stage 1 548.1 19.9 528.2 1.7 18.2

*Includes accrued interest

c. Offsetting
No offsetting exists as at March 31, 2021. (Previous year: NIL)
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iii. Market risk
Market risk is the risk of loss arising from fluctuations in the value of financial assets and liabilities
(including off-balance sheet items) due te fluctuations in market risk factors (interest rates, prices of
securities and others). Market risk primarily impacts the Company's investing activities.

Effective management of market risk requires the ability to analyse a complex and constantly changing
global market environment, identify problematic trends and ensure that appropriate action is taken in a
timely manner.

The Company uses a variety of complementary tools to measure, model and aggregate market risk. The
Company's principal statistical measurement tool to assess and monitor market risk on an engoing basis
is Value at Risk (“VaR"). Limits on VaR are set in line with Company’s risk appetite as expressed
through regulatory capital. Market risk is monitored against a set of approved limits, with daily reports

and other management information provided to the business units and senior managemeant.

a. Total markef risk exposure

in Tmilfion
As at March 31, 2021
Particulars Carrying amount; Traded risk | Non traded risk | Primaryrisk
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 8.3 - 8.3
Receivables
- Trade receivables - - -
Investments 6,985.5 6,785.5 200.0 |Interest rate risk
Other financial assets 392.3 - 392.3
7,386.4 8,785.5 600.8
Financial liabilities
Lease liability 62.3 - 62.3
Other financial liahilities 502 - 50.2
112.5 “ 112.5
In  million
As at March 31, 2020
Particulars Carrying amount| Tradedrisk | Nontradedrisk | Primaryrisk
Financial assets ‘
Cash and cash equivalents 18.6 - 18.6
Receivables
- Trade receivables 60.0 - 60.0
Investments 6,276.1 5473.6 802.5 [Interest rate risk
QOther financial assets 258.3 - 258.3
6,613.0 5,473.6 1,139.4
Financial Habilities
Lease liability 68.1 - 68.1
Other financial liabilities 20.9 - 20.9
89.0 - 89.0
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Value at Risk (VaR)

VaR is a measure of the potential loss in the value of the Company's investment positions due to
adverse movements in markets over a defined time harizon with a specified confidence level. Market
risks that are incorporated in the VaR model include bond prices, interest rates, credit and foreign
exchange rates with associated volatilities and correlations.

VaR metrics ‘

The 1 day VaR at 99% confidence level as of each of the dates indicate are as follows:
VaR as at March 31, 2021 - ¥ 28.1 million

VaR as at March 31, 2020 -  46.8 million

Assumptions
The Company uses a single VaR model! in order to determine the total VaR for the Company. The

Company's VaR methodology uses historical simulation fo estimate potential profit or loss. Historical
market moves are repeatedly applied to current exposure, forming a distribution of simulated portfolio
returns. From this distribution the required potential losses can be estimated at required confidence
levels or probabilities. VaR is calculated at a 99% confidence fevel and using a 1-day time horizon.

The VaR model uses a historical time window of two years (520 business days). For risk management,
the Company uses an exponential weighted moving average VaR. For the calculation of VaR, the
probability weight assigned to each measure of estimated profit or loss in the historical simulation
scenarios depends on when it occurred. The older the observation, the lower the weight.

The Company’s VaR model uses time series for each individual underlying, whenever available.
Whenever a time series cannot be found for a specific underlying, the VaR model will follow ‘proxy
logic’ to map the exposure to an appropriate time series. The level of proxying taking place in the VaR
model is carefully monitored through internal risk management processes and there is a continual effort
to source new time series to use in the VaR calculation.

Objectives and Limitations of the VaR methodology

The main advantage of VaR as a risk measure is that it is able to aggregate risk from different asset
classes (in contrast with other risk measures sensitivities that cannot be easily aggregated directly).
The risk from different products of the Company can therefore easily be compared and aggregated

using VaR.

As a risk measure, however, VaR has certain limitations. One of the main disadvantages with VaR is
that it is a backward-looking risk measure. Using historical market moves to estimate future losses
assumes that only events that have actually happened in the past are relevant to analyse the risk of a

portfolio.

In addition, VaR only gives an estimate of the loss at a stated 95th percentile (i.e. in five out of 100
days the loss will be greater than 1-day VaR), but not what the magnitude of loss could be whenever
the loss does exceed VaR.

VaR as a risk measure is most appropriate for liquid markets and may understate the financial impact
of severe events for which there is no historical precedent on where market liquidity may not be
reliable. In particular, historical correlations can break down in extreme markets leading to unexpected
relative market moves. This may make positions that off-set each other in VaR modelling move in the
same direction thus increasing losses. VaR also does not fully capture the impact of defaults by issuers
as these are very rare events.

Given the limitations of the VaR model, the Company uses VaR only as one component of a diverse
market risk management process
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iv. Interest rate risk

vi.

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash ﬂows or
the fair value of financial instruments.

Exposure to interest rate risk for non-trading financial assets and liabilities:
The Company does not have any floating rate financial assets and liabilities as at the reporting date,
therefore a change in interest rate would not affect profit and loss.

Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign

exchange rates. The Company is exposed to currency risk on account of its trading activities in
exchange traded currency futures. The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupee ().

At present, the Company does not have any exposure in foreign currency. (Previous year: NIL)

Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulties in raising funds to meet its working
capital requnrements and commitments, including those associated with fmancna! instruments.

The Company's liquidity risk appetite is defined by the requirement to maintain sufficient liquidity
(through holding a highly liquid pool of high quality, unencumbered assets that can be monetized)
across market cycles and periods of stress such that all funding requirements and unsecured debt
obligations falling due within the two separately defined stress scenarios can be met without the need to

roll unsecured financing.

The Company has established an Asset and Liability Committee ("ALCO") to define its policy relating to
funding and liquidity risk.

The Company's finance department monitors, on an ongoing basis, the Company's funding
requirements and its forecasts, maturity mismaiches and iiquidity ratios in order to enabie the Company
meet its short-term funding requirements.

The Company maintains a portfolio of highly liquid and diverse assets that can be easily liquidated in
the event of an unforeseen interruption of cash flow. Liquidity risk is also mitigated through the close
monitoring of exposure to avoid undue concentration
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Exposure to liquidity risk

As at March 31, 2021

In & miflion

Particulars

Carrying
amount

1107 days

B1o 14
days

15 to 30/31
days

Over 1
monthto 2
months

QOver 2

months to | months to

3 months

Over 3

6 months

months to

Over§

1 year

Overito 3

years

Qverdtob

years

Quer 5
years

Financial assets

Cash and cash
equivalents

8.3

83

Receivables

- Trade
receivables

Loans®

Investments*®

6,985.5

1,446.5

4,338.0

76.1

15.3

858.4

126.2

125.0

Other financial
assets

3923

1287

2125

36

12.3

03

329

20

Foreign currency
assets’

Financial liabilitie

Borrowings®

Debt securities®

Deposits®

17.2

249

Lease liability

62.3

0.5

0.5

0.5

15

32

14.0

Other financial
liabilities

50.2

9.1

415

Foreign currency
liabilties®

Inflows

7,386.1

4,580.5

3.6

88.4

15.6

891.3

128.2

126.0

Qutflows

112.5

1,583.5

8.6

420

0.5

1.5

3.2

14.0

17.2

4.9
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As at March 31, 2020 Ih ¥ million
. Qvert | Over2 | Over3d | Overb
Particulars i::x:? {to 7 days Sdts 4 155;30[31 month fo 2| months to | months to |months to Over:r;oti Over;‘:o& OV:::
5 ys months | 3months | 6 year 1 year ® ¥ ®
Financial assets ‘
Cagh and cash 186 186 i )
equivalents
Receivables
-Trade 60 60.0 . .
receivabies
Loans® - - - - - - . :
nvestments™ 6,276.1 1,0489 | 3,795.5 829.2 150.0 4125 90.0 150.0
r financial .
Other financia 258.3 A7) 784 9.8 298| 1078 42 74
assels
Foreign currency
assels® )
Financial liabilities
Borrowings® - -
Debt securities® - - - - - - - -
Lease liability 68.1 0.5 0.5 0.5 14 29 13.0 15.2 341
Other financial 208 103 106
liabilities
Foreign currency
liablities®
Inflows 6,613.0] 11492 38736 9.8 629.2 - 179.8 520.1 94.2 . 157.1
Outflows 89.0 - . 10.8 1.4 0.5 14 29 13.0 15.2 3441
*Disclosure pursuant to Annexure XIV of RBI/DNBR/2016-17/45 Master Directions DNBR.PD.004
/03.10.115/2016-17 Master Direction - Non-Banking Financiai Company - Systemically important Non-Deposit

taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 dated September 01, 2016 (as
updated on February 17, 2020).

*Investments and accrued interest on investments are classified as per the “Liquidity risk framework” adopted
by the Company based on RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. No0.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated November
04, 2019.

#All listed corporate bonds will be placed in the “1 day to 30/31 days" buckets depending on the defeasance
period as defined in the Company's Asset Liability Management (*ALM") Policy.

29. Capital Management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are:
a) To maintain adequate level of capital to ensure compliance with prevailing
requirements.
b) To safe guard their abiiity to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and

- ¢) To maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
The Board seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns on capital that might be possible by
running higher levels of leverage and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position.

regulatory
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30.

Leverage Ratig
The Company monitors capital using ‘borrowing’ to ‘net owned funds’ ratio. For this purpose, ‘net owned

funds’ comprises of all components of equity less intangible assets (including capital work in progress)
deferred tax asset.

It is the Company's policy to keep this ratio below, 2 times of net owned funds or borrowings of ¥ 10,000
million, whichever is lower. The Company’s borrowing to net owned funds ratio at March 31, 2021, along
with the comparative, was as follows:

In % million
Type March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Totg! borrowings (including lease 623 68.1
liability)
Net owned funds 7,352.8 6,616.1
Adjusted net debt to equity ratio 0.01 0.01

Employee Benefits
The Company contributes to the following post-employment defined benefit plans in India.

Defined contribution plans:

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The contributions to
the provident fund are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the year when the contribution is
due. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund.

Defined benefit plan: ,

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan, other than a defined contribution plan. The
Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employee has earned in return for their service in the
Company. Present value of such future benefit becomes the liability to the Company. Any unrecognized
past service cost is considered while calculating this liability. The discount rate is determined using the
government bond yield, published by FIMMDA, of the maturity equivalent to the expected term of the
obligation.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise of actuarial gains and losses, are
recognised immediately in OCI

The Company determines the net interest expense on the net defined benefit liability for the year by
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation to the beginning of the period
balance of net defined benefit liability, taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability
during the period as a result of benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to
defined benefit plans are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation, calculated by an actuary, using projected unit credit
method at end of each financial year. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in full in the period in
which they occur in the OCL.

Risks associated with defined benefit plan
Gratuity is a defined benefit plan and exposes the Company with the following risks:

a) Interest rate risk
A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the government bond yield will increase the present value of
the liability requiring a higher provision.
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b) Salary increment risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of
members. As such, an increase in the salary of the members more than assumed level will increase the

plan's liability.

¢) Asset liability matching ("AL") risk
The plan faces the AL risk as to the matching cash flow. Company has to manage pay-out based on pay
as you go basis from own funds as the defined benefit plan of the Company is unfunded.

d) Martality risk

Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan
does not have any longevity risk.

e) Requlatory risk

Risk associated with change in regulation.

In T million
Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Present value of defined benefit obligation (5.7) (5.8)
Fair value of plan assets - -
Funded status (Surplus/(Deficit)) (5.7) (5.8)
Non-current {4.8) (4.9)
Current (0.9) (0.9)

A. Movement in net defined henefit (asset) { liability
The following table shows reconciliation from the opening balance to the closing balances for net

defined benefit liability and its components.

In ¥ million
Particulars - March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020

Present value of defined benefit obligation
5.8 5.2

a. Opening balance

Included in statement of profit & loss:
b. Current service cost 0.2 0.1
c. Past service cost ~ -
d. Transfer infout - -

€. Interest cost 0.4 0.4
f. Benefits paid (0.7) -

g. Sub-total (a+b+c+d+e+f) 5.7 57
Included in other comprehensive income

h. Demographic assumption 0.1 -

i. Financial assumption 0.1 0.2
i. Experience assumption (0.2) (0.1)

k. Closing balance (g+h+i+)) 5.7 5.8
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B. Delined benefit obligations

i. Actuarial assumptions
The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date {expressed as weighted

averages).
Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Discount rate 6.26% 6.59%
7.00% 7.00%

Salary escalation

indian Assured Lives Mortality -
(2006-08) Ultimate
13.00%|

Mortality rate during employment

Employee turnover rate (for different age 12.00%

The estimate of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation takes into consideration
inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the

employment market.

ii. Amount for the current and previous two periods are as follows:

In ¥ million
Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Defined benefit obligation (5.7 (5.8)
Plan assets - -
Surplus/(deficit) (5.7) (5.8)
Experience (gain)/loss adjustments on plan 0.2) 0.1)
liabilities ) ]
Actuarial (gain)/loss due to change in 0.2 0.2
assumptions ' )
C. Expenses recognised in statement of profit & loss
In ¥ million
Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Current service cost 0.2 0.1
Net interest cost 04 0.4
Past service cost - -
Expected contributions by the employees - -
{Gains)/losses on curtailments and - -
Net effect of changes in foreign exchange - -
Expenses recognised 0.6 0.5
D. Expenses recognized in OCI
In  million
Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligation for the 0.0* 01
period ) )
Return on plan assets, excluding interest
incoame ) i
Change in asset ceiling - -
Net (income)/expense for the period 00" | 01
recognized in OCI ) )

*Below the rounding off norms applied by the Company.
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E. Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses have been determined based on reasonably possible change of the respective
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting date, while holding all other assumptions constant.

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the projected
benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another
as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the projected benefit
ob!igation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period,
s nfit -

which is the same method as applied in calculating the projecied benefit obligation as recognised in the
balance sheet.

in ¥ miilion
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
increase Decrease increase Decrease
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of ) 0.2 ) 53
discouniing ) )
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of 03 ) 03 i
discounting
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of salary 01 _ 01 )
increase -
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of salary i 0.1 0.1
iﬁb fegase
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of employee 0.1 : 01 )
turnover ) '
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of employee ) 01 } 0.1
turnover
iii. Other long term employee benefits,
The eligible employees of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain number of their
annual leave entitfement to subsequent years, subject to a ceiling. The Company racegnizes the
charge to the statement of profit and loss and corresponding liability on account of such non-
vesting accumulated leave entitlement based on valuation by an independent actuary.
Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-
term employee benefit and leave expected to be carried forward beyond 12 months, as long term
employee benefit.
31. Stock appreciation rights

Equity-settled compensation scheme

The ultimate holding company operates share option schemes for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the operations of the Group. The
reserve represents the equity-settied share options in the shares of the ultimate holding company,
Nomura Holding Inc., granted to employees. The reserve is made up of the cumulative value of services
received from employees recorded over the vesting period commencing from the grant date of equity-
settled options of the uitimate holding company.

The vesting period of the share options is from the grant date until the commencement of the exercise
period.
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The fair value of the share options as of grant date is estimated using a Trinomial Tree option model and
using the following assumptions:

T o

Expected dividend yield based on the current dividend rate at the grant date;
Expected volatilities based on historical volatility of the ultimate parent’s common stock;

c. Therisk free interest rate estimate based on yen swap rate with a maturity equal to the expected

lives of options

d. Expected lives of the awards determined based on historical experience and
e. Share price of the ultimate parent's common stock;

The following table lists the inputs to the model used for the options outstanding as of March 31, 2021:

Grant date Dividend yield Volatility | Tuskefree | Expectedlifo ofshare | g e
interest option
% % % Year ¥
June 05, 2015 1,68 23.68 0.33 57 848.0
June 09, 2017 167 254 0.03 57 6830

The following share options were outstanding under the plans during the year:

year

Number of options
. For the year ended | For the year ended
Partioulars March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020
Qpening balance 57.0 115.0
Granted during the year - -
Forfeited during the vear - -
Exercised during the year (57.0) (58.0)
Expired during the year - -
Transferred during the year - -
Closing balance - 67.0
Exercisable at the end of the )

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options outstanding as at March 31, 2021 is
NIL (March 31, 2020 5.73 years).

For stock options, the exercise price for options outstanding at March 31, 2021 is NIL (March 31, 2020 ¥1

per share).

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the year is
¥690.19 per share (March 31, 2020: ¥369.77 per share).

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year is NIL (March 31, 2020: NIL per share).
The charge to the Statement of Profit and Loss account on account of SAR's for the current year is NIL

(March 31, 2020 is ¥ 1.0miilion).

Restricted Stock Units ((RSU")

The ultimate holding company granted the first RSU awards in May 2019. For each RSU award, one
common stock of NH! is delivered. The awards generally have a graded vesting period over three years
with an extending vesting period of up to seven years for certain senior management and employees in
order to meet local regulatory requirements based on the role they perform within Nomura. The grant date

~ fair value per award is determinred using the price of the NHI's common stock.
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The following table sets out the movement of the RSU awards during the financial year:

Particulars For the year ended |For the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Opening balance - -

Granted during the year 3,100.0 -

Forfeited during the vear -

Exercised during the year - -

Expired during the year

Transferred during the year - -

Closing balance 3.100.0 -

The expense recognised in statement of profit and ioss on account of 'SAR’ for the current year is
Z0.5million. {(March 31, 2020 was NIL).

Cash-seified compensation scheme

Supplemental awards such as Notional Stock Units ("NSU"), Notional Indexed Units (*NIU") and Collared
Notional Stock Units (“CSL)") are granted to the Company's employees. NSU and CSU are linked to the
ultimate holding company's stock price whereas NIU is linked to a world stock index quoted by Morgan
Stanley Capital International that has graded vesting over three to five years of grant date. All these awards

are cash seftled.

o
%]

1. Amounts recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

.income Tax and Deferred Tax

in ¥ million
Particuiars As at As at
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Current tax expense
a. Current year 136.0 205.7
b. Changes in estimaies reiating to prior years {i.4) 0.1
1346 205.8
Deferred tax expense
a. Origination and reversal of temporary differences 848 {174.6)
b. Change in tax rate - 11.3
c. Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses (0.2 (0.2)
84.6 (163.5)
Tax expense recognised in the Statement of Profit 219.2 423
and Loss
2. Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income
In Z million
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Before tax Tax (expe_n se)/ Net of tax | Before tax Tax (expe'nse)l Net of tax
benefit benefit
ltems that will not be recliassified to Statement of Profit or Loss
Re-measurements of the defined 0.0* 0.0* 0.0* (0.1) 0.0* (0.1)

tbenefit plans

*Below the rounding off norms applied by the Company.
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3. Reconciliation of effective tax rate

In ¥ million
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Profit before tax 870.9 110.4
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate 219.2 278
(Current year 25.17% Previous year 25.17%) ' ]
Changes in tax rate - 11.3
Tax effect of:
Interest u/s 234B and u/s 234C 0.3 0.5
Non-deductible tax expense (0.1) 2.9
Recognition of previously unrecognised deductible
. (0.2) (0.2)
temporary difference
Tax expense recognised in the Statement of Profit 219.2 42.3
and L.oss

The effective tax rate for the year ended March 31, 2021 was 25.2%. (March 31, 2020: 38.2%)

4. Movement in deferred tax balances

As at March 31, 2021 In  million
\ Opening Recognised in Recognised |Deferred tax| Deferred

Particulars statement of \ .

balance . in OCI asset tax liability

profit and loss
Provision for Leave encashment 1.7 0.3 - 2.0 -
Provision for Gratuity 14 0.0* - 1.3 -
Provision on GST asset 2.3 0.2 - 2.5 -
Depreciation 0.0* 0.0* - 0.0 -
Unrealised loss on investments 235.6 (83.4) - 152.2 -
Lease liabilities 1.0 05 - 15 -
Provision for expected credit losses 4.9 4.9 - - -
Provision for doubtful debts - 2.8 - 2.8 -
Re-measurements gain/(loss) on defined benefit plan - - 0.0 0.0* -
Total 246.9 (84.6) 0.0* 162.3 -
*Below the rounding off norms applied by the Company.
As at March 31, 2020 in ¥ million
Change in Recognised
. Opening . in statement |Recognised |Deferred tax|Deferred tax
Particulars accounting . . N
balance . of profit and in OCI asset liability
policy**
loss

Provision of deferred bonus 04 - (0.4) - - -
Provision for Leave encashment 1.7 - 0.0 - 1.7 -
Provision for Gratuity 15 - (0.1) - 1.4 -
Provision on GST asset 3.5 - (1.2) - 2.3 -
Depreciation 0.0* - 0.0* - 0.0* -
Unrealised loss on investments 72.3 - 163.3 - 235.6 -
Lease liabilities - 04| 0.6 - 1.0 -
Provision for expected credit losses 3.6 - 1.3 - 49 -
Re-measurements gain/(loss) on defined benefit plan - - 0.0* 0.0* - -
Total 83.0 04 163.5 0.0* 246.9 -

*Below the rounding off norms applied by the Company.

** Refer note 43.
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33

34.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax
assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed when the probability
of future taxable profits improves.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when
they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax
refating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correiation to the underlying
transaction either in OCi or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a iegaily enforceable right exists (o set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Earnings Per Share

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year,

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares
that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potentiai equity shares into equity shares.

Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Net Profit attributable to equity holders 8517 g8.0
of the Company (In  million)
Weighted average number of shares 130,000,000 130,000,000
at the end of the year
Face value per share 10.0 10.0
Basic and diluted earnings per share 5.01 0.52
Segment Reporting

Mr. R. Arun has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM regularly
reviews the performance reports and makes decisions about aliocation of resources.

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it
earns revenue and incurs expenses, for which discrete financial information is available.

The Company is a Non-banking financial institution and is primarily engaged in lending and investing
activities. The Company's operations fall under single business segment.

Further the business operations of the Company are primarily concentrated in India. The Company is
considered to operate in the single geographical segment i.e. domestic segment.

Since the Company’s’ current business activities primarily falls within a single business and geographical
segment, no additional disclosures are required as per Ind AS 108.
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35. Related Party Disclosure

1.

Names of related parties:

Nature of relationship

Name of party

Parent company

Nomura Asia Investment (Fixed iIncome) Pte. Lid.

Ultimate parent company

Nomura Holdings, Inc.

Names of related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the period:

Nature of relationship

Name of party

Fellow subsidiaries

Nomura Services India Private Limited

Nomura Structured Finance Services Private Limited

Nomura Financial Advisory and Securities (India) Private Limited

Nomura Fixed Income Securities Private Limited

Nomura Singapore Limited

Nomura Investments (Singapore) Pte. Limited

Nomura Asset Management Co.

Key management personnel

Mr. R. Arun

Mr. Shantanu Sahai

Mr. Vikas Murarka

Mr. Vipul Chatwani

Mr. Manish Lath (Date of resignation September 30, 2020)
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In ¥ million

Name of related

Nature of

Mature of

Transactions
during the

Amount outstanding
as at March 31, 2021

Transactions
during the

Amount outstanding
as at March 31, 2020

based payments

party relationship transaction period ended Receivable/ period ended |Receivable/ (Payable)
March 31, 2021 (Payabie) March 31, 2020
Support cost 22.7 2.6) 24.0 @.8)
recharge
Support cross 01
charge (CSR)* - '

Nomura rge ( )

Fma_ncual Feiiow Purchase of

Advisory & subsidia property plant & - 02 (0.2)

Securities (India) i equipment”

Private Limited Other expenditure 0.7 0.0™ -
Recharge ta group 138 18 143 16
companies
Legal and ) 155 (1.3) 18.8 (.7

Nomura professional fess

Services India Fellow

Private Limited subsidiary Recharge t:; group _ 0.0™
companies

Nomura

Structured Eellow Legal and

Finance TR P . 20 {0.2) 19 0.1y

Services Private subsidiary professional fees

Limited

Nomura Fixed

income Fellow Recharge to group o -

i e o 9.7 1.8 9.1 -

Securities subsidiary companies

Private Limited

Nomura Fellow Purchase of 2,828.7 ; 4,956.4 .

invesimenis subsidiary securities

{Singapore) Pte. Sale of securities - 2.563.7

Nemura

Srgmore[[elow - ueresef : : —

Limited diary

Nomura Asset

Y Fellow Purchase of 1,339.5 ; 446.9 ;

Management subsidia securities

Cof Y Sale of securities - - 154.0 -
Shottterm §9.0 (35.6) 30.7 ®.2)
EMpIoYyEe oeneiig

Key E:rf;:t’;‘p"’yemem 1.4 ©.1) 13 ©.1)

Directors management P—

personnel Termination } : ~
benefits
Employee share 05 3 16 ©0.6)

*Inclusive of goods and service tax.
* Transaction entered with The Nomura Trust and Banking Co. Limited as the trustee of Indian Local Currency
Denominated Bond Mother Fund which is managed by Nomura Asset management Co.
** Below rounding off norms adopted by the Company.
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36.

37.

Net Debt Reconciliation

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements in net debt for each of the year

presented below:

In  million
Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Lease liability 62.3 68.1
In € million
Particular As at As at
artietiars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Net debt as at April 1, 2020 68.1 73.7
Comprises of
As per balance sheet 68.1 73.7
Interest accrued - -
Cash flows (10.8) {11.0)
Interest expense 5.0 54
Interest paid - -
Other non-cash movements
- Fair value adjustments - -
~ Acquisitions/disposals - -
Net debt as at March 31, 2021 62.3 68.1
Balance 62.3 68.1
Income/Expenditure in foreign currency: {on accrual basis)
a) Income in foreign currency
Current Year: NiL. (Previous Year: NIL)
b) Expenditure in foreign currency
In & million
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Other expenses 04 0.1
0.4 0.1
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38. Disclosure pursuant to Annexure XIV of RBI/DNBR/2016-17/45 Master Directions
DNBR.PD.004/03.10.119/2016-17 Masier Direction-Non-Banking Financial Company -
Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company
(Reserve Bank) Diractions, 2016 dated September 01, 2016 (as updated on February 17,
1 2020).

a. Capital to risk assets ratio (CRAR)

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Capital Adequacy Ratio 102.91% 98.39%
Tier 1 Capital Adeguacy Ratio 102.91% 98.09%
Tier 2 Capital Adequacy Ratio 0.00% 0.30%
Amount of Suberdinated Debt raised as :

Tier Il Capital

Amount raised by issue of Perpetual

Debt instruments

b. (nvestments
In € million

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Particulars

1) Value of Investments

i} Gross value of Investments®
a) In India 6,985.5 6296.00
b) Outside India - -

iy Provison for depreciation** '
a) in India - 19.9
b} Outside India - -
Net value of Investment*
a) In India 6,985.5 6276.1
b) Outside india - -

2) Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on Investments™™

i) Opening balance 19.9 12.5
ii) Add: Provision made during the year - 74
iii) Less: Write off/write back of excess

I, » (19.9)
provision during the year
iv) Closing balance - 19.9

* Includes change in fair value.
** Provision for ECL on investments measured at amortised cost.

c. Derivatives
a. |Interest rate swaps and Forward rate agreements

The Company has not entered into Interest rate swaps and Forward rate agreements during the year
2020-21. (Previous year: NIL)

b. Exchange iraded interest rate derivative
The Company has not entered into exchange traded interest rate derivative during the year 2020-21.

{Previous year: NIL)
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c. Disclosure on risk exposure

The Company has formulated and adopted a Risk Management Framework to identify and take
appropriate measures to mitigate the risks impacting the business of the Company.

The Risk Management Framework lays down the procedures for identification of risks, assessment
of its impact on the business of the Company and the efficacy of the measures taken to mitigate the

- same. The risks are evaluated at an inherent and residual level, based on the impact of such risks

and the likelihood of its occurrence.

The Risk Management Committee (RMC) is responsible for ensuring that the appropriate
methodology, processes and systems are in place for monitoring, identifying and reviewing the risks
associated with the business of the Company.

RMC reviews compliance with risk policies, monitors risk limits, reviews and analyzes risk exposure
related to specific issues and provides oversight of risk across the Company. The minutes of RMC is
placed before the Board for its review and consideration.

The Company also has an investment policy that includes all the derivatives transactions. This policy
covers the nature of derivative products, defines a pre-approved risk framework within which the
Company can enter into various derivative transactions, and defines risks that can be taken to use
derivatives for hedging purposes and to outline accounting and operational processes governing the

above.

Securitisation
The Company has not entered into any securitisation transactions during the year 2020-21.

(Previous years: NIL).

Details of non-performing financial assets purchased/sold
The Company has not purchased or sold any non-performing financial assets during the year 2020-
21. (Previous years: NIL).

Exposures

a. Exposure to rea estate sector
(Disclosure also in pursuant to RB! circular no. RBI/2008-09/116 DNBS (PD).CC No.125/
03.05.002/2008-2009 dated August 1, 2008)
The Company does not have direct exposure to residential or commercial real estate nor made
any investment in mortgage backed securities (“MBS”) and other securitized exposures for the

year 2020-21. (Previous years: NIL).

b. Exposure to capital markets
The Company does not have any exposure to capital markets for the year 2020-21. (Previous

year: NIL)

g. Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the NBFC

During the financial year 2020-21, the Company has not exceeded the Single Borrower Limits or the
Group Borrower Limits laid down by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI). (Previous years: NiL)

h. Unsecured Advances

The Company has not made any unsecured advances during the current year (Previous years: NIL)

Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators
The Company has not obtained registration from any other financial regulator in FY 2020-21.

(Previous years: NIL)
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j- Disclosures of Penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators

There has been no penalty imposed by RBI or other regulators on the Company during the year

2020-21 (Previous years: NIL)

k. Rating assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year.
Ratings assigned: Rating Agency ~ India Ratings and Research Private Limited.

ii. Long-term principal protected equity linked debentures — IND PP-MLDAAAemr/Stable
iii. Short-term commercial paper programme — IND A1+
(March 2, 2021 to March 1, 2022)
iv. There has not been any migration of ratings during the year.

Provisions and contingencies

in € million

Break up of ‘Provisions and
Contingencies’ shown under the
head Expenditure in Profit and Loss

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

interest

LLFRAT TR
Provision for depreciation on Investments (19.9) 74
Provisions towards NPA -
Provision made towards income taxes
(Inciuding deferred taxes and tax reversal 219.2 42 3
for prior years)
Other provisinns and contingencies
Provision for gratuity 0.6 0.5
Provision for compensated absences 1.8 1.1
Provision on goods and service tax asset 0.7 (3.5)
Provision on doubtful debts for accrued 113 )

m. Drawdown from reserves
The Company has not drawn out any amount from reserves in FY 2020-21. (Previous year: NIL)

. Concentration of Deposits, Advances, Exposure and NPAs.

a. Concentration of deposits (for deposit taking NBFC)

Particulars

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Total deposits of twenty largest
depositors (In T million)

NIL

NIL

Percentage of deposit to twenty largest
depositors to total deposits of the NBFC

NA
M

b. Concentration of advances

Particulars

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Total advances to twenty largest

the NBFC

borrowers {In ¥ million) NIL NIL
Percentage of advances to twenty
largest borrowers to total advances of NA NA
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c. Concentration of exposures

Particulars

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Total exposure to twenty largest
borrowers (In  million)

7,302.1

6,532.8

Percentage of exposure to twenty largest

100.0%

100.0%

borrowers to total exposure of the NBFC

d. The Company does not have any non-performing assets as at March 31, 2021,
(Previous year: NIL)

0. Customer Complaints

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

No. .of f:omplalnts pending at the NIL NIL
beginning of the year

No. of complaints received during the NIL NIL

year

No. of complaints redressed during the NIL NIL

year

No. of complainis pending at the year NIL NIL

39. Contingent liabilities

The company is in litigation with tax office in respect of certain additions made to the returned income.
The company has appealed against all of the below orders and the same are pending before the
Commissioner of income Tax (Appeals)

In ¥ million
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Income Tax FY 2011-12 (AY 2012-13) 9.5 9.5
Income Tax FY 2012-13 (AY 2013-14) 94.0 94.0
Income Tax FY 2013-14 (AY 2014-15) 19.3 19.3
Income Tax FY 2014-15 (AY 2015-16) 8.6 8.6
Total 131.4 131.4

40. A. As required by Paragraph 19 of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically
Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016
dated September 01, 2016 {as updated on February 17, 2020) is appended herewith as an Annexure |.

B. As required by Appendix | of RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. No0.102/03.10.001/2019-20 ~
Liquidity Risk Management Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core investment
Companies dated November 04, 2019 is appended herewith as an Annexure I

41. The Company has a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents required by
transfer pricing legislation under section 92-92F of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Based on the information
and available documents, the Company is of the view that all international transactions are at arm’s
length and hence the above legislation will not have any material impact on the financial statements,
particularly on the amount of tax expense and that of provision for taxes.



NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

42. Maturity analysis

The table below classifies all the assets and liabilities according to their expected maturity, i.e. recovery
or settlement in the next 12 months.

In T million
Particulars March 31, 2021
Assets Within 12 months | After 12 months Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 8.3 - 8.3
Receivables
- Trade receivables - - -
Investments™ 6,860.5 125.0 6,985.5
Other financial assets 392.3 - 392.3
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (net) - 38.5 38.5
Deferred tax assets (net) - 162.3 162.3
Property, plant and equipment - 0.5 0.5
Right of use asset - 56.5 56.5
intangible assets under development - - -
Other intangible assets - 04 0.4
Other non-financial assets 0.7 - 0.7
Total 7,261.8 383.2 7,645.0
Liabilities and Equity
Financial liabilities
Lease liability 6.2 56.1 62.3
Other financial liabilities 50.2 - 50.2
Non-financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net) - - -
Provisions 1.9 11.7 13.6
- |Other non-financial liabilities 3.4 - 3.4
Total 61.7 67.8 129.5
Net Shareholders Funds 7,200.1 315.4 7,515.5

*Level 3 securities has been bucketed as per their residual maturities.
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In T million
Particulars March 31, 2020
Assets Within 12 months | After 12 months Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 18.6 - 18.6
Receivables
- Trade receivabies 60.0 - 60.0
Investments® 6,036.1 , 240.0 6,276.1
Other financial assets 247.0 11.3 258.3
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (net) 14.0 32.0 46.0
Deferred tax assets {(net) 246.9 246.9
Property, plant and equipment - 0.2 0.2
Right to use asset - 64.3 64.3
Intangible assets under development - 0.2 0.2
Other intangible assets - 0.1 0.1
Other non-financial assets 0.7 - 0.7
Total , 6,376.4 595.0 6,971.4
Liabilities and Equity
Financial liabilities
Lease liability 5.8 62.3 68.1
Other financial liabilities 20.9 - 20.9
Non-financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities {net) 4.1 - 4.1
Provisions 1.7 10.7 12.4
Other non-financial liabilities 2.6 - 2.6
Total 35.1 73.0 108.1
Net Shareholders Funds 6,341.3 522.0 6,863.3

*Level 3 securities has been bucketed as per their residual maturities.
43. Change in accounting policy
There has not been any change in the accounting policy in FY 2020-21.

Previous year there was a change in the accounting policy as the Company adopted Ind AS 116,
Leases, in its financial statements.

The impact for this change is given as below:

Impact on the financial statements - lessee accounting.

As indicated in note 3.4 of significant accounting policies, the Company has adopted ind AS 116
retrospectively from April 01, 2019, but has not restated comparatives for year ended March 31, 2019,
as permitted under the specific transition provisions in the standard. The reclassifications and the
adjustments arising from the new leasing rules are therefore recognised in the opening balance sheet on
April 01, 2019.

On adoption of Ind AS 116, the company recognised lease liabilities in relation to leases which had
previously been classified as “operating leases” under the principles of Ind AS 17, Leases. These
liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as of April 01, 2019. The weighted average lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities on April 01, 2019 was 8.02%
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44,

Practical expedients applied

In applying Ind AS 116 for the first time, the company has used the following practical expedients

permitted by the standard:

a. relying on previous assessments on whether leases are onerous as an alternative to performing an
impairment review - there were no onerous contracts as at April 01, 2019

b. excluding initial direct costs for the measurement of the right of use asset at the date of initial
application, and

¢. using hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains a lease at the date of initial
application

The Company has also elected not to reassess whether a contract is, or contains a lease at the date of
initial application. Instead, for contracts entered into before the transition date the Company relied on its
assessment made applying Ind AS 17, determining whether an arrangement contains a lease.

Adjustments recognised in the balance sheet on April 01, 2019

The change in accounting policy affected the following items in the balance sheet:
Right-of-use assets — increase by ¥ 72.tmillion

Deferred tax assets (net) - increase by ¥ 0.4million

Lease liabilities ~ increase hy ¥ 73.7million

The net impact on retained earnings was decrease of ¥ 1.2million (net of deferred tax).

Impact of COVID 19

The Covid-19 pandemic has impacted most economies globally, including India. The nation-wide
lockdown during April-May 2020 and subsequent localized / regional lockdown has substantially
impacted economic activity in the Country.

During this pandemic period, the indian Government, the Reserve Bank of india and other reguiators
have announced various measures and relaxations acknowledging the situation to ensure that there is
enough liquidity in the hands of market participants and provided moratoriums to the borrowers in terms
of their repayments to the financial institutions.

The easing of lockdown measures subsequently led to gradual improvement in economic activity and
progress towards normalcy. However, the current second wave of Covid-18 pandemic, where the
number of new cases has increased significantly in India, has resulted in re-imposition of
localised/regional lockdown measures in various paris of the country and has impacted the recovery in
the economic activities in the Country.

The Company is primarily engaged in lending and investing activities. The Company is into the business
of investing in Corporate Bonds/Debentures, Comimercial Papers, Certificate of Deposits, units of Mutual
Funds and other marketable securities. The Company also offers loans to Corporates in India. The
Company's operations have continued through the lock down period without any significant impact.

The Company has made an assessment of its liquidity position and carrying value of its assets
comprising Investments, Trade Receivables and others financial and non-financial assets as at balance
sheet date, and has concluded that there are no material adjustments required in the financial
statements, other than those already considered. The Company believes that it has taken into account
all the possible impact of known events arising from COVID-19 pandemic in the preparation of the
financial statements.

Employees have continued to work from home during the lock down period and the Company has taken
necessary measures to ensure continuity of business and operations in a seamless manner. The internal
financials controls are in place to take care of current situation.
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However, the impact assessment of COVID-18 is a continuing process given the uncertainties
associated with its nature and duration. The Company will continug to monitor any material changes to

future economic conditions.

45. The Company has applied for subscription of compulsory convertible debentures ("CCD") of Avanti
Finance Private Limited amounting to INR 72.1 million in FY 2020-21. The same has been allotted on

April 07, 2021.

&

46. Company aims to positively contribute towards economic, environmental and social well-being of
communities through its Corporate Social Responsibility ("CSR") agenda. CSR programme undertaken
are in the area of Disaster Relief (Covid-19), Healthcare, Education, Skill development and Livelihood.
The Company’s CSR footprint has been consistently increasing over the years. As per the provisions of
the Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is required to spend 5.0 million during the

year on CSR activities.

Details of corporate social responsibility expenditure

In ¥ million

Disclosures in relation to corporate social responsibility expenditure

Sr No Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
a |Amount required to be spent during the vear 5.0 7.5
b |Amount spent during the vear :
i. _|Construction/acquisition of any asset 2.0 -
ii. ]On purposes other than (i) above 3.1 7.5
In ¥ million

Sr No Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
a {Contribution to Sri Satya Sai Books and Publications Trust 2.0 ~
b |Contribution to Janakalyan Sevashram 2.1 -
¢ |Coniribution to Give Foundation 0.0* -
d |Contribution to Akshava Patra Foundation - 2.2
e |Contribution to Bhagwan Mahavir Vikalang Sahayata Samiti 0.5 1.5
f [Contribution to Agastya International Foundation - 1.9
g |Contribution to Shraddha Trust - 1.5
h |Other administrative cost 0.5 0.5
i JAccural towards unspent obligations in relation to:
i {Ongoing project - -
ii. ]Other than ongoing project - -
i__JAmount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Act 5.0 75
k __|Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year 5.1 7.5
| JAmount spent during the year on:
i. [Construction / acquisition of any asset 2.0 -
i 3.1 75

On purposes other than (i) above

*Below the rounding off norms adopted by the Company




NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Details of excess CSR expenditure under Section 135(8) of the Act

In  million

8r No Particulars March 31, 2021
a. |Balance excess spent as at April 01, 2020 -

b. |Amount required to be spent during the year 50

c. _|Amount spent during the year 5.1

d. |Balance excess spent as at March 31, 2021 0.1
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Annexure |

Schedules to the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021

(Paragraph 18 of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-
Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 dated
September 01, 2016 (as updated on February 17, 2020))

In  mitlion
Particulars . Arnount Amount
Liabilities side: outstanding overdue

1. Loans and advances availed by the non-banking financial company
inclusive of interest accrued therson but not paid:
a) Debentures - -
Secured - -
Unsecured
b) Deferred Credits - -
c) Term Loans - -
d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing - -
e) Commercial paper - -

f) Other loans - -

In  million
Assets side :
2. Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables Amount
[other than those included in {4) below]: outstanding
a) Secured -
b) Unsecured -

In  million
3. Break-up of leased assets and stock on hire and other Amount
assets counting towards AFC activities: outstanding

i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors:
a) Financial lease -
b) Operating lease “
ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:
a) Assets on hire -
b) Repossessed Assets -
ili) Other loans counting towards AFC activities:
a) Loans where assets have been repossessed -
b) Loans other than (a) above -
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In T million
Amount
outstanding

4. Break-up of Investments:

Current Investments
1. Quoted

i) Shares:

a) Equity -
b) Preference .
ii) Debentures and Bonds 6,673.6
i) Units of mutual funds 111.8
iv) Government Securities
v) Others

2. Unguoted

i) Shares:

a) Equity

b) Preference .
iy Debenlures and Bonds 200.0
ifi) Units of mutual funds .
iv) Government Securities .

v) Others .
Long Term Investments
1. Quoted

i) Shares:

a) Equity .
b) Preference -
iiy Debentures and Bonds -
iliy Units of mutual funds -
iv) Government Securities
v) Others

2. Unquoted

i) Shares:

a) Equity -
b) Preference -
iiy Debentures and Bonds -
iii} Units of mutual funds -
iv) Government Securities -
v) Others .

In ¥ miilion
5. Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (2) and (3)
Amount net of provisions

Catego
gory Secured Unsecured Total

1. Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries - - .
{(b) Companies in the same group - - -
(c) Other related parties - - .
2. Other than related patrties - - -

Total - - -
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In T million

6. Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long
term) in shares and securities (both guoted and unguoted):

Category

Amount net of provisions

Market Value Book Value

1. Related Parties

(a) Subsidiaries

{b) Companies in the same group

(c) Other related parties

2. Other than related parties™® 6,985.5 6,985.5
Total 8,985.5 6,985.5
In T million
7. Other information:
Category Total

i) Gross Non-Performing Assets

a) Related parties

b) Other than related parties

i) Net Non-Performing Assets

a) Related parties

b) Other than related parties

iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt
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Annexure i

Schedules to the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021

{Appendix | of RBI/2018-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 - Liquidity Risk
Management Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment Companies dated
November 04, 2019)

a. Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty {(both deposits and borrowings)
Sr. Number of significant Amount % of total % of total
No. counterparties (In & million) deposits liabilities.

b. Top 20 large deposits (amount in ¥ crore and % of total deposits)
NIL

o

Top 10 borrowings (amount in ¥ crore and % of total borrowings)
NiL.

d. Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product
Sr. Name of the Amount % of total
No. instrument/product {in  million) | liabilities.

®

Stock Ratios:
a. Commercial papers as a % of total public funds, total liabilities and total assets
NIL

b. Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a % of total public funds,
total liabilities and total assets.

NIL
c. Other short-term liabilities, if any as a % of total public funds, total liabilitics and total assels
Sr No. |Particulars March 31, 2021 |March 31, 2020
1 Other short-term liabilities as % of total
. |public funds ‘
Other short-term liabilities as % of total
2 - ° 0.81% 0.50%
assets and total liabilities
f. institutional set-up for liquidity risk management.

The Company has instituted and adopted the Liquidity risk framework under the Asset Liability
Management Committee ("ALCO").

The Company's liquidity risk framework is at-least reviewed annually, or as the market, business and
regulatory environment demand.

It is overseen by the Board, Risk Management Committee (*"RMC") and ALCO.

Asset Liability Management Support Group, which consist of operating staff from Risk and Finance,
analyse/monitor liquidity profile, limits & report to RMC, ALCO and Credit Risk Officer.
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responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

6. In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s respousibilities for the audit of the financial statements

7. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

8. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

9. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.
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10.We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

11. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure B a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

12.As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposcs of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of accounl as required by law Liave been kept by tlie Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

(d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022, taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022, from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Company and the opcrating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
A",

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements — Refer Note 38 to the financial statements.

ii. The Company has made provision as at March 31, 2022, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts - Refer Note 22.
The Company did not have any derivative contracts as at March 31, 2022.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2022.

iv. (a)The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the
notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), ineluding foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
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on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer Note 45 (xiii) to the financial statements);

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the
notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer Note 45 (xiii) to the financial statements); and

(¢) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

13. The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are applicable only to public companies.
Accordingly, reporting under Section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Digitally signed by
SHARAD SHARAD AGARWAL

Date: 2022.06.22
AGARWAL 22:13:59 +05'30'
Sharad Agarwal

Partner
Membership Number: 118522

UDIN: 22118522ALKZXR5374

Mumbai
June 22, 2022
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under
clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1.

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Nomura
Capital (India) Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2,

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,

sred nnder the A
as requirea undaer the Act,

Auditor’s Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the andit to obtain reasonable assurance ahout

whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
€rror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6.

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Finanecial Controls with reference to financial statements

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAI.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Digitally signed by
SHARAD SHARAD AGARWAL

Date: 2022.06.22 22:14:28
AGARWAL 5

Sharad Agarwal
Partner
Membership Number: 118522

UDIN: 22118522ALKZXR5374'

Mumbai
June 22, 2022
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il.

jii.

(@)

(®)

(e)

(A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation, of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

The Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company have been physically verified by the Management
during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification. In our opinion,
the frequency of verification is reasonable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us, the Company does not own any immovable properties (Refer Note g to the financial statements).
Therefore, the provisions of clause 3{i)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not revaliied its Property, Plant and Equipmiciit {including Right of Use assets) or
intangible assets or both during the year. Consequently, the question of our commenting on whether
the revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer, or specifying the anmount of change, if
the change is 10% or more in the aggregate of the net carrying value of each class of Property, Plant and
Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets does not arise.

Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated on or
are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of Benami
Property Transactions Act, 1988 {(as amended in 2016) {formerly the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made thereunder, and therefore the question of our
commenting on whether the Company has appropriately disclosed the details in its financial statements
does not arise.

(a) The Company did not hold any inventory during the year. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(ii)(a) of

(b)

(a)

the Order are not applicable to the Company.

During the year, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores,
in aggregaie from banks and financial insiituiions ou ihe basis of security of current asseis and
accordingly, the question of our commenting on whether the quarterly returns or statements are in
agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company does not arise.

The Company’s principal business is lending and investing and it is registered with Reserve Bank of
India (RBI) under section 45-IA as a non-banking financial company. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(b) Based on our examination and the information and explanations given to us, in respcct of the loan/

(0

@

investments, in our opinion, the terms and conditions under which such loan was granted/ investments
were made are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest. Further, the Company has not stood guarantee
or provided security to any parties.

In respect of the loan, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been
stipulated, and the party is repaying the principal amounts, as stipulated, and is also regular in payment
of interest as applicable.

In respect of the loan, there is no amount which is overdue for more than ninety days.
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(e) The Company’s principal business is lending and investing and it is registered with Reserve Bank of

®

India (RBI) under section 45-IA as a non-banking financial company. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The loan granted during the year had stipulated the scheduled repayment of principal and payment of
interest and the same was not repayable on demand. Further, no loans or advances in the nature of
loans were granted during the year to Promoters, related parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2
of the Act.

iv. The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments, or provided any guarantees or
security to the parties covered under Section 185 and 186. Therefore, the provisions of Section 185 and
Section 186(1) are not applicable to the Company. The Company is a Non- Banking Financial Company
registered with Reserve Bank of India and consequently other provisions of Section 186 are not
applicable to the Company.

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the
meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified.
Further, the provisions of sub-section (1) of Section 73 are not applicable to the Company as it is a non-
banking financial company registered with RBI, engaged in the business of giving loans.

Vi. The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-section
(1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company.

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues in
respect of Tax Deducted at Source, though there has been a slight delay in a few cases, and is regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund, income tax, cess, goods and services
tax and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us, there are no statutory dues of goods and service tax, provident fund, cess, Tax Deducted at Source
which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. The particulars of other statutory dues
referred to in sub-clause (a) as at March 31, 2022 which have not been deposited on account of a
dispute, are as follows:

Name of the | Nature of | Amount Period to which | Forum where the

statute dues (Rs. in millions) the amount relates | dispute is pending

Income Tax Income Tax ‘| 9.49 (Amount of Rs. 1.50 | AY 2012-13 Commissioner of

Act, 1961 paid under protest to the Income Tax (Appeals)

tax authorities)

Income Tax Income Tax 94.01 (Amount of Rs. 14.2 | AY 2013-14 Commissioner of

Act, 1961 paid under protest to Income Tax (Appeals)

the tax authorities)

Income Tax Income Tax 20.77 (Amount of Rs. AY 2014-15 Commissioner of

Act, 1961 3.20 paid under protest to Income Tax (Appeals)

the tax authorities)

Income Tax Income Tax 86* AY 2015-16 Commissioner of

Act, 1961 Income Tax (Appeals)
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viii.

ix. (@)

)

(e)

(@

(e

x (a)

(b)

xi (a)

®)

(c)

* Amount has been adjusted from refund of the same year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us, there are no transactions in the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been
recorded in the books of account.

As the Company did not have any loans or other borrowings from any lender during the year, the
reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we
report that the Company has not been declared Wilful Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

According to the records of the Company examined by vs and the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has not obtained any term loans.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and
on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not raised
funds on short term basis

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report
that the Company did not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies during the year.
Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) and clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause
3(x){b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the
Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any
such case by the Management.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, a report under Section 143(12) of the Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed
under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not required to be filed with the
Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, and as represented to us by the management, no whistle-blower



Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Nomura Capital (India)
Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022.

Page 4 of 5

Xii.

xiii.

xiv (a)

(®)

complaints have been received during the year by the Company. Accordingly, the reporting under clause
3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the reporting
under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into transactions with related parties during the year under section 177
and 188 of the Act. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xiii) of the Order to this extent is not
applicable to the Company. However, as per Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party
Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act, details in respect of other related parties have been
disclosed in the financial statements.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has an
internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

The reports of the Internal Auditor for the period under audit have been considered by us.
The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected

with him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of Section 192 of the Act under
clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi. (a) The Company is required to and has been registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India

Act, 1934 as an Non-Banking Financial Institution without accepting public deposits.

(b) The Company has conducted non-banking financial activities during the year and the Company holds a

(c)

valid Certificate of Registration from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company, the Group

Xvii.

Xviil.

Xix.

does not have any CICs, which are part of the Group. We have not, however, separately evaluated
whether the information provided by the management is accurate and complete. Accordingly, the
reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year or in the immediately preceding
financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the reporting
under clause (xviii) is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios (Also
refer Note 37 (a) to the financial statements), ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of
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meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the
audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date will get discharged by the Company as and when they
fall due. '

As at balance sheet date, the Company does not have any amount remaining unspent under Section
135(5) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone

Financial Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in this

report.

Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016
Digitally signed by
SHARAD SHARAD AGARWAL
= A 3\ i Date: 2022.06.22
AGA RWA L 22:15:12 +05'30'
Sharad Agarwal

Partner
Membership Number: 118522

UDIN: 22118522ALKZXR5374



Nomura Capital (India) Private Limited

Audited Financial Statements FY 2021-22

Registered Office : Ceejay House, Level 11, Plot-F, Shivsagar Estate, Dr, Annie Besant Road, Mumbai — 400018.

Tel: +91 22 40374037, Fax: +91 22 40374111.
CIN: U67190MH2009FTC 194618

STRICTLY PRIVATE AND CONFIDENTIAL

Copyright © 2022 Nomura
This document is the sole property of Nomura. No part of this document may be reproduced in any form or by any means — efectronic, mechanical, photocopying,

recording or otherwise — without the prior written permission of Nomura.



Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Nomura Capital (India) Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Nomura Capital (India) Private Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, and the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid

financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,

of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, and total comprehensive income (comprising of

profit and other comprehensive inceme), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

4.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsibie for the other information. The other informaiion comprises
the information included in the Board of Directors’ report, but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon. The Board of Directors’ report is expected to be made available to us after the
date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Board of Directors’ report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we
are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate action as
applicable under the relevant laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements

5.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This
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NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2022

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Note In & million In & million
Assets
1. Financial assets
a. Cash and cash equivalents 4 11.5 8.3
b. Receivables
- Trade receivables - -
c. Investments 5 6,808.7 6,885.5
d. Loans 6 4911 -
e. Other financial assets 7 221.7 382.3
2. Non-financial assets
a. Current tax assets (net) | 8 75.2 38.5
b. Deferred tax assets (net) 31 84.7 162.3
c. Property, plant and equipment 9 0.3 0.5
d. Right of use asset 10 487 56.5
e. Intangible assets under development - -
f.  Other intangible assets 0.2 0.4
g. Other non-financial assets 11 1.3 0.7
TOTAL 7,843.4 7,645.0
Liabilities and Equity
Liabilities
1. Financial labilities
a Payables
- Trade payables
i. total outstanding dues of micro enterprises
and small enterprises - -
ii. total outstanding dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
b. Lease liabilities 10 56.0 62.3
c. Other financial liabilities 12 38.2 50.2
2. Non financial liabilities
a. Provisions 13 8.9 13.6
b. Other non-financial liabilities 14 3.4 34
107.5 129.5
Equity
a. Equity share capital 15 1,300.0 1,300.0
b. Other equity 16 6,435.9 6,215.5
7,735.9 7,515.5
TOTAL 7,843.4 7,645.0
Summary of significant accounting policies 3

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
This is the balance sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Nomura Capital (India) Private Limited

Digitally signed by

SHARAD SHARAD AGARWAL A mbris E;g:;l:ayrlsslﬁr::gh YLF;\;J[L_ADAS \?IlgﬁiljlyAil‘\gNT;:Sy
Date: 2022.06.22 . Date: 2022.06.22 by
AGARWA 22:16:26 +05'30" h Slngh 21:31:14 +05'30' CHATWAM ?13:‘2!7-:?;236‘;’63%?
Sharad Agarwal Ambrish Singh Vipui Chatwani
g
Partner Director Director

DIN: 09336231 DIN: 00337576

Date: June 22, 2022

Membership No.: 118522
Place: Mumbai
Date: June 22, 2022



NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

Revenue from operations
i. Interestincome
ii. Net gain on fair value changes
iii. Other income

Expenses
i. Finance costs
ii. Fees and commission expense
iii. Impairment on financial instruments
iv. Employee benefits expenses .
v. Depreciation, amortization and impairment
i. Others expenses

<

Profit before tax

Tax Expense:
i. Current Tax
ii. Deferred Tax
iii. Tax expense for prior years (net)

Profit after taxes

Oth nsi
i. Items that will not be reciassified to profit or ioss
(a) Remeasurements gain/(joss) of the defined benefit pians
ji.
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per equity share
Basic (%)
Diluted (%)

Summary of significant accounting policies
*Below the rounding off norms adopted by the Company.

Year ended Year ended
Note March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
In ¥ million In ¥ million
17 458.6 517.2
18 31.3 486.7
19 34.1 44.1
Total 524.0 1,048.0
20 4.5 5.0
21 0.6 1.8
22 23.9 -
23 96.3 92.4
24 8.2 8.0
25 91.8 69.9
Totai 225.3 177,14
298.7 870.9
31 - 136.0
31 /1.8 84.6
31 1.3 (1.4)
Total 791 219.2
219.6 651.7
(0.9) 0.0*
0.2 0.0*
Total 0.7) 0.0*
218.9 651.7
32 1.69 5,01
32 1.69 5.01
3

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

This is the statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

SHARAD iy anawas
AGARWA

Date: 2022.06.22
22:17.08 +05'30'

Sharad Agarwal

Partner

Membership No.: 118522

Place: Mumbai

Date: June 22, 2022

Ambris
h Singh

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Nomura Capital (India) Private Limited

Ambrish Singh
Director
DIN: 09336231

Digitally signed
by Ambrish Singh
Date: 2022.06.22
21:31:52 +05'30'

Date: June 22, 2022

Digitally signed by
VIPUL VIPUL JAMNADAS

JAMNADAS' cHatwani
Date: 2022.06.22

CHATWANI 2¢2821 40530
Vipul Chatwani
Director
DIN: 00337576



NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2022

Year ended Year ended
farch 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

in € million In & million
Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit before taxation 298.7 870.9
Adjustments for:
Amortisation on intangible asset 0.2 0.1
Depreciation on property, plant & equipments 0.2 0.1
Depreciation on right of use asset 7.8 7.8
Provision for doubtful debts (11.3) 11.3
Provision created on good and service tax asset 3.2 0.7
Interest on lease liabilities 45 5.0
Unrealised (profit)/ioss on corporate bonds (492.7) (331.4)
Impairment on financial instruments {measured at amortised cost} 239 (19.9)
Recognisation of stock appreciation right payments to employees 1.5 0.5
interest u/s 234C of Income Tax Act, 1961 1.1 0.7
Actuarial gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans {0.9) 0.0*
Operating profit / {loss) before working capital changes {163.8) 545.8
Changes in working capital :
Decrease / {Increase) in trade receivables - 60.0
Decrease / (Increase) in investments 569.5 (369.4)
{Increase) / Decrease in loans (515.0) -
Decrease / (increase) in other financial assets 181.8 {134.0)
(Increase} / Decrease in other non-financial assets (3.8) 0.7)
{Decrease) / Increase in other financial liabilities {12.5) 28.3
{Decrease) / Increase in provisions (4.7 1.2
{Decrease} / Increase in other non-financial liabilities (0.0) 0.8
Cash generated from operations 51.6 133.0
Payment of taxes (net of refunds) (37.8) {131.7}
Net cash inflow from operating activities {A} 14.0 1.3
Cash flow from investing activities
Sale / (Purchase) of property, plant and equipement - (0.4)
Sale / (Purchase) of intangible assets - (0.4)
Net cash outflow from investing activities (B) - .(0.8)
Cash flow from financing activities
Principal element of lease payment (10.8) (10.8)
Net cash outflow from financing activities {C) {10.8) {10.8)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {A + B + C) 3.2 {10.3)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 8.3 18.6
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 11.5 8.3
Non-cash investing activities
Acquisition of right of use asset - -
Cash and cash equivalents comprises of:
Balances in Bank 115 8.3

*Below the rounding off norms adopted by the Company.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements,
This is the statement of cash flows referred to in our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Digitally signed by

SHARAD SHARAD AGARWAL
Date: 2022.06.22

AGARWAL 22:17:51 +05'30"

Sharad Agarwal

Partner

Membership No.: 118522

Place: Mumbai

Date: June 22, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Nomura Capital {India) Private Limited

1¢ Digitally signed
Ambris jeeb s,
: Date: 2022.06.22

h Slngh 21:32:20+0530°

Ambrish Singh
Director

DIN: 09336231
Date: June 22, 2022
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CHATWAN!

Digitally signed by
VIPUL JAMNADAS
CHATWANI

Date: 2022.06.22
21:28:42 4+05'30°

Vipul Chatwani

Director

DIN: 00337576



NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2022

a. Equity share capital

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
No. of Shares in ¥ million No. of Shares " In T million
Balance at the beginning of the year 130,000,000 1,300.0° 130,000,000 1,300.0
Changes in equity share capital during the year - - - -
Balance at the end of the year 130,000,000 1,300.0 130,000,000 1,300.0
b. Other equity In ¥ million
Reserves and surplus Others
Contribution
Particulars Securities - . . from ultm‘\aie Total
: premium Statutory reserve | Retained earnings | parent -.St.m:k
appreciation
rights resarve
Balance at April 01, 2020 3,247.9 463.3 1,843.2 89 5,563.3
Profit for the year - - 1 651.7 - 651.7
Other comprehensive income - - - - -
Transfer (from)/to statutory reserve - 130.3 (130.3) 0.0
Stock appreciation rights expense - - - a.5 0.5
Balance at March 31, 2021 3,247.9 593.6 2,364.6 9.4 6,215.5
Profit for the year - - 2196 - 219.6
Other comprehensive income - - 0.7} - (0.7}
Transfer (from)/to statutory reserve - 43.9 (43.9) - -
Stock appreciation rights expense - - - 15. 1.5
Balance at March 31, 2022 3,247.9 637.5 2,539.6 10.9 6,435.9
The accompanying notes forms an integral part of financial statements.
This is the statement of changes in equity referred to in our report of even date
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016 Nomura Capital (India) Private Limited
Digitally signed b 1 Digitally signed VIPUL Digitally signed by
SHARAD SHE:\RAE AgGARWKL A m b rs g)’ ;‘\"‘2%"2'52“05‘;"2%31 JAMNADAS Zﬁim’}“ﬂrw“
. H ate: U, "
AGARWA ?532@3235?3'? h Si ng 21:32:48 +05'30' CHATWANI 2 :t;é::??ga’?
Sharad Agarwal Arnbrish Singh Vipul Chatwani
Partner Director Director

Membership No.: 118522
Place: Mumbai
Date: June 22, 2022

DIN: 09336231
Date: June 22, 2022

DIN: 00337576




NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

1. Corporate Information

Nomura Capital (India) Private Limited (the “Company”) is a company domiciled in India
with its registered office situated at Ceejay House, Level 11, Plot F, Shivsagar Estate, Dr.
Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400 018.

The Company was incorporated on August 04, 2009. The Combany is a subsidiary of
Nomura Asia Investment (Fixed Income) Pte. Ltd., a Company incorporated in Singapore.

The Company received the Certificate of Registration on April 28, 2010 from Department of
Non-banking Supervision (“DNBS") of the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI") to commence the
business of hon-banking financial institution.

The Company is primarily engaged in lending and investing activities.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 were approved by the
Company’s Board of Directors on June 22, 2022.

2. Basis of preparation

2.1 Compliance with Ind AS
The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting
Standards
(“Ind AS") notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act") [Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The Company is covered in the definition of Non-Banking Financial Company (“NBFC")
as defined in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016.
Pursuant to Ind AS 1 and amendment to Division lil of Schedule 1l to the Companies
Act, 2013 on October 11, 2018, the Company presents its balance sheet in the order of
liquidity. This is since the Company does not supply goods or services within a clearly
identifiable operating cycle, therefore making such presentation more relevant. A
maturity analysis of recovery or settlement of assets and liabilities within 12 months after
the reporting date and more than 12 months after the reporting date is presented in Note
41.

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The
accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial
statements

2.2 Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the
following:
e certain financial assets and liabilities - measured at fair value;
o defined benefit plans assets - measured at fair value and
e share-based payments - measured at fair value




NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

2.3 Use of judgments, estimates and assumptions

3.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires that
management make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities and disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities as on the date of the financial statements and the
income and expense for the reporting period. The actual results could differ based on
these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in
any future periods affected.

Certain of the Company’s accounting poiicies require critical accounting estimates .that
involve subjective judgments and the use of assumptions, some of which may be for
matters that are inherently uncertain and susceptible to change. The policies that involve
critical accounting estimates include fair valuation of financial instruments, impairment of
non-financial assets and deferred tax. Management believes that the estimates used in
the preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable.

Critical estimates and judgments made under Ind AS are;

Business model assessment and fair value of financial instruments — refer note 26.
Estimation of expected credit iosses — refer note 27 .

Estimation of defined benefits obligation — refer note 29.

Estimation of current tax expense and current tax payable — refer note 31.
Estimation of deferred tax assets — refer note 31.

Q0 o

Significant Accounting Policies

3.1 Foreian currencyv translations
ltems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (“¥"), which is
Company’s functional and presentation currency. Except as otherwise indicated,
financial statements presented in Indian rupee has been rounded to the nearest
million with one decimal.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end
exchange rates are generally recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.



NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

3.2 Income taxes
Tax expense comprises current income tax and deferred income tax. Current
income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in
accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred income taxes reflect the
impact of current year timing differences between taxable income and accounting
income for the period.

Deferred income tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax regulations
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred income tax
assets are recognised only to the extent that there are sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet
date. The Company writes-down the carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to the
extent that it is no longer reasonably certain that sufficient future taxable income will
be available against which deferred tax asset can be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are off set when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax assets with liabilities and when deferred tax balances
relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax asset and liabilities are offset
where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settie
on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
("OCI") or directly in equity. In this case, tax is also recognised in OCI or directly in
equity, respectively '

3.3 Goods and Service tax (“GST”) on acquisition of assets and services
Expenses and assets are recognised net of the GST paid, except:
- When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from
the taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable
- When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included.
The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is
included as part of receivables or payable in the balance sheet.

3.4 Leases
Nomura Financial Advisory and Securities (India) Private Limited (“NFASI"), the
Company’s group company, has entered into lease agreement for office space. Of
this, some area is occupied by the other group company i.e. Nomura Fixed Income
Securities Private Limited (*NFIS”) and the Company.



NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Leases where the Company is lessee:

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the
date at which the leased asset is available for use by the company. Contracts may
contain both lease and non-lease components. The Company will allocate the
consideration in the contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their
relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real estate, for which the
company is a lessee, it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease
components and instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value

basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease

payments:

a. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease
incentives receivable,

b. payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
company exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also
included in the measurement of the liability. The lease payments are discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate (“IBR”) is used. IBR is the rate that the
lessee would have io pav o borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar
terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Company, where possible, uses

recent third-party financing received by the lessee as a starting point, adjusted to

reflect changes in financing conditions since third party financing was received.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

a. the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,

b. any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received,

c. any initial direct costs, and

d. restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful
life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Company is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
underlying asset's useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and all leases of low-
value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in statement of
profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.
Low-value assets comprise IT equipment and small items of office furniture.



NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

3.5 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand balances and short term deposits

with other banks and other short-term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less which are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

3.6 Financial instruments
a. Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement
Purchase and sale of financial assets are recognised on trade date, the date

on which the Company commits to purchase or sell a financial asset.

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value.

ii. Subsequent measurement

Subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on the Company’s
business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of
the asset.

There are three measurement categories into which the Company classifies
its financial asset - debt instruments:

Financial assets at amortised costs

Financial assets are classified under this category if the asset fulfills both the

below mentioned conditions:

a. The assets are held within a business model with the objective to hold the
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and

b. The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on
the principal amount outstanding.

Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition is recognised directly in Statement
of Profit and Loss. Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

(“FVOCI”)

Financial asset is measured at FVOCI when both of the following conditions

are met:

a. The instrument is held within a business model the objective of which is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets;

b. The contractual terms of the financial asset meet the SPPI test.



NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

When the financial asset is de-recognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from equity to Statement of Profit
and Loss. Interest income from these financial assets is included using the
effective interest rate method (“EIR").

Financial Assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are
measured at FVTPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequentiy
measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in Statement of
Profit and Loss and presented net within Net gain/loss on fair value changes
in the period in which it arises.

Transaction costs of financial assets are expensed in Statement Profit and
Loss.

impairment of financial assets

Overview of Expected Credit Loss {“ECL”) principles

The Company records allowance for expected credit losses for all loans,
other debt financial assets, not measured at FVTPL, in this section all
referred to as “financial instruments”. Equity instruments are not subject to
impairment under Ind AS 109,

The ECL allowance is based on 12 months’ expected credit foss; unless there
has been significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which case,
the allowance is based on the lifetime expected credit loss.

Lifetime expected credit losses represent expected credit losses that would
result from all possible default events over the expected life of the financial

asset whereas 12 menth expected credit losses are those life expected credit

L YVIIOI ST L I e O ' 4 ek W L}

losses expected to occur within 12 months of balance sheet date.

Both lifetime ECLs and 12-month ECLs are calculated on an individual basis
depending on the nature of the underlying portfolio of financial instruments.

The Company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end
of each reporting period, of whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has
increased significantiy since initial recognition, by considering the change in
the risk of default occurring over the remaining life of the financial instrument.

Based on the above, the Company categories its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2
and Stage 3 as described below:

Stage 1 - Performing financial assets for which there has been no significant
deterioration in credit quality since initial recognition;



- NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Stage 2 -~ Underperforming financial assets for which there has been a
significant deterioration in credit quality since initial recognition but which are
not credit-impaired; and

Stage 3 -~ Non-performing financial assets for which there has been a
significant deterioration in credit quality since initial recognition and which
have become credit-impaired.

For exposures that have become credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is
recognised and interest revenue is calculated by applying the EIR to the
amortised cost (net of provision) rather than the gross carrying amount.

If an event (for e.g. any natural calamity) warrants a provision higher than as
mandated under ECL methodology, the Company may classify the financial
asset in Stage 3 accordingly.

In case internal Nomura credit rating is not available for stage 1 assets, which
are performing, then lowest rating of performing assets shall be used for the
purposes of ECL calculation on a conservative basis.

¢ Credit-impaired financial asset
A financial asset is considered credit impaired when an obligor fails to make

payments in full and on time of any financial obligations, markedly
disadvantageous modification to a contractual term compared with the
existing obligation, bankruptcy filings, administration, receivership, liquidation
or other winding-up or cessation of business of an obligor or other similar
situations.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial instruments
are credit-impaired.

e ECL methodology
The measurement of expected credit losses through the general ECL

impairment model is typically determined using loss rate models or
discounted cash flow models depending on the relevant staging of the
financial instrument.

A loss rate model measures ECL for an individual or portfolio of similar
financial instruments through development of loss rates calculated through an
estimate of the probability of default (“PD”) of the obligor and loss given
default (L.GD") which is applied to the expected credit exposure of the obligor
at default (“CEAD").



NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

iv,

Forward looking estimate
While estimating the ECL, the Company reviews macro-economic

developments occurring in the economy and market it operates in. On a
periodic basis, the Company analyses the relationship between key economic
trends with the estimate of PD.

Probability of default
The probability of default is an estimate of the likelihood of defauit over a

given time horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the
assessed period, if the facility has not been previously derecognised and is
still in the portfolio. The concept of PD is further explained in Note 27.

Loss given defaulit
Loss given default inputs are determined by class of financial instrument
hased on historical exnerience of loss and recovery rates for similar financial

instruments and other relevant industry data. Where appropriate, LGD inputs

are adiusted to reflect the impact of collateral and other integral credit
enhancements.

Exposure at default
The exposure at default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default

date.

Write off of loan assets
Credit-impaired financiai asset individually assessed for impairment are
typically written-off when further cash flows are deemed uncoliectible and

and interest balances have been exhausted. Such a determination is based
on factors such as the occurrence of significant changes in the obligor's
financial position such that the obligor can no longer pay the obligation, or
that the proceeds from collateral will not be sufficient to pay amounts due.

The provision calculated using the ECL model is compared with the
prudential guidelines issued by RBI! and higher of the two is provided in the
books of account.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is de recognised only when:

The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial asset; or

Retains the contractuai rights o receive the cash fiows of ihe financiai asset,
but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more
recipients.
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Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognized. Where the
entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset, the financial asset is hot de recognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retained
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the
financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained control of the
financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the
asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in
the financial asset.

The difference between the carrying value of the original financial asset and
the consideration is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

b. Financial liabilities

a.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.
The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial
recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Trade payables amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid.
They are recognised initially at their fair value.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their

classifications as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Liabilities classified under fair value through profit or loss includes financial
liabilities held-for-trading and financial liabilities designated at fair value
through Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held-for-trading if they are acquired for
the purpose of selling in the near term. This category includes derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designhated
as hedging instruments in hedge relationships.



NOMURA CAPITAL (iNDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured
at fair value. Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of the
financial liabilities are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

¢ Financial iiabiiities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities that are not carried at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and
losses are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are
derecognised, and through the amortisation process. Trade and other
payables measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.

¢. Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is

discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantiallv different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantiaiiy modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the criginal liability and the
recognition of a new liability.

The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability
and the consideration is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.7 Fair value measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received, to sell an asset, or paid, to transfer a
liability, in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date.

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
an asset or transfer a liability would take place either:

a) In the principal market for an asset or liability or

b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability.

The Company classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that
reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurement. The fair
value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1; The financial instrument which is measured at a quoted price. Also includes
application money pending allotment on the reporting date.

Level 2: The financial instrument that is not quoted in an active market. Such
instrument is measured using various valuation techniques. The inputs for these
valuation techniques are:

-a) Quoted price of similar instrument in an active market;

b) Quoted price of identical or similar instrument in a market that is not active;

c) Inputs other than quoted price that are observable for an instrument (e.g. yield
curves, credit spreads, implied volatilities, etc.);

d) Market-corroborated inputs.




NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Level 3: The financial instrument for which one or more significant inputs are not
based on observable market data.

3.8 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet wheére there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realised the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of
business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or
the counterparty.

3.9 Derivative financial instruments

A derivative is a financial instrument or other contract with all three of the following

characteristics: :

a. lts value changes in response to the change in a specified interest rate, financial
instrument price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices or
rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided that, in the case of
a non-financial variable, it is not specific to a party to the contract (i.e., the
‘underlying’).

b. It requires no initial net investment or an initial net investment that is smaller
than would be required for other types of contracts expected to have a similar
response to changes in market factors.

c. ltis settled at a future date.

3.10 Property, plant and equipment

a. Tangible assets
i. Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price,
including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, any directly
attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use
and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site
on which it is located, after deducting trade discounts and rebates.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

ii. Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.
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iii. Depreciation
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight line
basis using the rates arrived at, based on the useful lives estimated by the
management and which is in line with the rates indicated under Schedule Il of
the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation is provided from the month of
acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

The management has used the following estimates of usefui life to provide
depreciation on its property, plant and equipment:

Asset type Useful life estimated by
) management
Office Equipment* 5 years
Computer and Allied Equipment* 3 years

*The useful life of the acgets are haced on histarical exnerience and evaluation of

the Company, which is different from the useful life as prescribed in Schedule Ii
o the Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment, individually costing less than
25,000 is fully provided in the year of acquisition, as per management estimate.

k. Intangiblie assets
i, Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.
Such intangible assets are subsequently measured at cost iess accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

ii. Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future
economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates.

. Amortisation
Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over the estimated useful
economic life. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Asset Usefui life
(years)

Software 3 years
The amortisation period and the amortisation method are reviewed at each
financial yearend. If the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different
from previous estimates, the amortisation period is changed accordingly.
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3.11 Revenue Recognition

(i)

(i)

(iii

Trading gains and losses (as per Ind AS 109):

Trading income inciudes all gains and losses from changes in fair value for
financial assets and financial liabilities held for trading. Gains and losses on
sale of securities are recognized on trade date basis.

Interest income on investments (as per Ind AS 109):

Interest incomes of investments classified as FVTPL are recognised on EIR
basis. It is recognized on accrual basis and based on time apportioned,
taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

)} Interest income on loans and advances (as per Ind AS 109):
For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income or
expense is recorded using the EIR, which is the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instruments or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset or liability.

EIR in case of a financial asset is computed:

a. As the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset.

b. By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument in
estimating the cash flows.

Including all fees received between parties to the contract that are an
integral part of the EIR method, transaction costs, and all other premiums or
discounts.

Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows are
recognised in interest income with the corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of the assets.

Interest income on credit impaired assets is recognised by applying the EIR
method to the net amortised cost (net of provision) of the financial asset.

3.12 Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the
service are classified short-term employee benefits and they are recognised in
the year in which the employee renders the related services. For the amount
expected to be paid, the Company recognises an undiscounted liability if they
have a present legal or constructive obligation to pay the amount as a result of
past service provided by employees, and the obligation can be estimated
reliably.
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V.

Defined benefit plan

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis
of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of
each financial year. Remeasurements gains and losses arising from
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized
in the period in which they occur, directly in the other comprehensive income.
They are included in the retained earnings under Other Equity on the balance
sheet.

.Defined contribution plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the
Company pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal
or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The Company makes
specified monthly contributions towards Government administered Provident
Fund Scheme. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are
recognised as an empioyee benefit expense in Statementi of Profit and Loss in
the periocds during which the related services are rendered by employees.

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution
scheme and the contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss
of the year when the contributions are due. The Company has no other
obligations other than the contribution payable to the respective provident
funds.

.Other employee benefits plan

The eligible employees of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain
number of their annual leave entitlement to subsequent years, subject to a
ceiling. The Company recognizes the charge to the statement of profit and
loss and corresponding liability on account of such non-vesting accumulated
leave entitlement based on valuation by an independent actuary. Accumulated
leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as
short-term employee benefit and leave expected to be carried forward beyond
12 months, as long term employee benefit.

Share based payments

.Caéh benefit plans

The fair value of the amount payable to employees in respect of share
appreciation rights, which are settled in cash, is recognised as an expense
with a corresponding increase in liabilities, over the period the employees
unconditionaily become entitied to payment. The liability is measured at the
end of each reporting date up to and including settlement date, with changes
in the fair value recognised as salaries, wages and bonus in Statement of

Profit and Loss.
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3.13

3.14

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of
the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-
tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage
of time is recognised as interest expense.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising
from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company. A present obligation that arises from past events where
it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or
reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is termed and disclosed as
contingent liability.

Segment Reporting
Basis for segmentation

An operating segment is a component of the company that engages in business
activities from which it may earn and incur expenses, including revenues and
expenses that relate to transactions with any of the company's other components
and for which discrete financial information is available. Such decision is taken by
Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM).

Business segment

The Company’s operations fall under single business segment. Further, all the
transactions and the assets of the Company are recorded and located in India.
Since the Company’'s current business activity primarily falls within a single
business and geographical segment, no additional disclosure is to be provided
under Ind AS 108 — Segment Reporting, other than those already provided in the
financial statements.

Geographical segment
The Company's business is primarily within India. Hence no separate
geographical disclosure is considered necessary.
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3.15

o
=Y
i

3.47

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the

year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events such as bonus
issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split
{consolidation of shares), if any, that have changed the number of equity shares
outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for
the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive
potential equity shares.

Equity shares are classified as equity.

incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of equity sharcs arc
recognised as a deduction from equity.

Rounding off
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded

off to the nearest million as per the requirement of Schedule i, unless otherwise

stated.
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4. Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks

5. Investments

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
in € million In & million
11.5 8.3
11.5 8.3
In € million

At fair value

Amortised Cost

Through profit and

loss
[As at March 31, 2022
Debt securities - Corporate bonds 6,183.8
Mutual Funds - 7249
A - 6,908.7
i. Investments in India - 6,908.7
ii. Investments outside India . - -
8 - £8,908.7
Less : Impairment loss allowance c - -
AC - 6,908.7
As at March 31, 2021
Debt securities - Corporate bonds - 6,873.6
Mutual Funds 1119
A - 6,985.5
i. Investments in india - 6,985.5
ii. Investments outside India - -
B - 6,985.5
Less : Impairment ioss allowance c - -
A-C - 60855
6. Loans (At amortized cost)
Term Loans 515.0 -
Less : impairment loss allowance (23.9) -
Receivable considered good - unsecured - -
491.1 -
i. Secured by tangible assets* . 515.0 -
ii. Secured by intangible assets - -
iii. Covered by banks/government gurantees - -
iv. Unsecured - -
515.0 -
i. Loans in India
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 515.0 -
Less: Impairment loss allowance (23.9) -
A 4911 -
ii. Loans outside India .
Less : Impairment loss alfowance .
B N .
A+B 491.1 -

*Secured against units of Non-Convertible Debentures, Pass through Certificates and units of Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus Alternate Investment

Fund {market value) of 1,054.1 million as at March 31, 2022. (As at March 31, 2021 Nily

7. Other financial assets

Measured at fair value through proft and loss
i. Application money for Convertible Debentures

Measured at amortised cost

i. Interest accrued on investments

Less: Provision for doubtful interest accrued
ii. Receivable from group companies

8. Current tax assets {net)
Advance tax (net of provision for income tax March 31, 2022 ¥ 1,538.8 million,
March 31, 2021 T 1,536.3million)

As at
March 31, 2022
In & million

As at
March 31, 2021
In ¥ milfion

- 721
194.5 327.9
- (11.3)
27.2 3.6
221.7 352.3
75.2 38.5
75.2 38.5
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9. Property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets In ¥ million
Gross block Depreciation/Amortisation Net carrying
Particulars As at . . . As at Opening Balance " . Closing Balance as amount as at
April 01, 2021 Additions Disposals WMarch 31, 2022 | as at April 1, 2021 | | or theyear Disposals at March 31,2022 | March 31, 2022
a. Property, plant and equipment
Computer and allied equipments 0.6 - 0.6 0.1 0.2 0.3 03
Total 0.6 - 0.5 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.3
a. Other intangible assets
Computer software 1.0 - 1.0 0.6 0.2 0.8 0.2
Total 1.0 - 1.0 0.5 0.2 0.8 0.2
In ¥ million
Gross block Depr /Amortisati Net carrying
Particulars As at . . As at Opening Balance " . Closing Balance as amount as at
April 1, 2020 Additions Disposals March 31,2021 | as at April 1, 2020 | o the year Dispasals at March 31,2021 | March 31, 2021
a. Property, plant and equipment
Computer and allied equipments 0.2 0.4 0.6 - 0.1 0.1 0.5
Total 0.2 0.4 0.6 - 0.1 0.1 0.5
a. Other intangible assets
Computer software 0.6 0.4 1.0 0.5 0.1 0.6 0.4
Total 0.6 0.4 1.0 0.5 0.1 0.6 0.4
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As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
In & million In & million
10. Leases
Right of use assets: Building 56.5 64.3
Add: Addition during the year - -
Less: Depreciation for the year (7.8) (7.8)
48.7 56.5
Lease liabilities 62.3 68.1
Add: interest for the year 4.5 5.0
Less: Rent paid during the year (10.8) (10.8)
56.0 62.3
11. Other non-financial assets
Prepaid expenses . 1.3 0.7
Goods and service tax receivable 12.9 9.7
Less : Provision on Goods and service tax receivable (12.9) (8.7)
1.3 0.7
12. Other financial liabilities
Employee benefits payable 33.4 41.5.
Other payables . 5.8 8.7
39.2 50.2
13. Provisions
Provision for gratuity (Refer note 29) 3.7 57
Provision for compensated absenses 5.2 7.9
8.9 13.6

14. Other non-financial liabilities
Statutory dues payable 3.4 3.4

3.4 3.4
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15. Share capital
Authorised :
130,000,000 {as at March 31, 2021 130,000,000) equity shares of ¥ 10/- each

Issued, subscribed and paid up :
130,000,000 (as at March 31, 2021 130,000,000) equity shares of ¥ 10/~ each

A. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year :
March 31, 2022*

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
In & million in  miliion
1,300.0 1,300.0
1,300.0 1,300.0

March 31, 2021*

No, in & miiiion

No. in € miilion

Balance as at the beginning of the year 13,00,00,000.0 1,300.0 13,00,00,000.0 1,300.0
Add : Issued during the year - - - -
Balance as at the end of the year 13,00,00,000.0 1,300.0 13,00,00,000.0 1,300.0
* 1 equity share held by Nomura Asia Pacific Holdings Co. Ltd. in trust for Nomura Asia investments (Fixed Income) Pte, Ltd.
B. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares :
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10 per share, Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held.
C. Shares held by holding company :
March 31, 2022* March 31, 2021*
No. % No. %
Nomura Asia Investments (Fixed income) Pte. Ltd,, the
holding company 13,00,00,000.0 100.0 13,00,00,000.0 100.0
= held by Nomura Asia Pacific Holdings Co. Ltd. in trust for Nomura Asla Investments (Fixed Income) Ple, Lid.
D. Shares held by promnter:
March 31, 2022* March 31, 2021*
No. % No. %
Nomura Asia Investments (Fixed income) Pte. Ltd., the holding
company 13,00,00,000.0 100.0 13,00,00,000.0 100.0
* 1 equity share held by Nomura Asia Pacific Holdings Co. Ltd. in trust for Nomura Asia investments (Fixed Income) Pte. Ltd.
Note: There are no charges to the promoter holding during the year
E. Details of shareholders holding more than §% shares in the company-
. farch 31, 2022¢ March 31, 2021
No. % No. Y
Nomura Asia investments (Fixed Income) Pte. Ltd., the
holding company 13,00,00,000.0 100.0 13,00,00,000.0 100.0
* 1 equity share held by Nomura Asia Pacific Holdings Co. Ltd. in trust for Nomura Asia Investments {Fixed Income) Pte. Ltd.
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
in ¥ million In ¥ million
16. Other equity
a. Securities premium
Opening balance 3,247.9 3,247.9
Additions during the year - -
Closing balance A 3,247.9 3,247.9
b. Stock appreciation rights reserve
Opening balance 9.4 8.9
Additions during the year 1.5 0.5
Closing balance B 10.9 9.4
¢c. Statutory reserve
Opening balance 593.6 463.3
Additions during the year 43.9 130.3
Closing balance [ 637.5 593.6
d. Retained eamings
Opening balance 2,364.6 1,843.2
Total comprehensive income for the year 2189 651.7
Transfer to statutory reserve {43.9) (130.3)
Closing balance D 2,539.6 2,364.6
A+B+C+D 6,435.9 6,215.5

Nature and purpose of reserves
a. Securities premium

Securities premium reserve is used to record premium received on issue of shares. The reserves can be utilised only for limited purposes, in accordance with

the provisions of the Companies Act. 2013,

b. Stock appriciation rights reserve

Stock appreciation rights reserve is stock appreciation rights alloted to certain categories of employees of the company by Nomura Holdings Inc. (ultimate

parent).

c. Statutory reserve
Statutory reserve is reserve maintained under section 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
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17. Interest income

Interest on loans
Interest income from investments

Interest income from investments

18. Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes

Net gain/ {loss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
i. On trading portfolio

- Investments

Others

Eair value changes
i. Realised
ii. Unrealised

19. Other Income

i. Recharge to group companies

ii. Reversal of impairment on financial instruments
iii. Others

*Below the rounding off norms adopted by the Company.

20. Finance cost [measured at amortised cost]
i. Interest on lease liabilities

21. Fees and commission expense
i. Brokerage and stamp duty
ii. Custodian, depository and clearing charges

*Below the rounding off norms adopted by the Company.

(in ¥ million)
Year ended March 31, 2022
On financial assets  On financial assets Total
measured at classified at fair value
amortised cost through profit or loss
12.5 - 12.5
- 446.1 446.1
12.5 446.1 458.6
{in T million)
Year ended March 31, 2021
On financial assets  On financial assets
igs A Total
measured at classified at fair value
amortised cost through profit or loss
35.1 482.1 517.2
35.1 482.1 517.2
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
In  million in & million
31.3 486.7
A 31.3 486.7
B - -
A+B 31.3 486.7
(461.4) 155.3
482.7 331.4
31.3 486.7
34.1 23.5
- 19.9
0.0* 0.7
34.1 44.1
4.5 5.0
4.5 5.0
0.6 1.7
0.0* 0.1
0.6 1.8




Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
In ¥ million In ¥ million
22. lmpairment on financial instruments [measured at amortised cost]
i. Loans 23.9 -
23.9 -
23. Employee benefits expense
i. Salaries and wages 91.1 g7.8
ii. Contribution to provident and other funds 3.6 27
iii. Stock appreciation rights payment to employees (Refer note 30) 1.5 0.5
iv. Staff welfare expenses 1.0 0.8
v. Gratuity (Refer note 29) (0.9) 0.6
: : 96.3 92.4
24. Depreciation, amortization and impairment
i.Depreciation on property, plant & equipments 0.2 0.1
ii. Depreciation on right to use assets (Refer note 10) 7.8 7.8
iii. Amortisation of intangible assets 0.2 0.1
8.2 8.0
28. Other expenses
i..Rent, faxes and energy costs . . . . 18 1.9
ii. Repairs and maintenance 4.5 34
iii. Auditor's fees and expenses® 27 2.2
iv. Legal and professional charges 357 19.5
v. Provision for doubtful debts (11.3) 1.3
vi. Bad debts writtien off 11.3 -
vii. Corporate social responsibility (Refer note 47) 7.7 5.1
viii. Support cost recharge 28.7 21.6
ix. Market data expense 5.4 3.4
X. Provision on GST Asset 3.2 0.2
xi_ Other expenditure 1.4 i3
91.8 69.9
* Auditor's fees and expenses comprise for :
a. Statutory audit 1.9 1.8
b. Tax audit 0.2 0.2
¢. Other services 0.5 0.1
d. Reimbursement of expenses 0.1 0.1

2.7 2.2
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26. Fair value of financial instruments

1. Fair valuation
Fair value is the price that would be received, to sell an asset, or paid, to transfer a liability, in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell an asset or
transfer a liability would take place either:

a) In the principal market for an asset or liability or

b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The Company classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurement. The fair value hierarchy has the following
levels:

Level 1: The financial instrument which is measured at a quoted price. This category includes
corporate bonds quoted by Fixed Income Money Market and Derivatives Association of India
(“FIMMDA") and application money pending allotment at the reporting date.

Level 2: The financial instrument that is not quoted in an active market. Such instrument is measured
using various valuation techniques. The inputs for these valuation techniques are : a) quoted price of
similar instrument in an active market, b) quoted price of identical or similar instrument in a market that
is not active, c¢) inputs other than quoted price that are observable for an instrument (e.g. yield curves,
credit spreads, implied volatilities, etc.), d) market-corroborated inputs. This category includes
corporate bonds not quoted by FIMMDA.

Level 3: The financial instrument for which one or more significant inputs are not based on observable
market data.

2. Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management

A. Accounting classification and fair values
The following tables show the classification of the financial assets and liabilities:

As at March 31, 2022 In ¥ million
Carrying amount
Particulars )
FVTPL FVTOCI Amgortised Cost Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - - 11.5 11.5
Receivables
- Trade receivables - - - -
Investments 6,908.7 - - 6,908.7
Loans - - 491.1 491.1
Other financial assets - - . 2217 221.7
6,908.7 - 724.3 . 7,633.0
Financial liabilities
Lease liability - - 56.0 56.0
Other financial liabilities - - 39.2 39.2
- - 95.2 95.2
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As at March 31, 2021 In ¥ million
. Carrying amount
Particulars FVIPL | FVIOCl | Amortised Cost] _ Total

Financial assets

Cash and cash eguivalents - - 8.3 8.3

Receivables -

- Trade receivables - - - -

Investments 6,985.5 - - 6,985.5

Other financial assets 721 - 320.2 392.3
7,057.6 - 328.5 7,386.1

Financial liabilities

Lease liability - - 62.3 62.3

Other financial liabilities - - 50.2 50.2

“ - 112.5 112.5

The following tables sho

As at March 31, 2022

w the fair value hierarchy of the Tinanciai asseis and liabiiies measureo at fair vaiue:

in ¥ million

Particulars

Fair values

Level 1 |

Level 2 | Level 3 |

Total

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables

- Trade receivables

Loans

Investments

1,335.3

Other financial assets

1,335.3

Financial liabilities

Lease liability

Other financial liabilities

As at March 31, 2021

In ¥ million

Particulars

Fair values

Level 1

Level 2 I Level 3

Total

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables

- Trade receivables

Investments

38484

2,937.1 200.0

6,985.5

Other financial assets

72.1

721

3,920.5

2,937.1 200.0

7,057.6

Financial liabilities

Lease liability

Other financial liabilities

There has been no transfer of above financial asset/liability from level 1 to level 2 and from level 2 to level 1.
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B. Measurement of fair values
Corporate bonds _
Quoted corporate bonds are fair valued using weighted average market price published by
FIMMDA which aggregate the price at which the corporate bonds have traded on the recognised
exchanges (with minimum % 50 million turnover and 1 trade) over the last 15 calendar days. If the
corporate bonds have not traded on any recognised exchange over the last 15 calendar days, then
the price is derived using a financial calculator published by FIMMDA.
The following tables show the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 fair values, for
financial instrument measured at fair value in the statement of financial position:

Financial instruments measured at fair value:

As at March 31, 2022 In Z million
Significant
Type Fair Value Valuation technique observable

inputs
Rating based

spread

Corporate bonds 1,335.3 [Discounted cash flow

As at March 31, 2021 : In ¥ million
Significant
Type Fair Value Valuation technique observable

inputs
Rating based

spread

Corporate bonds 2,937.1 |Discounted cash flow

C. Movements in Level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value
The following table show a reconciliation of the opening and closing amounts of Level 3 financial
assets and liabilities which are recorded at fair value. Transfers into Level 3 reflect changes in
market conditions as a result of which instruments become less liquid. Therefore, the Company
requires significant unobservable inputs to calculate their fair value.

As at March 31, 2022 In  million
Particulars As at Allotment/ Transfer As at U::::I;s: dd
April 1, 2021 | (Redemption) | into Level 3| March 31, 2022 g
(losses)
Investments
Corporate bonds 200.0 (200.0) - - -
Compulsory Convertible Debentures - 250.0 - 250.0 -
Total 200.0 50.0 - 250.0 -
As at March 31, 2021 In T million
Particulars As at Purchasel/ |Transfer into As at Unrealised gains
April 1, 2020 (Sale) Level 3 March 31, 2021 and (losses)
Investments
Corporate bonds 390.0 (150.0) - 200.0 (40.0)
Total 390.0 (150.0) - 200.0 (40.0)
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D. Impact on fair value of level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value of changes to key
assumptions

As at March 31, 2022, investment in unquoted Compulsorily Convertible Debentures(CCD's) are classified as
level 3 asset as there are no observable inputs available to measure it. The conversion of CCD’s to fully paid
equity shares depend on the happening of certain events, which is uncertain as on balance sheet date, the
amount of investment made represents the best estimate of the fair value.

The below table summarises the valuation techniques together with the significant unobservable inputs used
to calculate the fair value of the Company’s Level 3 assets as at March 31, 2021.

In ¥ million

Particulars

Valuation Significant unobservable

bonhanimin innte
SCanigle mpuee

Fair value of Levei 3 assets

Investments.-
Corporate bonds

a. Recovery raies

200.01 Discounted cash flow b. Discouni margin/spread

E. Quantitative analysis of significant unobservable input

a.

Recovery rates:

Recovery rates reflect the estimated loss that the Company will suffer given expected defaults.
The recovery rate is given as a percentage and reflects the opposite of loss severity (i.e. 100%
recovery reflects 0% loss severity). In line with general market convention, ioss severity is
applied to asset-backed securities while recovery rate is more often used as pricing input for
corporate or government instruments. Higher loss severity ievels / lower recovery rates indicate
lower expected cash flows upon the default of the instruments. Recovery rates for complex,
less liquid instruments are usually unobservable and are estimated based on historical data.

Discount margin/spreads:

Discount margin/spreads represent the discount rates used when calculating the present value
of future cash flows. In discounted cash flow models such spreads are added to the henchmark
rate when discounting the future expected cash flows. Hence, these spreads reduce the net
present value of an asset or increase the value of a liability. They generally reflect the premium
an investor expects to achieve over the benchmark interest rate to compensate for the higher
risk driven by the uncertainty of the cash flows caused by the credit quality of the asset. They
can be implied from market prices and are usually unobservable for illiquid or complex
instruments.
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F. Sensitivity of fair value measurements to changes in unobservable market data

For sensitivity pertaining to level lll asset as at March 31, 2022, kindly refer Note 26 (D).

The table below describes sensitivity pertaining to level lll asset as at March 31, 2021.

The effect of changing the significant uncbservable inputs to reasonable possible alternatives.
Sensitivity data are calculated using a number of technigques, including analysing price dispersion
of different price sources, adjusting model inputs to reasonable changes within the fair value
methodology. The ranges are not comparable or symmetrical as the model inputs are usually not in
the middle of the favorable/unfavorable range.

In T million
March 31, 2021
Particulars Favorable Unfavorable
changes changes
Investments - '
Corporate bonds 306.2 (200.0)
Total 306.2 (200.0)

G. Fair value of financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value

As at March 31, 2022

In ¥ million

Particulars

Fair values

Carrying amount_|

Level 1 | Level 2 | Level 3

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents*

Receivables

- Trade receivables*

Investments -

| oans* 491 1 - - -

Other financial assets* 221.7 - - -
724.3 - - -

Financial liabilities

Lease liability* 56.0 - - -

Other financial liabilities* 39.2 - - -
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As at March 31, 2021 In ¥ million
Particulars Fair values
Carrying amount | Level 1 | Level 2 | Level 3
Financial assets
Cash and ¢cash equivalents® 8.3 - - -
Receivables - - - -
- Trade receivables* - - - -
Investments* - - - -
Other financial assets* 320.2 - - -
328.5 - - -
Financial liabilities
Lease liability* 62.3 - - -
QOther financial liabilities* 50.2 - - ~
112.5 - - -

*Carrying value of the Company’s financiai asseis and iiabiiiies, which are not cairied &t fair vaiue, are
assumed-to be their approximate fair.value.

27. Financial risk management

Risk management framework
The Company is exposed to financial risks, including the effects of changes in interest rate risk, credit
risk and liquidity risk.

Managing these financial risks forms an integral part of the Company’s business. The Company’s risk
management framework includes a variety of controls and reporting processes. These include the
parameters for the risks that the Company may undertake for various financial instruments, guidelines
for accepting customers and terms under which the business is being conducted, setting up
appropriate risk limits and controls and monitor risks and adherence to the set limits. Risk management
processes and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures,
aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand
their roles and obligations. The Company believes it has effective processes in place to identify
measure, monitor and mitigate these financial risks.

The Company’s Board of Directors (“Board”) are responsible for oversight of risk management
approach and for approving the risk strategies and principles. The Board is assisted in its oversight role
by the Risk Management & Investment Committee, Credit Committee and various other corporate
functions, which includes Credit and Market risk management. The oversight role includes monitoring
compliance with the Company’s risk management framework and reviewing its adequacy.

Internal audit aiso undertakes both, reguiar and ad hoc, review of risk management controls and
procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit Committee.

. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from an obligor or counterparty's default, insolvency or
administrative proceeding which results in the obligor's failure to meet its contractual obligations in
accordance with agreed terms. Credit risk for the Company is managed by Credit Risk Management
(“CRM”) function within the Risk Management Division together with Credit Committee.

Processes for managing credit risk include:

1) Evaluation of likelihood that counterparty defaults on its payments and obligations;

2) Assignment of internal ratings to all active counterparties;

3) Approval of extensions of credit and establishment of credit limits;

4) Measurement, monitoring and management of the firm's current and potential future credit
exposures;
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5) Setting credit terms in legal documentation; and
6) Use of appropriate credit risk mitigants, inciuding netting, collateral and hedging.

I.  Credit quality analysis

a. Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with bank are current account balances remaining unutilised as at the reporting date.

The Company believes these assets to be of high credit quality; hence no provision for expected
credit loss is made.

b. Trade Receivable
As at March 31, 2022, the Company does not have any trade receivable. (Previous year: NIL)
c. Loans

Loans made by the Company consist of corporate loans.
As at March 31, 2022, the Company has ¥ 515.0 million outstanding. (Previous year: NIL)

In ¥ million
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2022 2021
12 month ECL 12 month ECL
{Stage 1) {Stage 1)
Loans/Long term investments - -
Rated A and above -
Rated BBB - -
Rated BB - -
Rated B 515.0 -
Rated CCC and below - -
Unrated
Less: Impairment allowance (23.9) -
T otal 491.1 -

d. Other financial assets
Other financial assets include interest accrued on investments and amount receivable from the
Company’s group companies.
Previously, as at March 31, 2021 it also included share application money receivable.
The Company believes interest accrued on investments and receivable from the Company’s group
companies to be of high guality with low credit risk; hence no provision for expected credit loss is
made.

II. Amounts arising from ECL

a. Inputs assumptions and techniques used for estimating impairment
Inputs and assumptions considered in ECL Model

The measurement of ECL through the general impairment model is typically determined within the
Company using loss rate models or discounted cash flow models depending on the relevant
staging of the financial instrument.

A loss rate model measures ECL for an individual or portfolio of similar financial instruments
through development of loss rates calculated through an estimate of the probability of default (*PD")
of the obligor and loss given default (‘LGD”) which is applied to the expected credit exposure of the
obligor at default (‘“CEAD").
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In order to determine whether 12 month or lifetime ECL is used, each financial asset is assessed
for impairment, classified at each reporting date into one of following three stages of credit quality
deterioration since the financial asset was initially recognised.

Stage 1. Performing financial assets for which there has bheen no significant deterioration in credit
quality since initial recognition.

Stage 2: Underperforming financial assets for which there has been a significant deterioration in
credit quality since initial recognition but which are not credit-impaired; and

Stage 3: Non-performing financial assets for which there has been a significant deterioration in
credit quality since initial recognition and which have become credit-impaired.

The 12-month ECL is the portion of Lifetime ECL that represents the loss resulting from default
events on financial assets that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible defauit events over the
exnected life of a financial asset.

PDinpiits are determined by class of financial asset and by iniernal Nomura credit rating appliedto
each financial asset. PD inputs used by the Company are sourced from industry data and validated
based on historical experience.

in case internal Nomura credit rating is not available for stage 1 assets, which are performing, then
lowest rating of performing assets shall be used for the purposes of ECL calculation on a
conservative basis.

For Stage 1 assets, a 12 month PD is considered, for Stage 2 assets a lifetime PU is considered
and Stage 3 assets 100% PD is applied.

LGD inputs are determined by class of financial asset, based on historical experience of loss and
recovery rates for similar financial asset and other relevant industry data. Where appropriate, LGD
inputs are adjusted to reflect the impact of collateral and other integral credit enhancements.

Estimates and forward looking techniques
The Company has applied the following estimation technique for ECL model:

a. Through-the-cycle (“TTC") PD preparation: TTC cumulative PDs up to 5 year are prepared by
referring to S&P’s historic rating migration data.

b. Scenario Point-in-time (“PIT”) PD construction: PIT PDs on each scenario are constructed from
TTC PDs. In the conversion from TTC PD to PIT PD, scenario credit spread provided is used to
incorporate forward looking information and credit cycle. Four scenario (upside, base, moderate
downside, and severe down side) are applied.

c. Probability weighted PIT PD computation: Scenario PIT PDs are summed up weighted by a
probability of each scenario happening (probability weighted PIiT PDs).

d. LGD inputs are determined by class of financial asset, based on historical experience of loss
and recovery rates for similar financial asset and other relevant industry data.

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk
A financial asset that is not credit-impaired on initial recognition is initially classified into stage 1 and
is subsequently continuously monitored to determine whether a significant increase in credit risk

has occurred, at which point the financial asset is reclassified to stage 2.

A determination of whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred at each reporting date
will be through a comparison of Nomura internal credit rating applied to the financial instrument at
initial recognition and at the reporting date.
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A financial asset will be reclassified as per the below table:

From (Initial r

To ans | aar | an | aa | Aac | A | A |oens| oes | see. | eme | 88 | 8e. | Be | 8 | B lcee] cc | ¢ 5

1 2 3 4 5 5] 7 8 a 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

* (Reporting date) | AAA 1 s1 | st @ st | st | st | st | st | s os1 | s1 | st | st | st | s1 ] s1 [ st | s1 ] s

AAT 2 s1 st | st | s1 ] s1 1 st | st | st | o1 | s1 | st | st | s1 ) s1 | s1| s1 ] st

A a st | st | st | st | st | st | st | st | st | s | st | st} st | 1| st | st

AA- 4 51 S51 81 S1 31 51 81 S1 81 81 S1 81 S1 81 81

Ax 5 st | st 1 ost | st | st | st | st Lost | st |ost | st | st |ost | s1| st

A 5 = a1 | st | st | st | s1 | 1 | s1 | st | s ] s1 | st | st | st | s

A 7 st | st | st | st | st | st | st | st s1 | s1 | s1 | st | s

BEG+ 8 s1 | st | s | s1 ) st | s | st ] s1] s1 | s1 | st 1 s1

B8B s . s1

BBE-
e

If there is a further deterioration in credit risk such that the financial asset becomes credit-impaired, the
financial asset is then reclassified into stage 3.

Credit impaired financial asset

A financial asset is considered credit impaired when an obligor fails to make payments in full and on
time of any financial obligations, markedly disadvantageous modification to a contractual term
compared with the existing obligation, bankruptcy filings, administration, receivership, liquidation or
other winding-up or cessation of business of an obligor or other similar situations.

Policy for write off of loan assets
Credit-impaired financial asset individually assessed for impairment are typically written-off when

further cash flows are deemed uncollectible and when all commercially reasonably means of
recovering outstanding principle and interest balances have been exhausted. Such a determination is
based on factors such as the occurrence of significant changes in the obligor's financial positiorn such
that the obligor can no longer pay the obligation, or that the proceeds from collateral will not be
sufficient to pay amounts due.

b. Loss allowances

In T million
Particulars 2021-22 | 2020-21
Loss allowance

Loans [measured at amortised cost]
Balance as at April 01 - -
Net measurement of loss allowance . 23.9 -
Balance as at March 31 23.9 -
Investments [measured at amortised cost]
Balance at April 01 - 19.9
Net measurement of loss allowance - (19.9)
Balance ast March 31 - -

a. Loan of ¥515.0 million is outstanding as on reporting date March 31, 2022.
(Previous year: NiL)
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Ill. Disclosure pursuant to RBI/2019-20/170/DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20
“Implementation of Indian Accounting Standards” dated March 13, 2020

As at March 31, 2022

In  million
Loss allowances Difference
Asset Classification f&.sse_a Gross carrying {Provisiocns) as | Net carrying Pr.cvxgons between ‘|n‘dAS
as per RBI norms classification as | amount as per required under amount required as per | 109 provisions
p per indAS 109 IndAS* 4 IRACP norms | and IRACP
Ind AS 109
norms
Performing assets
Standard Stage 1 515.0 239 491.1 21 21.8
As at March 31, 2021 In ¥ million
L I Difference
N e Acent Grace carrvinn 955 a‘ ?‘”‘“’?“’5 - . Pravisinns hatween IndAS
Asset Classification | 7 "7 7= 1 {Provisions)as | Net carrving o PO o
as per RBI norms ciassification as | amount as per required under amount required as per | 109 provisions
RBinorms | indAS 108 | IndAS* required under. amount IRACP norms and iRACE
ind A3 165
. norms
Performing assets
Standard Stage 1 - - - - -
c. Offsetling
No offsetting exists as at March 31, 2022. (Previous year: NiL)
iii. Market risk .
Market risk is the risk of loss arising from fluctuations in the value of financial assets and liabilities

PR Y

{including off-balance sheet items) due to fluctuations in market risk factors (interest rates, prices of

securities and others). Market risk primarily impacts the Company’s investing activities.

Effective management of market risk requires the ability to analyse a complex and constantly changing
global market environment, identify problematic trends and ensure that appropriate action is taken in a

timely manner.

The Company uses a variety of complementary tools to measure, model and aggregate market risk.
The Company's principal statistical measurement tool to assess and monitor market risk on an ongoing
basis is Value at Risk (“VaR"). Limits on VaR are set in line with Company’s risk appetite as expressed
through regulatory capital. Market risk is monitored against a set of approved limits, with daily reports

and other management information provided to the business units and senior management.
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a. Total market risk exposure

iii. Market risk
In Z million
Particulars As at March 31, 2022
; Carrying amount | Traded risk | Non traded risk | Primary risk

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 11.5 - 11.5
Receivables
- Trade receivables - - -
Investments 6,908.7 6,658.7 250.0 |interest rate risk
Loans 4911 - 491.1
Other financial assets 221.7 - 221.7

7,633.0 6,658.7 974.3
Financial liabilities
Lease liability 56.0 - 56.0
QOther financial liabilities 39.2 - 39.2

95.2 - 95.2

In F million

As at March 31, 2021

Particulars

Carrying amount | Traded risk | Non traded risk | Primary risk

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 8.3 - 8.3
Receivables
- Trade receivables - - -
Investments 65,985.5 6,785.5 200.0 [Interest rate risk
Other financial assets 392.3 - 392.3

7,386.1 6,785.5 600.6
Financial liabilities
|ease liability 62.3 - 62.3
Other financial liabilities 50.2 - 50.2

112.5 - 112.5

Value at Risk (VaR)

VaR is a measure of the potential loss in the value of the Company’s investment positions due to
adverse movements in markets over a defined time horizon with a specified confidence level. Market
risks that are incorporated in the VaR model include bond prices, interest rates, credit and foreign
exchange rates with associated volatilities and correlations.

VaR metrics

The 1 day VaR at 95% confidence level as of each of the dates indicate are as follows:
VaR as at March 31, 2022 - ¥ 6.1 million

VaR as at March 31, 2021 -  12.0 million

Assumptions
The Company uses a single VaR model in order to determine the total VaR for the Company. The

Company’s VaR methodology uses historical simulation to estimate potential profit or loss. Historical
market moves are repeatedly applied to current exposure, forming a distribution of simulated portfolio
returns. From this distribution the required potential losses can be estimated at required confidence
levels or probabilities. VaR is calculated at a 95% confidence level and using a 1-day time horizon.

The VaR model uses a historical time window of two years (520 business days). For risk
management, the Company uses an exponential weighted moving average VaR. For the calculation
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vi.

of VaR, the probability weight assigned to each measure of estimated profit or loss in the historical
simulation scenarios depends on when it occurred. The older the observation, the lower the weight.

The Company's VaR model uses time series for each individual underlying, whenever available.
Whenever a time series cannot be found for a specific underlying, the VaR model will follow ‘proxy
logic’ to map the exposure to an appropriate time series. The level of proxying taking place in the
VaR model is carefully monitored through internal risk management processes and there is a
continual effort to source new time series to use in the VaR calculation.

Objectives and Limitations of the VaR methodology
The main advantage of VaR as a risk measure is that it is able to aggregate risk from different asset

classes (in contrast with other risk measures sensitivities that cannot be easily aggregated directly).
The risk from different products of the Company can therefore easily be compared and aggregated
using VaR.

As a risk measure, however VaR has certain limitations. One of the main disadvantages with VaR is
that it is a backward-iooking risk measure. Using historical market moves o estimate future losses
Assiimes that aniv events that have actually happened in the past are relevant to-analyse the risk of a
portfolio.

In addition, VaR only gives an estimate of the loss at a stated 95th percentile (i.e. in five out of 100
days the loss will be greater than 1-day VaR), but not what the magnitude of loss could be whenever
the loss does exceed VaR.

VaR as a risk measure is most appropriate for liguid markets and may understate the financial impact
of severe events for which there is no historicai precedent on where market liquidity may not be
reliable. In particular, historical correlations can break down in extreme markets leading to
unexpected relative market moves. This may make positions that off-set each other in VaR modelling
move in the same direction thus increasing losses. VaR also does not fully capture the impact of
defaults by issuers as these are very rare events.

Given the limitations of the VaR model, the Company uses VaR only as one component of a diverse
market risk management process

iv. interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows or
the fair value of financial instruments.

Exposure to interest rate risk for non-trading financial assets and liakiilities:
The Company does not have any floating rate financial assets and liabilities as at the reporting date,
therefore a change in interest rate would not affect profit and loss.

Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign

exchange rates. The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupee ().

At present, the Company does not have any exposure in foreign currency. (Previous year: NIL)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulties in raising funds to meet its working
capital requirements and commitments, including those associated with financial instruments.

The Company’s liquidity risk appetite is defined by the requirement to maintain sufficient liquidity
(through holding a highly liquid pool of high quality, unencumbered assets that can be monetized)
across market cycles and periods of stress such that all funding requirements and unsecured debt
obligations falling due within the two separately defined stress scenarios can be met without the need
to roll unsecured financing.
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The Company has established an Asset and Liability Committee (“ALCO") to define its policy relating

to funding and liquidity risk.

The Company’s finance department monitors, on an ongoing basis, the Company’s funding
requirements and its forecasts, maturity mismatches and liquidity ratios in order to enable the
Company meet its short-term funding requirements.

The Company maintains a portfolio of highly liquid and diverse assets that can be easily liquidated in
the event of an unforeseen interruption of cash flow. Liquidity risk is also mitigated through the close

monitoring of exposure to avoid undue concentration.

Exposure to liquidity risk

As at March 31, 2022

In & million

Particulars

Carrying
amount

1to 7 days

8to 14
days

15 to 30/31
days

Over1
month to 2
months

Over2
months to
3 months

Over 3 months
to 6 months

Over 6
months to

1 year

Over1to3

Over3to 5
years

Over5
years

Financial assets

Cash and cash
equivalents

I 11‘5'

11.5

Receivables

- Trade
receivables

Investments*®

6,908.7

2,503.1

352.4

Loans®

491.1

491.1

Other financial
assets

221.7

Foreign currency
assets®

Financial liabilitie

Borrowings®

Debt securities®

Deposits®

Lease liability

0.5

0.5

Other financial

5.8

33.4

liabilities
Foreign currency

liabilities®

Inflows

2,514.6

3,478.0

96.2

0.1

Outflows

6.3

33.9

0.6
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‘As at March 31, 2021 In ¥ million
N Over 1 Over 2 Over 6
Particulars (;:Z::? 1to 7 days Bdt:y154 15 :aa;:lﬂ month to 2 | months to Over ::i r;:;ths to months to Ov;;:r;o 3 Ov;::r;o 5 (3:::55
months 3 months 1 year
Financial assets
Cash and cash
equivalents ! 83 I 8.3 ! 3 ! ! ! ! | l |
Receivables
- Trade
receivables -
Loans® - - - - - - - - - - -
Investments®® 6,985.5 1,446.5 | 4,338.0 - - - 76.1 15.3 858.4 126.2 125.0
Other financial 392.3 1287 2125 36 - - 123 03 32.9 2.0
assets
Foreign currency
assets®
Financial liabilities
Bormwingss
Debt securities®
Deposits® - - - - - - - - - - -
1 ease liahility 62.3 - - 0.5 0.5 0.5 1.5 3.2 14.0 17.2 249
ot il 50.2 y : 9.1 45 - . . . - .
lial
Foreign curency ’ )
liabilities® ) ) ) 3 ) ) ) ) ) ) )
Inflows 7,386.1 1,583.5 | 4,550.5 3.6 - - 88.4 15.6 891.3 128.2 125.0
|Outflows 112.5 - - 9.6 42,0 0.5 1.5 3.2 14.0 17.2 24.9

$Disclosure pursuant to Annexure XiV of RBI/DNBR/2016-17/45 Master Directions DNBR.PD.004 /03.10.119/2016-
17 Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company
and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 dated September 01, 2016 (as updated on
June 14, 2022).
*Investments and accrued interest on investments are classified as per the “Liguidity risk framework” adopted
by the Company based on RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated November
04, 2019.
#All listed corporate bonds will be placed in the “1 day to 30/31 days" buckets depending on the defeasance
period as defined in the Company's Asset Liability Management (“ALM”) Policy.

28. Capital Management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are:

a) To maintain adequate level of capital to ensure compliance with prevailing regulatory
requirements. :

b) To safe guard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and

¢) To maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Board seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns on capital that might be possible by
running higher levels of leverage and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position.

Leverage Ratio
The Company monitors capital using ‘borrowing’ to ‘net owned funds’ ratio. For this purpose, ‘net

owned funds’ comprises of all components of equity less intangible assets (including capital work in
progress) deferred tax asset.

It is the Company's policy to keep this ratio below, 2 times of net owned funds or borrowings of
10,000 million, whichever is lower. The Company’s borrowing to net owned funds ratio at March 31,
2022, along with the comparative, was as follows:
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28.

In ¥ million
Type March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
'!'otg'l borrowings (including lease 56.0 62.3
liability)
Net owned funds 7,651.0 7,352.8
Adjusted net debt to equity ratio 0.01 0.01

Employee Benefits

The Company contributes to the following post-employment defined benefit plans in India.

Defined contribution plans:
Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The contributions to

the provident fund are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the year when the contribution is
due. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund.

Defined benefit plan:
A defined benéefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan, other than a defined contribution plan. The

Company'’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employee has earned in return for their service in the
Company. Present value of such future benefit becomes the liability to the Company. Any
unrecognized past service cost is considered while calculating this liability. The discount rate is
determined using the government bond yield, published by FIMMDA, of the maturity equivalent to the
expected term of the obligation.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise of actuarial gains and losses, are
recognised immediately in OCI

The Company determines the net interest expense on the net defined benefit liability for the year by
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation to the beginning of the year
balance of net defined benefit liability, taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit
liability during the year as a result of benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses
related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation, calculated by an actuary, using projected unit credit
method at end of each financial year. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in full in the year in
which they occur in the OCI.

Risks associated with defined benefit plan
Gratuity is a defined benefit plan and exposes the Company with the following risks:

a) Interest rate risk
A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the government bond yield will increase the present value of

the liability requiring a higher provision.

b) Salary increment risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of

members. As such, an increase in the salary of the members more than assumed level will increase
the plan's liability.

c) Asset liability matching (“AL") risk
The plan faces the AL risk as to the matching cash flow. Company has to manage pay-out based on
pay as you go basis from own funds as the defined benefit plan of the Company is unfunded.
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d) Mortality risk
Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan

does not have any longevity risk.

e} Regulatory risk
Risk associated with change in regulation.

in T miltior:
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Present value of defined benefit obligation (3.7) (5.7)
Fair value of plan assets - -
Funded status (Surplus/(Deficit)) (3.7 (5.7)
Non-current (3.3) (4.8)
Current (0.4) (0.9)
A, Movement in net definad benefit faseah) / lishilihy

The following table shows reconciliation from the opening bhalance to the closing balances for net
defined benefit liability and its components.

In ¥ million
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Present value of defined benefit obligation
a. Opening balance 57 5.8
Included in statement of profit & loss:
b. Current service cost 0.2 0.2
c. Past service cost - -
d. Transfer infout (1.5) -
€. Interest cost 04 0.4
f. Benefits paid (2.0) (0.7)
g. Sub-total (a+b+c+d+e+f) 2.8 5.7
Included in other comprehensive income
h. Demographic assumption 0.0* 0.1
i. Financial assumption 0.0* 0.1
i. Experience assumption 0.9 (0.2)
k. Closing balance (g+h+i+j) 3.7 57

B. Defined benefit obligations

i. Actuarial assumptions
The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as
weighted averages).

Particulare March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Discount rate 6.84% 6.26%
Salary escalation 9.00% 7.00%
Indian Assured Indian Assured
Mortality rate during employment Lives Mortality Lives Mortality
(2012-14) Urban  |(2006-08) Ultimate
Employee turnover rate {for different age 12.00% 13.00%
lgroups)
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The estimate of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation takes into consideration
inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the

employment market.

ii. Amount for the current and previous two years are as follows:

» In  million
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Defined benefit obligation (3.7) (5.7)
Plan assets - -
Surplus/(deficit) (3.7) (5.7)
I'Exp'gr.ience (gain)/loss adjustments on plan 0.9 (0.2)
liabilities
Actuarial (gain)/loss due to change in ) 0.2
assumptions )
C. Expenses recognised in statement of profit & loss
In ¥ million
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Current service cost 0.2 0.2
Net interest cost 04 0.4
Past service cost - -
Expected contributions by the employees - -
(Gains)/losses on curtailments and
settlements ) i
Net effect of changes in foreign exchange ) )
rates
Transfer out of employees (1.5)
Expenses recognised (0.9) 0.6
D. Expenses recognized in QCI
In ¥ million
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligation for the 0.9 0.0
period ) )
Return on plan assets, excluding interest
income ) .
Change in asset ceiling - -
Net (income)/expense for the period .
recognized in OCI - (09) 00

*Below the rounding off norms applied by the Company.

E. Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses have been determined based on reasonably possible change of the respective

assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting date, while holding all other assumptions constant.

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the
projected benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of
one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.
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Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the projected benefit
obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting year,
which is the same method as applied in calculating the projected benefit obligation as recognised in the
balance sheet.

I ¥ million
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
increase Decrease increase Decrease

Delta effect of +1% change in rate of

i . - 0.2 - 0.2
discounting
Qelta effgct of -1% change in rate of 02 } 0.3 )
discounting
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of salary 04 } 01 )
increase
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of salary ) 0.1 ) 0.1
increase
Deiia effect of +1% change in raie of empioyee P "4
turnover - j o i
Deita effect of -1% change in rate of employee } 0.0* ) 01
turnover ) )

Other long term employee benefits.
The eligible employees of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain number of their

annual leave entitlement to subsequent years, subject to a ceiling. The Company recognizes the
charge to the statement of profit and loss and corresponding liability on account of such non-
vesting accumulated leave entitlement based on valuation by an independent actuary.
Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as
short-term employee benefit and leave expected to be carried forward beyond 12 months, as iong
term employee benefit. '

30. Stock appreciation rights

Restricted Stock Units (RSU")
The ultimate holding company granted the first RSU awards in May 2019. For each RSU award, one

common stock of NHI is delivered. The awards generally have a graded vesting period over three years
with an extending vesting period of up to seven years for certain senior management and employees in
order to meet local regulatory requirements based on the role they perform within Nomura. The grant date
fair value per award is determined using the price of the NHI's common stock.

The following table sets out the movement of the RSU awards during the financial year:

Particulars For the year ended [For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Opening balance 3,100.0 -
Granted during the year - 3,100.0
Forfeited during the year - -
Exercised during the year - -
Expired during the year - -
Transferred during the year (3,100.0) -
Closing balance - 3,100.0

The expense recognised in statement of profit and loss on account of Stock Appreciation Rights (‘SAR’)
for the current year is 1.5 million. (March 31, 2021 was %0.5million).
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Cash-settled compensation scheme
Supplemental awards such as Notional Stock Units (‘“NSU"), Notional Indexed Units (“NIU") and Collared

Notional Stock Units ("“CSU") are granted to the Company’s employees. NSU and CSU are linked to the
ultimate holding company’s stock price whereas NIU is linked to a world stock index quoted by Morgan
Stanley Capital International that has graded vesting over three to five years of grant date. All these
awards are cash settled.

31. Income Tax and Deferred Tax

1. Amounts recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

In T million
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021

Current tax expense

a. Current year - 136.0

b. Changes in estimates relating to prior years 1.3 (1.4)

1.3 134.6

Deferred tax expense

a. Origination and reversal of temporary differences 77.9 84.8

b. Change in tax rate - -

c. Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses (0.1) (0.2)

77.8 84.6
Tax expense recognised in the Statement of Profit 29.1 219.2
and Loss
2. Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income
In ¥ million
As at As at
Morch 31,2522 Mare 51,202
Before tax . Net of tax | Before tax ) Net of tax
benefit benefit

Items that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit or Loss
Re-measurements of the defined (0.9) 0.2 (0.7) 0.0* 0.0* 0.0*
benefit plans

*Below the rounding off norms applied by the Company.
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3. Reconciliation of effective tax rate

In T million
Particulars , hs gt U B As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Profit before tax 298.7 870.9
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate 75.2 219.2
Current year 25.17% Previous year 25.17%) ) )
Changes in tax rate - -
Tax effect of:
Interest u/s 234B and u/s 234C 0.3 0.3
Non-deductible tax expense 3.7 0.1)
Recognition of previously unrecognised deductible
. (0.1) (0.2)
termporary difference
.- e [ Mo gl R4 A TR I YOO+ TN
i ax expense recognised in the al.jl.e it OF FOTit 79.1 219.2
and Loss

The effective tax rate for the year ended March 31, 2022 was 26.5%. (March 31, 2021: 25.2%)

4. Movement in deferred tax balances

As at March 31, 2022 in Z million
. R Recognised in Recognised | Deferred tax | Deferred tax
Particulars Opening balance] statement of in OCI asset fiability
profit and ioss i
Provision for Leave encashment 2.0 (0.7) - 1.3 -
Provision for Gratuity 1.3 (0.7) - 0.6 -
Provision on GST asset 2.5 0.8 - 3.3 -
Depreciation 0.0* - - - -
Unrealised loss on investments 152.2 (124.0) - 28.2 -
Lease liabilities 1.5 0.4 - 1.9 -
Provision for expected credit losses - 6.0 - 6.0 -
Provision for doubtful debts 2.8 (2.8) - - -
Tax losses - 43.2 - 43.2
Re-measurements gain/{loss) on defined benefit plan 0.0* - 0.2 0.2 -
Total 162.3 {77.8) 0.2 84.7 -
“Below the rounding off norms applied by the Company.
As at March 31, 2021 In Z million
. . Recognised in Recognised | Deferred tax | Deferred tax
Particulars Opening balance| statement of in OCI asset liability
profit and loss T D T
Provision for Leave encashment 1.7 0.3 - 2.0 -
Provision for Gratuity 1.4 0.0* - 1.3 -
Provision on GST asset 23 0.2 - 2.5 -
| Depreciation G.0* c.o* - 0.0 -
Unrealised loss on investments 235.6 (83.4) - 152.2 -
Lease liabilities 1.0 0.5 - 1.5 -
Provision for expected credit losses 4.9 (4.9) - - -
Provision for doubtful debts - 2.8 - 2.8 -
Re-measurements gain/(loss) on defined benefit plan - - 0.0* 0.0* -
Total 246.9 (84.6) 0.0* 162.3 -

*Below the rounding off norms applied by the Company.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax
assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences
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32.

33.

to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be
used. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed when the
probability of future taxable profits improves.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences
when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Earnings Per Share

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity
shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021

Net Profit attributable to equity holders 219.6 651.7
of the Company (In ¥ million)

Weighted average number of shares

at the end of the year 130,000,000 130,000,000

Face value per share 10.0 10.0
Basic and diluted earnings per share 1.69 5.01
Segment Reporting

Mr. Ambrish Sihgh has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM
regularly reviews the performance reports and makes decisions about allocation of resources.

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it
earns revenue and incurs expenses, for which discrete financial information is available.

The Company is a Non-banking financial institution and is primarily engaged in lending and investing
activities. The Company's operations fall under single business segment.

Further the business operations of the Company are primarily concentrated in India. The Company is
considered to operate in the single geographical segment i.e. domestic segment.

Since the Company’s’ current business activities primarily falls within a single business and
geographical segment, no additional disclosures are required as per Ind AS 108.
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34. Related Party Disclosure

1. Names of related parties:

Nature of relationship Name of party

Parent company

Nomura Asia Investment (Fixed Income) Pte. Ltd.

Ultimate parent company

Nomura Holdings, Inc.

2. Names of related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

Nature of relationship

Name of party

Fellow subsidiaries

Nomura Services India Private Limited

Nomura Structured Finance Services Private Limited

Nomura Financial Advisory and Securities (India) Private Limited

Nomura Fixed Income Securities Private Limited

Nomura Singapore Limited

Nomura Investments (Sinaanore) Pte. Limited

Nomura Asset Management Co.

Key management personnel

Mr. Ambrish Singh (Date ot appointment September A1), 2121)

Mr. R. Arun

Mr. Shantanu Sahai {(Date of resignation April 12, 2022)

Mr. Vikas Murarka (Date of resignation December 10, 2021)

Mr. Vipul Chatwani

Mr. Swee Seng Liang (Date of appointment March 14, 2022)
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In ¥ million

Transactions
during the

Amount outstanding
as at March 31, 2022

Transactions
during the period

Amount outstanding as
at March 31, 2021

based payments

Name of related Nature of Natﬁre of iod d . h . | (Pavabl
party relationship transaction period ende Receivable/ (Payable) | ended March 31, | Receivable/ (Payable)
March 31, 2022 2021
rse“ci';‘:”ef“t 33.9 ©.1) 27 (2.6)
Nomura Financial g
Advisory & . Other expenditure 0.7 0.0** 0.7 0.0**
Securities (india) | SHoW subsidiary
Private Limited
Recharge to group 18.6 7.4 13.8 1.8
companies’
Nomura Services L ‘I d
India Private Fellow subsidiary |-292' an . 12.1 .7 15.5 (1.3)
Limited professional fees
Nomura Structured Leqal and
Finance Services [Fellow subsidiary egal an N 27 (0.5) 2.0 (0.2)
Private Limited professional fees
Nomura Fixed Recharge o arou
Income Securities |Fellow subsidiary co g . group 21.7 19.9 9.7 1.8
Private Limited mpanies
Nomura Purch_?se of - - 2,828.7 -
Investments - securities
(Singapore) Pte Fellow subsidiary
Limi?ec? ' Sale of securities 328.7 - - -
t
Nomura Assel | oiow subsidiary |7urchase of 270.3 - 1,339.5 .
Management Co. securities
Short term employee 49.7 933 5090 (35.6)
benefits
. Key management |Post employement
Directors personnel benefits 4.1 0.1 1.4 ©.1
Employee share 15 _ 05 i}

*Inclusive of goods and service tax.

# Transaction entered with The Nomura Trust and Banking Co. Limited as the trustee of Indian Local Currency
Denominated Bond Mother Fund which is managed by Nomura Asset management Co.
** Below rounding off norms adopted by the Company.

35. Net Debt Reconciliation

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements in net debt for each of the year
presented below:

In ¥ million

Particulars

March 31, 2022

As at

March 31, 2021

As at

Lease

liability

56.0

62.3
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In ¥ million
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Net debt as at April 1, 2021 62.3 68.1
Comprises of . .
As per balance sheet 62.3 68.1
Interest accrued - -
Cash flows (10.8) (10.8)
Interest expense 45 5.0
Interest paid - -
Other non-cash movements
~ Fair valua adiustments - -
- Acquisitions/disposals - -
- |Net debt as at March 31, 2022 56.0 82.2
Balance 56.0 62.3

Interest accrued

36. Income/Expenditure in foreign currency: (on accruai basis)

a) Income in foreign currency

Current Year: Nil (Previous Year: Nil)

b) Expenditure in foreign currency

Current Year: ¥14.4 million (Previous year: Nil)
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37. Disclosure pursuant to Annexure XVi of RBI/DNBR/2016-17/45 Master Directions

DNBR.PD.004/03.10.119/2016-17 Master Direction-Non-Banking Financial Company -
Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 dated September 01, 2016 (as updated on June 14,

2022).

a. Capital to risk assets ratio (CRAR)

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Capital Adeguacy Ratio 105.02% 102.91%
Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratio 104.99% 102.91%
Tier 2 Capital Adequacy Ratio 0.03% 0.00%
Amount of Subordinated Debt raised as
Tier || Capital j )
Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt
instruments ) )
b. Investments
In ¥ million
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

1) Value of Investments
i) Gross value of Investments™
a) In India 7,423.7 6,985.5
b) Outside India - -
ii) Provison for depreciation**
a) In India - -
b) Outside India - -
Net value of Investment*
a) In India 7,423.7 6,985.5
b) Outside India - -
2) Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on Investments**
i) Opening balance - 19.9
ii) Add: Provision made during the year 23.9 -
iii) Less: Write offwrite back of excess

. X - (19.9)
provision during the year
iv) Closing balance 23.9 -

* Includes change in fair value.

** Provision for ECL. on investments measured at amortised cost.

c. Derivatives

a. Interest rate swaps and Forward rate agreements

The Company has not entered into Interest rate swaps and Forward rate agreements during the
year 2021-22. (Previous year: NiL)

b. Exchange traded interest rate derivative

The Company has not entered into exchange traded interest rate derivative during the year 2021-
22. (Previous year: NIL)
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C.

g.

h.

Disclosure on risk exposure
The Company has formulated and adopted a Risk Management Framework to identify and take
appronriate measures to mitigate the risks impacting the business of the Company.

The Risk Management Framework lays down the procedures for identification of risks, assessment
of its impact on the business of the Company and the efficacy of the measures taken to mitigate the
same. The risks are evaluated at an inherent and residual level, based on the impact of such risks
and the likelihood of its occurrence. '

The Risk Management Committee (RMC) is responsible for ensuring that the appropriate
methodology, processes and systems are in plate for monitoring, identifying and reviewing the
risks associated with the business of the Company.

RMC reviews comnliance with risk nolicies monitors risk limits, reviews an

o Ll s o

related to specific issues and provides oversight of risk across ihe Compe
1s plared before the Board for its review and conslderation.

d analvzes risk exposure
ny. The minutes of RMC

The Company also has an investment policy that includes all the derivatives transactions. This
policy covers the nature of derivative products, defines a pre-approved risk framework within which
the Company can enter into various derivative transactions, and defines risks that can be taken to
use derivatives for hedging purposes and to outline accounting and operational processes
governing the above.

Securitisation
The Company has not entered into any securitisation transactions during the year 2021-22.
(Previous years: NIL).

Details of non-performing financial assets purchased/sold
The Company has not purchased or sold any non-performing financial assets during the year 2021-
22. (Previous years: NIL).

Exposures

a. Exposure to real estate sector
(Disclosure also in pursuant to RBI circular no. RBI/2008-09/116 DNBS (PD).CC No.125/

03.05.002/2008-2009 dated August 1, 2008)

The Company does not have direct exposure to residential or commercial real estate nor made
any investment in mortgage backed securities (‘MBS”) and other securitized exposures for the
year 2021-22. (Previous years: NiL).

b. Exposure to capital markets
The Company does not have any exposure to capital markets for the year 2021-22. (Previous

year: NIL)

Detaiis of Singie Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the NBIFC
During the financial year 2021-22, the Company has not exceeded the Single Borrower Limits or the
Group Borrower Limits laid down by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI). (Previous years: NIL)

Unsecured Advances
The Company has not made any unsecured advances during the current year (Previous years: NIL)

Registration obtained from other financial sector requlators
The Company has not obtained registration from any other financial regulator in FY 2021-22.

(Previous years: NIL)



NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

j- Disclosures of Penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators
There has been no penalty imposed by RBI or other regulators on the Company during the year

2021-22 (Previous years: NIL)

k. Rating assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year.

i. Ratings assigned; Rating Agency — India Ratings and Research Private Limited.

ii. Long-term principal protected equity linked debentures — IND PP-MLDAAAemr/Stable
iii. Short-term commercial paper programme - IND A1+
(February 28, 2022 to February 27, 2023)
iv. There has not been any migration of ratings during the year.

Provisions and contingencies

In ¥ million
Break up of ‘Provisions and
Contingencies’ shown under the March 31. 2022 March 31. 2021
head Expenditure in Profit and Loss ! ’
Account

Provision for depreciation on Investments 23.9 (19.9)
Provisions towards NPA - -
Provision made towards income taxes
(Including deferred taxes and tax reversal 79.1 219.2
for prior years)
Other provisions and contingencies
Provision for gratuity (0.9) 0.6
Provision for compensated absences (2.8) 1.8
Provision on goods and service tax asset 3.2 0.7
Provision on doubtful debts for accrued (11.3) 113
interest

m. Drawdown from reserves
The Company has not drawn out any amount from reserves in FY 2021-22. (Previous year: NIL)

Concentration of Deposits, Advances, Exposure and NPAs.

a. Concentration of deposits (for deposit taking NBFC)

depositors to total deposits of the NBFC

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Total erosns of t\'Nfanty largest NIL NIL
depositors (In  million)
Percentage of deposit to twenty largest NA NA

b. Concentration of advances

Particulars

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Total advances to twenty largest

the NBFC

borrowers (In ¥ million) NIL NIL
Percentage of advances to twenty
largest borrowers to total advances of NA NA
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c. Concentration of exposures

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Total exposure to twenty largest
borrowers (In ¥ million)

7,594.3 7,302.1

Percentage of exposure to twenty largest 100.0% 100.0%
borrowers to total exposure of the NBFC

d. The Company does not have any non-performing assets as at March 31, 2022.
{Previous year: NIL)

0. Customer Complaints

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

No. ‘of gom plaints pending at the NIL NIL
 beginning of the year

No. of complaints received during the NIL NIL

year

No. of compiaints redressed during the NIL NIL

year

No. of complaints pending at the year NIL NIL

38. Contingent liabilities

The company is in litigation with tax office in respect of certain additions made to the returned income.

The company has appealed against all of the below orders and the same are pending before the
Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals)

In ¥ million
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Income Tax FY 2011-12 (AY 2012-13) 9.5 9.5
Income Tax FY 2012-13 (AY 2013-14) 94.0 94.0
Income Tax. FY 2013-14 (AY 2014-15) 19.3 ' 19.3
lncome Tax FY 2014-15 (AY 2015-16) 8.6 8.6
Total 131.4 1314
39. A. As fequired by Paragraph 19 of Master Direction - Non-Banking Finaiicial Company - Systemically

an H)’
Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016
dated September 01, 2016 (as updated on June 14, 2022) is appended herewith as an Annexure I.

" B. As required by Appendix | of RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 —
Liquidity Risk Management Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment
Companies dated November 04, 2019 is appended herewith as an Annexure Il.

40. The Company has a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents required by
transfer pricing legisfation under section 92-92F of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Based on the information
and available documents, the Company is of the view that all international transactions are at arm'’s
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length and hence the above legislation will not have any material impact on the financial statements,
particularly on the amount of tax expense and that of provision for taxes.

41. Maturity analysis

The table below classifies all the assets and liabilities according to their expected maturity, i.e. recovery
or settlement in the next 12 months.

In  million
Particulars March 31, 2022
Assets Within 12 months | After 12 months Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 11.5 - ' 11.5
Receivables
- Trade receivables - - -
Investments* 6,658.7 250.0 6,908.7
Loans* - 491.1 4911
Other financial assets 221.7 - 221.7
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (net) - 75.2 75.2
Deferred tax assets (net) - 84.7 84.7
Property, plant and equipment - 0.3 0.3
Right of use asset - 48.7 48.7
Intangible assets under development - - -
Other intangible assets ' - 0.2 0.2
Other non-financial assets 1.3 - 1.3
Total 6,893.2 950.2 7,843.4
Liabilities and Equity ‘
Financial liabilities ‘
Lease liability 6.7 49.3 56.0
Other financial liabilities 39.2 - 39.2
Non-financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net) - - -
Provisions 1.1 7.8 8.9
Other non-financial liabilities 34 - 3.4
Total 50.4 57.1 107.5
Net Shareholders Funds 6,842.8 893.1 7,735.9

*Level 3 securities has been bucketed as per their residual maturities.
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In  million
Particulars March 31, 2021
Assets Within 12 months | After 12 months Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 8.3 - 8.3
Receivables
- Trade receivables - - -
Investments* 6,860.5 125.0 6,985.5
Other financial assets 392.3 - 392.3
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (net) - 38.5 38.5
Deferred tax assets {net) 162.3 162.3
Property, plant and equipment - 0.5 0.5
[Right to use asset - 56.5 56.5
Intangible assets under development - - -
Other intangible aaacta 0.4 0.4
Other non-financial assets 0.7 - 0.7
Total 7,261.8 383.2 7,645.0
Liabilities and Equity
Financial iiabilities
Lease liability 6.2 56.1 62.3
Other financial liabilities 50.2 - 50.2
Mon-financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net) - - -
Provisions 1.9 11.7 13.6
Other non-financial liabilities 34 - 3.4
Total 61.7 67.8 129.5
Net Shareholders Funds 7,200.1 315.4 7,515.5

*Level 3 securities has been bucketed as per their residual maturities.

42. Change in accounting policy

There has not been any change in the accounting policy in FY 2021-22,

43, Impact of COVID 19

The Covid-19 pandemic had impacted most economies globally, including India. The nation-wide
lockdown during April-May 2020 and subsequent localized / regional restrictions had substantially
impacted economic activity in the Country.

Lifting of restrictions subsequently led to gradual improvement in economic activity and progress
towards normalcy. In FY 2021-22, India witnessed two more waves of Covid 19 pandemic and re-
imposition of iocaiized resirictions measures in certain parts of the country. During ihis period, the

Company’s operations have continued seamlessly without any significant impact.

Currently, with the number of Covid-19 cases significantly reduced, the Government has withdrawn
Covid-19 related restrictions. However, the impact assessment of COVID-19 is a continuing process
given the uncertainties associated with its nature and duration. The Company will continue to monitor

any material changes to future economic conditions.

44. The Company held investments in Dewan Housing Finance Limited (“DHFL") as at March 31, 2021.

The Company classified the same as high credit risk investments and had marked it down to ¥200.0
million (Face value ¥800 million), post the intimation of its insolvency proceedings. The resolution to
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the insolvency was completed during the current year and the Company received the following
settlement against the debentures held:

a. Funds received — ¥ 164.9 million

b. Bonds of Piramal Capital and Housing Finance Limited (6.75%) - ¥ 198.3 million

Consequently, the Company has recognized the difference between the carrying value as at March 31,
2021 and the settlement proceeds received as gain in the statement of profit and loss in the current
year. Further, the Company had provided ¥11.3 million towards interest accrued in the previous year.
On settlement, the provision has been adjusted against interest accrued and has been written off in the
statement of profit and loss of the current year.

45. Other regulatory information

i. Title deeds of Immovable Property not held in name of the Company
The Company does not hold any immovable property as on March 31, 2022.

ii. Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment
The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year ended March
31, 2022.

iii. Loans or Advances in the nature of loans

The Company has not granted any Loans or Advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors,
KMPs and the related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013,) either severally or jointly with
any other person.

iv. Details of Benami Property held
No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder.

v. Borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets
The Company does not have any borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets as on March 31, 2022.

vi. Wilful Defaulter
The Company is not declared as willful defaulter by any banks or financial institutions or other lenders
as on March 31, 2022.

vii. Relationship with Struck off Companies
The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the
Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

viii. Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies
The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the
statutory period. '

ix. Compliance with number of layers of companies

The Company has not made any kind of investment in any other Companies (with respect to number of
layers specified Under section 2 (87) of the Act read with the Companies (restriction on the number of
layers) Rules, 2017.

x. Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements
The Company has not approved any scheme of arrangement in accordance with sections 230 to 237 of
the Companies Act, 2013.
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xi. Undisclosed Income

The Company has not recorded any transactions in the books of accounts that has been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year ended March 31, 2022 in the tax assessments under the
income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the income Tax
Act, 1961).

xii. Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the year ended
March 31, 2022.

xiii. Utilization of borrowed funds and share premium

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or other kind of funds) to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the

Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any

manncr whatsocver by or on behalf of the Company (“Uitimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

The Company has not received any funds from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding
Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

46. The Company had a whole time Company Secretary who resigned during the year. The Company is in

the process of re-appointing a Whole time Company Secretary.

47. Company aims to positively contribute towards economic, environmental and social well-being of

communities through its Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR") agenda. CSR programme undertaken
are in the area of Disaster Relief (Covid-19), Healthcare, Education, Skill development and Livelihood.
The Company's CSR footprint has been consistently increasing over the years. As per the provisions of
the Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is required to spend 7.7 million during the
year on CSR activities.

Details of corporate sacial responsibility expenditure in ¥ million
SrNo Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
a _|Amount required to be spent during the year 7.7 5.0
b |Amount spent during the year
i. _|Construction/acquisition of any asset - 2.0
ii. |On purposes other than (i) above 7.7 3.1
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Disclosures in relation to corporate social responsibility expenditure in ¥ million
Sr No Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
a_|Contribution to Sri Satya Sai Books and Publications Trust 1.9 2.0
b |Contribution to Annamrita Foundation 5.5 -
¢ {Contribution to Janakalyan Sevashram - 2.1
d |Contribution to Give Foundation - 0.0*
e [Contribution to Bhagwan Mahavir Vikalang Sahayata Samiti - 0.5
f 10ther administrative cost 0.3 05
g _|Accural towards unspent obligations in relation to:
i |Ongoing project - -
ii. |Other than ongoing project - -
h  |Amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Act 7.7 5.0
i |Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year 7.7 5.1
| |Amount spent during the year on:
i. |Construction / acquisition of any asset - 2.0
ii. |On purposes other than (i) above 7.7 3.1
*Below the rounding off norms adopted by the Company
Details of excess CSR expenditure under Section 135(5) of the Act
In ¥ million
SrNo Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
a. |Balance excess spent as at April 01 - -
b. |Amount required to be spent during the year 7.7 5.0
c. |Amount spent during the year 7.7 5.1
d. |Balance excess spent as at March 31 0.0 0.1

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

SHARAD
AGARWA

Sharad Agarwal

Partner

Membership Number: 118522
Place: Mumbai

Date: June 22, 2022
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Director
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Director
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Annexure |

Schedules to the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022

(Paragraph 19 of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically !mportant Non-
Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 dated

September 01, 2016 (as updated on Junhe 14, 2022))

In ¥ million

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Particulars Amount

outstanding

Liabilities side:

Amount overdue

Amount
outstanding

Amount overdue

1. Loans and advances availed by the non-banking financial company inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid:

a) Debentures -

Secured -

Unsecured

b) Deferred Credits. -

<) Term Loans .

d) inter corporate loans and borrowing -

e) Commercial paper N

) Public deposits* N

f) Other loans -

In  million
2. Break up of (1) {f) above {Qutstanding public deposits inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid):
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Particulars Armuru‘t Amount i‘nmoun.t Amount overdue
outstanding overdue outstanding
a) In the form of Unsecured debentures - - - -
b) In the form of partly secured debentures i.e.
debentures where there is a shortfall in the - - - -
value of security
¢) Other public deposits - - - -
In ¥ million

Assets side :

3. Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

. - Amount Amount
th ded in (4) beiow]:
[othe_r than those inciuded in (4) below] outstanding outstanding
" {a) Secured 491.1

b) Unsecured

‘ In  miilion
4. Break-up of leased assets and stock on hire and other March 31, 2022 |March 31, 2021
assets counting towards AFC activities: Amount Amount
outstanding outstanding

i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors:

a) Financial lease

b) Operating lease

if) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:

a) Assets on hire

b) Repossessed Assets

jii) Other loans counting towards AFC activities:

a) Loans where assets have been repossessed

b) Loans other than (a) above
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In ¥ million

5. Break-up of Investments:

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Amount
outstanding

Amount
outstanding

Current Investments

1, Quoted

i) Shares:

a) Equity

b) Preference

i} Debentures and Bonds

5,933.8

6,673.6

i) Units of mutual funds

724.9

111.9

iv) Government Securities

v) Others

2. Unguoted

i) Shares:

a) Equity

b) Preference

ii) Debentures and Bonds

i) Units of mutual funds

iv) Government Securities

v) Others

Long Term Investments

1. Quoted

i) Shares:

a) Equity

b) Preference

ii) Debentures and Bonds

i) Units of mutual funds

iv) Government Securities

v) Others

2. Unguoted

i) Shares:

a) Equity

b) Preference

ii) Debentures and Bonds

iii) Units of mutual funds

iv) Government Securities

v) Others

In ¥ million

6. Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in {3) and (4) above:

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Amount net of provisions

Amount net of provisions

Category

Secured

Unsecured

Total

Secured

Unsecured Total

1. Related Parties

(a) Subsidiaries

(b) Companies in the same group

(c) Other related parties

2. Other than related parties

Total
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In ¥ million

quoted and unguoted):

7. Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities (both

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Amount net of provisions

Amount net of provisions

Category

Market Value Book Value

Market Value Book Value

1. Related Parties

(a) Subsidiaries

(b) Companies in the same group

(c) Other related parties

2. Other than related parties™ 6,908.7 6,908.7 6,985.5 6,985.5
Total 6,908.7 6,908.7 6,985.5 6,985.5
In ¥ million

8. Other information:

March 31, 2022 |March 31, 2021

Fo T S
Lalegory

Toftai Totai

1) Gross Non-Performing Assets

a) Related parties

b) Other than related parties

ii) Net Non-Performing Assets

a) Related parties

b) Other than related parties

ili) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt
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Annexure

Schedules to the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022

{Appendix | of RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 - Liquidity Risk
Management Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment Companies dated
November 04, 2019)

a.

Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposits and borrowings)

Sr. Number of significant Amount % of total % of total
No. counterparties {in  million) deposits liabilities.

Top 20 large deposits (amount in ¥ crore and % of total deposits)

NIL
Top 10 borrowings (amount in ¥ crore and % of total borrowings)
NIL
Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product
Sr. Name of the Amount % of total
No. instrument/product {in ¥ million) | liabilities.
Stock Ratios:
a. Commercial papers as a % of total public funds, total liabilities and total assets
NIL

b. Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of iess than one year) as a % of total public funds,
total liabilities and total assets.
NIL

c. Other short-term liabilities, if any as a % of total public funds, total liabilities and total assets

Sr No. |Particulars March 31, 2022 |March 31, 2021
1 Other short-term liabilities as % of total ) -
public funds
Other short-term liabilities as % of total o o
2 assets and total liabilities 0.64% 0.81%

Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management.

The Company has instituted and adopted the Liquidity risk framework under the Asset Liability
Management Committee (“ALCO”).

The Company'’s liquidity risk framework is at-least reviewed annually, or as the market, business and
regulatory environment demand.

It is overseen by the Board, Risk Management Committee (‘RMC") and ALCO.

Asset Liability Management Support Group, which consist of operating staff from Risk and Finance,
analyse/monitor liquidity profile, limits & report to RMC, ALCO and Credit Risk Officer.






Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

The Board of Directors

Nomura Capital (India) Private Limited
Cecjay House, Level 11, Plot F,

Shivsagar Bstate, Dr, Annie Besant Road,
Worli, Mumbai-400018, India

Auditors’ Report on special purpose financial statements
1. This report is issued in accordance with the terms of our agreement dated October 13, 2022.

2. We have audited the accompanying special purpose {inancial statements of Nomura Capital (India)
Private Limited (the “Company”) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at August 31, 2022, and the
Statement of profit and loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Chauges in
Fquity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the period April o1, 2022 to August 31, 2022, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, which we have signed under
reference to this report.

Management’s Responsibility for the special purpose Finaneial Statements

3.  Management is responsible for the preparation of these special purpose financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the tinancial position, financial performance, changes in equity and eash flows of the
Company in accordance with the Ind AS 34 ‘Interim Financial Reporting’, notified under Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, specified under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (the “Act”). This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the special purpose financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

4. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these special purpose financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing and other applicable
-authoritative pronouncements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the special purpose financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

5. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence ahbout the amounts and disclosures in
the special purpose financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the special purpose financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. An audit also includes cvaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by Management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the special purpose financial statements.

6.  We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

7. In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
accompanying special purpose financial statements give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India:

{a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at August g1, 2022;

(b} in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), of the profit for the
period April 01, 2022 to August 31, 2022; o T
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(¢) in the case of the statement of changes in Equity, of the changes in equity for the period April 01, 2022 to

August 31, 2022;

(d) in the case of the Statement of Cash Flows, of the cash flows for the period April o1, 2022 1o August 31,

10.

1L

12,

2022,

Eniphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 2.1 to the special purpose financial statements, which describes the basis of its
preparation. The special purpose financial statements are not the statutory financial statements of the
Company, and are not intended to, and do not, comply with the disclosure provisions applicable to
statutory financial statements preparcd under the Companies Act, 2013, as those are considered irrelevant
by the Management and the intended users of the special purpose financial statements for the purposes for
which those have been prepared. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Matter

The special purpose financial statements dealt with by this report, have been prepared for the express
purpose ot the company’s application to be made for listing ot its debt securities, in line with appheahle
regulatory guidelines.

The corresponding figures in the special purpose financial statements of the Company in the Statement of
the profit and loss (including other comprehensive Income), statement of changes in Equity and statement

of cash flows are unaudited.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.
Restriction on Use

Qur obligations in respect of this report are entircly separate from, and our responsibility and liability is in
no way changed by, any other role we may have {(or may have had) as auditors of the Company or
otherwise. Nothing in this report, nor anything sa

services that are the subject of this report, will extend any duty of carc we may have in our capacity as
auditors of any financial statements of the Company.

id or done in the course of or in connection with the

This report is addressed to the Board of Directors of the Company and has been prepared for and only for
the purposes set out in paragraph 9 above. This report should not be otherwise used or shown to or
otherwise distributed to any other party or used for any other purpose except with our prior consent in
writing.  Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP neither accepts nor assumes any duty,
responsibility or liability 1o any other party or for any other purpose.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountanis LLP
Firm Registration No. 012754N/N500016

Sharad Agarwal

Partner

Membership No. 118522

UDIN : 22118522AZNY0G8413
Place: Muinbai

Date: October 13, 2022
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NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Speciai Purpose Financial Statements
Balance sheet as at August 31, 2022

Assets
1. Financial assets
a. Cash and cash equivalents
h. Investments
¢. Loans
d. Other financial assets

2. Non-financial assets

Current tax assets (net)
Deferred tax assets (net)
Property, plant and equipment
Right of use asset

Other intangible assets

Other non-financial assets

~papom

Liabilities and Equity
Liabilities
1. Financial liahilities
a. Lease liabilities
b. Other financial liabilities

2. Non financial liabilities
a. Provisions
b. Other non-financial liabilities

Equity
a. Equity share capital
b. Other equity

Summary of significant accounting policies

As at As at
August 31, 2022 March 31, 2022
Note In € million In ¥ million
{Audited) {Audited)

4 135 11.5

5 6,921.8 6,908.7

6 488.0 491.1

7 189.3 2217

8 93.9 75.2

78.6 84.7

9 09 0.3

10 45.4 48.7

9 0.1 0.2

11 2.1 1.3

TOTAL 7,833.6 7,843.4

10 53.3 56.0

12 213 39.2

13 10.1 8.9

14 1.6 3.4

86.3 107.5

i5 1,300.6 1,300.0

16 6.447.3 65,4359

7.747.3 7,735.9

TOTAL 7,833.6 7,843.4
3

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

This is the balance sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Sharad Agarwal
Partner
Membership No.: 118522
Place: Mumbai

Date: October 13, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Nomura Capital (India) Private Limited

/LWJW
Arun Kumar Rajappan
Director

DIN: 07943252
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Prashant Pangam
Chief Financial Officer

Director
DIN; 00337576

Aritree Chaudhuri
Company Secretary
Membership No: A43847
Place: Mumbai

Date: October 13, 2022
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Special Purpose Financial Statements
Statement of profit-and loss for the period April 01, 2022 to August 31, 2022

Revenue from operations
i. Interest income
il. Other income

Expenses
i, Netloss on fair value changes
ii. Finance costs
it. Fees and commission expense
iv. Impairment on financial instruments
v. Employee benefits expenses
vi. Depreciation, amortization and impairment
vii. Others expenses

Profit before tax
Tax Expense:

i. Current Tax
ii. Deferred Tax

Profit after taxes
Other comprehensive income
i. Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Remeasurements gain/(loss) of the defined henefit plans

ii. Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Total comprehensive income for the period

Eamings per equity share (not annuatised)
Basic (2)
Diluted ()

Summary of significant accounting policies
*Below the rounding off norms adopted by the Company.

Period April 01, 2022 to

Period April 01, 2021 to

Note August 31, 2022 August 31, 2029
(n € million ln € mitlion
(Audited) {Unaudited)
17 2233 193.4
19 5.0 6.2
Total 228.3 199.8
18 71.0 7.6
20 1.8 2.0
21 0.3 0.4
22 54.4 -
23 47.5 341
24 3.5 34
25 338 30.3
Total 212.3 77.8
16.0 121.8
. 30.7
6.1 -
Total 6.1 0.7
9.9 91.1
(0.1) -
0.0* -
Total (0.1} -
9.8 91.4
0.08 0.70
0.08 0.70
3

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

This is the statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date,

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

=i

Sharad Agarwal
Partner

Membership No.: 118522
Place: Mumbai

Date: October 13, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Nomura Capital {India) Private Limited

Director
DIN: 07943252

Prashant Pangam
Chief Financial Officer

Vipul Chatwani
Director
DIN: 00337576

Batgfiont

Aritree Chaudhuri
Company Secretary
Membership No: A43847
Place: Mumbai

Date: October 13, 2022




NOMURA CAPITAL {INDLA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Special Purpase Financiaf Statements
Statsment of cash flows for the period April 01, 2022 to August 31, 2022

Period April 01, 202Z to
August 31, 2022

Period Aprii 01, 2021 io
August 31, 2021

in @ miltion in € miition
(Audited) {Unaudited)

Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit before taxalion 16.0 121.8
Adjustments for:
Amortisation on intangible asset 0.1 0.1
Depreciatian on property, ptant & equipments 0.2 0.1
Depraciation on right of use asset 32 32
Interest on lease Habilities 18 2.0
Unrealised {profit}1oss on corporate bonds 384 14.6
{mpaiment on financial instruments {measured at amorlised cost} 54.4 -
Recognisation of stock appreciation right payments to employees 1.8 14
Actuariai gain/{loss} on defingd benefi plans (0.4} -
Operating profit / {loss) before working capltal changes 1156 143.2
Changes in working capital :
Decrease / {Increase) in investments (102.8) {289.0)
{Increase) / Decreasa in loans 0.0* .
Decrease / (Increase) in other financial assets 324 188.9
(Increase) / Decrease in other non-financial assets {1.9)
(Decrease} / Increase in other financial liabilities {31.0}
{Decrease) / increase In provisions 0.1

{Dobransu} / idieasi in o don-Tnancio inlbiies

Cash generated from operations
Praysant of 1axes {158t of refunds)

Net cash infiow from (A}

i g

Cash flow from investing actlvities

Sale / {(Purchase) of property, plant and equipment {0.9) -
Net cash outflow from Investing activities {8 {0.9} -
Cash flow from financing activities

Pringipal elernant of lease payment (4.5} {4.5)
Net cash autflow from financing activities (C} {4.5] (4.5}
Netincrease / {decrease) in cash and cash equivalenis (A + 8 + ) 20 {40}
Cash and cash equivaients at the beginning of the period 1ib 8.3
Cash and cash aqulvalents at the and of the porfad 13.5 4.3
Non-cash investing activities

Acquisition of right of use asset .

Cash and cash equivalents comprises of:

Balances in Bank 13.5 4.3

*Below the rounding off norms adopted by the Company.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of ihe financial statements.
This is the stetement of cash flows referred to in our report of even date

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Nomura Capital {India) Private Limited ! ?

For Price Waterhousa Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number; 012754N/N500016

Sharad Agarwal
Partner

tdembership No.: 118522
Place: Mumbai

Date: October 13, 2022

“Arun Komar RaJappan
Director
DIN: 07843252
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Prashant Pangam
Chief Financial Officer

Vipui Chatwani

Diractor
DiN: 00337576

Aritree Chaudbur
Company Secratary
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NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Special Purpose Financial Statements

Statement of cash flows for the period April 01, 2022 to August 31, 2022

a. Equity share capital

As at As at
August 31, 2022 August 31, 2021
{Audited) (Unaudited)}
Np. of Shares tn Z million No. of Shares fn € million
Balance at the beginning of the period 430,000,000 1,300.0 130,000,000 1,300.0
Changes in equily share capital during the period - - - -
Balance at the end of the period 130,000,000 1,300.0 130,000,000 1,300.0
b. Other equity in ¥ million
Reserves and surplus Others
Contribution
" - from uftimate
Particulars Secuntmes Statutory reserve Retained earnings parent - Stock Total
premium e

appreciation

rights reserve
Balance at April D1, 2021 3,247.8 593.6 2,364.6 94 | §,215.5
Profit for the peried - - 91.1 - 91.1
Other comprehensive income - - - - -
Transfer (from)/to statutory reserve - - - ~
Stock appreciation rights expense - - - 1.5 1.5
Balance at August 31, 2021 {(Unaudited) 3,247.8 593.6 2,455.7 10.8 6,308.1
Balance at April 01, 2022 3,247.9 637.5 2,539.6 10.8 6,435.9
Profit for the period - - 9.9 - 9.9
Other comprehensive income - - 0.9 - 0.1)
Transfer {from)/to statutory reserve® - - - - -
Stock appreciation rights expense - - - 1.6 1.6
Balance at August 31, 2022 (Audited) 3,247.8 637.5 2,549.4 12.5 6,447.3

The accompanying notes forms an integral part of financial statements.
This is the statement of changes in equity referred ta in our report of even date
* Transfer to Statutory reserve under section 45{C of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 will be done at the erx of the year

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Nomura Capital {India) Private Limited

Sharad Agarwal
Partner

Membership No.: 118522
Place: Mumbai

Date: October 13, 2022

A

Arun Kumar Rajappan
Director
DiN: 07943252
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Prashant Pangam
Chief Financial Officer

Vipui Chatwani
Director
DIN: 00337576

Aritree Chaudhuri
Company Secretary
Membership No: A43847
Place: Mumbai

Date: October 13, 2022




NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Special Purpose Financial Statements
Notes to Financial Statements for the period April 1, 2022 to August 31, 2022

1. Corporate information

Nomura Capital (India) Private Limited (the “Company”) is a company domiciled in India with
its registered office situated at Ceejay House, Level 11, Plot F, Shivsagar Estate, Dr. Annie
Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400 018.

The Company was incorporated on August 04, 2009. The Company is a subsidiary of
Nomura Asia Investment (Fixed Income) Pte. Ltd., a Company incorporated in Singapore.

The Company received the Certificate of Registration on Aprit 28, 2010 from Department of
Non-banking Supervision (‘DNBS”) of the Reserve Bank of India (“‘RBI") to commence the
business of non-banking financial institution.

The Company is primarily engaged in lending and investing activities.
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2. Basis of preparation

2.1 Basis of preparation of accounting policy for the special purpose accounts :

The special purpose financial statements comply with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind
AS") notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act”) [Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other refevant provisions of the Act, fo the extent
considered relevant by it for the purpose for which these special purpose financial
statements. The special purpose financial statements are not the statutory financiai
statements of the Company, and are not intended to, and do not, comply with the
disclosure provisions applicable to statutory financial statements prepared under the Ind
AS notified under Section 133 of the Act’) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act. However, selected explanatory
notes are included to explain events and transactions that are significant to an
understanding of the changes in the Company'’s financial position and performance since
the last annual financial statements, wherever applicable. The Company is covered in the
definition of Non-Banking Financial Company (“NBFC”) as defined in Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016. Pursuant to Ind AS 1 and amendment
to Division Il of Schedule II! to the Companies Act, 2013 on October 11, 2018, the
Company presents its balance sheet in the order of liquidity. This is since the Company
does not supply goods or services within a clearly identifiable operating cycle, therefore
making such presentation more relevant. The special purpose financiai statements have
been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting policies are applied
consistently to all the periods presented in the special purpose financial statements.

The speciai purpose financial statements have been prepared for submission to SEBI as
required under SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS/CIR/P/2019/115 and SEBI/LAD-
NRO/GN/2021/39.




NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Special Purpose Financial Statements
Notes to Financial Statements for the period April 1, 2022 to August 31, 2022

2.2 Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the
following: ‘

e certain financial assets and liabilities - measured at fair value;

e defined benefit plans assets - measured at fair value and

e share-based payments - measured at fair value

2.3 Use of judaments, estimates and assumptions

3.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires that
management make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities and disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities as on the date of the financial statements and the income
and expense for the reporting period. The actual results could differ based on these
estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in
any future periods affected.

Certain of the Company’s accounting policies require critical accounting estimates that
involve subjective judgments and the use of assumptions, some of which may be for
matters that are inherently uncertain and susceptible to change. The policies that involve
critical accounting estimates include fair valuation of financial instruments, impairment of
non-financial assets and deferred tax. Management believes that the estimates used in
the preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable.

Critical estimates and judgments made under Ind AS are:
a. Business model assessment and fair value of financial instruments.
b. Estimation of expected credit losses.
c. Estimation of defined benefits obligation.
d. Estimation of current tax expense and current tax payable.
e. Estimation of deferred tax assets.

Significant Accounting Policies

3.1 Foreign currency translations
items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the
primary - economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional
currency”). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (“¥"), which is
Company's functional and presentation currency. Except as otherwise indicated,
financial statements presented in Indian rupee has been rounded to the nearest
million with one decimal.
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NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Special Purpose Financial Statements
Notes to Financial Statements for the period April 1, 2022 to August 31, 2022

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of
manetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end
exchange rates are generally recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

3.2 Income taxes
Tax expense comprises current income tax and deferred income tax. Current income
tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance
with the Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of current
year liming differences belween taxable income and accounting income for the
perind.

Deferred income tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax regulations
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred income tax
assets are recognised only to the extent that there are sufficient future taxabie income
will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date,
The Company writes-down the carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent
that it is no longer reasonably certain that sufficient future taxable income wiii be
available against which deferred tax asset can be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are off set when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets with liabilities and when deferred tax balances relate to
the same taxation authority. Current tax asset and liabilities are offset where the entity
has a legally enforceabile right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in Other Comprehensive income (“OCI") or
directly in equity. in this case, tax is also recognised in OCI or directly in equity,
respectively :

3.3 Goods and Service tax (“GST”) on acquisition of assets and services
Expenses and assets are recognised net of the GST paid, except:
- When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from
the taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable
- When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included.
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NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Special Purpose Financial Statements
Notes to Financial Statements for the period April 1, 2022 to August 31, 2022

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is
included as part of receivables or payable in the balance sheet.

3.4 Leases
Nomura Financial Advisory and Securities (India) Private Limited ("NFASI"), the
Company'’s group company, has entered into lease agreement for office space. Of
this, some area is occupied by the other group company i.e. Nomura Fixed Income
Securities Private Limited ("NFIS”) and the Company.

Leases where the Company is lessee:

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date
at which the leased asset is available for use by the company. Contracts may contain
both lease and non-lease components. The Company will allocate the consideration
in the contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-
alone prices. However, for leases of real estate, for which the company is a lessee, it
has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components and instead accounts
for these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value

basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments:

a. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable,

b. payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term refliects the
company exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also
included in the measurement of the liability. The lease payments are discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate (“IBR") is used. IBR is the rate that the iessee
would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value
to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security
and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Company, where possible, uses

recent third-party financing received by the lessee as a starting point, adjusted to

reflect changes in financing conditions since third party financing was received.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

a. the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,

b. any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received,

c. any initial direct costs, and

d. restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful
life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Company is reasonably certain




NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Special Purpose Financial Statements
Notes to Financial Statements for the period April 1, 2022 to August 31, 2022

to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with shori-term leases of equipment and all leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in statement of profit or
loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value
assets comprise IT equipment and small items of office furniture.

3.5 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand balances and short term deposits

with other banks and other short-term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less which are readily convertible to known amounts of
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3.6 Financial Instrumenis
a. Financial assets
i. Initial recognition and measurement
Purchase and sale of financial assets are recognised on trade date, the date
on which the Company commits to purchase or sell a financial asset.

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value,

ii. Subseguent measurement
Subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on the Company's
business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the

Pyt

asset.

There are three measurement categories into which the Company classifies its
financial asset - debt instruments:

+ Financial assets at amortised costs

Financial assets are classified under this category if the asset fulfills both the

below mentioned conditions:

a. The assets are held within a business model with the objective to hold the
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and

b. The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI") on the
principal amount outstanding.

Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition is recognised directly in Statement
of Profit and Loss. Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in
the Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest income from these financial assets
is included using the effective interest rate method ("EIR").
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NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Special Purpose Financial Statements
Notes to Financial Statements for the period April 1, 2022 to August 31, 2022

o Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

(“FVOCP”)

Financial asset is measured at FVOCI| when both of the following conditions

are met:

a. The instrument is held within a business model the objective of which is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets;

b. The contractual terms of the financial asset meet the SPPI test.

When the financial asset is de-recognised, the cumulative gain or ioss
previously recognised in OC! is reclassified from equity to Statement of Profit
and Loss. Interest income from these financial assets is included using the
effective interest rate method ("EIR").

Financial Assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are
measured at FVTPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in Statement of Profit
and Loss and presented net within Net gain/loss on fair value changes in the
period in which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included
using the effective interest rate method (“EIR").

Transaction costs of financial assets are expensed in Statement Profit and
Loss.

Impairment of financial assets

Overview of Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) principles

The Company records allowance for expected credit losses for all loans, other
debt financial assets, not measured at FVTPL, in this section all referred to as
“financial instruments”. Equity instruments are not subject to impairment under
Ind AS 1009,

The ECL allowance is based on 12 months’ expected credit loss; unless there
has been significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which case, the
allowance is based on the lifetime expected credit loss.

Lifetime expected credit losses represent expected credit losses that wouid
result from all possible default events over the expected life of the financial
asset whereas 12 month expected credit losses are those life expected credit
losses expected to occur within 12 months of balance sheet date.

Both lifetime ECLs and 12-month ECLs are calculated on an individual basis
depending on the nature of the underlying portfolio of financial instruments.
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NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Special Purpose Financial Statements
Notes to Financial Statements for the period April 1, 2022 to August 31, 2022

The Company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end
of each reporting period, of whether a financial instrument's credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition, by considering the change in
the risk of default cccurring over the remaining life of the financial instrumaent.

Based on the above, the Company categories its ioans into Stage 1, Stage 2
and Stage 3 as described below:

Stage 1 — Performing financial assets for which there has been no significant
deterioration in credit quality since initial recognition;

Stage 2 - Underperforming financial assets for which there has been a
significant deterioration in credit quality since initial recognition but which are
not credit-impaired; and

Stage 3 ~ Mon-performing tfinancial assets tor which there has been a
significant deterioration in credit quality since initial recognition and which have
become credit-impaired.

For exposures that have become credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised
and interest revenue is calculated by applying the EIR to the amortised cost
(net of provision) rather than the gress carrying amount.

If an event (for e.g. any natural calamity) warrants a provision higher than as
mandated under ECL methodology, the Company may classify the financial
asset in Stage 3 accordingly.

In case internal Nomura credit rating is not available for stage 1 assets, which
are performing, then lowest rating of performing assets shall be used for the
purposes of ECL calculation an a conservative basis.

« Credit-impaired financial asset
A financial asset is considered credit impaired when an obligor fails to make

payments in full and on time of any financial obligations, markedly
disadvantageous modification to a contractual term compared with the existing
obligation, bankruptcy filings, administration, receivership, liquidation or other
winding-up or cessation of business of an obligar or other similar situations.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial instruments
are credit-impaired.

¢ ECL methodology
The measurement of expected credit losses through the general ECL

impairment model is typically determined using loss rate models or discounted
cash flow models depending on the relevant staging of the financial instrument.
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NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Special Purpose Financial Statements
Notes to Financial Statements for the period April 1, 2022 to August 31, 2022

A loss rate model measures ECL for an individual or portfolio of similar financial
instruments through development of loss rates calculated through an estimate
of the probability of default (“PD") of the obligor and loss given default ("LGD")
which is applied to the expected credit exposure of the obligor at defauit
("CEAD").

» Forward looking estimate
While estimating the ECL, the Company reviews macro-economic

developments occurring in the economy and market it operates in. On a
periodic basis, the Company analyses the relationship between key economic
trends with the estimate of PD.

* Probability of default »
The probability of default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given

time horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed
period, if the facility has not been previously derecognised and is still in the
portfolio. The concept of PD is further explained in Note 27.

o Loss given default
Loss given default inputs are determined by class of financial instrument based

on historical experience of loss and recovery rates for similar financial
instruments and other relevant industry data. Where appropriate, LGD inputs
are adjusted to reflect the impact of collateral and other integral credit
enhancements.

s Exposure at default
The exposure at default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date.

¢ Write off of loan assets

Credit-impaired financial asset individually assessed for impairment are
typically written-off when further cash flows are deemed uncollectible and when
all commercially reasonably means of recovering outstanding principle and
interest balances have been exhausted. Such a determination is based on
factors such as the occurrence of significant changes in the obligor's financial
position such that the obligor can no longer pay the obligation, or that the
proceeds from collateral will not be sufficient to pay amounts due.

e The provision calculated using the ECL model is compared with the prudential
guidelines issued by RBI and higher of the two is provided in the books of
account.
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NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Special Purpose Financial Statements
Notes to Financial Statements for the period April 1, 2022 to August 31, 2022

iv. Derecognition of financial agsets

A financial asset is de recognised only when:
The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financiat

asset; or

Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset,
but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash fiows 10 one or more
recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognized. Where the entity has
not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial

noant tha finanninl acent ie nnt Ada rarnanicad
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Where the enlity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retained
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the
financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained control of the
financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financiai asset, the
asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in
the financiai asset.

The difference between the carrying vaiue of the original financiai asset and
the consideration is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

b. Financial liabilities

Initial recounition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. The
Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial
recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Trade payables amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided
to the company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. They are
recognised initially at their fair value.

b. Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classifications as follows:
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NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Special Purpose Financial Statements
Notes to Financial Statements for the period April 1, 2022 to August 31, 2022

¢ Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Liabilities classified under fair value through profit or loss includes financial
liabilities held-for-trading and financial liabilities designated at fair value
through Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held-for-trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of selling in the near term. This category includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured
at fair value. Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of the
financial liabilities are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

e Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities that are not carried at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and
losses are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are
derecognised, and through the amortisation process. Trade and other
payables measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.

c. Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is

discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability.

The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and
v the consideration is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.7 Fair value measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received, to sell an asset, or paid, to transfer a
liability, in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date.

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
an asset or transfer a liability would take place either:

a) In the principal market for an asset or liability or

b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability.




NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Special Purpose Financial Statements
Notes to Financial Statements for the period April 1, 2022 to August 31, 2022

The Company classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that
reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurement. The fair value
hierarchy has the foilowing levels:

Level 1: The financial instrument which is measured at a quoted price. Also includes
application money pending allotment on the reporting date.

Level 2. The financial instrument that is not quoted in an active market. Such
instrument is measured using various valuation techniques. The inputs for these
valuation techniques are:

a) Quoted price of similar instrument in an active market;

b) Quoted price of identical or simifar instrument in a market that is not active;

c) Inputs other than quoted price that are observable for an instrument (e.g. yield
curves, credit spreads, implied volatilities, etc.);

d) Market-corroborated inputs.

Level 3: The financial instrument for which one or more significant inputs are not

L vl
vased on observable market data.

3.8 Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance

sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settie on a net basis, or reaiised the asset and setile the liability
simultaneously. The iegally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptey of the Company or the counterparty.

3.9 Derivative financial instruments

A derivative is a financial instrument or other contract with alt three of the following

characteristics:

a. lts value changes in response to the change in a specified interest rate, financial
instrument price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates,
credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided that, in the case of a non-
financial variable, it is not specific to a party to the contract (i.e., the 'underlying').

b. It requires no initial net investment or an initial net investment that is smaller than
would be required for other types of contracts expected to have a similar response
to changes in market factors.

c. ltis settled at a future date.

3.10 Property, plant and equipment
a. Tangible assets
i. Recognition and measurement
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price,
including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, any directly
attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use

*
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and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site
on which it is located, after deducting trade discounts and rebates.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

ii. Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

iii. Depreciation
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calcuiated on a straight line
basis using the rates arrived at, based on the useful lives estimated by the
management and which is in line with the rates indicated under Schedule It of the
Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation is provided from the month of acquisition of
property, plant and equipment.

The management has used the following estimates of useful life to provide
depreciation on its property, plant and equipment:

Asset type Useful life estimated by
management
Office Equipment* 5 years
Computer and Allied Equipment* 3 years

*The useful life of the assets are based on historical experience and evaluation of
the Company, which is different from the useful life as prescribed in Schedule 1l to
the Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment, individuaily costing less than
¥25,000 is fully provided in the year of acquisition, as per management estimate.

b. Intangible assets
i. Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.
Such intangible assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

ii. Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic
benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates.

iii. Amortisation
Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over the estimated useful
economic life. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

N Il
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Asset Useful life
(years)
Software 3 years

The amortisation period and the amortisation method are reviewed at each
financial yearend. If the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different
from previous estimates, the amortisation period is changed accordingly.

3.1 Revenue Recognition

(i)

(i)

(iie)

Trading gains and losses (as per Ind AS 109):

Trading income includes all gains and losses from changes in fair value for
financial assets and financial liabilities held for trading. Gains and losses on
sale of securities are recognized on trade date basis.

interest income on investmants {as per Ind AS 109):

interest incomes of investments classified as FVIPL and amortised are
recognised on EIR basis. It is recognized on accrual basis and based on time
apportioned, taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate
applicable.

Interest income on loans and advances (as per ind AS 109):

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is
recorded using the EIR, which is the rate that discounts the estimated future
receipts through the expected life of the financial instruments or a shorter
period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financia! asset or
liability.

EIR in case of a financial asset is computed:

a. As the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset.

b. By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument in
estimating the cash flows.

Including all fees received between parties to the contract that are an integral
part of the EIR method, transaction costs, and all other premiums or
discounts.

Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows are
recognised in interest income with the corresponding adjustment to the

carrving amaotiint nf the accoate
carrying amount o7 the assels.

Interest income on credit impaired assets is recognised by applying the EIR
method to the net amortised cost (net of provision) of the financial asset.

i S
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3.12 Employee benefits

I.

iv.

Short term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the
service are classified short-term employee benefits and they are recognised in
the year in which the employee renders the related services. For the amount
expected to be paid, the Company recognises an undiscounted liability if they
have a present legal or constructive obligation to pay the amount as a result of
past service provided by employees, and the obligation can be estimated
reliably.

. Defined benefit plan

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis
of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of
each financial year. Remeasurements gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the period
in which they occur, directly in the other comprehensive income. They are
included in the retained earnings under Other Equity on the balance sheet.

.Defined contribution plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the
Company pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal
or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The Company makes
specified monthly contributions towards Government administered Provident
Fund Scheme. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are
recognised as an employee benefit expense in Statement of Profit and Loss in
the periods during which the related services are rendered by employees.

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme
and the contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss of the year
when the contributions are due. The Company has no other obligations other
than the contribution payable to the respective provident funds.

Other employee benefits plan

The eligible employees of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain
number of their annual leave entittement to subsequent years, subject to a
ceiling. The Company recognizes the charge to the statement of profit and loss
and corresponding liability on account of such non-vesting accumulated leave
entitlement based on valuation by an independent actuary. Accumulated leave,
which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-
term employee benefit and leave expected to be carried forward beyond 12
months, as long term employee benefit.

iy o
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v. Share based payments
Cash benefit plans

The fair value of the amount payable to employees in respect of share
appreciation rights, which are settled in cash, is recognised as an expense with
a corresponding increase in liabilities, over the period the employees
unconditionally become entitled to payment. The liability is measured at the end
of each reporting date up to and including settlement date, with changes in the
fair value recognised as salaries, wages and bonus in Statement of Profit and
Loss.

3.13 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a resuit of past events, it is probable that an outfiow of resources will
be required to setiie the obligation and the amount can be reliably esiimated.
Provigions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of
the expenditure required to settie the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from
past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Company. A present obligation that arises from past events where it is either
not probable that an outflow of resources will be reguired to settle or reliable
estimate of the amount cannot be made, is termed and disclosed as contingent
liability.

3.14 Segment Reporting
i. Basis for segmentation

An operating segment is a component of the company that engages in business
activities from which it may earn and incur expenses, including revenues and
expenses that relate to transactions with any of the company's other components
and for which discrete financial information is available. Such decision is taken by
Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM).

ii. Business segment
The Company's operations fall under single business segment. Further, all the
transactions and the assets of the Company are recorded and located in India.
Since the Company's current business activity primarily falls within a single
business and geographical segment, no additional disclosure is to be provided




NOMURA CAPITAL (IND1A) PRIVATE LIMITED
Special Purpose Financial Statements
Notes to Financial Statements for the period April 1, 2022 to August 31, 2022

under Ind AS 108 — Segment Reporting, other than those already provided in the
financial statements.

iii. Geographical sagment
The Company's business is primarily within India. Hence no separate geographical
disclosure is considered necessary.

3.15 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the
year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity

- shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events such as bonus issue,
bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation
of shares), if any, that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding,
without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for
the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive
potential equity shares.

3.16 Contributed equity

Equity shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of equity shares are
recognised as a deduction from equity.

3.17 Rounding off
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded

off to the nearest million as per the requirement of Schedule Ili, unless otherwise
stated.
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As at
August 31, 2022
1n € million

As at
March 31, 2022
In ¥ million
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{Audited) {Audlted)
4, Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks 13.5 11.5
13.5 1.5
5. Investments
in ¥ milllon
At fair value
Amortised Cost Through profit and
loss
As at August 31, 2022
Debt securities - Corporate bonds 1,903.6 46419
Mutual Funds 4276
A 1,803.6 5.069.5
i. Investments in India 1,903.6 5,069.5
ii. Investments outside India - -
8 180386 5,069.5
Less ' impairment loss allowance (81.3)
IS (51.3)
AL 1.8523 "BDRA
TOTAL §,921.8
As at March 31, 2022
Debt securities - Corporate bonds N 6,183.8
Mutual Funds 7248
A = 8.908.7
i. Investments in India - 6,908.7
il. Investments ouiside india ~ -
B - 6,908.7
Less : Impairment loss allowance ¢ - .
A-C - £,908.7
TOTAL 6,908.7
As at As at
August 31, 2022 March 31, 2022
in € million In € million
{Audited) {Audited)
6. Loans (At amortized cost)
Term Loans 515.0 515.0
Less : Impairment loss allowance (27.0) (23.9)
Receivable considered good - unsecured - -
488.0 4911
. i, Secured by tangible assets* 515.0 515.0
ii. Secured by intangible assets . -
iii. Covered by banks/government gurantees ~ -
iv. Unsecured - -
615.0 515.0
i. Loans in India
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 515.0 515.0
Less: Impairment loss allowance (27.0) (23.9)
A 488.0 491.4
ii. Loans outside India -
Less : Impairment loss allowance -
B . .
A+B 488.0 4911
7. Other financial assets
Measured at amortised cost
i. Interest accrued on investments 188.2 194.5
li. Receivahle from group companies 1.1 27.2
189.3 221.7
8. Current fax assets (net)
Advance tax (net of provision for income tax August 31, 2022 ¥ 1,538.8 million,
March 31, 2022 ¥ 1,538.8million) g93.9
e 93.9
AN s
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9. Property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets

in ¥ miliion
Gross block Depreciation/Amortisation Net carrying amount
Particutars As at e . As at Opening Balance . . Closing Balance as | as at August 31, 2022
April 01, 2022 Additions Disposals August 31,2022 | as atApril 1, 2022 | | OF the period Disposais at August 31, 2022 (Audited)
a. Property, plant and equipment
Computer and allied equipments 0.6 0.9 1.5 0.3 0.3 0.6 0.2
Total 0.6 0.9 1.5 8.3 0.3 0.6 0.8
a, Other intangible assets
Computer software 1.0 - 1.0 0.8 0.1 0.8 0.1
Total 1.0 - 1.0 0.8 0.1 0.8 0.1
in# million
Gross block Depreciation/Amortisation Net carrylng amount
Particulars As at e " As at QOpening Bafance . Closing Balance as | as at March 34, 2022
Dy i
April 1, 2021 Additions Disposals March 31,2022 | as at April 1, 2021 For the year isposals at March 31, 2022 {Audited)
a. Property, plant and equipment
Computer and allied equipments 0.6 - a.6 0.1 0.2 0.3 a3
Total [ - 06 0.1 a.2 03 03
a. Other intangible assets
Computer software 1.0 - 1.0 0.6 0.2 0.8 0.2
Total 1.0 - 1.¢ 0.6 0.2 0.8 g.2
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As at As at
August 31, 2022 March 31, 2022
In ¥ million In ¥ million
(Audited) (Audited)
10. Leases
Right of use assets: Building 48.7 56.5
Add: Addition during the period - -
Less: Depreciation for the period (3.3) (7.8)
45.4 48.7
Lease liabilities 56.0 62.3
Add: Interest for the period 1.8 45
Less: Rent paid during the period (4.5) {10.8)
53.3 56.0
11. Other non-financial assets
Prenaid expenses 2.1 1.3
Goods and service tax receivabie i4.5 125
Less ; Provision on Goods and service tax receivabie {14.5) {12.5)
2.1 1.3
12. Qther financial liabilities
Employee benefits payable 14.8 334
Other payables 6.5 58
21.3 38.2
13. Provisions
Provision for gratuity 42 37
Provision for compensated absenses 5.9 5.2
10.1 8.9
14. Other non-financial liabilities
Statutory dues payable 1.6 3.4
1.6 3.4
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14. Share capital
Autharised :
130,000,000 (as at August 31, 2022 130,000,000) equity shares of  10/- each

Issued, subscribed and paid up :
130,000,000 (as at August 31, 2022 130,000,000) equity shares of € 10/- each

As at As at
August 31, 2022 Marvch 31, 2022
fn € miflion In € millien
{Audited) {Audited)
1,300.0 1,300.0
1,300.0 1,300.0

A. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the period :
August 31, 2022*

March 31, 2022

No. In € millian Na. in € millien
Balance as at the beginning of the period 130,000,000.0 1,300.0 130,000,000.0 1,300.0
Add : Issued during the perod - - - .
Balance as at the end of the period 130,000,800.0 1,300.0 130,000,000.0 1,300.0

“ 1 equity share held by Nomura Asia Pacific Holdings Co. Ltd. in trust for Nomura Asia Investments (Fixed Income) Pte. Ltd.

B. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares :

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10 per share, Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held.

G. Shares held by holding company :
August 31, 2022*

March 31, 2022*

No. % No, %
Nomura Asia investments {Fixed {income) Pte. Ltd., the
holding company 130,000,000.0 100.0 130,000,000.0 100.0
* 1 equity share held by Nomura Asia Pacific Holdings Co. Ltd. in trust for Nomura Asia Investments {Fixed Income) Ple. Ltd.
D. Shares held by promoter :
August 31, 2022~ March 31, 2022*
No. % No, %
Nomura Asia Investments {Fixed Income) Pte. Ltd,, the holding company
130,000,000.0 100.0 130,000.000.0 100.0
* 1 equity share held by Nomura Asia Pacific Holdings Co. Ltd. In trust for Nomura Asia Investments (Fixed income) Ple. Ltd.
Note: There are no changes to the promoter holding duning the period
E. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
August 31, 2022 March 31, 2022
. No. Ye No. %
Nomura Asia Investments (Fixed Income) Pte. Ltd., the
holding company 130,000,000.0 100.0 130,000,000.0 100.0
* 1 equity share held by Nomura Asia Pacific Holdings Co. Ltd. in lrust for Nemura Asia Investments (Fixed Incorne) Pte. Ltd.
As at As at
August 31, 2022 March 31, 2022
In & million n ¥ million
{Audited) (Audited)
16. Other equity
2 Securities promium
Opening balance 32478 3,247.9
Additions during the period - -
Closing balance A 3,247.9 3,247.9
b Sto reciation rights reserv
Opening batance 10.8 9.4
Additions during the period 1.6 1.5
Closing balance 8 12,5 10.9
¢. Statutory reserve
Opening balance 637.5 593.6
Additions during the peniod - 43.9
Closing bafance c 837.5 637.5
d, Rotained camings
Opening balance 2,539.6 2,364.6
Total comprehensive income for the period 9.8 218.9
Transfer to stalulory reserve* - (43.9)
Closing balance D 2,549.4 2,539.6
A+B+C+D 6,447.3 6,435.9

Nature and purpose of reserves
a, Securifies premium

Securities premium reserve is used to record premium received on issue of shares. The reserves can be utilised only for lirnited purposes, in accordance with the

provisions of the Companies Act. 2013.

1 clation rightg o

Slock appreciation rights reserve is stock appreciation rights alloted to certain categories of empioyees of the company by Nomura Holdings Inc. {ultimate parent).

¢ Stalutory reserve PRSI e
Statutory reserve is reserve maintained under section 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. *‘“35’;’ & (,,hﬁﬂﬁ o

o
* Transfer to Statutory reserve under section 45!C of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 will be done at the epg: &t}; 5
, )
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17. Interest income (in € miltion)
For the period April 01, 2022 to August 31, 2022
{Audited)
On financial assets On financial assets Total
measured at classified at fair value
amortised cost through profit or ioss
Interest on loans 25.7 - 257
interest income from invesiments 8.7 158.9 197.6
64.4 158.9 223.3
(in € million)

For the period Aprit 01, 2021 to August 31, 2021
(Unaudited)

On financial assets On financial assets Total
measured at classified at fair value
amortised cost through profit or loss
interest income from invesiments - 103.4 1934
= 193.4 193.4
Period Aprii 01, 2022 to  Period April 01, 2021 to
August 31, 2022 August 31, 2021
In € million tn ¥ million
{Audited) {Unauditsd}
18. Net loss on fair vaiue changes
Net loss on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
1. On trading portfolio
- investments {71.0) (7.8}
A {71.0) (7.6)
Others 5] - «
: A+B (71.0) (7.6)
Esir value changes
i. Realised (32.6) : 7.0
ii. Unrealised (38.4) (14.6)
(71.0) (7.6)
19. Other income
i. Recharge to group companies 5.0 5.9
iii. Others - 0.3
5.0 6.2
20, Finance cost [measured at amortised cost]
i. Interest on lease liabilities 1.8 2.0
1.8 2.0
21, Fees and commission expense
i. Brokerage 0.2 0.4
ii. Custodian, depository and clearing charges 0.1 0.0
0.3 0.4
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Period April 01, 2022 to  Period April 01, 2021 to

August 31, 2022 August 31, 2021
In € million in E million
{Audited) {Unaudited)

22. Impairment on financial instruments [measured at amortised cost]
i. Loans 3.1 “
ii. Investments 51.3 -

54.4 -
23. Employee benefits expense
i. Salaries and wages 42.5 30.9
ii. Contribution to provident and other funds 1.6 -
ili. Stock appreciation rights payment to employees 1.6 1.4
iv. Staff welfare expenses 1.3 0.4
v. Gratuity 0.5 1.4

47.5 34.4
24. Depreciation, amortization and impairment
i.Depreciation on property, plant & equipments 0.2 0.t
ii. Depreciation on right to use assets (Refer note 10) 3.2 32
iii. Amortisation of intangible assets 0.1 0.1

3.5 3.4

25. Other expenses
i. Rent, taxes and energy costs 0.5 0.8
ii. Repairs and maintenance 27 0.8
iii. Auditor's fees and expenses* 1.7 -
iv. Legal and professional charges 7.7 8.5
v. Corporate social responsibility 6.4 8.8
vi. Support cost recharge 10.0 8.0
vil. Market data expense 1.0 2.0
viil. Provision on GST Asset 1.6 0.0
ix, Communication costs - 0.0*
x. Other expenditure 22 1.4

33.8 30.3

*Below the rounding off norms adopted by the Company.
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26. Fair value of financial instruments

1. Fair valuation

Fair value is the price that would be received, to seli an asset, or paid, to transfer a liability, in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell an asset or transfer

a liability would take place either:
a) In the principal market for an asset or liability or

b) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The Company classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurement. The fair value hierarchy has the following

levels:

Level 1. The financial instrument which is measured at a quoted price. This category includes corporate

handa mntad hu E‘

OoONGS QUGISG O

RAnrl r +
CiIC |V|uuuy Market and Derivatives Asso

noorin

application money pending aliotment at the reporting date.
Level 2: The financial instrument that is not quoted in an active market. Such instrument is measured
using various valuation techniques. The inputs for these valuation techniques are : a) quoted price of
similar instrument in an active market, b) quoted price of identical or similar instrument in a market that

is not active, ¢} inputs
credit spreads, implied vclat:htées, etc.}, d) market-corroborated inputs. This
bonds not quoted by FIMMDA.

han quoted price that are observabie for an instrument (e.g.
s category includes corporate
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Level 3: The financial instrument for which one or more significant inputs are nct based on observable

market data.

2. Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management

A. Accounting classification andlfair values
The following tables show the classification of the financial assets and liabilities:

As at August 31, 2022 In Z million
Carrying amount
Parti
articulars FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost Total

Financiai assets

Cash and cash equivalents - - 13.5 13.5

Receivables

- Trade receivables - - - -

Investments 5,069.5 - 1,852.3 6,921.8

Loans - - 488.0 488.0

Other financial assets - - 189.3 189.3
5,069.5 - 2,543.1 7,612.6

Financial liabilities

Lease liability -

Other financial liabilities -
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As at March 31, 2022 In  million
Carrying amount
Particulars FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost Total

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents - - 11.5 11.5

Receivables

- Trade receivables - - - -

Investments 6.808.7 - - 6,908.7

Loans - - 491.1 491.1

Other financial assets - - 2217 221.7
6,908.7 - 724.3 7,633.0

Financial liabilities

Lease liability - - 56.0 56.0

Other financial liabilities - - 39.2 39.2

- - 95.2 95.2

The following tables show the fair value hierarchy of the financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value:

As at August 31, 2022

In T million

Fair values

Particulars

Level 1

Level2 |

Level

3

] Total

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables

- Trade receivables

Loans

Investments

1,816.4

3,003.1

250.0

5,069.6

Other financial assets

1,816.4

3,003.1

250.0

5,069.6

Financial liabilities

Lease liability

QOther financial liabilities

As at March 31, 2022

In  million

Fair values

Particulars

Level 1

Level2 |

Level 3

| Total

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables

- Trade receivables

Loans

Investments

5,323.4

250.0

6,908.7

Other financial assets

5,323.4

250.0

6,908.7

Financial liabilities

Lease liability

Other financial liabilities
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Notes to Financial Statements for the period April 01, 2022 to August 31, 2022

There has been no transfer of above financial asset/liability from level 1 to level 2 and from level 2 to level 1.

8. Measurement of fair vaiues
Corporate bonds
Quoted corporate bonds are fair valued using weighted average market price published by FIMMDA
which aggregate the price at which the corporate bonds have traded on the recognised exchanges
(with minimum ¥ 50 million turnover and 1 trade) over the last 15 calendar days. If the corporate
bonds have not traded on any recognised exchange over the last 15 calendar days, then the price is
derived using a financial calculator published by FIMMDA.
The following tables show the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 fair values, for financial
instrument measured at fair value in the statement of financial position:

Financial instruments measured at fair value:

As at August 31, 2022 in T miflion
Significant
Type Fair Value Valuation technique observable
inputs
Corperate bonds 3,003.1 |Discounted cash flow Ratmg.based
spread
As at March 31, 2022 In & million
Significant
Type Fair Value Valuation technique observable
inputs
. Rating based
Corporate bonds 1,335.3 |Discounted cash flow
spread

C. Movements in Level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value
The following table show a reconciliation of the opening and closing amounts of Level 3 financial
assets and liabilities which are recorded at fair value. Transfers into Level 3 reflect changes in
market conditions as a result of which instruments become less liquid. Therefore, the Company
requires significant unobservable inputs to calculate their fair value.

As at August 31, 2022 i % million
i As at Allotment/ Transfer As at Unrealised
Particulars gains and

April 1, 2022 | (Redemption) | into Level 3 |August 31, 2022 (losses)

Investments

Corporate bonds

Compulsory Convertible Debentures 250.0 - - 250.0 -
Total 250.0 - - 250.0 -
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As at March 31, 2022 In & million
- As at Allotment/ Transfer As at Um.'ealused
Particulars gains and

April 1, 2021 | (Redemption) |into Level 3| March 31, 2022 (losses)

investments

Corporate bonds 200.0 (200.0) - - -

Compulsory Convertible Debentures - 250.0 - 250.0 -
Total 200.0 50.0 = 250.0 -

D. Impact on fair value of level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value of changes to key
assumptions

As at August 31, 2022, investment in unguoted Compulsorily Convertible Debentures(CCD’s) and Non-
convertible Debentures (NCDs) held till maturity are classified as level 3 asset as there are no observable inputs
available to measure it. The conversion of CCD's to fully paid equity shares depend on the happening of certain
events, which is uncertain as on balance sheet date, the amount of investment made represents the best
estimate of the fair value.

E. Quantitative analysis of significant unobservable input
a. Recovery rates:

Recovery rates reflect the estimated loss that the Company will suffer given expected defaults.
The recovery rate is given as a percentage and reflects the opposite of loss severity (i.e. 100%
recovery reflects 0% loss severity). In line with general market convention, loss severity is
applied to asset-backed securities while recovery rate is more often used as pricing input for
corporate or government instruments. Higher loss severity levels / lower recovery rates indicate
lower expected cash flows upon the default of the instruments. Recovery rates for complex,
less liquid instruments are usually unobservable and are estimated based on historical data.

b. Discount margin/spreads:
Discount margin/spreads represent the discount rates used when calculating the present value
of future cash flows. In discounted cash flow models such spreads are added to the benchmark
rate when discounting the future expected cash flows. Hence, these spreads reduce the net
present value of an asset or increase the value of a liability. They generally reflect the premium
an investor expects to achieve over the benchmark interest rate to compensate for the higher
risk driven by the uncertainty of the cash flows caused by the credit quality of the asset. They
can be implied from market prices and are usually unobservable for illiquid or complex
instruments.
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F. Sensitivity of fair value measurements to changes in unobservable market data

For sensitivity perfaining to level ill asset as at August 31, 2022, kindiy refer Note 26 (D).

The effect of changing the significant unobservable inputs to reasonable possible aiternatives.
Sensitivity data are calculated using a number of techniques, including analysing price dispersion of
different price sources, adjusting model inputs to reasonable changes within the fair value
methodology. The ranges are not comparable or symmetrical as the mode! inputs are usually not in
the middie of the favorable/unfavorable range.

G. Fair value of financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value

As at August 31, 2022* in € million
PP . Fair values )
Particulars Carryingamount |  Level1 | Level2 | Level3
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 13.5 -
Receivables
- Trade receivables - -
Investments 1,852.3 1,852.3
Loans 488.0 -
Other financial assets 189.3 -
2,543.1 1,882 3
Financial liabilities
Lease liability 53.3 -
QOther financial liabilities 21.3 -
74.6 -
As at March 31, 2022 In  million
. Fair values
Particulars Carryingamount |  Level1 | Level2 | Level3

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents* 11.5 -

Receivables

- Trade receivables™ - -

Invesiments -

Loans* 481.1 -

Other financial assets* 221.7 ~
724.3 -

Financial liabilities

Lease liability* 56.0 ~

Other financial liabilities* 39.2 -

95.2 -

*Carrying value of the Company's financial assets and liabilities, which are not carried at fair value, are
assumed to be their approximate fair vaiue.
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27. Financial risk management

. Loans and Investments at amortised cost

Risk management framework
The Company is exposed to financial risks, including the effects of changes in interest rate risk, credit

risk and liquidity risk.

Managing these financial risks forms an integral part of the Company’s business. The Company's risk
management framework includes a variety of controls and reporting processes. These include the
parameters for the risks that the Company may undertake for various financial instruments, guidelines
for accepting customers and terms under which the business is being conducted, setting up appropriate
risk limits and controls and monitor risks and adherence to the set limits. Risk management processes
and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities.
The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a
disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and
obligations. The Company believes it has effective processes in place to identify measure, monitor and
mitigate these financial risks.

The Company's Board of Directors (“Board”) are responsible for oversight of risk management approach
and for approving the risk strategies and principles. The Board is assisted in its oversight role by the Risk
Management & Investment Committee, Credit Committee and various other corporate functions, which
includes Credit and Market risk management. The oversight role includes monitoring compliance with
the Company’s risk management framework and reviewing its adequacy.

Internal audit also undertakes both, regular and ad hoc, review of risk management controls and
procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit Commitiee.

. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from an obligor or counterparty's defauit, insolvency or administrative
proceeding which results in the obligor's failure to meet its contractual obligations in accordance with
agreed terms. Credit risk for the Company is managed by Credit Risk Management (“CRM”) function
within the Risk Management Division together with Credit Committee.

Processes for managing credit risk include:

1) Evaluation of likelihood that counterparty defaults on its payments and obligations;

2) Assignment of internal ratings to all active counterparties;

3) Approval of extensions of credit and establishment of credit limits;

4) Measurement, monitoring and management of the firm's current and potential future credit exposures;
5) Setting credit terms in legal documentation; and

6) Use of appropriate credit risk mitigants, including netting, coIIateral and hedging.

Credit quality analysis

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with bank are current account balances remaining unutlhsed as at the reporting date.

The Company believes these assets to be of high credit quality; hence no provision for expected credit
loss is made.

. Trade Receivable

As at August 31, 2022, the Company does not have any trade receivable. (Previous year: NIL)

Loans made by the Company consist of corporate loans.
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d.

L.

a.

As at August 31, 2022, the Company has % 515.0 million outstanding as loans (Previous year: ¥ 515.0
million) and ¥ 1,903.6 as investments (Previous year: Nil)

In T million
Particulars As at August 31, | As at March 31,
2022 2022
12 month ECL 12 month ECL
(Stage 1) (Stage 1)
Loans/ Investments at amortized cost
Rated A and above -
Rated BBB - -
Rated BB - -
Rated B 2,418.6 515.0
Rated CCC and helow - -
Unrated
Less: Impairment ailowance {78.3) {(23.9)
Total 2,340.3 491.1

Other financial assets
Other financial assets include interest accrued on investments and loans and amount receivable from
the Company's group companies.

ves interest accrued on invesimenis rated above category B and receivabie from

,,p companies to be of high quality with low credit risk; hence no provision for
is made.

Amounts arising from ECL

Inputs, assumptions and technigues used for estimating impairment

Inputs and assumptions considered in ECL Model
The measurement of ECL through the general impairment model is typically determined within the

Company using loss rate models or discounted cash flow models depending on the relevant staging
of the financial instrument.

A loss rate model measures ECL for an individual or portfolio of similar financia! instruments through
obhgor and Ioss glven d-efaal?(v"[éD”) Wthh is applled to the expected credit exposure of the obligor
at default (‘CEAD”).

In order to determine whether 12 month or lifetime ECL is used, each financial asset is assessed for
impairment, classified at each reporting date into one of following three stages of credit quality
deterioration since the financial asset was initially recognised.

Stage 1: Performing financial assets for which there has been no significant deterioration in credit
quality since initial recognition.

Stage 2: Underperforming financial assets for which there has been a significant deterioration in
credit quality since initial recognition but which are not credit-impaired; and

Stage 3: Non-performing financial assets for which there has been a significant deterioration in credit
quallty since initial recogmtlon and which have become cred:t-lmpalred
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Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial asset.

PD inputs are determined by class of financial asset and by internal Nomura credit rating applied to
each financial asset. PD inputs used by the Company are sourced from industry data and validated
based on historical experience.

In case internal Nomura credit rating is not available for stage 1 assets, which are performing, then
lowest rating of performing assets shall be used for the purposes of ECL calcutation on a conservative
basis.

For Stage 1 assets, a 12 month PD is considered, for Stage 2 assets a lifetime PD is considered and
Stage 3 assets 100% PD is applied.

LGD inputs are determined by class of financial asset, based on historical experience of loss and
recovery rates for similar financial asset and other relevant industry data. Where appropriate, LGD
inputs are adjusted to reflect the impact of collateral and other integral credit enhancements.

Estimates and forward looking technigues

The Company has applied the following estimation technigue for ECL model:

a. Through-the-cycle (“TTC") PD preparation: TTC cumulative PDs up to 5 year are prepared by
referring to S&P’s historic rating migration data.

b. Scenario Point-in-time (“PIT") PD construction: PIT PDs on each scenario are constructed from
TTC PDs. In the conversion from TTC PD to PIT PD, scenario credit spread provided is used to
incarporate forward looking information and credit cycle. Four scenario (upside, base, moderate
downside, and severe down side) are applied.

c. Probability weighted PIT PD computation: Scenario PIT PDs are summed up weighted by a
probability of each scenario happening (probability weighted PIT PDs).

d. LGD inputs are determined by class of financial asset, based on historical experience of loss and
recovery rates for similar financial asset and other relevant industry data.

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

A financial asset that is not credit-impaired on initial recognition is initially classified into stage 1 and
is subsequently continuously monitored to determine whether a significant increase in credit risk has
occurred, at which point the financial asset is reclassified to stage 2.

A determination of whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred at each reporting date
will be through a comparison of Nomura internal credit rating applied to the financial instrument at
initial recognition and at the reporting date.
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A financial asset will be reclassified as per the below table:
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If there is a further deterioration in credit risk such that the financial asset becomes credit-impaired, the
financial asset is then reclassified into stage 3.

Credit impaired financiai asset

A financial asset is considered credit impaired when an obligor fails to make payments in full and on time
of any financial obligations, markedly disadvantageous modification to a contractual term compared with
the existing obligation, bankruptcy filings, administration, receivership, liquidation or other winding-up or
cessation of business of an obligor or other similar situations.

Policy for write off of loan_assets

Credit-impaired financial asset individually assessed for impairment are typically written-off when further
cash flows are deemed uncollectible and when all commercially reasonably means of recovering
outstanding principle and interest balances have been exhausted. Such a determination is based on
factors such as the occurrence of significant changes in the obligor's financial position such that the
obligor can no longer pay the obligation, or that the proceeds from collateral will not be sufficient to pay
amounts due.
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b. Loss allowances

In T million

2021-22

Apr to Aug
Particulars 2022
Loss allowance

Loans [measured at amortised cosf]

Balance as at April 01 23.9 -
Net measurement of loss allowance 3.1 23.9
Balance at the end of the period/year 27.0 23.9

Investments [measured at amortised cost]
Balance at April 01 -
Net measurement of loss allowance 51.3 -
Balance at the end of the period/year 51.3 -
a. Loan of ¥515.0 million is outstanding as on reporting date August 31, 2022,
(Previous year: ¥515.0 million)
b. Investments at amortised cost of ¥1,903.6 as on August 31, 2022.
(Previous year: Nil)

iii. Market risk
Market risk is the risk of loss arising from fluctuations in the value of financial assets and liabilities
(including off-balance sheet items) due to fluctuations in market risk factors {interest rates, prices of
securities and athers). Market risk primarily impacts the Company's investing activities.

Effective management of market risk requires the ability to analyse a complex and constantly changing
globa! market environment, identify problematic trends and ensure that appropriate action is taken in a
timely manner.

The Company uses a variety of complementary tools to measure, mode!l and aggregate market risk. The
Company’s principal statistical measurement tool to assess and monitor market risk on an ongoing basis
is Value at Risk (“VaR”). Limits on VaR are set in line with Company’s risk appetite as expressed through
regulatory capital. Market risk is monitored against a set of approved limits, with daily reports and other
management information provided to the business units and senior management.
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Total market risk exposure

In ¥ million

Particulars

As at August 31, 2022

Carrying amount | Traded risk

| Non traded risk | Primary risk

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 13.5 - 13.5

Receivables

- Trade receivables - - -

Investments 6,921.8 4,819.5 2,102.3 |Interest rate risk

Loans 488.0 - 488.0

Other financial assets 189.3 - 189.3
7.612.6 4,819.5 2,793.1

Financial liabilities

Lease liability 53.3 - 53.3

Other financial liabilities 21.3 - 21.3

74.6 - 74.6

In 2 million

Darticulare

As at March 31, 2022

Financiai assets

Traded risk | Non traded risk | Primary risk

Cash and cash equivalents 11.5 - 11.56

Receivables -

- Trade receivables - - -

Investments 6,908.7 6,658.7 250.0 |Interest rate risk

Loans 491.1 491.1

Other financial assets 221.7 - 221.7
7,633.0 6,658.7 974.3

Financial liabilities ‘

|ease liability 56.0 - 56.0

Other financial liabilities 39.2 - 39.2

95.2 - g5.2

Value at Risk (VaR}

VaR is a measure of the potential loss in the value of the Company's investment positions due to
adverse movements in markets over a defined time horizon with a specified confidence level. Market
risks that are incorporated in the VaR model include bond prices, interest rates, credit and foreign
exchange rates with associated volatilities and correlations.

VaR metrics

The 1 day VaR at 95% confidence level as of each of the dates indicate are as follows:
VaR as at August 31, 2022 - ¥ 5.8 million
VaR as at March 31, 2022 - ¥ 6.1 million
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Assumptions
The Company uses a single VaR model in order to determine the total VaR for the Company. The

Company’s VaR methodology uses historical simulation to estimate potential profit or loss. Historical
market moves are repeatedly applied to current exposure, forming a distribution of simulated portfolio
returns. From this distribution the required potential losses can be estimated at required confidence
levels or probabilities. VaR is calculated at a 95% confidence level and using a 1-day time horizon.

The VaR model uses a historical time window of two years (520 business days). For risk management,
the Company uses an exponential weighted moving average VaR. For the calculation of VaR, the
probability weight assigned to each measure of estimated profit or loss in the historical simulation
scenarios depends on when it occurred. The older the observation, the lower the weight.

The Company’s VaR model uses time series for each individual underlying, whenever available.
Whenever a time series cannot be found for a specific underlying, the VaR model will follow ‘proxy logic’
to map the exposure to an appropriate time series. The level of proxying taking place in the VaR model
is carefully monitored through internal risk management processes and there is a continual effort to
source new time series to use in the VaR calculation.

Objectives and Limitations of the VaR methodoloay

The main advantage of VVaR as a risk measure is that it is able to aggregate risk from different asset
classes (in contrast with other risk measures sensitivities that cannot be easily aggregated directly).
The risk from different products of the Company can therefore easily be compared and aggregated

using VaR.

As a risk measure, however, VaR has certain limitations. One of the main disadvantages with VaR is
that it is a backward-looking risk measure. Using historical market moves to estimate future losses
assumes that only events that have actualily happened in the past are relevant to analyse the risk of a
portfolio.

In addition, VaR only gives an estimate of the loss at a stated 95th percentile (i.e. in five out of 100 days
the loss will be greater than 1-day VaR), but not what the magnitude of loss could be whenever the loss

does exceed VaR.

VaR as a risk measure is most appropriate for liquid markets and may understate the financial impact
of severe events for which there is no historical precedent on where market liquidity may not be reliable.
In particular, historical correlations can break down in extreme markets leading to unexpected relative
market moves. This may make positions that off-set each other in VaR modelling move in the same
direction thus increasing losses. VaR also does not fully capture the impact of defaults by issuers as
these are very rare events.

Given the limitations of the VaR model, the Company uses VaR only as one component of a diverse
market risk management process

. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows or
the fair value of financial instruments.

Exposure to interest rate risk for non-trading financial assets and liabilities:
The Company does not have any floating rate financial assets and liabilities as at the reportmg date,

. therefore a change in interest rate would not affect profit and loss.
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V.

vi.

Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign

exchange rates. The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupee ().

At present, the Company does not have any exposure in foreign currency. (Previous year: NIL)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulties in raising funds to meet its working
capital requirements and commitments, including those associated with financial instruments.

The Company's liquidity risk appetite is defined by the requirement to maintain sufficient liquidity
(through holding a highly fiquid pool of high quality, unencumbered assets that can be monetized) across
market cycles and periods of stress such that all funding requirements and unsecured debt obligations
falling due within the two separately defined stress scenarios can be met without the need to roli
unsecured financing.

The Company has established an Asset and Liabllily Commitiee ("A

RS D b

funding and liquidity risk.

L define iis policy relating to

The Company’s finance department monitors, on an ongoing basis, the Company's funding
requirements and its forecasts, maturity mismatches and liquidity ratios in order to enable the Company
meet its short-term funding requirements.
The Company maintains a portfolio of highly liquid and diverse assets that can be easily iiquidaied in
the event of an unforeseen interruption of cash flow. Liguidity risk is also mitigated through the close

mo tion.
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Exposure to liquidity risk

As at August 31, 2022 In ¥ million
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Particulars amount 1to 7 days days days month to 2 | months to to 6 months months to years years years
months | 3 months 1year
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equivalents
Receivables
- Trade
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assets
Foreign cumency
assets’ i i i i
Financial liabilities
Borrowings® - - - -
Debt securiies® - - - - - -
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Lease liability 53.3 - 08 0.6 08 1.7 35 15.8 209 97
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As at March 31, 2022

In T million

Carrying

Particulars
amount

1to 7 days

8to 14
days

15 to 30/31
days

Over 1
month to 2
months

Over 2
months to
3 months

Over 3 months
to 8 months

Over 6
months to

1 year

Over1to 3
yoars

Over3to5
yoars

Qver 5
yoars

Financial agsets

Cash and cash

A 115
equivalents

Receivables

- Trade
receivables

Investments®® 6,908.7

3341

352.4

73.9

234

Loans® 491.1

2,503.1

3,478.0

143.8

491.1

Other financial 2917
agsels

83.0

42.4

Foreign currency
assets®

Financial liabilities

Borrowings® -

Debt securities®

Deposits®

Lease liability 56.0

0.5

0.5

1.7

3.4

19.9

Other financial 39.2
liabilities

5.8

334

Foreign currency
liabilities®

Inflows 7,633.0

2,514.6

34780

96.2

0.1

226.8

376.5

843.5

73.9

234

Outflows 95.2

6.3

33.9

0.6

1.7

34

15.2

19.9

14.2

%Disclosure pursuant to Annexure XIV of RBI/DNBR/2016-17/45 Master Directions DNBR.PD.004 /03.10.119/2016-
17 Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company
and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 dated September 01, 2016 (as updated on
September 29, 2022).
*Investments and accrued interest on investments are classified as per the “Liquidity risk framework” adopted
by the Company based on RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated November

04, 2019.

*All listed corporate bonds will be placed in the “1 day to 30/31 days" buckets depending on the defeasance
period as defined in the Company's Asset Liability Management ("ALM") Policy.

28. Earnings Per Share

Basic EPS (not annualized) is calculated by dividing the profit for the period attributable to equity holders
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted EPS (not annualized) is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period plus the weighted average
- number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares
into equity shares.

Particulars

August 31, 2022

August 31, 2021

Net Profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company (In T million)

9.9

g91.1.

Weighted average number of shares
at the end of the period

130,000,000

130,000,000

Face value per share

Basic and diluted earnings per share
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29. Segment Reporting

Mr. Ambrish Singh has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM
regularly reviews the performance reports and makes decisions about allocation of resources.

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it
earns revenue and incurs expenses, for which discrete financial information is available.

The Company is a Non-banking financial institution and is primarily engaged in lending and investing
activities. The Company's operations fall under single business segment.

Further the business operations of the Company are primarily concentrated in India. The Company is
considered to operate in the single geographical segment i.e. domestic segment.

Since the Company’s' current business activities primarily falls within a single business and geographical
segment, no additional disciosures are required as per Ind AS 108.
30. Related Party Disclosure

1. Names of related parties:

Nature of relationship Name of party
Parent company Nomura Asia Investmenti (Fixed income) Pie. iLid.
Ultimate parent company Nomura Holdings, Inc.

2. Names of related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the period:

Nature of relationship Name of party
: Nomura Services india Private Limited
Nomura Structured Finance Services Private Limited
Nomura Financial Advisory and Securities (India) Private Limited
Fellow subsidiaries Nomura Fixed Income Securities Private Limited
Nomura Singapore Limited
Nomura Investments (Singapore) Pte. Limited
Nomura Asset Management Co.
Mr. Ambrish Singh (Date of appointment September 30, 2021)
Mr. R. Arun
Key management personnel  |Mr. Shantanu Sahai (Date of resignation April 12, 2022)
Mr. Vipul Chatwani
Mr. Swee Seng Liang (Date of appointment March 14, 2022)
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NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Special Purpose Financial Statements
Notes to Financial Statements for the period April 01, 2022 to August 31, 2022

In ¥ million
Transactions | Amount outstanding | Transactions | Amount outstanding as
Name of related | Nature of ' Nature of during the | as at August 31, 2022 | during the period {  at March 31, 2022
party relationship {ransaction period ended | Receivable/ (Payable) | ended March 31, | Receivable/ (Payable)
august 31, 2022 2022
Support cost
rec‘;’;{ge* 18 (2.2) 339 (0.4)
Nomura Financial
. H | til X O'Ott
ABSON & ey subsigiary | crpendiure 00 07
Securities (India)
Private Limited Recharge to arou
comoa r?ies* group (59) (1) 186 74
Nomura Services Leqal and
India Private Fellow subsidiary g ' . 57 (n 12.1 (0.7}
L professional fees
Limited
Nomura Structured Leqal and
Finance Services |Fellow subsidiary egal o . 29 (0.5) 27 {0.5)
: o professional fees
Private Limited
Nomra Fixed Recharge to grou
Income Securities {Fellow subsidiary g . group 2.7 188
) L companies
Private Limited
Nomyra
Investments Fellow subsidiary |Sale of securities 328.7
{Singapore) Pte.
Nomura Asset .. {Purchase of
Management Co.* Fellow subsidiary o, ijes 2103
e empojes %9 143 47 23
. Key management JPost employement
Directors personnel benefits 08 0.2 4.1 0.1
Employee share
based payments 18 19

*Inclusive of goods and service tax
# Transaction entered with The Nomura Trust and Banklng Co. Limited as the trustee of Indian Local Currency Denominated Bond Mother Fund which
is managed by Nomura Asset Management Co.




NOMURA CAPITAL (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Special Purpose Financial Statements
Notes to Financial Statements for the period April 01, 2022 to August 31, 2022

31. Contingent liabilities

The company is in litigation with tax office in respect of certain additions made to the returned income.
The company has appealed against all of the below orders and the same are pending before the

Commissioner of Income Tax {(Appeals)

4 In T million
Particulars August 31,2022 iMarch 31, 2022
Income Tax FY 2011-12 (AY 2012-13) 9.5 9.5
Income Tax FY 2012-13 (AY 2013-14) 94.0 84.0
Income Tax FY 2013-14 (AY 2014-15) 19.3 19.3
Income Tax FY 2014-15 (AY 2015-16) 8.6 8.6
Total i34.4 131.4
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Firm Registration Number: $012754N/N500016 Nomura Capital (India) Private Limited
nid A
M
o 4\\/\JK /) {7
Sharad Agarwal Arun Kumar Rajappan Vipul Chatwani
Partner Director Director
Membership No: 118522 DIN: 09336231 DIN: 00337576
Place: Mumbai
Date: October 13, 2022 }g\ " ‘/J

Prashant Pangam
Chief Financial Officer

Aritree Chaudhuri
Company Secretary
Membership No.: A43847
Place: Mumbai

Date: October 13, 2022






